
1 

HOUSING AUTHORITY WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING – Silverton Board of Trustees 
Silverton Town Hall – Monday, January 27, 2025 
Call to Order & Roll Call –Housing Authority Work Session @5pm Regular Meeting @7:00pm 

ATTENTION:  The Town of Silverton Trustee meetings are being conducted in a hybrid virtual/in-
person. Instructions for public participation in Town Trustee meetings are as follows: 

• Zoom Webinar Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88637487127
• By Telephone: Dial 669-900-6833 and enter Webinar ID 886 3748 7127 when prompted.
• YouTube (live and recorded for later viewing, does not support public comment):

www.youtube.com/channel/UCmJgal9lUXK5TZahHugprpQ

If you would like to make a public comment during a specific Agenda Item, please submit a 
request to the Town Administrator at gkaasch-buerger@silverton.co.us  

MEETING PROTOCOLS: Please turn off cell phones; be respectful and take personal 
conversations into the lobby. The public is invited to attend all regular meetings and work 
sessions of the Board of Trustees. Regular Meeting Closing Public Comment must be related to 
an agenda item.   

Housing Authority Work Session @5:00pm 
1) 2025 Priority Setting

Regular Meeting @ 7:00pm 
1) Staff and/or Board Revisions to Agenda
2) Public Comment - Comments must be limited to three (3) minutes in duration.
3) Presentations/Proclamations

a) Jordan Marsh Terrapin Electric Concepts on EV Charging Stations in Silverton
4) New Business

a) Reappointment of Parker Newby to the Citizen Advisory Committee for the Bonita Peak
Superfund Project

b) Resolution 2025-02 A Resolution of the Town of Silverton Amending the Tap Fee Cost Overrun
Policy

c) Land Conveyance of Anvil Mountain Subdivision Lots 1 & 32, Boxcar Apartment Site
5) Consent Agenda

a) Payroll
b) Meeting Minutes 1.13.24
c) Accounts Payable
d) December Sales Tax
e) EVENT NOTICE: Silverton Sled Dog Races March 1-2, 2025
f) Administrative correction renaming Resolution 2024-30 adopted on 1/13/25 to Resolution 2024-

37

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88637487127
http://www.youtube.com/channel/UCmJgal9lUXK5TZahHugprpQ
mailto:gkaasch-buerger@silverton.co.us


 

2 
 

6) Staff Reports 
7) Committee/Board Reports 
8) Trustee Reports  
9) Continued Business 

a) PUBLIC HEARING: Second Reading for Adoption of Ordinance 2025-01 An Ordinance of the Town 
of Silverton Repealing and Readopting the Land Use Code and Amending the Official Zoning Map 

b) PUBLIC HEARING: Second Reading for Adoption of Ordinance 2025-01 An Ordinance amending 
Chapter 13, Article 1 - Water and Sewer, of the Silverton Municipal Code to establish application 
of unit utilities and service charges for Accessory Dwelling Units 

10) Public Comment   
11) Request for Executive Session pursuant to §24-6-402(4)(e), C.R.S., Determining positions related to 

matters that may be subject to negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and instructing 
negotiators regarding an objection filed to pay the Transportation Impact Fee  
 
Adjourn 
 

Up-coming Meeting Dates:  
1.28 @7pm Special Meeting   
2.10 @5pm Silverton Housing Authority Meeting 
2.10 @6pm Trustee Work Session 
2.10 @7pm Regular Meeting 
2.18 @9am Finance Committee Meeting 
2.18 @7pm San Juan Regional Planning Commission  
No second Regular Meeting in February due to Trustee retreat.  
End of Agenda   
 



 

 

 

 

 

January 27, 2025 

SILVERTON HOUSING AUTHORITY   

MEETING PACKET 
 



 

1 
 

AGENDA MEMO 
 
SUBJECT: Organizational Priority Setting 
MEETING DATE: 1/27/2024 
STAFF CONTACT: Anne Chase 

 
 
Overview:  
 
This work session is designed to establish organizational priorities for 2025. By the end of this session, the 
following outcomes should be achieved for 2025: 
 

1. Establishing Focus Areas. 
2. Establishing Goal(s) for each Focus Area. 
3. Creating / assigning existing tasks to achieve such goals.  
4. Ensure alignment between organizational values and mission statement.  

 
This session is an opportunity to dream big and think critically about how SHA can best serve our community 
this year.   
 
The following sections can be used to support the priority setting and strategic visioning to take place during 
this meeting.  
 

Impact, Outcomes, Outputs 
 

As we consider priorities, focus areas and goals, it is important to consider the role and impact the Silverton 
Housing Authority plays in our community by using the following metrics:  
 

1. Impact: Long term, sustainable community change resulting from an organization’s work. Best used 
to: 

a. Demonstrate contribution to solving larger societal issues.  
b. Align work with mission.  
c. Attract donors / funders. 

 
2. Outcomes: Result of a program’s outputs and demonstrates progress towards the organization’s 

goals. Usually not quantitative. Best used to: 
a. Assess program effectiveness. 
b. Demonstrate value of work. 
c. Guide strategic planning and resource allocation. 

 
3. Outputs: Direct, completed actions in an organization’s programs that are quantitative and 

measurable. Best used to: 
a. Track program activity and productivity. 
b. Set short term goals and benchmarks.  
c. Compare performance across different periods.  

 



 

2 
 

The Impact, Outcomes and Outputs model is synonymous with our model of Focus Areas, Goals, and Work 
Plan. We can design our focus areas to support our desired impact, tailor our goals based on desired 
outcomes, and ensure the work plan/outputs support our goals.  

SWOT Analysis – Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, Threats 
 
This is a preliminary attempt to assess our organization. If the Board has anything to add, you are invited to 
share during the work session.  

 
Strengths 
 

• Our strongest asset: Alignment with 
Community priorities.   

• Unique resources we have access to: Local 
government support and property ownership. 

 
Things to further consider:  

• What are the things that our community says 
we do well? 

• Do we have a strong stakeholder / community 
base?  
 

Weaknesses 
 

• Areas of Improvement: Limited available 
capital / funding, limited staff capacity, limited 
funding for Staff in 2026.  

• Objections we hear from the community we 
serve: Overreaching/overburdensome 
restrictions on future developments, slow 
development progress.  
 

Things for further consideration:  
• Areas of a lack of Board/Staff Expertise? 

Opportunities 
 

• Trends that might positively affect our 
community: Adopting the new Land Use Code 
that expedites review for affordable housing, 
increasing the rental vacancy rate to encourage 
more competitive, i.e. cheaper, rents.  

• Funding Opportunities: Local fundraising 
initiatives, increasing Short Term Rental fees, 
solidifying partnership with SJC.   

• Target Market: Expanding our reach beyond 
homeownership opportunities.  

Threats (external situations) 
 

• Funding Opportunities: State of Colorado 
Funding Cut may have implications on funding 
availability for future developments.  

• Unknown implications of new presidential term 
on construction market trends & federal 
housing legislation.  

 
 

2024 SHA Action Plan 
In March of 2024, Staff, Board members, and community members attended the Community Builders’ Building 
Better Places Training. This training created an Action Plan to guide SHA’s establishment and efforts in 2024. 
The focus areas of the 2024 action plan were:  
 

1. Funding the Housing Authority – Purpose: Stabilize the SHA Staff and programs.  
2. Policy – Purpose: Create clear direction from TOS Board, Staff, and community.  
3. Board Structure – Purpose: Engage stakeholders in SHA. 
4. Communications & Messaging – Purpose: Provide informative and clear resources for the community.  



 

3 
 

 
The full Action Plan report can be explored in the 2.22.24 Meeting Packet here. 
  

Preliminary 2025 Work Plan 
Board members are invited to brainstorm and suggest additional projects / tasks to support organizational 

goals. Additionally, the Board may choose to prioritize / remove any of the below tasks. 
 

 
 

Homeownership Interest Survey Responses 
 

How can the Silverton Housing Authority to help prepare you for homeownership?  
• Get homes on the market 
• Better interest rates? 
• Invest in the infrastructure required across Shrine Hill to make the lots able to be developed 
• Create affordable housing options & help with getting a mortgage.  
• Help understanding how to purchase a home 
• Our monthly payment toward housing costs needs to remain under $1,200 per month.  
• Assistance finding more first time home buyer loans. 
• Ranch housing / retirement home 
• More deed restricted homes that are open to all income levels. Lower red tape and restrictions to 

building housing.  
• Public information. 
• Not making people fully apply and go through credit checks just to enter an application that probably 

won’t work in their favor anyways.  
• Classes 
• Available housing 
• Knowing my qualifications for a loan and availability. 
• Reduction of vacation rentals.  
• Online resources page with links to e-learning for first time homebuyers. 

https://silvertonhousingauthority.colorado.gov/sites/silvertonhousingauthority/files/documents/4.22.24%20Silverton%20Housing%20Authority%20Packet.pdf


 

4 
 

• Realistic home prices.  
• More information for the application criteria 
• Legal clarity in contracts and contingencies. 
• More time to apply for affordable housing.  

 
SHA Mission and Vision Statement 

 
Mission 

The Silverton Housing Authority’s mission is to advocate, promote, plan, and provide the long-term supply of 
quality affordable housing to support equitable access to housing in the Town of Silverton. 

 
Vision 

 
Our vision is to support the quality of life and economic vitality of the unique community of Silverton by 

increasing housing choices, opportunities, and education for residents. 
 
 

SHA Director’s Input and Considerations 
 

 SHA’s Obligations: 
o DOLA’s Local Planning Capacity Grant Deliverables: 

 Town of Silverton’s Housing Director position salary: Year one (2025) shall be split 75% 
LPC funds / 25% Grantee funds. Year two (2026) shall be 25% LPC funds / 75% Grantee 
funds. During the Agreement period and prior to Project Closeout, the Grantee will provide 
DOLA with plans for maintaining the position into the future. 
 

o Town of Silverton’s Proposition 123 Commitment: Increase the affordable housing stock in 
Silverton by 9% between 2023 and end of year 2026 for a total of 9 new units >100% AMI. Can be 
new construction or preservation/acquisition of existing units converted to affordable rents / sale 
prices.  
 3 qualifying units completed to date, 6 remaining.  

 
o Creation of ADU Stock Plan to qualify as a subject jurisdiction to HB 24-1152. 

 
 SHA Opportunities: 

o Acquisition of existing housing units to be maintained / converted into affordable rental units. 
o Become a Multi-Jurisdictional Housing Authority with San Juan County.  

 
 
  
 



 

 

 

 

 

January 27, 2025 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING PACKET 
 



 

 

 

 

 

January 27, 2025 

1. Staff and/or Board Revisions to Agenda 
This is an opportunity for staff to add, delete or amend items on the agenda as well as an 
opportunity for the board to revise the agenda as well. Trustees can use this agenda item to 
pull an item from the consent agenda that they have either need additional information or 
would like to have a discussion on and put it either in new business or in continued 
business. Typically, the Town Administrator will make an adjustment to the agenda since 
managing the agenda is their main responsibility. 



 

 

 

 
January 27, 2025 

1. Public Comment—Comments must be limited to 
three (3) minutes in duration. 

The opening Public Comment is intended for a citizen to bring up any topic whether it is on the 
agenda or not. The citizen will be asked to state their name for the record.  

The Mayor or Pro Tem will call out the public to comment as well as time the comment and let the 
public know when they have run out of time.  

If a Trustee would like to discuss the comment, they can do so in Trustee Updates. It is not 
encouraged to engage in a dialogue on a public comment because if a public comment is not 
related to an agenda item, staff should be directed to either follow up with the citizen outside the 
meeting or include the topic in the next appropriate agenda (this can be a committee agenda or a 
board of trustee agenda).  

If the comment is related to an agenda item, their comments can be brought up in the discussion of 
that agenda item.  

Comments that are submitted via email about an agenda item will be accepted up until the agenda 
packet is constructed on noon on Wednesday before the Regular Meeting. Comments that are 
received after this deadline will be emailed to the trustees and not included in the packet. 
Comments that are emailed are not considered “official public comment” unless they are 
presented at the meeting or submitted for a Public Hearing before the Wednesday deadline.  

Public Comments specific to a Public Hearing on the agenda should be encouraged to take place 
during the public hearing and not during the opening Public Comment, so that their comments can 
be recorded with the hearing.  

Opening Public Comment is not addressed in the Silverton Municipal Code.  

 



 

 

 

 

 

January 27, 2025 

3. Presentations and Proclamations 
Presentations can be scheduled with the board on a variety of topics that usually relate to 
board direction or goals. The Town Administrator schedules these presentations and works 
with the presenter to keep their presentation in 30 minutes or less including an anticipated 
questions and answer period with the Trustees.  

Proclamations can be used to declare an emergency (SMC 2-7-30) or recognize a 
community member or organization for their service. Trustees can request a proclamation 
during the Trustee Updates agenda item.  



Community-Centered Microgrid & EV Charging Solutions

Powering the
Future of Silverton

PRESENTED BY:
TERRAPIN ELECTRIC CONCEPTS



Company
Overview
Terrapin is dedicated to shaping a sustainable future by
making EV charging accessible, reliable, and community-
focused. With nearly two decades of expertise in renewable
energy development, we specialize in innovative solutions
that foster environmental stewardship and sustainable
growth.

Silverton’s dedication to sustainability and natural
preservation makes it an ideal partner for advancing EV
infrastructure. Together, we can enhance accessibility, boost
the local economy, and reduce environmental impact.

At Terrapin, we believe that giving back creates limitless
opportunities. Our mission is to partner with communities to
deliver transformative results that benefit people and the
planet.

Terrapin: Driving the Future of Clean Energy



Key benefits for
Silverton

Resiliency:
Additional revenue from charging
locations supports town budgets
and the corresponding resiliency
plan. Strategic placement
maximizes these opportunities. 

01
Redundancy:
Backup power options address
concerns for power outages.
Additional solar generation sites
with DC storage capacity will
create redundancy. 

02
Revenue:
Terrapin has developed a
revenue sharing model and
scalable solution that will
increase profitability for the town
of Silverton by creating year
round revenue.

03



A native Coloradan, Jordan Marsh founded Terrapin Electric
Concepts to deliver innovative and reliable EV charging
solutions to communities that have been overlooked for
infrastructure investment. He has over 15 years of experience in
finance, development, and renewables. Jordan is dedicated to
creating smarter energy systems and making a positive impact
on communities.

He holds a bachelor’s degree from the University of Vermont
and a master’s degree from Middlebury College, with
additional certifications from the University of Denver. Outside
of work, Jordan enjoys stargazing, guitar, and the outdoors. A
lifelong music lover and self-proclaimed "Deadhead," he
channels his passion for the arts into supporting local cultural
and educational initiatives.

We’ll Be
There Soon
Jordan Marsh | Founder



Our vision for
Silverton
Strategic EV charging & microgrid sites 

EV charging with
solar in high traffic

sites to maximize EV
charging revenue

Prioritize locations
with additional

revenue
opportunities

Beginnings of micro
grid through

installation of solar at
EV sites to build

redundancy

Longterm
collaboration with

Silverton to achieve
targets for charging

and renewables 

01 02 03 04



Visitor Center Senior CenterKendall Mountain

Site Proposals

Town ShopAnesi Park



Utilization Rate

Solar + EV Revenue
Generating Examples

Visitor
Center

$10,000

Silverton, CO

Site host revenue ~$1,500 per month per charger assuming 50% of charging income , a 15% utilization rate, and $150 fee per space

6 4

$10,000 $6,500

6

Kendall
Mountain

Senior
Center

DC Chargers

Potential Monthly
Revenue for Site

Host



How we
operate

For each project we bring the best team and
funding opportunities to fill the site host’s needs,
allowing us to provide innovative and tailored
solutions for our customers.

Item 1
25%

Item 2
25%

Item 3
25%

Item 4
25%

Engineering

Equipment

Network

Installation

Terrapin



Engineering & Site Design

Founded in 1992, this full-service architecture and engineering firm operates as an employee-
owned S-Corporation, bringing decades of expertise to its projects. Licensed to work in 49
states, the firm boasts a team of 29 licensed staff members. With extensive experience in

public-private partnerships, EV charging, solar, and micro grids, it has established a reputation
for delivering innovative and reliable solutions across a wide range of projects.

Key Projects

DETROIT MUNICIPAL 

EV charging
contract

FLORIDA DOT 

EV charging - 26
sites on state

highways

AMAZON

Fleet charging, 
+400 LVL 2 chargers

BOSTON MUNICIPAL 

EV curbside 
parking contract



Network

Key benefits of being part of the EV Range Network

CHARGING
MANAGEMENT

SYSTEM

PAYMENT
SYSTEM & APP

NATIONWIDE
NETWORK

LOAD
MANAGEMENT

OPERATIONAL
SUPPORT
SERVICES

CERTIFIED
CHARGING
STATIONS



Our Process

DAY
13

Goal
Budget
Timeline

DAY
21

DAY
34

DAY
55

DAY
55

DAY
89

DAY
144

Initial Contact
& Letter of Intent

Needs
Assessment

Site & Revenue
Model Selection

Full Design &
Permit Submit

Final
Contract

Utility & Permit
Approvals &
Installation

30% Site plan
3 Financial

scenario options
Estimated timeline

Full site plan 
SoW with key
milestones &

ownership
model

Work follows
SoW

Site
Development
& Preparation

Work follows
SoW

DAY
00

No formal
commitment



Thank You

www.terrapinconcepts.com +1  (801) 979-1307 admin@terrapinconcepts.com

WEB: PHONE NUMBER : EMAIL :



EV CHARGING STATION
DESIGN
Ramaker | Architecture + Engineering 
(608) 643-4100 | www.ramaker.com



2

Ramaker is a full-service architecture and 
engineering firm headquartered in Sauk City, 
Wisconsin. Our staff consists of architects, 
civil engineers, environmental engineers, 
geologists, MEP engineers, structural 
engineers, surveyors, and wetland scientists, 
as well as anthropologists and archaeologists.

Our core mission is to enhance the lives of our 
clients and employee-owners. We bring this to 
life by providing the best experience for clients 
and striving to go above and beyond what is 
expected. Our exceptional staff provides a 
personal touch while working both locally and 
nationally with companies of all sizes. With our 
current workforce of experienced architectural 
and engineering professionals, Ramaker is 
positioned to take client satisfaction to a new 
level.

ABOUT RAMAKER
100% EMPLOYEE-OWNED SINCE 2007

Our team of qualified and passionate 
professionals has worked on thousands of 
projects together and are able to complete your 
project in-house, regardless of the physical 
location of our staff. We utilize the most up-to-
date software, allowing us to collaborate in real 
time across all locations.

115 employee-
owners 49 states in which our 

staff is licensed 29 professionally 
licensed staff 10 office locations 

nationwide

Established //
1992

Business Organization // 
S-Corporation

Headquarters // 
855 Community Drive
Sauk City, WI 53583

Phone // 
(608) 643-4100

Web // 
ramaker.com

THE RAMAKER DIFFERENCE



3

As more and more EVs hit the road, 
today’s drivers need quick and efficient 
charging infrastructure to power cleaner 
transportation. The key to meeting this 
demand? More accessible electric vehicle 
charging stations.

Ramaker partners with leading developers 
and contractors to engineer, design, and 
implement Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3 
EV charging systems across the country. 
Our portfolio includes charging stations for 
electric cars, buses, trucks, and yard tractors 
in commercial, municipal, residential, and 
retail environments.

As a full-service engineering firm, Ramaker 
can provide permitting support and technical 
guidance for any portion of your development 
process.

•	 Site Evaluation & Permitting Support

•	 Electrical Engineering 

•	 Civil Engineering

•	 Structural Engineering

•	 Wetland Delineation 

•	 Cultural Resource Studies

•	 Phase I & II Environmental Site 
Assessments

•	 Hydrologic/Hydraulic Modeling

•	 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plans

•	 Geotechnical Investigations

•	 Structural Foundation Design

•	 ALTA & Topographic Surveys

•	 Construction Staking

•	 Construction Monitoring and 
Inspections

SERVICES PROVIDED

ELECTRIC VEHICLE 
CHARGING STATIONS

Engineering for a more 
sustainable energy future

CLIENT-CENTERED PROJECT APPROACH
1.	 Work with the client on a comprehensive 

site design to confirm the best and most 
cost-efficient equipment layout

2.	 Integrate equipment documentation and 
specifications into our plans, allowing 
contractors full-scale clarity on design 
requirements

3.	 Develop complete electrical documents 
depicting power requirements and 
equipment necessary to operate the site

4.	 Detail site responsibilities between the 
local utility company and the client to 
ensure the final on-site connection is 
seamless



4

ORANGE, CT & 
LEXINGTON, KY

AMAZON DISTRIBUTION CENTER

In both locations, we provided engineering design and management service to 
support the installation of new EV Charging Systems, which added 420 LVL 2 
chargers and 4 LVL 3 chargers.

COMPLETED PROJECTS

RED HOOK CONTAINER TERMINAL, NEWARK, NJ

BYD/RED HOOK YARD TRACTOR 
PROJECT

Prepared complete engineered design and construction drawings for ten 40kw 
AC fast chargers for ten BYD yard tractors

PHILADELPHIA, PA

BLINK - SOUTH PORT PLAZA STRIP 
MALL PARKING LOT

Prepared complete engineered design and construction drawings for one 175kw 
fast charger and three 50kw chargers

ELEVEN LOCATIONS ACROSS THE STATE HIGHWAYS

BLINK - VERMONT HIGHWAY 
AUTHORITY

Prepared complete engineered design and construction drawings for one 175kw 
fast charger and two (2) 50kw chargers



5

LONG ISLAND, NY

LONG ISLAND 
BUS COMPANY

Prepared complete engineered design and construction drawings for one loca-
tion with ten bus charging stations 

MULTIPLE LOCATIONS IN NYC

L&T TECHNOLOGY/
CADILLAC

Preparing complete engineered design and construction drawings for ten EV car 
charging locations throughout NYC

MULTIPLE LOCATIONS ALONG FL STATE HIGHWAYS

L&T TECHNOLOGY - 
FLORIDA DOT

26 sites throughout Florida along major highways, multiple chargers at each 
location 

NORTHEAST STATES MARKET AREAS
VOLTA

Various locations throughout the Midwest, multiple car chargers at each  
location

COMPLETED PROJECTS



Electric Vehicle 
Charging Station 
Platform

Commercial & Fleet EV Solutions

EVRange.com



Highly confidential. Not intended for consumer audience.
2

About EV Range

Rapid Deployment & Managed Operations for EV Charging Infrastructure
Solving the EV Infrastructure problem through deployment, user experience, reliability & grid support

Site Acquisition & Deployment 

Operational Support Services

Station Management Software

Certified Charging Stations



Highly confidential. Not intended for consumer audience.
3

Software: Charging Station Management System & Apps 

Driver focused platform providing an 
easy-to-use flow with innovative metrics

Features:

Real-time status and alerts

Plug & Charge for fleets

Utilization Data

Carbon Offset Metrics 

Payment processing

Customizable billing plans

Brandable driver pay app

Live location map with station availability

RFID activations and token management

Load management

Federal/State regulatory compliance and reporting Find us on



Highly confidential. Not intended for consumer audience.
4

Software: Payment System & App

Start with the EV Range STANDARD Plan   NO MONTHLY OR ANNUAL FEES

Features include:

3 Revenue Generating  Plans - Standard / Premium / Commercial

Driver alerts for charging completion

Custom Branding Options (Dependant on Plan)

Driver support call center

Driver App with innovative interactive power graph

Live location map with station availability

Monitor sessions in realtime on the EVR CSMS

YOUR LOGO

Site Dashboard for public, valet and parking management 
realtime status information 



Highly confidential. Not intended for consumer audience.
5

Software: Revenue Generation

Bill Drivers by Energy, Time and Charge Overstay/Idle Fees after Charge Completion

Features include:

Charge drivers by kWh or by minute (per State requirements)

Motivate drivers to move their vehicle after charging with overstay penalty fees

No arduous new credit card processing account set up

EV Range provides the payment system ready, plug and play ready

Net revenue is distributed monthly with  site usage report

Provide overstay exception periods, such as at level 2 chargers at 
hotels, to give drivers until the morning to move their vehicles

Brand pay app as your own (license level dependant)



Highly confidential. Not intended for consumer audience.
6

Software: Load Management

Manage Utility Costs & Maximize Available Power

Features include:

Set power limit that site/group does not exceed

Set guaranteed minimum power for priority stations

Protect existing electrical infrastructure

Protect utility infrastructure

Monitor with real-time load graph

Manage electric utility costs (mitigate demand charges)

Maximise power on single and 3-phase systems



Highly confidential. Not intended for consumer audience.
7

Operational Support Services

Toll-free 24/7 call center support 

Proactive station monitoring with live status

Remote diagnostic repair response

Technician and maintenance personnel alerts

Station and part warranty

Dynamic and custom reporting for compliance

Support ticket dashboard

Built for user experience and station uptime

O&M field service SLA available

Fully Managed Support Services for YOUR Infrastructure

Proactive diagnostics, dynamic reporting and driver call center support services 



Highly confidential. Not intended for consumer audience.
8

Certified Charging Stations

● EVR certifies stations on our platform, not the other way around.

● Tight EVR backend integration with hardware ensures a positive user experience.

● EVR works with vendors that provide detailed error information and logs for support excellence.

● Detailed logs better prepare EVR Network Operations Center-  reducing field service costs.

Full suite of charging stations certified through extensive tests to ensure 
performance, driver experience, reliability and serviceability. 

Product Information Link

https://www.evrange.com/certified-ev-charging-stations


Highly confidential. Not intended for consumer audience.
9

Deployment

Highly confidential. Not intended for consumer audience.
9

Need support in deploying charging stations?

In-house EPC subsidiary has deployed 400 high-powered DCFCs

Services for EV deployments include; Consulting 
Assessments
Electrical Capacity Reviews
Microgrids
Site Design
Permitting
Construction Management
Utility coordination
Grant Support

An EV Range Company



Highly confidential. Not intended for consumer audience.
10

EV Range Network Licensing

Terms
All plans prepaid on 5 year plans

All EV Range Plans come with Partner and Driver phone and email support

Complete payment processing solution with net revenue distributed monthly

24-7 Call Center Support (DriverCare)

24-7 Charger Monitoring and Remote Remedy Service (UptimeCare)

Minimum driver fee of $0.20/kWh on all revenue plans

MACID Token is only available on Private/Fleet Plan

Additional Terms and Conditions: https://www.evrange.com/user-terms-of-service

Upgrades
Revenue Plan Free Charging Token Access (MACID, RFID, PIN, Email) $2 /token use
Load Management (manage charger group power) $3 /month/charger

EV Range Network Software Licence Plans
Network Fee
/Charger/month

Transaction Fee
/Transaction Free Charging Token Access

Revenue Plans
Standard (no logo - your information in text format only) $0 $1 + 17.5% Optional Upgrade
Premium (your logo displayed under station info) $20 $0.50 + 12.5% Optional Upgrade
Commercial (premium branding - app header with your logo) $35 $0.25 + 10% Optional Upgrade
Enterprise (premium branding - app header with your logo) $75 $0.00 + 8.5% Optional Upgrade

Private/Fleet/Free Plans
FreeVend - Public non revenue charging $40 N/A N/A - All Free
Private/Fleet - charge approved users/vehicles & track charging history by user/vehicle $50 Optional - for non fleet vehicles Unlimited

https://www.evrange.com/user-terms-of-service


Highly confidential. Not intended for consumer audience.
11

403 W 21st St
San Pedro 
CA 90731

t: 424-240-8181
e: info@evrange.com



2025

BTC POWER is the leading manufacturer of electric vehicle charging 

systems in the North American market, headquartered in Santa Ana, 

California. BTC POWER designs and manufactures AC Level 2 and 

DC Fast Chargers for operation in private, commercial, workplace and 

highway locations to charge electric passenger vehicles and medium 

and heavy-duty electric vehicles such as electric school buses, 

shuttle and transit buses as well as Class 8 trucks.

An Introduction



OVERVIEW



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

Corporate Product Operation

Founders launched 
the business, called "FMI" 
in Santa Ana, CA 

Developed and 
manufactured the POS 
system for BP

Launched BTC, 
Santa Ana CA, as 
off-road Electric fast 
charger company

Developed and 
manufactured Electric 
Fast Chargers for the 
industrial forklift industry

Launched BTC, 
Cebu Philippines, as 
offshore manufacturing

Sold over $100M 
(cumulative) of POS 
to BP

Developed and 
manufactured first 
AC & DC charger for  
on-road vehicles

Sold over $100M 
(cumulative) of Electric 
Fast Chargers for the 
forklift industry

Sold company to Innogy 
(E.on) Germany

Sold first DC "HPC" (High 
Power Charger)

Commissioned the 
1,000th BTC DC charger 
in the U.S.

Expanded Plant 2 in 
Cebu, Philippines 
expanding manufacturing, 
warehousing and 
engineering capabilities

Achieved record revenue 

Shipped first product to 
Electrify America (“EA”)

Commissioned the 
2,000th BTC DC charger 
in the U.S.

Sold first DC HPC 
in Europe

Expanded into other key 
customer verticals with 
tier 1 customers

• Fleet, Oil & Gas, 

Utilities/municipalities

Record backlog achieved 
in Q1 2022

Introduction of Gen 4 
product line 

Engineering team grew 
by 30% vs. 2020 

Buy America Building 
launched

Expanded  Gen 4 product 
line 



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

BTC POWER is a leader in the rapidly 
evolving fast charging space…
BTC POWER is a top DC fast charging manufacturer with leading innovation 
capabilities and track record of commercial success

11.8mm
Charging sessions in 2024

~25%
Market share1

$110mm
2024 Revenue

25,000+
Commissioned 

Chargers in the U.S.

Employees globally

~450

51%
2021-2025E revenue CAGR



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

New England

New York

Washington DC

Atlanta

Orlando

Dallas

Irvine, CA

Denver

Northern 

California

Poland

Seattle

• Business HQ

• Engineering HQ

• Operations HQ

• Call Center 

• On-Site Support

• Training
Allows BTCP to 

manufacture 

and assemble

in America

• On-Site Support

• Engineering Center

• 24/7 Remote Support

• Production Operations

• Engineering Center

• 24/7 Call Center

• Training

© Copyright 2024 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

Detroit/

Cleveland

Strategically located manufacturing footprint



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

Employees: 127 (NA), >400 Total

• Executive Management

• Business Operations Management

• Customer Service, dispatch 

team, field service

• SLA/Maintenance Contracts

• SFDC ticketing system, 

KPI’s, analytics

• Training

• Sales

• Marketing, Product, and Program Management

• Global Commodity Management

• Supplier Quality Management

• Material Sourcing 



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

• 30,000 Ft2 Production

• Final Assembly

• 5-Production Lines

• High Bay Warehousing

• 2 Oversized Dock High Doors (4 DH Positions)

• North America Service and Maintenance Parts Fulfillment 

• End of Line Testing 3.3 MW

• Intertek Certified

• ISO 9001

• ISO 14001

• Global SIOP (Sales, Inventory, Operations and Planning)

• North America Fulfillment/Scheduling

• R&D, End-to-End (HW, SW) 

engineering capabilities

• Backend and vehicle interop testing

• System design consulting

services

• Site evaluations/drawings

• Technician Certification Courses

• Hands-on training of the full BTC POWER product line

• Documentation development and management



PRODUCT 

OFFERING



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

Sweet-Spot

Electric utility operatorsMid and Last mile delivery Destination /
Gas stations

Public parkingAutos TrucksOn highway Off highway

(Min – Max in kW)

(Min – Max in A)

• All-in-one solution

• L2 AC Units

• Customizable interface

• Outlet modularity

• Integrated payment

• All-in-one solution

• L2 AC Units

• Distributed approach

• Low maintenance

• Integrated payment

• Distributed approach

• High availability (up-time)

• Low maintenance

• Scalable and expandable

• All-in-one solution

• L2 AC Units

• Outlet modularity

• Integrated payment

• Scalable and expandable

• Roadmap alignment and 
development Support

• L2 AC Units

• All in One - End of Line Testing

50 35050 960 50 200 100 35050 350

30 3080 80 30 80 30 80 30 80



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

Source: P3 Analysis

SAE J-1772 Single or 

dual connector
(Type 2 upon request)

120 kW All-in-One DCFC up to 180kW  Distributed systems available up to 360kW

Wall Mount or pedestal 

mount cord retractor 

optional 



LEVEL 2 

SOLUTIONS



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

© Copyright 2024 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

7” LCD display

Pedestal or 

wall mount

Single or 

dual connector

7.68, 11.52 or 19.2kW AC Level 2 

Charging Power

AC charging at 32, 48 or 80A on 

either/both outlets

Robust units that are adaptable to 

different parking layouts in various 

environments

Enables installation of a single asset that 

can charge multiple vehicles up to 80A each

Hardware capability for PLC 

Communication, Plug & Charge, 

Bidirectional Flow, and OCPP2.0.1

Optional 

Retraction



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

Destinatio
n 

Locations

• Hospitality Industries

• Office Spaces

• Shopping Centers

• Educational Institutions

• Public Institutions

• Residential Communities

• Parking Structures/Garages

Fleet 

• Delivery Vehicles

• Warehouses

• Service Trucks

• Buses



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

Improved Hardware

• ISO 15118 Hardware Ready - means future for Plug & Charge

• EnergyStar Compliance

• CTEP Compliance (more accurate metering, California requirement)

• NACS Connector Option (Q1 2025)

BTCPs Level 2 charging technology is well-established and widely tested, offering reliability and safety 
for everyday use.

• Sold over 10,000 L2 units in the last 5 years

• Key accounts: Sate of NY, DOT, Amazon, FedEx, Ford

Level 2 Means:

• Small footprint

• Lower Initial Investment



GEN 4 

TECHNOLOGY



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

DC fast

charging station
High powered DC 

charging station

Charging cable & plug

HMI & display

Payment terminal

Common building block

High power density

Simplify service

Drives economies of scale

Shortens time to market

Common user experience

Gen 4 power module 90% smaller than Gen 2 modules

e.g: CAN-COM

Controller & COM Power modules

e.g: AC/DC-Meter E/E

Wiring Contactors

Mech/Elec. 

components

Streamlined upgrade path



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

BTC POWER s Gen 4 Advantages
Best in Class Proven Availability

>97.6%
Gen 4 average availability

as of August 9th, 2024

“States or other direct 

recipients must ensure that 

each charging port has an 

average annual uptime of 

greater than 97%”

National Electric Vehicle Infrastructure 

Standards and Requirements

Federal Highway Administration, U.S. 

Department of Transportation



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

Voltage range at full power available from 260-530VAC. This will allow for single 

unit Worldwide

Power Modules allow for scalability across multiple charging platforms 

(30kw to 480kw). Operating up to 1,000 VDC

Up to 90 % Smaller then Gen2

> 95% power efficiency rating at nominal output power

Module weight < 16kg (~35lbs), can be changed out in < 30 minute with 

a single technician

© Copyright 2024 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

… …



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

BTC s Gen 4 advantages
Simplified service

Reduced complexity and time to install and service

Front door access
to all components

1
Replaceable power 
module; no wiring 

2

Replaceable control 
module

3

Easy installation

✓ Less than 30 minutes required for a technician to change out modules

✓Only one person required for installation

Simple service

✓Zero wiring required 

✓Module weighs less than 16 kg

Reduced complexity and time to install and service



Current Products



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

© Copyright 2024 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

High powered DC charging with up 

to 500 A Max

Future-proof charging with max.  

1,000 Vdc architecture

System available with up to 180 kW 

power level configuration

The AiO-system can charge up to 

two vehicles with DC in parallel

The charging system can interface 

with every central system which 

supports OCPP 



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

© Copyright 2024 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

High powered DC charging with up 

to 1000 A continuous  (Per 

Channel)

800 A single channel capability

Future-proof charging with max.  

1,000 Vdc architecture

System available with up to 360 kW 

power level configuration

System can charge up to (4) vehicles 

with separate dispensers or using 

the same dispenser

The charging system can interface 

into every central system which 

supports OCPP

…

IP54* & IK10 rating

2x or 4x 

DC-outlets

Modular DC power stacks



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

© Copyright 2024 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

High powered DC charging with up to 

500 A to a single cable

Future-proof charging with max.

950  VDC architecture

Cooling system is integrated into the 

Dispenser so that installation is 

simplified and no need to run cooling 

line from separate chiller system

Enables the ability to have a single 

dispenser charge 2 vehicles up to 450A 

simultaneously

The charging system can interface with all 

backends that support OCPP 

Hardened Enclosure

NEMA 3R rating

15” Touchscreen 

& RFID 

(Standard)

CC Reader 

(Optional)

2x DC-outlets 

with CCS and/or 

CHAdeMO/ 

NACS 

*Ship date Q3 2024



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

270 kW

**

90 kW

180 kW 180 kW

90 kW

0 kW

270 kW

360 kW

Car 1 arrives

Car 2 arrives

Car 1 power 

request <180 kW 

Car 1 power 

request <90 kW

Channel A Channel B

Up to 540A per 

Connector *

Payment Available/Required

* 500A Max is possible from Tower but Depends on Dispenser

** Some Vehicles do NOT allow feature

DC Output 

Switchgear

90 kW Power 

Increments

Grid

480 

VAC

Power cabinets

360 kW0 kW

Car 1 stop

Dispenser 2 remains 

available

Second car will 

receive Minimum 

increment of 

power (90kW)

Represents 

tower



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

0 kW 300 kW

150 kW

0 kW

150 kW

300 kW

Car 1 arrives

Car 2 arrives

Car 1 stops 

charging, Car 2 has 

300kW Available

Channel A Channel B

Up to 540A per 

Connector *

Payment Available/Required

* 500A Max is possible from Tower but Depends on Dispenser

** Some Vehicles do NOT allow feature

DC Output 

Switchgear

Grid

480 

VAC

Power cabinets

Channel B remains available

Represents 

tower



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

© Copyright 2024 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

High powered DC charging with up to 
350A continuous (90-180kW)

Use only one Power Cabinet to power 4 

Dual Fleet Dispensers, allowing for the 

ability to charge up to 8 vehicles

Has a sleek design allowing for a 

smaller footprint

One vehicle can charge at a time and 

sequence to the second vehicle/

connector once first vehicle is completed

The charging system can interface with all 

backends that support OCPP 

OCPP 2.0.1 Ready

7” Touchscreen & 

RFID (Standard)

2x DC-outlets with CCS

Optional Retraction



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

<90kW*0 kW

0 kW <90 kW

0 kW

0 kW

<90 kW*

<180 kW*

<90 kW0 kW

<90 kW 0 kW

0 kW

0 kW

<90 kW*

0 kW

<90 kW0 kW

0 kW <90 kW

0 kW

0 kW

<90kW

< 180kW*

<90 kW0 kW

<90 kW 0 kW

0 kW

0 kW

<90kW

0 kW

Car 1 starts 

charging up to 

180kW

Car 3 starts 

charging, Car 1 

charging reduced 

to 90kW

Car 1 stops 

charging, Car 2 

starts charging

Car 3 stops 

charging, Car 4 

starts charging

* 180kW is available with complete occupied Tower/Power Cabinet. Max Current is 350A with Fleet Dispenser

DC Output 

switchgear

90 kW (300A) 

Power increments

Grid

or

Represents tower

360kW power cabinets

1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4

System Available for order 

now



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

• Blue Bird

• MicroBird

• Lion Electric

• Thomas Built Buses

• GreenPower

• Collins (Ford e-Transit)

• BYD

• Motiv Power

• Navistar

• Phoenix Motor

• Optimal Electric Vehicles

• Unique Electric Solutions



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

BTCP Reputation

Known for high reliability 
(>97% uptime on more 

than 20,000 HPC available 
24.7, 365)

Can Charge up to 8 
vehicles from 1 power 

cabinet within 4-6 hours

Competition needs a much 
larger power cabinet to 

achieve similar feat. 
More cost effective

More Economical/Cost 
Effective solution to charge 

more vehicles
Utility Company rebates

PG&E



FUTURE 

PRODUCTS



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

© Copyright 2024 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

High powered DC charging with up 

to 600 A

Future-proof charging with max.  

1000 VDC architecture

System available with up to 320 kW 

power level configuration

The AiO-system can charge up to 

two vehicles in parallel

The charging system can interface 

with all backends that support 

OCPP 

All-in-One Enclosure 

NEMA 3R rating

Modular 

DC power stacks

…



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

© Copyright 2024 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

• 350A Non-Cooled

• 600A Continuous with 800A Boost 

Mode

Future-proof charging with max.

950  VDC architecture

Cooling system is integrated into the 

Dispenser so that installation is 

simplified and no need to run cooling 

line from separate chiller system

Enables the ability to have a single 

dispenser charge 2 vehicles up to 600A 

simultaneously

The charging system can interface with all 

backends that support OCPP 

Hardened Enclosure

NEMA 3R rating

15” Touchscreen 

& RFID 

(Standard)

CC Reader 

(Optional)

2x DC-outlets 

with CCS and/or 

CHAdeMO/ 

NACS 



NACS



© Copyright 2025 BTC POWER, All Rights 

Reserved

Link

NACS Cut Over Timing:

• 2030: NACS= 20-25M, CCS= 1-2M

• Non-Tesla NACS to surpass CCS Around 2027

• Non-Tesla NACS to surpass Tesla Around 2028

BTC Development Update:

• Cable Development: Working with 4+ Cable 
suppliers on Non-Cooled & Cooled (200-600A)

• Successfully Testing with Gen 4 Link

Data Assumptions:

• All NA EVs Change to NACS late 2025 (Including VW, 

Hyundai, and Kia)

• Future sales based on trendline growth

• NO retirement of EVs

https://www.linkedin.com/posts/btcpower_nacs-ev-emobility-activity-7079884767139147776-RuwV/?utm_source=share&utm_medium=member_android


© Copyright 2025 BTC Power, All Rights Reserved

is the first 

of many planned 

product innovations 

scheduled to accelerate 

long-term growth 



 

 

 

 

 

January 27, 2025 

4. New Business 
Items that the Board of Trustees have not discussed will appear in this agenda item. If the 
topic has appeared in a committee prior to the regular meeting, the topic is still considered 
New Business for the entire board.  

Per Silverton Municipal Code 2-2-110(6):  

New business. The Board of Trustees shall consider any business not heretofore 
considered, including the introduction or reading of ordinances and resolutions. 

 

https://library.municode.com/co/silverton/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=CD_ORD_CH2AD_ART2MABOTR_DIV1GEPR_S2-2-110ORBU


 

AGENDA MEMO 
 
SUBJECT: CAG Reappointment 
STAFF CONTACT: Gloria Kaasch-Buerger 
MEETING DATE: 1.27.25 

 
 
Overview: 
A Community Advisory Group (CAG) is an important tool for enhancing community involvement in the Superfund 
process. CAGs serve as a public forum for representatives of diverse community interests to present and discuss their 
concerns related to the Superfund decision-making process. A CAG also provides opportunities for EPA to present its 
work which CAG members can disseminate through their various contacts and constituencies. VISIT CAG WEBSITE 
 
A CAG can assist the EPA in making better decisions at a Superfund site, while offering a unique opportunity for the 
EPA to hear – and seriously consider – community preferences related to environmental investigations, remediation 
activities, and overall environmental and human health goals. EPA’s two criteria for approving a CAG are that 
members represent a diversity of interests within the community and that they live in the affected area (in this 
case within the Animas River watershed). While a CAG is strictly an advisory group, it serves as an official, 
long-term mechanism for local citizens to engage with the EPA and its partnering agencies.  
 
CAG formation committee felt it important to offer the local governmental entities direct representation on the CAG 
via a selected liaison. Therefore, the CAG applications were forwarded to the four local governments in the Colorado 
portion of the watershed – San Juan County (CO), Town of Silverton, La Plata County and the City of Durango.1 
 
Staff did not find any state or code stipulations that would require the Town to advertise for this position and a 
reappointment can be made at the discretion of the Board of Trustees.  
 
Parker Newby 
Parker Newby, PLS is a registered land surveyor in Colorado and has been involved in a wide variety of survey and 
engineering projects throughout the Four Corners region including water delivery systems, wastewater treatment 
facilities and boundary projects of all sizes. He is a graduate of Fort Lewis College with a BA in English and also has 
an Associate Degree in surveying from the Denver Institute of Technology. Parker has been on the board of directors 
for the Professional Land Surveyors of Colorado and is a past President of the SW Chapter. Parker has a passion for 
the San Juan mountains and has lived, worked and recreated in them since 1980. 
 
Attachments:  
 

• Reappointment Letter from Parker Newby 
 
Current CAG members: 

 
1 This information was pulled directly from the bonitapeakcag.org  

https://www.bonitapeakcag.org/cag-members/


 

AGENDA MEMO 
 
SUBJECT: CAG Reappointment 
STAFF CONTACT: Gloria Kaasch-Buerger 
MEETING DATE: 1.27.25 

 
Motion or Direction:  
 
Motion to retain Parker Newby as the Bonita Peak Mining District Community Advisory Board representative for the 
Town of Silverton.  
 



Outlook

CAG Appointment

From Parker Newby <psnewby9300@gmail.com>
Date Tue 12/17/2024 9:21 PM
To Gloria Kaasch-Buerger <gkaasch-buerger@silverton.co.us>

Gloria,
I am writing to you with respect to my appointment on the Citizens Advisory Group for the EPA Bonita Peak
Mining District.  I was reappointed as the Town of Silverton representative by the Town Trustees in February 2022,
for a second three year appointment.  My term will expire in February 2025, and I want to express my interest in
continuing in this capacity for the next three years; if it is the desire of the Board of Trustees. 

Over the last three years as the Town appointee to the CAG I have remained actively involved with EPA during the
startup and construction of the repository. This involved attending numerous meetings and field sessions with
EPA to express concerns of the citizens and the Town regarding traffic impacts and community access around the
site.  I have remained active and consistent year round in assisting with the collection of water samples from the
confluence of Cascade Creek and the Animas, as well as on the Animas below Elk Creek.  These samples have
helped fill gaps in the EPA data base, and will help inform the CAG’s upcoming efforts in establishing Animas River
water quality goal recommendations to the EPA. 

If reappointed I will continue my monthly update emails to the Trustees and yourself to help keep the Town
informed about the ongoing efforts of EPA and the CAG.  I would welcome the opportunity to meet in person
with any of the Trustees or yourself to further identify how I may be of assistance with Town representation to the
EPA.

Please consider my reappointment at the next available Town Trustee meeting and if you have any questions
please don’t hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Parker S. Newby
psnewby9300@gmail.com
970.749.0113

mailto:psnewby9300@gmail.com


 

AGENDA MEMO 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution Amendment- Tap Fee Cost Overrun Policy 
 
STAFF CONTACT: John Sites 
MEETING DATE: January 27, 2025 

 
 
Overview:  
 
The Trustees adopted Resolution 2022-12 to mitigate Town incurred costs on non-typical tap installations that place 
an undue burden on the taxpayers due to their complicated and expensive nature. Examples include bedrock requiring 
blasting or hammering, shallow groundwater, steep terrain and other unknown obstacles beyond that of a standard tap 
installation. Staff has realized the need to add three additional conditions to the Resolution.  
 

• Utility cuts which would include removal and replacement of asphalt and concrete. 
• Fire sprinkler taps, or any oversize tap (larger than two inches).  
• Construction management of the non-typical installations should be managed by the private developer and 

overseen by the Public Works Department.   
 
Budget Impact: 
 
By passing these significant costs on to property owners wishing to install such taps, the Town and taxpayers save a 
significant amount of money on each installation. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends adopting Resolution 2025-02, A Resolution of the Town of Silverton Amending the Tap Fee Cost 
Overrun Policy, which amends Resolution 2022-12 to include utility cuts, oversize taps and construction management 
to the existing policy.  
 
Attachments: 
 

• Resolution 2022-12 with changes tracked 
• Resolution 2025-02 

 
Master Plan Priority:  
 
Building Community Trust and Improving Governance: E. Town Capacity and Governance 
 
Suggested Motion or Direction: 
 
Make a motion to adopt Resolution 2025-02, A Resolution of the Town of Silverton Amending the Tap Fee Cost 
Overrun Policy. 



 

 
 
 1 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-XX2022-12 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF SILVERTON AMENDING THETO ADOPT A TAP 

FEE COST OVERRUN POLICY 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Silverton, in the County of San Juan and State of Colorado 
(the “Town”) is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State 
of Colorado; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Silverton previously created the Public Works Water and 
Sewer Department for the purpose of the management, maintenance, care and operation of the 
Town’s water facilities with all powers granted by C.R.S. § 31-35-402; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Silverton has the authority to prescribe, revise, and collect 
from any consumer the charges and fees directly and indirectly connected with tap fee services 
furnished by the Public Works Department pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-35-402(f); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Silverton’s current tap fees for a standard water installation is  

$3,152.00 and for a standard sewer installation is $3,152.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Silverton Public Works Department often encounters solid 

rock excavations, ground water obstacles, steep grades and other obstacles that lead to cost 
overruns not covered by the tap fees for standard water and sewer installations; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Silverton should not bear the cost of private development and 

it is industry standard that private developers bear the burden of construction cost overruns; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Town finds it beneficial to the public health, safety, and welfare, of the 

community to adopt a policy regarding cost overruns for water and sewer tap fees.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF SILVERTON, COLORADO THAT: 

 
 Section 1. The Town of Silverton hereby adopts the below policy regarding cost overruns 
for water and sewer tap fees: 
 

Town of Silverton responsibilities for standard water and sewer taps include excavation 
to the main(s) with heavy equipment, installation of the tap(s), excavation to the private 
property line, installation of service lines to proper depth and bedding, installation of a 
curb box (on water mains only) and backfill and compaction of all work in the Public 
Right of Way. Standard tap installations do not include excavation in solid rock, in 
ground where de-watering is required or other water obstacles exist, on steep terrain over 
8% grade, on private property, where utility cuts in asphalt or concrete are required, when 



 

 
 
 2 

oversize taps over two inches are required including fire sprinkler taps and associated 
costs or any other excavation or installation practice required to complete the installation 
which in the judgment of the Public Works Director would incur costs above and beyond 
a standard tap installation. All costs above and beyond a standard tap installation will be 
the sole responsibility of the applicant applying for a water and/or sewer tap, and such 
costs must be paid on a time and materials basis after tap installation is complete. Water 
service will not be turned on until extra costs have been paid.”  

 
 Section 2. The Town of Silverton hereby authorizes the Public Works Director to contract 
with private developers for the payment of water and/or sewer tap cost overruns pursuant to the 
terms and conditions as set forth in this policy. 
 
 Section 3. Construction required to install taps that is above and beyond that of a standard 
tap as described above will be managed by the private developer or their agents and overseen by 
the Public Works Director. 

 
 THIS RESOLUTION was approved and adopted the 2711th day of January 2025April 2022, 
by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Silverton, Colorado. 
 
 
      TOWN OF SILVERTON, COLORADO 
 
 
            
      Dayna KrankerShane Fuhrman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Melina MarksMatthew Green, Town Clerk 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 1 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF SILVERTON TO AMENDING THE TAP FEE 
COST OVERRUN POLICY 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Silverton, in the County of San Juan and State of Colorado 

(the “Town”) is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State 
of Colorado; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Silverton previously created the Public Works Water and 
Sewer Department for the purpose of the management, maintenance, care and operation of the 
Town’s water facilities with all powers granted by C.R.S. § 31-35-402; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Silverton has the authority to prescribe, revise, and collect 
from any consumer the charges and fees directly and indirectly connected with tap fee services 
furnished by the Public Works Department pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-35-402(f); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Silverton’s current tap fees for a standard water installation is  

$3,152.00 and for a standard sewer installation is $3,152.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Silverton Public Works Department often encounters solid 

rock excavations, ground water obstacles, steep grades and other obstacles that lead to cost 
overruns not covered by the tap fees for standard water and sewer installations; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Silverton should not bear the cost of private development and 

it is industry standard that private developers bear the burden of construction cost overruns; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Town finds it beneficial to the public health, safety, and welfare, of the 

community to adopt a policy regarding cost overruns for water and sewer tap fees.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF SILVERTON, COLORADO THAT: 

 
 Section 1. The Town of Silverton hereby adopts the below policy regarding cost overruns 
for water and sewer tap fees: 
 

Town of Silverton responsibilities for standard water and sewer taps include excavation 
to the main(s) with heavy equipment, installation of the tap(s), excavation to the private 
property line, installation of service lines to proper depth and bedding, installation of a 
curb box (on water mains only) and backfill and compaction of all work in the Public 
Right of Way. Standard tap installations do not include excavation in solid rock, in 
ground where de-watering is required or other water obstacles exist, on steep terrain over 
8% grade, on private property, where utility cuts in asphalt or concrete are required, when 



 

 
 
 2 

oversize taps over two inches are required including fire sprinkler taps and associated 
costs or any other excavation or installation practice required to complete the installation 
which in the judgment of the Public Works Director would incur costs above and beyond 
a standard tap installation. All costs above and beyond a standard tap installation will be 
the sole responsibility of the applicant applying for a water and/or sewer tap, and such 
costs must be paid on a time and materials basis after tap installation is complete. Water 
service will not be turned on until extra costs have been paid.”  

 
 Section 2. The Town of Silverton hereby authorizes the Public Works Director to contract 
with private developers for the payment of water and/or sewer tap cost overruns pursuant to the 
terms and conditions as set forth in this policy. 
 
 Section 3. Construction required to install taps that is above and beyond that of a standard 
tap as described above will be managed by the private developer or their agents and overseen by 
the Public Works Director. 

 
 THIS RESOLUTION was approved and adopted the 27th day of January 2025, by the Board 
of Trustees of the Town of Silverton, Colorado. 
 
 
      TOWN OF SILVERTON, COLORADO 
 
 
            
      Dayna Kranker, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Melina Marks, Town Clerk 
 
 
 



 

AGENDA MEMO 
 
SUBJECT: Boxcar Land Conveyance 
STAFF CONTACT: Lucy Mulvihill 
MEETING DATE: 1.21.2025 

 
 
Overview:  
The Town of Silverton is currently conducting environmental assessments and remediation of multiple Brownfield 
sites through the U.S. EPA Brownfields Grant Program. 
 
One of these sites, referred to as the “Box Car Apartment Site,” includes two lots—Anvil Mountain Subdivision Lots 
32 and 1—as well as adjoining open space/right-of-way (ROW). The site is presently owned by San Juan County. 
While Lot 1 was remediated during the original cleanup efforts for the Anvil Mountain Subdivision, Lot 32 and the 
adjacent ROW were not addressed. 
 
In September, Ramboll, the Town’s qualified environmental professional contractor, completed a Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) for the Box Car Apartment Site. Ramboll is now finalizing the Phase II ESA, 
which will recommend remediation for portions of the property not included in the initial subdivision cleanup. 
 
To proceed with remediation under the EPA Brownfields Program, ownership of the property must be transferred to 
the Town of Silverton before the Phase I ESA expires in February. 
 
On January 22, the San Juan County Board of County Commissioners unanimously approved the conveyance of the 
Box Car Apartment Site—Anvil Mountain Subdivision Lots 32 and 1—to the Town of Silverton. This transfer is for 
the purposes of environmental remediation and the future development of affordable housing. 
 
Included in the consent agenda is the required payment to San Juan County for the land conveyance. 
 
Budget 
The Land Conveyance cost will be $10. The check is included in the consent agenda.  
 
Master Plan  
Affordable housing 
 
Attachments:  
Lot 1 and Lot 32 Deed  
 
Motion or Direction:  
Informational Only 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

January 27, 2025 

5. Consent Agenda 
The Consent Agenda’s purpose is to group routine meeting discussion points into a single 
action item. If Trustees would like to pull an item from this agenda for discussion to amend 
or deny this can take place at the beginning of the meeting during agenda item #1 Staff 
and/or Board Revisions to the Agenda.  

Typical items found in the consent agenda:  

1. Payroll report (for transparency)  
2. Meeting Minutes 
3. Accounts payable (for transparency) 
4. Sales Tax (for transparency) 
5. YTD Actuals (for transparency) 
6. Renewal Licenses 
7. Special Event Applications for established events  
8. Contracts  

 

Suggested Motion:  

Motion to approve the consent agenda items.  

 

























 

1 
 

 
REGULAR MEETING – Silverton Board of Trustees 
Silverton Town Hall – Monday, January 13, 2024 
Call to Order & Roll Call –Regular Meeting @7:00pm  
 
ATTENTION:  The Town of Silverton Trustee meetings are being conducted in a hybrid virtual/in-
person. Instructions for public participation in Town Trustee meetings are as follows: 
 

• Zoom Webinar Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88637487127 
• By Telephone: Dial 669-900-6833 and enter Webinar ID 886 3748 7127 when prompted. 
• YouTube (live and recorded for later viewing, does not support public comment): 

www.youtube.com/channel/UCmJgal9lUXK5TZahHugprpQ 
 

If you would like to make a public comment during a specific Agenda Item, please submit a 
request to the Town Administrator at gkaasch-buerger@silverton.co.us  
 
MEETING PROTOCOLS: Please turn off cell phones; be respectful and take personal 
conversations into the lobby. The public is invited to attend all regular meetings and work 
sessions of the Board of Trustees. Regular Meeting Closing Public Comment must be related to 
an agenda item.   
Present: Trustee Halvorson, Trustee Wakefield, Trustee Gardiner, Trustee George, Trustee Schnitker, 
Mayor Pro Tem Harper, Mayor Kranker 
Absent: 
Staff: Administrator Kaasch-Buerger, Clerk Melina Marks, Housing Director Anne Chase, Community 
Development Director Lucy Mulvihill, Events & Facilities Coordinator Ana Mendiluce, Public Works 
Director John Sites, Attorney Clayton Buchner 
Regular Meeting @ 7:02pm   
1) Staff and/or Board Revisions to Agenda   

• Administrator Kaasch-Buerger noted that 4e was originally published as Ordinance 2025-01 
but has been corrected to 2025-02.  

2) Public Comment - Comments must be limited to three (3) minutes in duration.  
• Melody Skinner commented about legal notices in the Silverton Standard and enterprise 

funds.  
• Tom Schillaci commented on the passing of Bill Simon.  

3) Presentations/Proclamations 
a) Silverton Housing Authority Annual Report  

• Housing Director Anne Chase presented her annual report to the Board of Trustees.  
4) New Business 

a) PUBLIC HEARING: First Reading of Ordinance 2025-01 An Ordinance of The Town of Silverton 
Repealing and Readopting The Land Use Code and Amending The Official Zoning Map 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88637487127
http://www.youtube.com/channel/UCmJgal9lUXK5TZahHugprpQ
mailto:gkaasch-buerger@silverton.co.us


 

2 
 

• Gabby Hart from Clarion presented an overview of the Land Use Code to the Board of 
Trustees.  

• Mayor Kranker opened up public comment for this public hearing.  
• Mike Barney commented about the maximum square footage cap and basement 

development.  
• Shane Goranson commented on the lot that he and his wife bought on Greene St. and 

the development they are building between 5th and 6th streets zoning changes causing 
issues with their plans.  

• John Wright made comments disapproving of the new zoning map. 
• Logan Austin commented on the two sections of the LUC that he has issues with (section 

15 regarding vacation rental ownership restrictions).  
• commented on annexation and expanding the historic landmark district.  
• Mayor Kranker and Trustee Halvorson thanked staff for their work and countless hours 

towards the development of the LUC.  
• Trustee Gardiner asked for clarification on the square footage restrictions/ footprint 

restrictions.  
• Gabby Hart provided clarification. 
• The board discussed vacation rental restrictions.  
• Trustee George acknowledged John Wright’s comment regarding the concerns with 

incorrect street names/ addresses and the zoning map.  
• Community Development Director Lucy Mulvihill explained that the incorrect street and 

boundary issue is a larger issue that exists outside the zoning map issue that is 
dependent upon GIS and the postal service.  

• Mayor Kranker asked about comments made on slope/ drainage concerns.  
• Lucy Mulvihill responded.  
• The Trustees continued to debate restrictions on square footage limitations on 

multifamily structures/ duplexes in R-1.  
• The board agreed to use subject to review for duplexes in R-1. 
• Trustee George asked about the planning commission’s condition regarding slope. 
• Gabby Hart responded.  
• Trustee Halvorson provided context surrounding the planning commission’s discussion.  
• Lucy Mulvihill provided further information.  
• The board continued to discuss each condition proposed by the planning commission 1 

by 1.  
• The addition of max square footprint of 2,500 square ft in R-2 for single-family homes 

was added to the conditions proposed by the planning commission.  

Trustee Halvorson moved, and Mayor Pro Tem Harper seconded to approve the first reading of 
Ordinance No. 2025-01, an ordinance of the Town of Silverton repealing and readopting the Land Use 
Code and amending the official zoning map, and incorporating the proposed revisions in Attachment B 
– Addendum to the Adoption Draft with the following conditions: 



 

3 
 

1.            Allow single-unit attached dwellings with three or more units, triplex or four-plex dwellings, 
and multiunit dwellings in the C-1 district to be built to a height of 35 feet.  

2.            Remove maximum disturbance provisions from Slope Hazard Area Development.  

3.            Do not require a Special Use Permit for development on slopes 30 percent or greater.  

4.            Replace the Avalanche Hazard Map reference from a specific study to the language: 
“identified in the Town’s most recently updated avalanche mapping study.”  

5.            Exempt all construction in the MU-1 (current B-P) from the small lot bulk plane limitations. 

6.            Amend Section 15-8-10(a) of the Land Use Code to specify that the San Juan Regional 
Planning Commission shall consist of two members from the Board of Trustees, one member from the 
Board of County Commissioners, and four at-large members appointed by the Planning Commission. 

7.            Add a new Section 15-8-20(8) that allows for the Town Administrator to refer any 
administrative decision to the Planning Commission.  

8.            Require a Special Use Permit for Duplex and single-unit attached dwellings with two units 
with a building footprint over 2500 square feet 

9.            Implement a maximum building footprint of 2500 square feet for single-family dwellings in R- 

PUBLIC HEARING: Resolution 2024-30 A Resolution appropriating additional sums of money to defray 
expenses in excess of amounts budgeted for the Town of Silverton, Colorado  

• Administrator Kaasch-Buerger provided background information and opened the public 
hearing.  

Trustee Schnitker moved, and Trustee Halvorson seconded to approve Resolution 2024-30 A 
Resolution appropriating additional sums of money to defray expenses in excess of amounts budgeted 
for the Town of Silverton, Colorado. Passed unanimously with roll call.  

b) Intergovernmental Agreement for the Reaffirmation of the Unified Emergency Management 
Between San Juan County and the Town of Silverton  

• Administrator Kaasch-Buerger provided context.  
Trustee George moved, and Trustee Gardiner seconded to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement 
for the Reaffirmation of the Unified Emergency Management Between San Juan County and the Town 
of Silverton. Passed unanimously with roll call.  
 

c) Resolution 2025-01 A Resolution authorizing the Town of Silverton to transfer their 
Conservation Trust Fund Account to ColoTrust 

• Administrator Kaasch-Buerger provided context.  



 

4 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Harper moved, and Trustee Gardiner seconded to approve Resolution 2025-01 A 
Resolution authorizing the Town of Silverton to transfer their Conservation Trust Fund Account to 
ColoTrust. Passed unanimously with roll call.  

 
d) First Reading of Ordinance 2025-02 An Ordinance amending Chapter 13, Article 1 - Water and 

Sewer, of the Silverton Municipal Code to establish application of unit utilities and service 
charges for Accessory Dwelling Units 

• PW Director John Sites provided context.  
• Mayor Kranker asked a question regarding a typo/ technical error.  
• Attorney Buchner took ownership of the error and said the Ordinance could still be 

passed with the administrative adjustment.  
Truste Halvorson moved, and Mayor Pro Tem Harper seconded to approve the First Reading of 
Ordinance 2025-02 An Ordinance amending Chapter 13, Article 1 - Water and Sewer, of the Silverton 
Municipal Code to establish application of unit utilities and service charges for Accessory Dwelling 
Units and striking the 3rd paragraph regarding seniors. Passed unanimously with roll call.  
 
5) Consent Agenda 

a) Payroll  
b) Meeting Minutes 12.09.24 
c) Accounts Payable  
d) November Financials  
e) SPECIAL EVENT NOTICE: Snowscape 2/7/25-2/9/25 
f) SPECIAL EVENT NOTICE: Silverton Skijoring 2/15/25- 2/16/25 
g) SPECIAL EVENT NOTICE: Silverton Ski Team Fun Race 2/23/25 

Trustee Schnitker moved, and Mayor Pro Tem Harper seconded to approve the Consent Agenda 
Items. Passed unanimously with roll call.  

6) Staff Reports 
• Administrator Kaasch-Buerger provided an update.  

7) Committee/Board Reports 
a) 12.17 & 1.7 San Juan Regional Planning Commission Meeting 
b) 12.16 Finance Committee Meeting 
c) Others 

8) Trustee Reports  
9) Continued Business 

a) PUBLIC HEARING: Second Reading for adoption of Ordinance 2024-10 An Ordinance of the Town 
of Silverton Amending Chapter 13, Article1, Section 13-1-50- Tap Fees of the Silverton Municipal 
Code Allowing the Board of Trustees to Waive Plant Investment Charges and Tap Fees for 
Affordable Housing Projects 
• Administrator Kaasch-Buerger opened this public hearing and provided background 

information regarding the second reading of this ordinance.  
• Mayor Kranker commented on Mr. Hill’s public comment that was submitted via the packet.  
• Trustee Halvorson commented on the challenges of infrastructure in a small town.  



 

5 
 

Trustee Halvorson moved, and Mayor Pro Tem Harper seconded to approve the Second Reading for 
adoption of Ordinance 2024-10 An Ordinance of the Town of Silverton Amending Chapter 13, Article1, 
Section 13-1-50- Tap Fees of the Silverton Municipal Code Allowing the Board of Trustees to Waive 
Plant Investment Charges and Tap Fees for Affordable Housing Projects. Passed unanimously with roll 
call.  
10) Public Comment   

• Melody Skinner spoke about sustainable growth.  
11) Request for Executive Session pursuant to §24-6-402(4)(e), C.R.S., Determining positions related to 

matters that may be subject to negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and instructing 
negotiators regarding an objection filed to pay the Transportation Impact Fee  

 
Trustee Halvorson moved, and Trustee Schnitker seconded to table the Request for Executive Session 
pursuant to §24-6-402(4)(e), C.R.S., Determining positions related to matters that may be subject to 
negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and instructing negotiators regarding an objection 
filed to pay the Transportation Impact Fee. Passed unanimously with roll call.  
 

Adjourn @ 10:27 pm 
 

Up-coming Meeting Dates:  
1.21 @9am Finance Committee Meeting 
1.23 @5pm Personnel and Ordinance Committee Meeting 
1.27 @5pm Silverton Housing Authority Work Session 
1.27 @7pm Regular Meeting 
1.28 @7pm Special Meeting   
 
End of Agenda   
 



Complete Yes Town of Silverton 5% Total Sales Tax Collection 
2 months in the rear

Column Labels
Combined sales tax receipts Change from year prior Change from year prior (%)

Row Labels 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Complete months (YTD) $21,571 $22,639 $34,825 $51,466 $59,049 $52,640 $57,203 $60,633 $1,068 $12,186 $16,641 $7,583 -$6,410 $4,564 $3,429 5% 54% 48% 15% -11% 9% 6%

1 $21,571 $22,639 $34,825 $51,466 $59,049 $52,640 $57,203 $60,633 $1,068 $12,186 $16,641 $7,583 -$6,410 $4,564 $3,429 5% 54% 48% 15% -11% 9% 6%
Incomplete months $864,641 $1,100,535 $1,037,488 $1,552,111 $1,537,958 $1,744,113 $1,749,759 $235,895 -$63,048 $514,623 -$14,153 $206,156 $5,646 -$1,749,759 27% -6% 50% -1% 13% 0% #NULL!

2 $29,552 $31,685 $47,673 $54,916 $69,617 $60,289 $62,813 $2,133 $15,988 $7,243 $14,701 -$9,328 $2,524 -$62,813 7% 50% 15% 27% -13% 4% #NULL!
3 $27,249 $41,082 $42,112 $56,087 $100,503 $66,074 $67,962 $13,833 $1,031 $13,974 $44,416 -$34,429 $1,889 -$67,962 51% 3% 33% 79% -34% 3% #NULL!
4 $30,782 $95,301 $45,547 $56,689 $73,587 $70,373 $80,987 $64,519 -$49,754 $11,142 $16,898 -$3,214 $10,614 -$80,987 210% -52% 24% 30% -4% 15% #NULL!
5 $26,325 $39,113 $30,192 $74,733 $72,096 $79,287 $86,738 $12,788 -$8,921 $44,541 -$2,637 $7,191 $7,451 -$86,738 49% -23% 148% -4% 10% 9% #NULL!
6 $20,876 $26,150 $26,612 $53,071 $50,652 $118,620 $55,031 $5,274 $463 $26,459 -$2,418 $67,968 -$63,589 -$55,031 25% 2% 99% -5% 134% -54% #NULL!
7 $65,849 $62,039 $35,471 $91,726 $88,207 $53,803 $114,400 -$3,810 -$26,568 $56,255 -$3,519 -$34,404 $60,598 -$114,400 -6% -43% 159% -4% -39% 113% #NULL!
8 $99,552 $131,639 $111,567 $238,529 $202,941 $230,955 $229,211 $32,087 -$20,072 $126,962 -$35,588 $28,014 -$1,744 -$229,211 32% -15% 114% -15% 14% -1% #NULL!
9 $188,368 $222,786 $212,227 $290,429 $269,781 $318,372 $315,873 $34,418 -$10,559 $78,202 -$20,648 $48,591 -$2,499 -$315,873 18% -5% 37% -7% 18% -1% #NULL!
10 $151,055 $188,565 $192,949 $240,614 $239,549 $297,609 $291,920 $37,510 $4,384 $47,665 -$1,065 $58,060 -$5,689 -$291,920 25% 2% 25% 0% 24% -2% #NULL!
11 $163,255 $182,168 $190,968 $234,204 $226,111 $293,745 $284,825 $18,913 $8,800 $43,236 -$8,093 $67,634 -$8,921 -$284,825 12% 5% 23% -3% 30% -3% #NULL!
12 $61,779 $80,009 $102,170 $161,114 $144,914 $154,987 $160,000 $18,230 $22,161 $58,944 -$16,200 $10,073 $5,013 -$160,000 30% 28% 58% -10% 7% 3% #NULL!

Grand Total $886,211 $1,123,174 $1,072,313 $1,603,577 $1,597,007 $1,796,753 $1,806,963 $60,633 $236,963 -$50,861 $531,264 -$6,570 $199,746 $10,210 -$1,746,330 27% -5% 50% 0% 13% 1% -97%

















AGENDA MEMO 
 
SUBJECT: Special Event Notice- Silverton Sled Dog Races 
STAFF CONTACT: Ana Mendiluce 
MEETING DATE: January 27th, 2025 

 
 
 
Overview: 
The Silverton Sled Dog Races is a two-day event taking place on March 1st and 2nd, 2025, with cumulative times over 
the 2 days.  The race will be on a groomed course South of the Train Depot. The race will include the following 
events: 6 dog sled, 4 dog sled, 2 dog sled, 1 dog skijor, 2 dog skijor, 1 dog fat bike, novice and junior, fun run and 
relay. Races start at 9 am and will finish by 1 pm. Saturday afternoon after the races, there will be a free Skijor/Fat 
Bikejor clinic, and Sunday after the races will be the awards.    

 
 

Suggested Motion or Direction: 
Approve or Deny the Silverton Sled Dog Races event application.  

 



Notice of Intent to Conduct a Special Event or Civic Function 
Within Incorporated Town Limits 

 

 

 
 

EVENT ORGANIZER CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

Application Date:  Organization: ___________________________ 
Contact Name(s):  
Mailing Address:  
E-mail Address:  
Phone (Primary):  Phone (Secondary):  
 

EVENT INFORMATION 
 

Proposed Event:  
Event Date(s): From:  To:  
Event Times: From:  To:  

 

EVENT DESCRIPTION 

 

 

PROPOSED EVENT LOCATION/ROUTE/PARKING PLAN 
(Please refer to attachment requirements) 

 

 

EVENT SCOPE 
(List number of participants, employees and volunteers expected as well as a list of events proposed) 

 

 

1/7/25

Rocky Mountain Sled Dog Club

Lynn Whipple, Sofia Koepke, Gregg Dubit 

lupine24@gmail.com, sofia.koepke29@gmail.com,greggdubit@gmail.com

970-765-6551,

970-531-1155

Silverton Sled Dog Races

March 1st

March 2nd

9am

2pm

The race is a 2 day event with cumulative times over the 2 days. The 2nd day the team with the fastest
times goes out first in their race class and each team thereafter goes out by their finish time from the
day before. A drivers’ meeting is held each day before the races for any updates regarding the course or
schedule. Saturday afternoon after the races, we will hold a Free Skijor/Fat Bikejor clinic. We usually
start the races at 9 am, and finish by 1 pm with awards on Sunday. On Sunday, we are planning a
beginner 1 lap fun run race either by Canicross, Skijor, Bikejor or Sled.

The Silverton Flying Dog races will be held on a groomed course that is 2.1 mile trail South of the Train Depot in Silverton. The parking area is marked with a yellow x on attached map. Please see attached map for proposed trail route.

 We plan to open the event up to around 30 participants for the event. We also plan to have at least 10 volunteers which will include race organizers. 

The race will include the following events: 6 dog sled, 4 dog sled. 2 dog sled, 1 dog skijor, 2 dog skijor, 1 dog fat bike, novice and junior, fun run and relay.

1414 Hawk Parkway Unit D Montros, CO 81401



Notice of Intent to Conduct a Special Event or Civic Function 
Within Incorporated Town Limits 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

☐ YES ☐ NO - Will this event have Vendors? 
☐ YES ☐ NO - Will this event serve food and drinks? 
☐ YES ☐ NO - Will this event have alcoholic beverages? 
If Yes, a Special Event Liquor Permit will be required. 
☐ YES ☐ NO - Will this event have ticket sales or an admission fee? 
☐ YES ☐ NO - Will this event host outdoor camping? 
☐ YES ☐ NO - Will animals, dangerous materials or explosive materials be used during this event? 

 

If YES, please explain: 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS REQUIRED 

• Location Map – The Location Map should include clearly marked boundaries and any detour(s), 
barrier(s) proposed, parking area, security arrangements, and medical personnel location(s). 

• Operations Plan with an explanation of Safety, Medical, and Security Plans. (If applicable) 
• Certificate of Liability Insurance Naming the Town of Silverton, all Vendors and Event Participants 

as additionally insured. 
• Written permission from property owner to occupy the premises for proposed event. 

 

COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT 
 

The undersigned hereby certifies that I/we agree to assume any and all responsibility and to abide by all rules, 
regulations and conditions as set forth in the town of Silverton rules, regulations, conditions and stipulations of 

this permit, and codes for traffic control. The undersigned shall follow the manual on uniform traffic control 
devices, latest edition, as it relates to this permit and special conditions. If any requirements or conditions of this 

permit are not in compliance, the permit shall be revoked by order of the Code Enforcement Officer. I/we agree to 
vacate the right-of-way as directed by the Code Enforcement Officer. 

 

RELEASE AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 
In consideration for being permitted to enter upon the property of the Town of Silverton, Colorado, for the 
purpose of conducting business, meetings, or events upon said premises, I, the undersigned, hereby 
acknowledge, represent, and agree as follows: 
• I acknowledge that my presence on the Town's property may involve risks of injury, loss or damage. 
• I expressly assume all risks of injury, loss, or damage to myself or any third party arising out of or in any way 

related to my presence on the Town's property. 
• I exempt, release, and discharge the Town, its officers, its employees, and its agents from any and all claims, 

demands, and actions for such injury, loss, or damage, arising out of or in any way related to my presence on 
the Town's property. 
• I agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Town, its officers, employee agents, insurers, and self-

insurance pool from and against all liability, claims, and demands on account of injury, loss or damage which 
arise out of or are in any way related to my presence on the Town's property. 
• I further agree to be fully responsible for and to render payment to the Town for, any damages to the Town's 

property, which occurs during my use of such property, and which is in any way related to my presence on or 
use of town property. 

 
 

x

x

x



Notice of Intent to Conduct a Special Event or Civic Function 
Within Incorporated Town Limits 

 

 

 

 
 
 

This Release and Indemnification Agreement shall be effective as of the date set forth below and shall be 
binding upon me, my successors, representative, heirs, executors, assigns, transferees, and any other 

person(s) who may enter the premises upon my invitation. 
 

Executed this, the _____________ day of ___________________________, 20_________, by the person 
whose name and signature appear below. 
 

Signature of Responsible 
Party: ___________________________________ Date: _____________ 

Printed Name: ___________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY BELOW THIS LINE 
 

AGENCY AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE DATE 

San Juan County Sheriff   
Silverton/San Juan EMS   

Office of Emergency Management   
Silverton Board Of Trustees   

   

TOWN OF SILVERTON 
DEPARTMENT AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE DATE 

Facilities, Parks, Recreation   
Public Works   
Administrator   

Communications and Events Manager   
 

APPLICATION PROCESSING FEES 

<`100 PARTICIPANTS $100.00 
100-500 PARTICIPANTS $200.00 

>500 PARTICIPANTS FEE TO BE NEGOTIATED 
 

    

Date Payment Received: ____________ Payment Processed By: ___________________ 
    

Payment Amount: ____________ Payment Type: ___________________ 
 
 

THANK YOU FOR CONSIDERING SILVERTON FOR YOUR SPECIAL EVENT!!! 

1/22/25

1/22/25

1/22/25Approved via email

Approved via email

7th

January

25

1/7/25

Sofia Koepke, Race Coordinator

1/7/25



Silverton Flying Dog Sled and Skijor Races, March 1st and 2nd , 2025 

 

The Silverton Flying Dog races will be held on a groomed course that is 2.1 mile trail South of the Train 
Depot in Silverton, scheduled for March 1st & 2nd , 2025, from 9 to 2 pm.  Rocky Mountain Sled Dog Club 
(RMSDC) is the host race organization. 

We are estimating up to 30 participants that race sled dog teams.  There will be 7 classes that race at 
separate times and teams go out single start with one minute interval between teams. 

Teams race in separate classes based on the number of dogs on a team.  6 dog class races 6 miles is 3 
laps, 4 dog class races 2 laps, 2 dog race 1 lap.  2 dog skijor, races 2 laps and 1 dog skijor and 1 dog 
bikejor race 1 lap. 1 recreational class race is 1 lap.  Within each specific class, the starting order is drawn 
by experience level in 2 groups- competitive and beginner.    The teams are sent out in 1-minute intervals 
so there may be some passing out on the course.  Once all teams in the class have finished the course, 
then 15-minute intervals are announced for the start of the next class.   Most all of the course can be 
seen from the staging area South of the Silverton Train Depot. 

Event description: 

The race is a 2 day event with cumulative times over the 2 days.  The 2nd day the team with the fastest 
times goes out first in their race class and each team thereafter goes out by their finish time from the 
day before.  A drivers’ meeting is held each day before the races for any updates regarding the course or 
schedule.  Saturday afternoon after the races, we will hold a Free Skijor/Fat Bikejor clinic.  We usually 
start the races at 9 am, and finish by 1 pm with awards on Sunday.  On Sunday, we are planning a 
beginner 1 lap fun run race either by Canicross, Skijor, Bikejor or Sled. 

Race Officials 

• Lynn Whipple, Race Director, RMSDC President 
• 970-765-6551, Lupine24@hotmail.com 
• Gregg Dubit, Trail Boss, RMSDC Membership Chairman  
• 970-759-1741, greggdubit@gmail.com 
• John Chmelir, Race Marshall 
• 970-799-3655 
• Gretchen Dubit, Head Timer 

 Medical and Safety Plan: 

• We provide 4, RMSDC 2-way radios are provided to Race Officials at the race site and with a 
volunteer aide or sweeper on the course. 

• 2 snowmobiles and 1 drag on site for any trail maintenance, and to sweep after each class and in 
case of assistance needed out on the course. 

• 1 Race Veterinarian will be on site during the race events for both days.  

 

mailto:greggdubit@gmail.com


Staging area and course marking: RMSDC has signs that will be posted for Sled Dog Races.  No loose 
dogs in the staging area.  Please leave pet dogs at home. 

RMSDC will set up start and finish chutes with orange pop fencing. We put up fencing or orange ribbon 
at hazard spots on the trail and a swing gate for the teams going back out for another lap on the course. 

Medical Aid: 

Silverton Clinic 970-387-5114 

San Juan Sherriff, 970-387-5531 

Silverton EMS 970-387-5887 

2 RMSDC Board members Gregg Dubit and Laurie Brandt will be on site and are certified with standard 
first aid.  

 

Please contact me with any further questions. 

 

Thank you, 

Lynn Whipple  

RMSDC President 

970-765-6551 





ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER
CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $

DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRO-
POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT

OTHER: $

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

1/9/2025

(929) 294-7297

22292

Rocky Mountain Sled Dog Club, Inc.
1414 Hawk Pkwy Unit D
Montrose, CO 81401

A 2,000,000

X RHS9553473 12 11/20/2024 11/20/2025 100,000

5,000

2,000,000

4,000,000

4,000,000

Town of Silverton
1360 Greene Street
PO Box 81433
Silverton, CO 81433

ROCKMOU-05 LDUELL

Sportsmen's Insurance Agency
PO Box #799
Cape Vincent, NY 13618-0799 info@sportsmensinsurance.com

Hanover Insurance Company

X

X

X



 

 
 
 1 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-37 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING ADDITIONAL SUMS OF MONEY TO DEFRAY 
EXPENSES IN EXCESS OF AMOUNTS BUDGETED FOR THE TOWN OF SILVERTON, 

COLORADO. 
 

WHEREAS, the Board is authorized by Section 29-1-109, C.R.S., to make supplemental 
appropriations to the 2024 Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town provided notice of the public hearing at which the proposed 
amendments to the 2024 Budget were to be considered, and such public hearing was held 
in accordance with Section 29- 1-106, C.R.S.; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2024 Budget appropriations did not include the Budget prediction in the 
following Fund:  
 
   

FUND EXPENSE    2024 Budget  2024 Projected 
Refuse Fund    $301,321.00  $330,407.93 
Sewer Fund    $390,211.00  $440,000.00 

   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF SILVERTON, COLORADO THAT: 

 
 The 2024 appropriation for the Refuse Fund is hereby increased as described in the tables 
above for general operations. 
 

The 2024 appropriation for the Sewer Fund is hereby increased as described in the tables 
above for a capital expense. 

 
 THIS RESOLUTION was approved and adopted on the 9th day of December 2024 by the 
Board of Trustees of the Town of Silverton, Colorado. 
 
 
      TOWN OF SILVERTON, COLORADO 
 
ATTEST: 
            
      Dayna Kranker, Mayor 
      
Melina Marks, Town Clerk 



 

 

 

 

 

January 27, 2025 

6. Staff Reports 
Staff submits a department report to the Trustees that covers projects updates, meetings, 
grants, and items for immediate consideration. If a Trustee desires to know more about the 
report, the Staff is typically available to answer their question, or the Town Administrator 
will research the question and report back to the Board of Trustees. Staff submits a report 
once a month and are currently able to pick which meeting depending on their workload.  

 



Town of Silverton Staff Report 

 
 

Department: Administration 
Head of Department: Gloria Kaasch-Buerger 
Date of Trustee Meeting: January 27, 2025 

For immediate Trustee consideration:   

Regular Meetings & Communication:  
1.13 Clarion LUC rewrite 
1.15 Monthly Financial Check Up 
1.15 Mark Reavis Office Hours 
1.15 Jeff Diener Office Hours 
1.16 Library Board Retreat 
1.17 Lunch with Willy 
1.17 NRDs Funding with Ramboll  
1.21 Silverton Standard Legal Postings  
1.21 Sneffels Energy Board 
1.21 Wildlife Coalition 
1.22 Team GOLD  

Top on the TO DO list: 
Recruitment for Public Works Position  
Recruitment for Fire Inspector Position 
NRDs Funding Application  
Collection System Project 
LUC Code Rewrite 
Finance Organization-completing 2024 actuals  
Energizing Rural Communities Prize Administration 
Assist with Affordable Housing Projects  
Social Media Communications 
Trustee Retreat  

Grants (applications, updates, awards): 
 
Applied/Awaiting Award:  
Srah Moore submitted the Blairs Street MMOF 
Grant Application on 12.20.24 
 
Received:  
 
Did not receive:  
Grant for entrance monuments did not receive 
funding.   

Upcoming Issues: 
Rewrite Development Standards 
RV Ordinance revisions  
ADU/Chapter 13 code revisions  
Natural Resource Damages Funds Grant Application  
CDOT Shed relocation 
Power Redundancy/Micro Grid  
Signs/Parking around town 
Entrance Monument  
Snow Route Code Rewrite 
Municipal Court Code Rewrite 
Marijuana Code Rewrite 
Perimeter Trail Planning  
Cemetery Committee Formation   
Ev charging stations locations  

Notable completed tasks:  Learning/ Professional Development:  
1.11 Second Saturday Seminar with Bev Rich   
Currently reading: The Amazing City by James C. Hunt  



Town of Silverton 
Staff Report 

 

Department: Town Clerk/ Treasurer 
Head of Department: Melina Marks 
Date of Trustee Meeting: January 27th, 2025 

For Immediate Trustee Consideration:  None   

Regular Meetings & Communication: 
- Weekly Staff Meetings  
- Bi-weekly Regular Trustee Meetings 
- Housing Authority Meetings 
- P&O Committee Meetings 
- Monthly Finance Committee Meetings 
- HRC Meetings when necessary.  
- Consistent communication with the rest of 

staff daily 
- Consistent communication with the town 

accountant 
 

 
 

Top on the TO DO List:  
- Organize all leases and debt 

schedules 
- Get the 2024 quarter 3 & 4 

Ordinances/ Resolutions submitted 
to Muni Code  

- Submit 1099s to online tax portal 
- Complete CIRSA WC Payroll Audit.  
- Research Vendor Fees in other 

Communities for the next Finance 
Committee Meeting.  

- Research State Statues surrounding 
the publishing of bills yearly in the 
Silverton Standard. 

- Track down original Refuse Fund 
Resolution/ Ordinance.  

Grants (applications, updates, awards):  
- Upcoming grant opportunities for bear-proof 

trash cans.  
- Searching for grant opportunity for Cemetery 

funding in 2025.  

 Upcoming Items:  
- New MJ Sales Tax Forms with the 

new 5% rate for 2025 are ready to 
be used from this point forward.  

- Lodging Fee % division of funds to 
the water and sewer funds 

- Assistance with Silverton 
Snowscapes Event.  

- Tie up 2024 accounting 
requirements. 

- Re-establish the Cemetery 
Committee.  

Notable Completed Tasks:  
- Business License/ Vacation Rental License/ 

Lodging Fee reminder email sent to business 
owners  

 Ongoing Project Updates:  
- Continue to work on GL Code cheat-

sheets for front office. 



- Yearend tax account submissions  
- CIRSA preliminary payroll submissions  
- W2 distribution  
- Assistance with EQR implementation  

- Continue to help colleagues with 
ADP issues. 

- Continue to understand Caselle/ 
budgeting/ GL coding. 

Learning/Professional Development:  
- Accounting support and education from our 

accounting firm.  

 COVID Related: None   

 



Town of Silverton  
Staff Report 

 

Department: Community Development  
Head of Department: Lucy Mulvihill  
Date of Trustee meeting: 1.27.202 

For immediate Trustee consideration:  
1. Second Reading of Ordinance 2025-01 An Ordinance of The Town of Silverton Repealing 

and Readopting The Land Use Code and Amending The Official Zoning Map 
2. Conveyance of Boxcar Apartment Site (Anvil Mountain Subdivision lots 1 & 32) 

Regular Meetings & Communication:  
1.07 San Juan Regional Planning 
Commission Meeting 
1.21 San Juan Regional Planning 
Commission Meeting 
1.22 San Juan Board of County 
Commissioners Meeting  
Biweekly Meeting with Ramboll  
Biweekly Meeting with Clarion  
Weekly Meeting with Community Planning 
Strategies  

Top on the TO DO list:  
Finalize Land Use Application Forms 
Planning Inquiries  
Prepare for LUC & Zoning Map Adoption   

Grants (applications, updates, awards): 
Brownfields- Box Car Apt Site Phase I: 
Completed 
Lackawanna Site Phase I Completed 
Box Car Apt Site Phase II: In process 
Lackawanna Site Phase II: In process 
Website Development: LIVE 

Upcoming Issues:  
Seasonal Occupancy of RVs for local 
workforce   

Notable completed tasks:  
Heald 39 Community Meetings related to the 
LUC  
Proposed LUC adoption draft released  
Proposed Zoning Map released 
Box Car Apt Site Phase I: Completed 
Lackawanna Site Phase I Completed 
  

Ongoing Project Update 
Brownfields 
Box Car Apt Site Phase I: Completed 
Lackawanna Site Phase I Completed 
Box Car Apt Site Phase II: In process 
Lackawanna Site Phase II: In process 
Website Development: In process 
Build Out Analysis- on Pause until after LUC 
update 
Code Update- Adoption of LUC in process 
CLG- is being addressed in the Land Use 
Code update.  



Anvil: Assisting the Housing Director with 
zoning regulations for site plan approval for 
the anticipated multi-unit housing.  
Boxcar Apartment Site: Coordinating with 
the County regarding land conveyance, that 
will be necessary for clean-up activities paid 
for through EPA Brownfields Grant. 
Coordination with EPA and contractors for the 
site assessment and clean-up activities. 
Coordinating with the Housing Director to 
align clean-up activities with pre-development 
work.  

Applications in Process: 
On Hold until after LUC adoption  

Professional Development:  

 



Town of Silverton  
 

Department: Facilities, Parks and Recreation  
Head of Department: Sarah Friden  
Meeting Date: January 27th, 2024 

For immediate Trustee consideration:   
 
Appreciation: The Board’s approval of the Kendall Deck Construction, Lift Repair, and 
facility fee increases in 2024 have made an immediate financial impact and has enhanced the 
overall experience at one of our largest facility assets. 
 
  

Regular Meetings & Communication:  
 
--FPR Staff Daily Huddle 
--NRD Animas Monthly Meeting 
--BLM, Perimeter Trail 
--MSI, Perimeter Trail 
  

Top on the TO DO list: 
 
--Staffing Kendall for February events 
--FPR Committee Meeting 
--Updated SOPs & Policies for FPR 
--CIRSA Audit Repairs/regular facility 
maintenance 
--Molas Lake SRC Area Improvements 
  

Grants (applications, updates, awards): 
 
AARP Grant funded ADA picnic tables 
(4) were delivered and now provide base 
seating at Kendall Mountain   

Upcoming Issues: 
 
--Summer operations/departmental capacity  
 
--Repairs to Kendall Mountain Lodge (pest 
damage/insulation) 
 
--Molas Lake Campground improvements as 
discussed in December BOT meeting. 

Notable completed tasks: 
 
**Maximizing the visitor experience @ 
KM** 
Kendall Lift – Zero minutes of downtime 
Kendall Sales -- $40,000+ season to date, 
53% from rental sales alone 
Kendall Deck – demo’d railing near 
bathrooms to give 800 ft of additional 
deck space/seating and increased ADA 
access 

Ongoing Project Update:                    
 
--Deferred maintenance  
--Streamlining operations  
--Facility cost analysis  
--Perimeter Trail, Molas & Kendall planning 
 
  



Kendall Signage – added signage as 
requested by law enforcement related to 
alcohol and parking 
 
Molas Reservations -- $83,000+ YTD (23 
days in) 
 
Several deferred maintenance issues 
addressed (TH Elevator, Pest Control @ 
VC, KM 
 
Grooming Map completed by PW and 
FPR for public. Includes trails, parks, 
Kendall, LKWNA, and Deer Park 
 
No major facility issues during severe 
cold weather. Building temps remaining 
stable and heat costs in general are 
decreasing. 
  

Learning/ Professional Development: 
 
Building relationship with CPW 
Webinars provided by BLM on ADA trail 
building 

Other:  
 
Remaining hands-on for the time being, 
streamlining operations, addressing deferred 
maintenance, and managing staff time based on 
skillset are driving quick, noticeable financial 
results. 

 



Town of Silverton 

Department: Public Works 
Head of Department: John Sites 
Meeting Date: 1/27/24 

For immediate Trustee consideration: 

Regular Meetings & Communication: 
 Daily Crew Meetings  
Weekly Town Staff Meetings 

Top on the TO DO list: 
Supporting staff where needed 
 SIPA grant coordinating delivery and installation 
schedules preparing for Grant deliverables 
Caselle competency just trying to pick up the 
pieces,   
Lead and Copper inputting data as it comes in 
Waste water treatment plant keeping up with 
options and just learning, augmentation ponds 
hooray 
EQRs Calculating EQR figures nearing finishing up 
the commercial accounts 
EV charging growing my understanding of the 
potential revenue to be generated for town 
Refuse research 
Meter research definitely back burner and getting 
to it when taking a break from getting things 
complete with hard deadlines 
Crushing concrete research site prep 
brainstorming for WWTP 
Ongoing Blair St project  

Grants (applications, updates, awards): 
Will be submitting our first reimbursement 
to SIPA next week  

Upcoming Issues:  Funding for augmentation 
ponds  
The transition from John Sites to future PWD 

Notable completed tasks: Ongoing Project Update: 
See to do list  

Learning/ Professional Development:  Other:  



Town of Silverton  
 

Department: Facilities and Events Coordinator 
Head of Department: Facilities, Parks, and Recreations Director 
Meeting Date: January 27th, 2025 

For immediate Trustee consideration:   

Regular Meetings & Communication:  
• Ongoing staff meetings and 

communication 
• Ongoing communication/meetings 

with event organizers 
• Ongoing communication with 

weddings for 2025/26 
 
  

Top on the TO DO list: 
 

• Silverton Snowscapes 
• Silverton Skijoring 
• Banked Slalom 
• Silverton Sled Dog Races  

Grants (applications, updates, awards):  Upcoming Issues: 
    

Notable completed tasks: 
• Opening of Kendall Mountain 

Recreations Area 24/25 Season. 
• Restructured Rental/Ticket Sale 

area at Kendall.  
• FareHarbor updated with new 

rates/items.  

Ongoing Project Update:    
• Have become more comfortable to 

navigate FareHarbor and get things 
adjusted to how we need it.  

• Winter event applications approved, now 
finishing last of the details. 
 

  

Learning/ Professional Development: 
• DIN certification course materials 

Other:   

 



Outlook

Red Mountain Electrical Reliability and Broadband Improvement Project

From Alex Shelley <alex@smpa.com>
Date Mon 1/13/2025 5:19 PM
To Alex Shelley <alex@smpa.com>

Dear Community Stakeholders, State Officers, Representatives, and SMPA Members,

As spring approaches, we anticipate favorable conditions for infrastructure maintenance on Red Mountain Pass.
Last year, project phase 2, which was the re-construction of 4.5 miles of 44kV transmission line between the Idarado
and Red Mountain electrical substations was completed.  All original line / structures in this section were replaced
with new, environmentally-tailored structures that are fewer in number.  Thanks to PAR Electric and ESC
Engineering for the work, and thank you–community stakeholders–for your partnership.

This coming spring, we are planning the reconstruction of the Red Mountain line from the Red Mountain substation
to the Alpine Loop turnoff (South of Ruby Walls).  This work will probably affect travel on Highway 550.  There will
likely be a need for traffic holds in early summer and tentative block closures in early fall, pending permit
requirements.

The dates of this work remain subject to Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) approval, weather
conditions, and emergencies. CDOT has not yet issued a permit, so the schedule is not yet set.  

One major consideration is the tourist season and economic activity for communities connected by Highway 550.  In
the past, community stakeholders have expressed desire for the completion of full closures before Memorial Day
(May 30) to minimize impacts on tourism and economic activity.  As we progress with permitting talks, this remains a
high priority.

Public and stakeholder communications about this work are also critical. We intend to follow this communication
with updates as we progress in the planning process.  When it comes time for public communications, SMPA will
invite collaboration with Public Information Officers and local outlets to inform the public. We understand the
importance of notifying stakeholders at least two weeks in advance of any closures and will share finalized dates
once approved by CDOT.

It is important to remember the overriding purpose behind the temporary impacts of this work.  The Red Mountain
electrical transmission power line has reached its functional end-of-life and needs to be re-built in order to continue
to serve as backup power source for consumers in the communities of Ouray County.  A new line, engineered with
current technologies and design practices will be safer and more practical to maintain in the difficult mountain
terrain.

Additionally, the new structures are being strung with fiber optic cable, expanding the local fiber optic network and
creating new options and pathways for local broadband expansion. 

If you have any questions or feedback, please reply to this email or call me at 970-209-5593.

More information about the Red Mountain Electrical Reliability and Broadband Improvement Project is
here. https://www.smpa.com/red-mountain-electrical-reliability-and-broadband-improvement-project

Together, we can build a safer and more resilient system for our members and communities.

Best regards,

https://www.smpa.com/red-mountain-electrical-reliability-and-broadband-improvement-project


 
Alex Shelley
Communications Executive

P.O. Box 1150
Ridgway, CO 81432
Office: 970-626-5549 x212
Mobile: 970-209-5593
alex@smpa.com
www.smpa.com
 

   
 

It is the Mission of the San Miguel Power Association, Inc. to provide our members with safe, reliable, cost-effective, and environmentally responsible electrical service, while

demonstrating both cooperative responsibility and support for the communities we serve.

 

SMPA is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

San Miguel Power Association is an equal opportunity provider and employer.  In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and institutions

participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/parental status, income derived

from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or incident.

Person with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202)720-2600 (voice and TTY) or

contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800)877-8339. Additionally, program information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at http://www.ascr.usda.qov/complaint filing cust.html and at any USDA office or write a letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter

all of the information requested in the form. To request a copy of the complaint form, call

(866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture

Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights

1400 Independence Avenue, SW

Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

 

mailto:alex@smpa.com
http://www.smpa.com/
https://www.facebook.com/SanMiguelPower
https://www.facebook.com/SanMiguelPower
https://smpa.smarthub.coop/Login.html
https://smpa.smarthub.coop/Login.html


 

 

 

 

 

January 27, 2025 

7. Committee Reports 
Trustees will report on their respective committees if they have met. A list of the 
committees can be found at https://townofsilverton.colorado.gov/government/boards-
commissions  

https://townofsilverton.colorado.gov/government/boards-commissions
https://townofsilverton.colorado.gov/government/boards-commissions


 

 

 

 

 

January 27, 2025 

8. Trustee Reports 
This is an opportunity for Trustees to have a moment to speak on behalf of their 
constituents, highlight happenings in the community, call out for action, or give thanks. 
This has also been used as a place where Trustees can request agenda items for the next 
meeting. 



 

 

 

 

 

January 27, 2025 

9. Continued Business 
The board has discussed these items in previous meetings or Work Sessions. There is 
typically a Board Packet Agenda Memo with the item, but not always. 

Per Silverton Municipal Code 2-2-110 (5):  

Old business. The Board of Trustees shall consider any business that has been previously 
considered and which is still unfinished. 

 



 

 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA MEMO 
 
SUBJECT: Second Reading of Ordinance 2025-01 
STAFF CONTACT: Lucy Mulvihill 
MEETING DATE: 01.27.2025 

 
OVERVIEW 
REQUEST 
Consider the repeal and readoption of Chapter 15- Annexation, Chapter 16 – Zoning and Chapter 17 – Subdivision of 
the Silverton Municipal Code, enacting a new Chapter 15 of the Silverton Municipal Code, and adoption of the 2024 
Land Use Code and Zoning Map.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The Land Use Code is the set of regulations that guide how development should occur within Town. It is also one of 
the primary tools used to implement the Compass Master Plan (2022), the Development Readiness Assessment (2023), 
and the San Juan and Silverton Housing Needs Assessment (2021).  

The key goals of the project include: 

• Update the Town’s regulations to better reflect and align with the vision for the future of the Silverton 
community established in the Compass Master Plan; 

• Create more predictable development outcomes by simplifying and clarifying development standards and 
procedures; 

• Consolidate multiple chapters of the Silverton Municipal Code (Chapter 15, Annexation; Chapter 16, Zoning; 
and Chapter 17, Subdivision) to establish a more clear and consistent structure; and 

• Make the LUC more user-friendly and easier to understand. 

Throughout the process, the project consisted of 4 distinct phases: 

1. Project Orientation (August – September 2023) 
2. Annotated Outline of Proposed Land Use Changes (October – November 2023) 
3. Draft Land Use Code and Zoning Map (December 2023 – November 2024) 
4. Land Use Code Adoption (December 2024 – January 2025) 

 
CODE EVALUATION 
The approval process for the 2024 Land Use Code and Zoning Map is provided by Colorado State Statue. While 
elements of this process are similar to the current Land Use Code’s Amendments or Changes process (Sec. 16-1-40), 
the update does not follow that code section.  
 
Per the state statute, the process requires that the Planning Commission hold a public hearing on the proposed Land 
Use Code and Zoning Map and that the Planning Commission is forwarded to the Board of Trustees for their 
consideration. 
 
  



 

 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA MEMO 
 
SUBJECT: Second Reading of Ordinance 2025-01 
STAFF CONTACT: Lucy Mulvihill 
MEETING DATE: 01.27.2025 

 
COMPASS MASTER PLAN EVALUATION 
The Future Land Use Framework in the Compass Master Plan includes a conceptual illustration of opportunities for 
future land use and zoning, organized into five categories:  

• Housing Infill 
• Neighborhood Mixed-Use 
• Business Mixed-Use 
• Historic Core/Business Pedestrian 
• Parks and Open Space 

 
 
In accordance with the Future Land Use Framework, the 2024 Zoning Map reflects the new list of zoning districts 
established within the 2024 Land Use Code. This new list expands opportunities for a wider mix of uses, consolidates 
existing districts based on similarities, and recategorizes several properties throughout Town to better reflect existing 
conditions as well as align with the Future Land Use Framework. Table 15-2-2 identifies which zoning district(s) 
appropriately implement(s) a given future land use category identified in the Future Land Use Framework of the 
Compass Master Plan. 



 

 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA MEMO 
 
SUBJECT: Second Reading of Ordinance 2025-01 
STAFF CONTACT: Lucy Mulvihill 
MEETING DATE: 01.27.2025 

 

The 2024 Land Use Code and Zoning Map comply with the Master Plan goals, action plans, etc. listed below: 
• Reduce setbacks. (Land Use Strategy A-2 and Housing Strategy D-2) 
• Reduce minimum lot areas and floor area. (Land Use Strategy A-2 and Housing Strategy D-2) 
• Reduce lot coverage percentages. (Land Use Strategy A-2 and Housing Strategy D-2) 
• Increase height limits.  (Land Use Strategy A-2 and Housing Strategy D-2) 
• Enact maximum footprint and lot size for single-family housing. (Land Use Strategy A-2 and Housing Strategy 

D-2) 
• Clearly define allowable commercial uses in zoning districts to ensure suitable businesses are allowed in the 

Neighborhood Mixed Use district. (Local Economy Strategy C-1a) 
• Relax change of use regulations. (Local Economy Strategy C-1b) 
• Encourage the creation and retention of light manufacturing and creative employment spaces, or building sites 

that meet the needs of existing local businesses to grow or expand. (Local Economy Strategy C-2) 
• Improve town pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure to create uninterrupted connectivity throughout town. 

(Infrastructure Strategy B-3) 
• Reduce parking requirements for small-scale infill projects. (Land Use Strategy A-2a. and Housing Strategy D-

2.b) 
• Fast track development review for workforce and affordable housing projects. Options include: (1) Create a 

clear process checklist and (2) Reduce process requirements for “use by right” projects. (Housing Strategy D-
6) 

 
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 
The project team has conducted multiple outreach opportunities to guide the process over the past year and a half. The 
project team worked with a Stakeholder Group that provided advice and technical guidance as week as reviewed 
document drafts and helped identify issues to discuss with the larger community, Planning Commission, and the Board 
of Trustees. 



 

 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA MEMO 
 
SUBJECT: Second Reading of Ordinance 2025-01 
STAFF CONTACT: Lucy Mulvihill 
MEETING DATE: 01.27.2025 

 

The graphic below captures all of the engagement opportunities between October 2023 and September 2024. 

 

Subsequently, the following additional meetings were added after the project team received multiple requests across 
the community, including Planning Commission and Board of Trustees members, to allow for more time to review the 
new Land use Code and Zoning Map: 

• 10/14: Board of Trustees Work Session 
• 10/15: Planning Commission Work Session 
• 11/19: Planning Commission Work Session 
• 11/25: Board of Trustees Work Session 



 

 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA MEMO 
 
SUBJECT: Second Reading of Ordinance 2025-01 
STAFF CONTACT: Lucy Mulvihill 
MEETING DATE: 01.27.2025 

 
ADDENDUM TO ADOPTION DRAFT 
In preparing for the hearings, several concerns were raised that staff felt it would be prudent to address before 
adoption. Attachment B outlines the changes needed and provides the detailed strikethrough/redlined revisions. 
 
DECEMBER 17, 2024, PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
At the specially scheduled Planning Commission meeting on Tuesday, December 17, 2024, the public hearing to 
consider a recommendation to the Silverton Board of Trustees for the adoption of the Land Use Code (LUC) was 
opened. During the hearing: 

• Staff presented a comprehensive report on the proposed LUC. 
• The public was given the opportunity to provide comments. 
• The Planning Commission engaged in a discussion regarding the proposal. 

 
Following this discussion, the Planning Commission determined that additional review and consideration of several 
aspects of the LUC are necessary before making a recommendation. As a result, the public hearing was continued to 
January 7, 2025, to have further discussion on the following aspects of the LUC.  

• Maximum Height Considerations 
• Vacation Rentals in the Business-Pedestrian (B-

P) Zone 
• Conditions for Duplexes in the Residential (R-

1) Zone 
• Slope Hazard Area Condition 

• Avalanche Hazard Area Condition 
• AROD/The Y Condition 
• Small Lot Bulk Plane Regulations 
• Planning Commission Review Conditions 
• Staff Referral of Administrative Decisions to 

the Planning Commission 
 
JANUARY 7, 2025, PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
At the specially scheduled Planning Commission meeting on January 7, 2025, the Public Hearing was continued. 
Following deliberation, the Planning Commission unanimously approved a motion to recommend adoption of the 
Land Use Code with conditions as outlined in the following motions: 

I move to recommend approval of Ordinance No. 2025-01, an ordinance of the Town of Silverton repealing and 
readopting the Land Use Code and amending the official zoning map, and incorporating the proposed revisions in 
Attachment B – Addendum to the Adoption Draft with the following conditions: 

1. Allow single-unit attached dwellings with three or more units, triplex or four-plex dwellings, and multiunit 

dwellings in the C-1 district to be built to a height of 35 feet.  

2. Allow individual owners to operate multiple vacation rentals in the MU-1 district only and prohibit 

vacation rental owners in MU-1 from maintaining a vacation rental in any other district.  

3. Change duplex dwelling from a “use-by-right” to require a “conditional use-by-right permit” in the R-1 

district.  

4. Remove maximum disturbance provisions from Slope Hazard Area Development.  

5. Do not require a Special Use Permit for development on slopes 30 percent or greater.  



 

 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA MEMO 
 
SUBJECT: Second Reading of Ordinance 2025-01 
STAFF CONTACT: Lucy Mulvihill 
MEETING DATE: 01.27.2025 

6. Replace the Avalanche Hazard Map reference from a specific study to the language: “identified in the 

Town’s most recently updated avalanche mapping study.”  

7. Exempt all construction in the MU-1 (current B-P) from the small lot bulk plane limitations. 

8.  Amend Section 15-8-10(a) of the Land Use Code to specify that the San Juan Regional Planning 

Commission shall consist of two members from the Board of Trustees, one member from the Board of 

County Commissioners, and four at-large members appointed by the Planning Commission. 

9. Add a new Section 15-8-20(8) that allows for the Town Administrator to refer any administrative decision 

to the Planning Commission.  

10. Remove the maximum building footprint restriction for duplexes in R-1.  

I move to recommend that the Town of Silverton staff and Board of Trustees prioritize the four following 

initiatives:  

1. Consider annexation of unincorporated Town-owned land and associated mapping boundary fixes  

2. Explore the creation of a new Townwide avalanche hazard map 

3. Reevaluation of LUC within one year of adoption 

4. Direct staff and Planning Commission to develop design standards for the areas south of 5th Street after 

adoption and to pursue creating a subarea plan for the gateway area after adoption  

JANUARY 13, 2025, BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING  
At the regularly scheduled Board of Trustee meeting on January 13, 2025, the Public Hearing to consider for adoption 
of Ordinance 2025-01 An Ordinance Of The Town Of Silverton Repealing And Readopting The Land Use Code And 
Amending The Official Zoning Map was opened. During the hearing: 

• Staff presented a comprehensive report on the proposed LUC and Zoning Map. 
• The public was given the opportunity to provide comments. 
• The Board of Trustees engaged in a discussion regarding the proposal. 

 
Following deliberation, the Board of Trustees unanimously approved a motion to approve the first reading of 
Ordinance 2025-01 adoption of the Land Use Code with conditions as outlined in the following motions: 

I move to recommend approval of Ordinance No. 2025-01, an ordinance of the Town of Silverton repealing and 
readopting the Land Use Code and amending the official zoning map, and incorporating the proposed revisions in 
Attachment B – Addendum to the Adoption Draft with the following conditions: 

1. Allow single-unit attached dwellings with three or more units, triplex or four-plex dwellings, and multiunit 

dwellings in the C-1 district to be built to a height of 35 feet.  



 

 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA MEMO 
 
SUBJECT: Second Reading of Ordinance 2025-01 
STAFF CONTACT: Lucy Mulvihill 
MEETING DATE: 01.27.2025 

2. Remove maximum disturbance provisions from Slope Hazard Area Development.  

3. Do not require a Special Use Permit for development on slopes 30 percent or greater.  

4. Replace the Avalanche Hazard Map reference from a specific study to the language: “identified in the 

Town’s most recently updated avalanche mapping study.”  

5. Exempt all construction in the MU-1 (current B-P) from the small lot bulk plane limitations. 

6. Amend Section 15-8-10(a) of the Land Use Code to specify that the San Juan Regional Planning 

Commission shall consist of two members from the Board of Trustees, one member from the Board of 

County Commissioners, and four at-large members appointed by the Planning Commission. 

7. Add a new Section 15-8-20(8) that allows for the Town Administrator to refer any administrative decision 

to the Planning Commission.  

8. Require a Special Use Permit for Duplex and single-unit attached dwellings with two units with a building 

footprint over 2500 square feet 

9. Implement a maximum building footprint of 2500 square feet for single-family dwellings in R-2 

 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTION 
In the second reading of the proposed Ordinance, the Board of Trustees shall approve as submitted, approve with 
conditions, table for additional review, or deny the proposed ordinance. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommends the Board of Trustees Approve Ordinance No. 2025-01, an ordinance of the Town of Silverton 
repealing and readopting the Land Use Code and amending the official zoning map and incorporating the proposed 
revisions in Attachment B – Addendum to the Adoption Draft. 
 
ATTACHMENTS  

A. Ordinance 2025-01 
a. Land Use Code 
b. Zoning Map 

B. Addendum to the Adoption Draft 
C. Public Comment 
D. Legal Notice of Public Hearing  

 
MOTION OR DIRECTION 

• Approval: I move to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 2025-01, an ordinance of the Town of 
Silverton repealing and readopting the Land Use Code and amending the official zoning map and incorporating 
the proposed revisions in Attachment B – Addendum to the Adoption Draft. 

 



 

 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA MEMO 
 
SUBJECT: Second Reading of Ordinance 2025-01 
STAFF CONTACT: Lucy Mulvihill 
MEETING DATE: 01.27.2025 

• Approval with Conditions: I move to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 2025-01, an ordinance of 
the Town of Silverton repealing and readopting the Land Use Code and amending the official zoning map and 
incorporating the proposed revisions in Attachment B – Addendum to the Adoption Draft with the following 
conditions [insert conditions] 

 
• Continuance: I move to continue the review of Ordinance No. 2025-01, an ordinance of the Town of Silverton 

repealing and readopting the Land Use Code and amending the official zoning map and incorporating the 
proposed revisions in Attachment B – Addendum to the Adoption Draft. 

 
• Denial: I move to deny Ordinance No. 2025-01, an ordinance of the Town of Silverton repealing and 

readopting the Land Use Code and amending the official zoning map and incorporating the proposed revisions 
in Attachment B – Addendum to the Adoption Draft. 

 



Silverton Land Use Code 
Staff Draft – May 2024 

Silverton Land Use Code 
October 2024 

Adoption Draft 

Exhibit A



Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft i 

Table of Contents 
Article 1 General Provisions.................................................................................................... 1 

15-1-10 Title, Effective Date, and Archived Regulations ........................................... 1 

15-1-20 Authority ..................................................................................................................... 1 

15-1-30 Purpose ....................................................................................................................... 1 

15-1-40 Applicability ............................................................................................................... 1 

15-1-50 Minimum Standards ............................................................................................... 2 

15-1-60 Private Restrictions ................................................................................................. 2 

15-1-70 Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Expenses ...................................................... 2 

15-1-80 Transitional Provisions ........................................................................................... 2 

(a) Existing Development ................................................................................................................ 2 

(b) Violations Continue....................................................................................................................... 2 

(c) Nonconformities Continue ...................................................................................................... 3 

(d) Previous Approvals ........................................................................................................................ 3 

(e) Previous Limited Overlay District ......................................................................................... 3 

(f) Previous Planned Unit Developments ............................................................................. 3 

(g) Applications in Progress ........................................................................................................... 4 

15-1-90 Severability ................................................................................................................. 5 

Article 2 Zoning Districts ........................................................................................................ 6 

15-2-10 Zoning Districts Established ............................................................................... 6 

15-2-20 Compass Master Plan Implementation .......................................................... 6 

15-2-30 Official Zoning Map ................................................................................................ 7 

15-2-40 Interpretation of District Boundaries .............................................................. 7 

15-2-50 Base Zoning Districts and Dimensions ........................................................... 7 

(a) Summary of Zoning District Dimensional Standards ............................................. 7 

(b) Single-Unit Attached Lots ....................................................................................................... 8 

(c) Lots Less Than 2,500 Square Feet....................................................................................... 8 

(d) Graphics ...............................................................................................................................................9 

(e) R-1: Neighborhood Residential ............................................................................................ 10 

(f) R-2: Mixed Residential ................................................................................................................ 11 

(g) MU-1: Downtown Mixed-Use ................................................................................................. 12 

(h) C-1: Gateway Commercial ....................................................................................................... 13 

(i) C-2: Employment Commercial ............................................................................................ 14 

Exhibit A



Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft ii 

(j) P: Public ............................................................................................................................................. 15 

15-2-60 Exceptions and Encroachments ....................................................................... 16 

(a) Permitted Encroachments into Setbacks .................................................................... 16 

(b) Permitted Exceptions to Height Limitations .............................................................. 16 

15-2-70 Planned Unit Development (PUD) ................................................................... 17 

(a) Purpose .............................................................................................................................................. 17 

(b) Applicability ..................................................................................................................................... 17 

(c) Eligibility to Apply for a PUD ................................................................................................. 17 

(d) Relationship to Zoning and Subdivision ....................................................................... 18 

(e) Rezoning to PUD .......................................................................................................................... 19 

15-2-80 Overlay Zoning Districts ...................................................................................... 19 

(a) Historic District Overlay ............................................................................................................ 19 

Article 3 Use Standards ......................................................................................................... 24 

15-3-10 Purpose .................................................................................................................... 24 

15-3-20 Organization ........................................................................................................... 24 

(c) Compliance with Additional Requirements .............................................................. 24 

15-3-30 Abbreviations Used in the Table ..................................................................... 25 

(a) Permitted Uses ............................................................................................................................. 25 

(b) Uses Requiring Special Use Permit ................................................................................. 25 

(c) Prohibited Uses ............................................................................................................................ 25 

(d) Uses for Other Purposes ......................................................................................................... 25 

15-3-40 Use Table .................................................................................................................. 25 

15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards ....................................................................................... 29 

(a) Residential Uses ........................................................................................................................... 29 

(b) Commercial Uses ........................................................................................................................ 33 

(c) Industrial Uses .............................................................................................................................. 40 

15-3-60 Accessory Uses and Structures ....................................................................... 46 

(a) Purpose .............................................................................................................................................46 

(b) Applicability ....................................................................................................................................46 

(c) General Standards ......................................................................................................................46 

(d) Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) .......................................................................................... 47 

(e) Cottage Industry ......................................................................................................................... 48 

(f) Domestic Animals ......................................................................................................................49 

Exhibit A



Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft iii 

(g) Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Station ...........................................................................49 

(h) Family Child Care Home .........................................................................................................49 

(i) Greenhouse .................................................................................................................................... 50 

(j) Home Occupation ...................................................................................................................... 50 

(k) Horse and Livestock Keeping ............................................................................................... 51 

(l) Outdoor Storage, Commercial ............................................................................................. 51 

(m) Outdoor Storage, Residential .............................................................................................. 52 

(n) Propane Tank ................................................................................................................................. 52 

(o) Recreational Vehicle Storage ............................................................................................... 52 

(p) Solar Energy System, Ground or Roof-Mounted ..................................................... 52 

15-3-70 Temporary Uses and Structures ...................................................................... 52 

(a) Purpose ............................................................................................................................................. 52 

(b) Applicability .................................................................................................................................... 53 

(c) Exemptions ..................................................................................................................................... 53 

(d) General Standards ...................................................................................................................... 53 

(e) Farm Stand ..................................................................................................................................... 54 

(f) Farmer’s Market ........................................................................................................................... 54 

(g) Food Truck ....................................................................................................................................... 54 

(h) Portable Storage Unit ............................................................................................................... 54 

(i) Portable Waste Trailer .............................................................................................................. 55 

(j) Temporary Event or Sales ...................................................................................................... 55 

(k) Temporary Outdoor Dining .................................................................................................. 55 

Article 4 Subdivision Design and Improvement .......................................................... 59 

15-4-10 General Provisions ................................................................................................ 59 

(a) Purpose ............................................................................................................................................. 59 

(b) Applicability .................................................................................................................................... 59 

(c) Compliance with LUC ............................................................................................................... 59 

(d) Design Standards and Specifications ............................................................................ 59 

(e) Suitability of Land for Development ............................................................................... 59 

15-4-20 Subdivision Design Standards ......................................................................... 60 

(a) Lots and Blocks ........................................................................................................................... 60 

(b) Streets ............................................................................................................................................... 60 

(c) Utility Easements ........................................................................................................................ 62 

Exhibit A



 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  iv 

15-4-30 Required Improvements .................................................................................... 62 

(a) Water and Sewer Service Extensions ............................................................................. 62 

(b) Storm Drainage System .......................................................................................................... 62 

(c) Sanitary Sewerage System .................................................................................................... 63 

(d) Potable Water System ............................................................................................................. 63 

(e) Fire Hydrants .................................................................................................................................. 63 

(f) Utilities ............................................................................................................................................... 63 

(g) Street Lights ................................................................................................................................... 63 

(h) Arterial Roads ................................................................................................................................64 

(i) Street Improvements ...............................................................................................................64 

15-4-40 Public Land Dedication ...................................................................................... 64 

(a) Dedication or Cash in Lieu Requirement ....................................................................64 

(b) Cash in Lieu .....................................................................................................................................64 

(c) Acceptance ..................................................................................................................................... 65 

(d) Reservations ................................................................................................................................... 65 

Article 5 Environmentally Sensitive Lands .................................................................... 66 

15-5-10 Avalanche Hazard Areas ..................................................................................... 66 

(a) Purpose ............................................................................................................................................. 66 

(b) Applicability .................................................................................................................................... 66 

(c) Review Required.......................................................................................................................... 66 

(d) Restrictions on Development ............................................................................................. 67 

(e) Administration .............................................................................................................................. 68 

(f) Amendments to Map Boundaries .................................................................................... 68 

(g) Warning and Disclaimer of Safety and Liability ....................................................... 68 

15-5-20 Flood Hazard Areas .............................................................................................. 69 

(a) General Provisions ...................................................................................................................... 69 

(b) Review Required.......................................................................................................................... 70 

(c) General Regulations ................................................................................................................... 71 

(d) Uses Allowed in Floodway ...................................................................................................... 71 

(e) Development Standards in Flood Fringe .................................................................... 72 

(f) Standards for Critical Facilities ........................................................................................... 74 

(g) Administration .............................................................................................................................. 75 

15-5-30 Slope Hazard Areas .............................................................................................. 75 

Exhibit A



 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  v 

(a) Purpose ............................................................................................................................................. 75 

(b) Applicability .................................................................................................................................... 75 

(c) Development on Slopes Between 25 and 30 Percent ......................................... 75 

(d) Development on Slopes Greater than 30 Percent ................................................. 76 

(e) Development on Unstable or Potentially Unstable Slopes .............................. 76 

(f) Administration .............................................................................................................................. 77 

15-5-40 Wildfire Hazard Study ......................................................................................... 77 

(a) Purpose ............................................................................................................................................. 77 

(b) Applicability .................................................................................................................................... 77 

(c) Wildfire Hazard Study .............................................................................................................. 77 

(d) Referral to Colorado State Forest Service or Division of Fire Prevention 
and Control................................................................................................................................................... 78 

(e) Requirements for Final Approvals .................................................................................... 78 

Article 6 Site Development Standards ............................................................................ 79 

15-6-10 Mobility, Connectivity, and Parking ............................................................... 79 

(a) Purpose ............................................................................................................................................. 79 

(b) Applicability .................................................................................................................................... 79 

(c) Mobility .............................................................................................................................................. 79 

(d) Connectivity ................................................................................................................................... 80 

(e) Parking for those Experiencing Disabilities .............................................................. 80 

(f) Bicycle Parking ............................................................................................................................ 80 

(g) Parking Area Design ................................................................................................................ 80 

15-6-20 Landscaping and Screening .............................................................................. 81 

(a) Applicability ..................................................................................................................................... 81 

(b) Nonfunctional Turf, Artificial Turf, and Invasive Plant Species ....................... 82 

(c) Screening ......................................................................................................................................... 82 

15-6-30 Site and Building Design Standards .............................................................. 83 

(a) Purpose ............................................................................................................................................. 83 

(b) Townwide Design Standards ............................................................................................... 83 

(c) Historic District Overlay Standards .................................................................................. 86 

(d) Additional Greene Street Standards ............................................................................... 86 

15-6-40 Outdoor Lighting .................................................................................................. 87 

(a) Purpose ............................................................................................................................................. 87 

Exhibit A



 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  vi 

(b) General Provisions ...................................................................................................................... 87 

(c) Specialized Outdoor Lighting ............................................................................................ 88 

(d) Exemptions ..................................................................................................................................... 89 

(e) Prohibited Outdoor Lighting .............................................................................................. 90 

(f) Nonconforming Outdoor Lighting ................................................................................. 90 

(g) Plan Submission and Compliance Review .................................................................. 91 

Article 7 Signs ........................................................................................................................... 92 

15-7-10 Purpose .................................................................................................................... 92 

15-7-20 Applicability ............................................................................................................ 92 

15-7-30 Permit Required .................................................................................................... 92 

15-7-40 Measurement and Calculation ......................................................................... 92 

(a) Building Frontage....................................................................................................................... 92 

(b) Sign Area .......................................................................................................................................... 93 

(c) Freestanding Sign Height .....................................................................................................94 

15-7-50 Exempt Signs .......................................................................................................... 95 

(a) Internal and Integral Signs .................................................................................................... 95 

(b) Flags or Insignia ........................................................................................................................... 95 

(c) Public Signs .................................................................................................................................... 96 

(d) Artwork .............................................................................................................................................. 96 

(e) Menu-Sized Sign Boxes and Changeable Sign Boards ....................................... 96 

(f) Residential and Vacation Rental Signs .......................................................................... 96 

(g) Temporary Signs .......................................................................................................................... 97 

(h) Vehicle Signs .................................................................................................................................. 97 

(i) Window Signs ............................................................................................................................... 97 

15-7-60 Prohibited Signs and Sign Locations ............................................................. 97 

(a) Improper Location ...................................................................................................................... 97 

(b) Prohibited Sign Types .............................................................................................................. 97 

15-7-70 Standards for Permanent Signs ...................................................................... 98 

(a) Sign Materials ................................................................................................................................ 98 

(b) Requirements by Sign Type ................................................................................................. 98 

15-7-80 Allowable Signage by Zoning District ........................................................... 99 

(a) Residential Districts ................................................................................................................... 99 

(b) Mixed-Use, Commercial, and Public Districts ........................................................... 99 

Exhibit A



 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  vii 

15-7-90 Standards for Temporary Signs ....................................................................... 99 

(a) General Standards for All Temporary Signs ................................................................ 99 

(b) Sandwich Boards and Signboards ................................................................................... 99 

(c) Temporary Banner Signs ...................................................................................................... 100 

(d) Yard Signs ...................................................................................................................................... 100 

15-7-100 Nonconforming Signs ....................................................................................... 100 

15-7-110 Coordinated Sign Plan ....................................................................................... 101 

(a) Applicability ................................................................................................................................... 101 

(b) Standards ........................................................................................................................................ 101 

15-7-120 Abandoned Signs ................................................................................................. 101 

Article 8 Administration and Procedures ......................................................................102 

15-8-10 Review and Decision-Making Bodies ...........................................................102 

(a) San Juan Regional Planning Commission ................................................................ 102 

(b) Board of Adjustment .............................................................................................................. 103 

(c) Historic Preservation Committee.................................................................................... 104 

(d) Floodplain Administrator ..................................................................................................... 106 

15-8-20 Development Review Procedures ................................................................ 108 

(a) Summary Table of Development Review Procedures ....................................... 108 

(b) Common Review Procedures Described ..................................................................... 111 

(c) Preapplication Meeting........................................................................................................... 111 

(d) Informational Meeting ............................................................................................................. 111 

(e) Application Submittal and Acceptance ....................................................................... 112 

(f) Administrative Review and Action .................................................................................. 115 

(g) Public Notice ................................................................................................................................. 117 

(h) Decision-Making Review and Action ............................................................................. 118 

(i) Post-Decision Actions and Obligations ....................................................................... 121 

15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions ...................................... 123 

(a) Administrative Adjustment ................................................................................................ 123 

(b) Avalanche Hazard Permit, Minor .................................................................................... 125 

(c) Expedited Review for Affordable Housing ................................................................ 128 

(d) Final Plat for Condominium or Townhome .............................................................. 130 

(e) Flood Hazard Development Permit ............................................................................... 131 

(f) Historic District Overlay Review, Minor.........................................................................133 

Exhibit A



 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  viii 

(g) LUC Interpretation ....................................................................................................................135 

(h) Minor Plat Amendment ........................................................................................................ 136 

(i) Sign Permit ................................................................................................................................... 138 

(j) Sign Plan, Coordinated .......................................................................................................... 139 

(k) Simple Subdivision ................................................................................................................... 140 

(l) Site Plan ........................................................................................................................................... 141 

(m) Slope Hazard Development Permit .............................................................................. 144 

(n) Temporary Use Permit ........................................................................................................... 145 

(o) Vacation Rental Permit ......................................................................................................... 146 

15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required ...................................... 149 

(a) Annexation and Disconnection ....................................................................................... 149 

(b) Appeal of an Administrative Decision .......................................................................... 149 

(c) Appeal of a Planning Commission or Historic Preservation Committee 
Decision ......................................................................................................................................................... 151 

(d) Avalanche Hazard Permit, Major ......................................................................................153 

(e) Flood Hazard Variance ........................................................................................................... 156 

(f) Historic District Overlay Designation ........................................................................... 158 

(g) Historic District Overlay Review, Major ......................................................................... 161 

(h) Land Use Code Text Amendment .................................................................................. 163 

(i) Master Plan Amendment .................................................................................................... 164 

(j) Special Use Permit ................................................................................................................... 166 

(k) Subdivision, Major ..................................................................................................................... 167 

(l) Subdivision Design Modification .................................................................................... 176 

(m) Vacation of Right-of-Way (ROW Vacation) ................................................................ 177 

(n) Variance ........................................................................................................................................... 179 

(o) Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) ........................................................................... 181 

Article 9 Nonconformities ................................................................................................... 185 

15-9-10 Purpose ................................................................................................................... 185 

15-9-20 Applicability ........................................................................................................... 185 

15-9-30 Regulations Applicable to All Nonconformities ....................................... 185 

(a) Nonconforming Status .......................................................................................................... 185 

(b) Authority to Continue ............................................................................................................. 186 

(c) Ordinary Repair and Maintenance ................................................................................. 186 

Exhibit A



 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  ix 

(d) Change of Ownership or Tenancy .................................................................................. 186 

(e) Discontinuance and Abandonment ............................................................................. 186 

(f) Destruction ................................................................................................................................... 186 

15-9-40 Nonconforming Uses ......................................................................................... 187 

(a) Expansion ....................................................................................................................................... 187 

(b) Change of Use ............................................................................................................................. 188 

(c) Manufactured Home .............................................................................................................. 188 

(d) Obsolete Structure ................................................................................................................... 188 

15-9-50 Nonconforming Structures ............................................................................. 188 

(a) Nonconforming Structures in Avalanche Hazard Areas ................................... 188 

(b) All Other Nonconforming Structures ........................................................................... 189 

15-9-60 Nonconforming Lots .......................................................................................... 189 

15-9-70 Nonconforming Signs ....................................................................................... 189 

Article 10 Enforcement and Penalties .............................................................................. 191 

15-10-10 Purpose ................................................................................................................... 191 

15-10-20 Compliance Required ......................................................................................... 191 

15-10-30 Authority ................................................................................................................. 191 

15-10-40 Violations ................................................................................................................ 191 

15-10-50 Enforcement .......................................................................................................... 191 

15-10-60 Penalties ................................................................................................................. 192 

(a) General ............................................................................................................................................. 192 

(b) Forfeiture for Sales in Unapproved Subdivisions .................................................. 192 

15-10-70 Mandatory Demolition ....................................................................................... 192 

15-10-80 Building and Property Appearance and Maintenance ........................... 193 

(a) Applicability .................................................................................................................................. 193 

(b) Boarding Up ................................................................................................................................. 193 

(c) Damaged Buildings ................................................................................................................ 193 

(d) Drainage and Snow Storage Impacted Buildings ................................................ 193 

(e) Maintenance and Appearance ......................................................................................... 193 

(f) Enforcement ................................................................................................................................ 194 

Article 11 Definitions and Measurements ....................................................................... 195 

15-11-10 Rules of Construction ......................................................................................... 195 

(a) Meanings and Intent .............................................................................................................. 195 

Exhibit A



 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  x 

(b) Headings, Illustrations, And Text ..................................................................................... 195 

(c) Lists and Examples .................................................................................................................. 195 

(d) Computation of Time ............................................................................................................. 195 

(e) References to Other Regulations/Publications...................................................... 195 

(f) Delegation of Authority ......................................................................................................... 195 

(g) Technical and Non-Technical Terms ............................................................................. 195 

(h) Public Officials and Agencies ............................................................................................ 195 

(i) Mandatory and Discretionary Terms ............................................................................ 196 

(j) Conjunctions ................................................................................................................................ 196 

(k) Tenses and Plurals .................................................................................................................... 196 

15-11-20 Measurements and Associated Terms ........................................................ 196 

(a) Building Footprint Measurement ................................................................................... 196 

(b) Clear Vision Triangle Measurement .............................................................................. 196 

(c) Gross Floor Area Measurement ........................................................................................ 196 

(d) Fence Height ............................................................................................................................... 196 

(e) Floor Area Ratio .......................................................................................................................... 196 

(f) Height Measurement ............................................................................................................. 197 

(g) Lot Terms and Measurements .......................................................................................... 198 

(h) Setback Measurement .......................................................................................................... 199 

(i) Sign Measurements ................................................................................................................ 199 

15-11-30 General Terms ...................................................................................................... 199 

A 199 

B 202 

C 202 

D 204 

E 205 

F 206 

G 211 

H 212 

I 214 

J 215 

K 215 

L 215 

Exhibit A



 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  xi 

M 215 

N 217 

O 218 

P 218 

Q 219 

R 219 

S 221 

T 225 

U 226 

V 226 

W 227 

X 229 

Y 229 

Z 229 

Exhibit A



Article 1 General Provisions 
 Section 15-1-10 Title, Effective Date, and Archived Regulations 

15-1-80(a) Existing Development 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  1 

Article 1 General Provisions 
15-1-10 Title, Effective Date, and Archived Regulations 

(a) This Chapter of the Town of Silverton Municipal Code is known as the Town of 
Silverton Land Use Code and short citation references are “this LUC” or "this 
Code.” 

(b) This LUC shall become effective on <>(Effective Date). The land use code that was 
effective immediately prior to this Code shall be referred to as the prior LUC. 

(c) Two copies of the prior LUC shall be maintained and remain of record in the 
Town Clerk’s Office and the Town Administrator’s Office, either in hard copy or 
electronically. An unofficial public copy may also be maintained on the Town 
website. All copies of the prior LUC that are publicly available shall be clearly 
identified as outdated. 

15-1-20 Authority 
This Land Use Code is adopted pursuant to C.R.S. Title 31, Article 23. 

15-1-30 Purpose 
This Code is adopted to promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the 
present and future inhabitants of the Town. It is adopted in accordance with the 
Master Plan and is intended to accomplish the follow: 

(a) Implement the Master Plan, including the goals, strategies, and actions of the 
plan, and the Future Land Use Framework; 

(b) Preserve the history of Silverton; 
(c) Establish regulatory options that encourage the incorporation of climate-friendly, 

sustainable, and resilient development design in the Town; 
(d) Manage responsible land use, growth, and development in a way that improves 

the residents’ quality of life; 
(e) Promote compatible land use relationships; 
(f) Encourage housing affordability through the development of a range of housing 

types to maintain a diversity of residents in the community; 
(g) Protect the Town from natural hazards such as flooding, landslides, avalanches, 

and snowslides, while protecting the natural environment; 
(h) Promote predictability, consistency, and efficiency in the development process 

for residents, neighborhoods, businesses, and other development interests; and 
(i) Ensure appropriate opportunities for participation and involvement in the 

development process by all affected parties. 

15-1-40 Applicability 

(a) The provisions of this LUC shall apply to the development and use of all land 
within the Town, unless specifically provided otherwise in this LUC. 

Exhibit A



Article 1 General Provisions 
 Section 15-1-50 Minimum Standards 

15-1-80(a) Existing Development 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  2 

(b) No permit, certificate, or approval of any use that is subject to this LUC shall be 
issued or granted by any department, agency, Town official, or Town employee 
without a finding of compliance with this LUC. 

(c) No lot of record that did not exist on the Effective Date shall be created by 
subdivision or other legal mechanism unless it complies with this LUC. 

(d) All property, uses, structures, and facilities owned or operated by the Town shall 
be in compliance with this LUC to the maximum extent practicable, but may be 
exempted from complying with some aspects of this LUC based on the 
governmental function performed on the property. 

15-1-50 Minimum Standards 

(a) The provisions of this Code are the minimum standards necessary to accomplish 
its stated purpose. 

(b) Where the standards imposed by any provision of this Code are less restrictive 
than standards imposed by the Silverton Municipal Code, or any other Town, 
state, or federal law applicable to the same topic, the more restrictive regulations 
shall govern. 

15-1-60 Private Restrictions 

(a) This Code does not interfere with, abrogate, or annul any private agreement, 
including but not limited to easements, covenants, or deed restrictions.  

(b) When the provisions of this Code conflict with private agreements, the stricter 
provisions shall control.  

(c) It is not the Town’s responsibility to enforce private agreements, nor is the Town 
obligated to adopt regulations consistent with private agreements. 

15-1-70 Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Expenses 
The Board of Trustees shall establish a schedule of fees, charges, and expenses and a 
collection procedure for appeals and other matters pertaining to this LUC. 

15-1-80 Transitional Provisions 

(a) Existing Development 
No provision of this Code shall require any change in the continued use of any 
structure for which a Certificate of Occupancy was issued pursuant to the prior 
LUC. The following requests shall require compliance with this Code as set forth 
in Section 15-9-30(e), Discontinuance and Abandonment: 

(1) Changes to the structure, site, or use; 

(2) A use that that is discontinued for a period of one year; and  

(3) A structure that remains vacant for a period of one year. 

(b) Violations Continue 
Any violation occurring under the prior LUC will continue to be a violation under 
this Code and be subject to penalties and enforcement pursuant to Article 10, 

Exhibit A



Article 1 General Provisions 
 Section 15-1-80 Transitional Provisions 

15-1-80(c) Nonconformities Continue 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  3 

unless the use, development, construction, or other activity complies with the 
provisions of this Code. 

(c) Nonconformities Continue 
Any nonconformity under the prior LUC remains a nonconformity unless and 
until it conforms to the provisions of the current Code. If a nonconformity under 
the prior LUC becomes conforming because of the adoption of this LUC, then 
the situation will no longer be a nonconformity. 

(d) Previous Approvals 
(1) Validity  

Except for Planned Unit Developments (PUD) as provided in Section 15-1-
80(e), permits and approvals for new or unfinished projects issued prior to 
the Effective Date remain valid until their expiration date. Projects with valid 
approvals or permits may be carried out in accordance with the 
development standards in effect at the time of approval. Where an approval 
was issued pursuant to the prior LUC without an expiration date and the 
same approval has an expiration date in this LUC, the expiration date shall 
apply to the prior approval, starting as of the Effective Date. 

(2) Expiration 

If a prior approval expires based on an expiration established in the prior LUC, 
or the project development approval is revoked or otherwise becomes 
invalid, any subsequent use or development of the property shall comply 
with this LUC. 

(3) Extension 

The decision-making body that granted the prior approval may renew or 
extend the time of a previous approval if the required standards or criteria for 
approval remain valid and the proposed extension complies with Section 15-
8-20(i)(5)b. 

(4) Reapplication 

Reapplication is required for any expired or revoked approval. The new 
application will be considered under the provisions of this LUC. 

(e) Previous Limited Overlay District 
Any development approved in the Limited Overlay District prior to the Effective 
Date shall remain valid. Modification or amendment to approved plans or 
agreements shall comply with the prior LUC requirements for the Limited 
Overlay District. To remove the Limited Overlay District, the property owner may 
submit a Zoning Map Amendment request to rezone the property into a base 
zoning district included in this Code. 

(f) Previous Planned Unit Developments 
(1) A PUD that has been fully approved for all phases and specific application 

types prior to the Effective Date shall remain valid. PUDs that refer to zoning 

Exhibit A



Article 1 General Provisions 
 Section 15-1-80 Transitional Provisions 

15-1-80(g) Applications in Progress 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  4 

districts not included in this Code shall use the prior LUC requirements. A 
modification or amendment to an approved Outline Development Plan shall 
use the prior LUC requirements, but all Site Plans submitted for the PUD 
after the Effective Date shall meet the provisions of this LUC. 

(2) A PUD approval that predates the Effective Date shall be narrowly 
interpreted and limited to the specified terms of approval. Where a term was 
not included in the PUD approval, the most closely similar provision of this 
Code shall be applied. For example, if a PUD does not specify a process for 
amendment, the process for amending PUD approvals in this Code will 
control. 

(g) Applications in Progress 
Applications in various stages of review pursuant to the prior LUC shall reviewed 
as follows. An applicant may opt to have any application reviewed pursuant to 
this LUC. 

(1) Completed Applications 

Complete applications submitted before the Effective Date and pending 
approval at the time of adoption may, at the applicant's option, be reviewed 
wholly under the terms of the prior LUC. If approved, these projects may be 
carried out in accordance with the development standards in effect at the 
time of application. 

(2) Resubmission of Incomplete Applications 

Any application submitted before the Effective Date that has not been 
determined to be complete shall be reviewed for completeness pursuant to 
this LUC and may be required to be revised. 

(3) Reapplication 

If an applicant chooses to amend, withdraw, or resubmit (collectively, 
"reapplication") an application that was completed prior to the Effective 
Date, the reapplication shall be processed under the provisions of the Code 
in effect at the time of reapplication. 

(4) Special Use Permit 

a. Established uses shall be deemed to have received a Special Use Permit 
and shall be a legal, conforming use of land if: 

(i) A use of land or structures was listed as a permitted use in a specific 
zoning district under the prior LUC; 

(ii) That use of land or structures was established on property in that 
district prior to the adoption of this LUC; and 

(iii) The same use of land or property is now listed as a Special Use in the 
same district in Table 15-3-1: Use Table. 

Exhibit A



Article 1 General Provisions 
 Section 15-1-90 Severability 

15-1-80(g) Applications in Progress 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  5 

b. Upon request by the property owner and submission that the use was 
established prior to approval of this LUC, the Town Administrator shall 
provide written confirmation of the legal, conforming status of the use. 

15-1-90 Severability 

(a) If any court of competent jurisdiction declares that any section, subsection, or 
provision of this LUC is invalid, that judgment will not affect the validity of the 
remaining provisions of this LUC. 

(b) If any court of competent jurisdiction invalidates the application of any provision 
of this LUC to a development, that judgment will not affect the application of 
that provision to any other development not specifically included in the 
judgment. 

(c) If any court of competent jurisdiction invalidates any condition attached to an 
application approved under this LUC, that judgment will not affect the validity of 
any other condition attached to the approval that is not specifically included in 
the judgment. 

  

Exhibit A



Article 2 Zoning Districts 
 Section 15-2-10 Zoning Districts Established 

15-1-80(g) Applications in Progress 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  6 

Article 2 Zoning Districts 
15-2-10 Zoning Districts Established 
To implement the Master Plan and the purposes and provisions of this Land Use 
Code, the Town has established the following zoning districts. 

Table 15-2-1: Zoning Districts Summary  

Zoning District 
R-1: Neighborhood Residential 
R-2: Mixed Residential 
MU-1: Downtown Mixed-Use 
C-1: Gateway Commercial 
C-2: Employment Commercial 
P: Public 

15-2-20 Compass Master Plan Implementation 

(a) Table 15-2-2 identifies which zoning district(s) appropriately implement(s) a given 
future land use category identified in the Future Land Use Framework of the 
Compass Master Plan. 

(b) A future land use category is a broadly identified and can be implemented 
through more than one zoning district. A dot indicates that the zoning district 
presumptively implements the corresponding land use category designation 
and is therefore an appropriate option for zoning or rezoning of land within that 
designated area on the Future Land Use Framework. The Town Administrator 
may also interpret the Future Land Use Framework to allow the inclusion of 
other proposed zoning districts based on the consistency of the development 
scale and uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with existing, proposed, or 
allowed development on abutting and adjacent lots. 

(c) A blank cell (no dot) indicates that the zoning district is not an appropriate 
option for zoning or rezoning of land within the corresponding land use 
category. 

Table 15-2-2: Compass Master Plan Implementation  

Future Land Use 
Framework Category 

Zoning District 
R-1 R-2 MU-1 C-1 C-2 P 

Housing Infill  
(Attached, max 3 units) 

⚫      

Housing Infill  
(Variety, 3 or more units)  

⚫ ⚫     

Neighborhood Mixed-
Use 

 ⚫   ⚫  

Business/Mixed-Use   ⚫ ⚫ ⚫  

Exhibit A



Article 2 Zoning Districts 
 Section 15-2-30 Official Zoning Map 

15-2-50(a) Summary of Zoning District Dimensional Standards 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  7 

Table 15-2-2: Compass Master Plan Implementation  

Future Land Use 
Framework Category 

Zoning District 
R-1 R-2 MU-1 C-1 C-2 P 

Recreation      ⚫ 

 

15-2-30 Official Zoning Map 
The boundaries of the zoning districts are delineated on the Official Zoning Map. The 
Official Zoning Map shall be available on the Town website and an official copy shall 
be on file in the Town Clerk’s office.  

15-2-40 Interpretation of District Boundaries 
The following rules shall be applied as necessary to interpret the Zoning Map. Rules 
of interpretation may be applied either singularly or jointly, as needed. 

(a) Zoning district boundaries shall be located on municipal corporate lines, section 
lines, parcel lines, lot lines, natural feature boundary lines or on the center lines of 
highways, streets, alleys, railroad rights-of-way, water bodies (natural and man-
made), or ditches or these lines extended. Boundaries that appear to follow an 
established line shall be construed to follow the line. 

(b) In cases where these lines are not used, the zoning district lines shall be as 
determined by using the Zoning Map scale. 

(c) Rights-of-way are not zoned unless vacated. Vacated right-of-way is zoned with 
the same district as the parcel into which it is incorporated or next to which it is 
adjacent. If a vacated right-of-way is adjacent to two or more zoning districts the 
Town Administrator shall interpret the application of the Zoning Map. 

(d) If a lot or zoning lot is divided by a zoning district boundary line at the time of 
enactment of this Code or by subsequent amendments, the appropriate 
standards and uses for the zoning district that comprises the majority of the 
parcel area shall apply to the entire lot or zoning lot. If the lot or zoning lot is 
divided equally, the Town Administrator may adjust the district boundary to 
apply a single district to the property. The adjustment shall be made in 
consideration of adjacent zoning, land uses, and compliance with the Master 
Plan. The Town Administrator may refer the interpretation of a zoning district 
boundary to the Board of Trustees if the determination has the potential to 
create significant impacts on adjacent properties.  

15-2-50 Base Zoning Districts and Dimensions 

(a) Summary of Zoning District Dimensional Standards 
(1) All new development and redevelopment shall comply with the standards in 

Table 15-2-3 unless another section of this Code provides an alternative 
standard for a particular use, layout, or development type. Sections of this 

Exhibit A



Article 2 Zoning Districts 
 Section 15-2-50 Base Zoning Districts and Dimensions 

15-2-50(b) Single-Unit Attached Lots 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  8 

Code that may provide alternative standards include but are not limited to 
Section 15-3-50, Use-Specific Standards. 

(2) All standards in Table 15-2-3 shall apply to the zoning lot. 

Table 15-2-3: Zoning Districts Dimensional Standards Summary  

Zoning Districts R-1 R-2 MU-1 C-1 C-2 P 
Lot Area per Primary 
Structure, 
Min. SF 

5,000 [1] 2,500 [1] 
[2]  2,500 [2]  2,500 [2]  2,500 [2]  2,500 [2]  

Lot Area, 
Max. SF 10,000 - - - - - 

Lot Width, Min. FT 50 [1]  25 [1] 25 50 50 50 
Setbacks, Min. FT       

Lots < 5,000 SF       
Front N/A 5 0 5 5 5 

Side [1] N/A 3.5 0 3.5 3.5 3.5 
Street Side N/A 5 5 5 5 5 

Rear N/A 5 5 5 5 5 
Lots ≥ 5,000 SF       

Front 7 7 0 15 7 7 
Side [1] 7 7 0 10 7 7 

Street Side 7 7 5 15 7 7 
Rear 5 5 5 5 5 5 

Building Height, Max. FT 30 30 or 
35 [3] 40 30 30 30 FT 

Notes: 
[1] See Section 15-2-50(b) for minimum lot standards for single-unit attached dwellings. 
[2] See Section 15-2-50(c) for standards for lots less than 2,500 feet. 
[3] Single-unit attached dwellings with three or more units, triplex or fourplex dwellings, and multiunit 
dwellings may be built up to 35 feet. 

(b) Single-Unit Attached Lots 
(1) The minimum lot area for exterior units shall be 2,500 square feet and the 

minimum lot area for interior units shall be 2,000 square feet. If there are 
only two units included in the primary structure, both units shall be 
considered exterior units. 

(2) The minimum lot width for exterior units shall be 25 feet and the minimum 
lot area for interior units shall be 20 feet. 

(3) Side setbacks shall only apply to the perimeter of a single-unit attached 
structure and not to individual townhouse/rowhouse lots. 

(c) Lots Less Than 2,500 Square Feet 
Existing lots less than 2,500 square feet in area may be developed if: 

(1) The subject lot was established on the original Town Plat or prior to the 
Effective Date; and 

Exhibit A



Article 2 Zoning Districts 
 Section 15-2-50 Base Zoning Districts and Dimensions 

15-2-50(d) Graphics 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  9 

(2) The lot meets all standards required by Table 15-2-3: Zoning Districts 
Dimensional Standards Summary, excluding minimum lot area and 
minimum lot width. 

(d) Graphics 
(1) Each base zoning district is accompanied by representative photos and a 

graphic depicting how the lot and building standards apply to lots and 
building forms within the respective district. The photos and graphics are 
intended to represent the general character of development within the 
district. 

(2) The graphics are not regulatory and are not to be compared to the visual 
look of a proposed development. 

(3) The graphics do not reflect all standards from the Code that may apply to a 
project and are intentionally conceptual versus detailed.   

Exhibit A



Article 2 Zoning Districts 
 Section 15-2-50 Base Zoning Districts and Dimensions 

15-2-50(e) R-1: Neighborhood Residential 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  10 

(e) R-1: Neighborhood Residential 
(1) Purpose 

This district is designed to accommodate single-unit and duplex dwellings as 
well as limited public or civic uses. It is intended for application in the 
existing predominantly residential areas in Town identified for single-unit 
and duplex housing infill in the Master Plan. 

    
(2) Dimensional Standards 

 

Table 15-2-4: R-1 Lot and Building Standards 

Lot Standards   Building Setbacks (Lots ≥ 5,000 SF) 
Lot Area per Primary 
Structure (Min. SF) 

5,000 [1] A Front (Min. SF) 7 

Lot Area (Max. SF) 10,000 B Side (Min. SF) [1] 7 
Lot Width (Min. FT) 50 C Street Side (Min. SF) 7 
Building Setbacks (Nonconforming 
Lots < 5,000 SF) 

D Rear (Min. SF) 5 

A Front (Min. SF) 5  Building Standards  
B Side (Min. SF) 3.5 [1] E Building Height (Max. FT) 30 
C Street Side (Min. SF) 5 [1] See Section 15-2-50(b) for minimum lot standards 

for single-unit attached dwellings. 
 D Rear (Min. SF) 5 

Exhibit A



Article 2 Zoning Districts 
 Section 15-2-50 Base Zoning Districts and Dimensions 

15-2-50(f) R-2: Mixed Residential 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  11 

(f) R-2: Mixed Residential 
(1) Purpose 

This district is designed to accommodate a variety of housing types including 
single-unit detached and attached, duplex, triplex, fourplex, and multiunit 
dwellings as well as limited public or civic uses. It is intended for application 
as transition areas between neighborhood residential and mixed-use 
districts identified for housing infill and neighborhood mixed-use in the 
Master Plan. 

  
(2) Dimensional Standards 

 

Table 15-2-5: R-2 Lot and Building Standards 

Lot Standards   Building Setbacks (Lots ≥ 5,000 SF) 
Lot Area per Primary 
Structure (Min. SF) 

2,500 
[1][2] A Front (Min. SF) 7 

Lot Area (Max. SF) N/A B Side (Min. SF) [2] 7 
Lot Width (Min. FT) 25 C Street Side (Min. SF) 7 
Building Setbacks (Lots < 5,000 SF) D Rear (Min. SF) 5 

A Front (Min. SF) 5  Building Standards  

B Side (Min. SF) 3.5 [1] E Building Height (Max. FT) 30 or  
35 [3] 

C Street Side (Min. SF) 5 [1] See Section 15-2-50(b) for minimum lot standards 
for single-unit attached dwellings. 
[2] See Section 15-2-50(c) for standards for lots less 
than 2,500 feet. 
[3] Single-unit attached dwellings with three or more 
units, triplex or fourplex dwellings, and multiunit 
dwellings may be built up to 35 feet. 

D Rear (Min. SF) 5 

   

Exhibit A



Article 2 Zoning Districts 
 Section 15-2-50 Base Zoning Districts and Dimensions 

15-2-50(g) MU-1: Downtown Mixed-Use 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  12 

(g) MU-1: Downtown Mixed-Use 
(1) Purpose 

This district is designed to accommodate a variety of commercial, service, 
entertainment, and residential uses in the historic core of Silverton in a 
pedestrian-oriented setting, following the design character and patterns of 
the downtown area. It is intended for application in the business/mixed use 
area as identified in the Master Plan. 

  
(2) Dimensional Standards 

 

Table 15-2-6: MU-1 Lot and Building Standards 

Lot Standards   Building Setbacks (Lots ≥ 5,000 SF) 
Lot Area (Min. SF) 2,500 [1] A Front (Min. SF) 0 
Lot Area (Max. SF) N/A B Side (Min. SF) 0 
Lot Width (Min. FT) 25 C Street Side (Min. SF) 5 
Building Setbacks (Lots < 5,000 SF) D Rear (Min. SF) 5 

A Front (Min. SF) 0  Building Standards  
B Side (Min. SF) 0 E Building Height (Max. FT) 40 
C Street Side (Min. SF) 5 [1] See Section 15-2-50(c) for standards for lots less 

than 2,500 feet. 
 D Rear (Min. SF) 5 

   
 

Exhibit A



Article 2 Zoning Districts 
 Section 15-2-50 Base Zoning Districts and Dimensions 

15-2-50(h) C-1: Gateway Commercial 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  13 

(h) C-1: Gateway Commercial 
(1) Purpose 

This district is designed to accommodate a mix of retail and commercial 
services, creative spaces, office, and other supportive uses to meet the needs 
of residents and tourists. A mix of higher-density and second story housing 
types are also allowed to provide for live/work opportunities. It is intended for 
application in the business/mixed use and neighborhood mixed-use areas 
identified in the Master Plan around the two gateway entrances to town. 

  
(2) Dimensional Standards 

 

Table 15-2-7: C-1 Lot and Building Standards 

Lot Standards   Building Setbacks (Lots ≥ 5,000 SF) 
Lot Area (Min. SF) 2,500 [1] A Front (Min. SF) 15 
Lot Area (Max. SF) N/A B Side (Min. SF) 10 
Lot Width (Min. FT) 50 C Street Side (Min. SF) 15 
Building Setbacks (Lots < 5,000 SF) D Rear (Min. SF) 5 

A Front (Min. SF) 5  Building Standards  
B Side (Min. SF) 3.5 E Building Height (Max. FT) 30 
C Street Side (Min. SF) 5 [1] See Section 15-2-50(c) for standards for lots less 

than 2,500 feet. 
 D Rear (Min. SF) 5 

   
 

Exhibit A



Article 2 Zoning Districts 
 Section 15-2-50 Base Zoning Districts and Dimensions 

15-2-50(i) C-2: Employment Commercial 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  14 

(i) C-2: Employment Commercial 
(1) Purpose 

This district is designed to accommodate a variety of businesses and 
activities, including industrial and manufacturing activities, as well as 
supporting office and commercial uses. It is intended for application on 
nonresidential lots in the southeastern portion of town identified for 
neighborhood mixed-use in the Master Plan. 

  
(2) Dimensional Standards 

 

Table 15-2-8: C-2 Lot and Building Standards 

Lot Standards   Building Setbacks (Lots ≥ 5,000 SF) 
Lot Area (Min. SF) 2,500 [1] A Front (Min. SF) 7 
Lot Area (Max. SF) N/A B Side (Min. SF) 7 
Lot Width (Min. FT) 50 C Street Side (Min. SF) 7 
Building Setbacks (Lots < 5,000 SF) D Rear (Min. SF) 5 

A Front (Min. SF) 5  Building Standards  
B Side (Min. SF) 3.5 E Building Height (Max. FT) 30 
C Street Side (Min. SF) 5 [1] See Section 15-2-50(c) for standards for lots less 

than 2,500 feet. 
 D Rear (Min. SF) 5 

   
 

Exhibit A



Article 2 Zoning Districts 
 Section 15-2-50 Base Zoning Districts and Dimensions 

15-2-50(j) P: Public 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  15 

(j) P: Public 
(1) Purpose 

This district is designed to accommodate public and quasi-public uses and 
activities such as parks, open spaces, trails, community centers, or public 
safety facilities. It is intended for application in the areas identified for 
recreation in the Master Plan.  

  
(2) Dimensional Standards 

 

Table 15-2-9: P Lot and Building Standards 

Lot Standards   Building Setbacks (Lots ≥ 5,000 SF) 
Lot Area (Min. SF) 2,500 [1] A Front (Min. SF) 7 
Lot Area (Max. SF) N/A B Side (Min. SF) 7 
Lot Width (Min. FT) 50 C Street Side (Min. SF) 7 
Building Setbacks (Lots < 5,000 SF) D Rear (Min. SF) 5 

A Front (Min. SF) 5  Building Standards  
B Side (Min. SF) 3.5 E Building Height (Max. FT) 30 
C Street Side (Min. SF) 5 [1] See Section 15-2-50(c) for standards for lots less 

than 2,500 feet. 
 D Rear (Min. SF) 5 

   
 

  

Exhibit A



Article 2 Zoning Districts 
 Section 15-2-60 Exceptions and Encroachments 

15-2-60(a) Permitted Encroachments into Setbacks 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  16 

15-2-60 Exceptions and Encroachments 

(a) Permitted Encroachments into Setbacks 
Certain building and site features listed in the table below may extend into the 
required building setback limits for each zoning district. 

Table 15-2-10: Permitted Setback Encroachments 

Projection Front or Street Side 
Setback Side or Rear Setback 

Building Element   
Approved accessibility ramps Any distance Any distance 
Bay windows, chimneys, decks, 
balconies (includes cantilevered 
and balconies supported by 
individual pillars) and patios 

2 FT  2 FT 

Belt courses, sills, lintels, 
pilasters, pediments 2 IN 2 IN 

Eaves, roof overhangs, cornices, 
gutters, and downspouts 3 FT 6 IN 3 FT 6 IN 

Propane tanks N/A 3 FT 

Shading devices such as 
awnings, canopies, and 
marquees 

5 FT provided the 
structure complies with 
the Development 
Standards and 
Specifications 

5 FT provided the 
structure complies 
with the Development 
Standards and 
Specifications 

Unenclosed entry/egress stairs 3 FT 3 FT 
Window wells Any distance 3 FT 
Site Element   

Accessory structures less than 
120 square feet N/A 

Any distance provided 
that there is no off-site 
snow shed 

Fences and walls (freestanding) Any distance Any distance 
Flagpoles and signs Any distance Any distance 
Flatwork Any distance Any distance 
Gardens and landscaping Any distance Any distance 
Ornamental Lights Any distance Any distance 
Mechanical, Electric, and 
Plumbing Elements 

  

Gas and electric meters 2 FT 2 FT 
 

(b) Permitted Exceptions to Height Limitations 
Certain building and site features listed in the table below may exceed the 
maximum height limitation established for each zoning district. 

Exhibit A



Article 2 Zoning Districts 
 Section 15-2-70 Planned Unit Development (PUD) 

15-2-70(a) Purpose 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  17 

Table 15-2-11: Exceptions to Building Height Limits 

Site Structure or Feature Maximum Height Increase 
Chimneys and smokestacks Any distance 
Antennas and towers (except as 
provided in Section 15-3-50(c)(3), 
Wireless Communication Facilities 
(WCF)) 

5 FT 

Flues and vents 5 FT 
Emergency sirens and similar devices Any distance 
Mechanical, electrical, and plumbing 
equipment including elevator 
overruns and roof-mounted solar 
energy equipment 

5 FT 

Parapet walls, safety railings, and 
screening walls 5 FT 

 

15-2-70 Planned Unit Development (PUD) 

(a) Purpose 
(1) The purpose of this Section is to: 

a. Encourage development that contains unique or innovative design 
features; 

b. Enhance unique, natural, resource or scenic features; 

c. Preserve open spaces; and 

d. Allow the negotiation of a specialized zoning district in exchange for 
development that implements the Master Plan goals and the intent of 
this LUC.  

(b) Applicability 
(1) This district is intended to be used only when no other base or overlay district 

in this Code, and no combination of those districts, can be used to approve a 
new development that provides substantial additional benefits to the Town 
that would not otherwise be required by this Code. 

(2) PUD rezoning is prohibited when used only to change development 
standards, such as sign requirements. 

(c) Eligibility to Apply for a PUD 
An application for rezoning to a PUD zoning district shall comply with all of the 
following requirements. 

(1) The PUD shall: 

a. Address a unique, site-specific situation; or 

Exhibit A



Article 2 Zoning Districts 
 Section 15-2-70 Planned Unit Development (PUD) 

15-2-70(d) Relationship to Zoning and Subdivision 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  18 

b. Confer a substantial benefit to the Town, representing an improvement 
in quality over what could have been accomplished through application 
of the applicable base district or development standards. Improvements 
in quality may include, but are not limited to:  

(i) Improvements in open space provision and access; 

(ii) Environmental protection; 

(iii) Protection or improvement of a historic structure that would not 
otherwise be required to be preserved or improved; 

(iv) Efficient provision of streets, roads, and other utilities and services; or 

(v) Provision of affordable housing as defined by this LUC. 

(2) Permitted uses may not be changed through the PUD process. 

(d) Relationship to Zoning and Subdivision 
(1) Default Zoning District(s) 

a. The approval of a PUD application creates a new base zoning district, 
subject to a new Overall Development Plan, that replaces the existing 
base district for the property. Approval of a PUD district may not occur 
without simultaneous approval of an Overall Development Plan.  

b. The Overall Development Plan shall identify one or more existing base 
zoning district(s) applicable to each portion of the property, referred to as 
the default zoning district(s).  

(i) The application may identify different default zoning districts for 
different portions of the property.  

(ii) Each PUD application may identify proposed modifications to the 
Code standards, including but not limited to setbacks, lot area, and 
site and building design standards, through the Overall 
Development Plan. 

(iii) The standards applicable to each identified default zoning district 
shall apply to that portion of the property unless the PUD application 
requests, and the Town approves, a specific different standard or 
provision for that portion of the property. 

c. Following approval of a PUD and Overall Development Plan, review and 
approval of a Site Plan is required for any portion of the property subject 
to development, pursuant to Section 15-8-30(l). 

(2) Subdivision  

a. A PUD application may request both rezoning and subdivision approval 
for all or part of the property, in which case:  

Exhibit A



Article 2 Zoning Districts 
 Section 15-2-80 Overlay Zoning Districts 

15-2-70(e) Rezoning to PUD 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  19 

(i) The Overall Development Plan shall be accompanied by a 
Preliminary Plan for a major subdivision meeting the requirements 
of Section 15-8-40(k)(3); and 

(ii) The review and public hearing requirements for the approval of a 
PUD shall also constitute review and approval of the Preliminary Plan 
for the subdivision, and a separate process for review and approval of 
a major subdivision as described in Section 15-8-40(k) shall not be 
required. 

(3) Post-Approval Actions 

a. Following approval of a PUD and related major subdivision Preliminary 
Plan, no development of the property or sale of any lots may occur 
without Town approval of a Final Plat pursuant to Section 15-8-40(k)(4). 

b. Following approval of a PUD, an applicant may request simultaneous 
approval of a Final Plat and Site Plan for all or part of the property. 

(e) Rezoning to PUD  
Zoning Map Amendment (PUD) applications shall follow the review procedures 
in Section 15-8-40(o)(3)b. 

15-2-80 Overlay Zoning Districts 

(a) Historic District Overlay 
(1) Purpose  

The purpose of the Historic District Overlay is to create a reasonable balance 
between private property rights and the public interest in preserving the 
Town’s unique historic character, centered around downtown, while 
promoting the public health, safety, and welfare through: 

a. The protection and preservation of the Town’s historic and cultural 
heritage as represented through the establishment of the Town’s Historic 
Register; 

b. The protection and enhancement to quality of life and of the Town’s 
economy through the preservation of historical attractions for local 
residents, tourists, and visitors; and  

c. The expansion of public awareness, appreciation, and knowledge of the 
Town’s unique local history. 

(2) Applicability 

This Section shall apply to all properties within the Historic District Overlay 
boundaries. These properties shall retain the uses of and are subject to the 
underlying base zoning district in addition to the standards of this Section. 

Exhibit A



Article 2 Zoning Districts 
 Section 15-2-80 Overlay Zoning Districts 

15-2-80(a) Historic District Overlay 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  20 

(3) Establishment of the Town’s Historic Register 

a. The Town of Silverton’s Register of Historic Places (the “Town’s Historic 
Register”) is hereby established as the Historic District Overlay. 

b. Properties may be added to the Historic District Overlay and therefore 
listed in the Town’s Historic Register only if the property or district has 
been so designated pursuant to Section 15-8-40(d). 

c. All properties listed in the Colorado State Register of Historic Properties 
and the National Register of Historic Places are eligible for the Town’s 
Historic Register but are not designated until approval, pursuant to 
Section 15-8-40(d). 

(4) Historic District Overlay Map 

The Historic District Overlay map shall be available on the Town of Silverton’s 
website and an official copy shall be on file in the Town Administrator's office. 
The Town shall maintain a current record of all pending designations which 
shall be on file in the Town Clerk’s office. Any changes shall be reported to 
the State Historic Preservation Officer. 

(5) Maintenance 

No owner, lessee, or occupant of any property within the Historic District 
Overlay shall fail to prevent significant deterioration of the exterior of the 
building, structure, object, or special feature beyond the condition of the 
property within the Historic District Overlay. 

(6) Demolition  

In order to demolish or partially demolish a property within the Historic 
District Overlay, the property owner shall apply for a Historic District Overlay 
Review, Major prior to demolition per Section 15-8-40(g). The Town 
Administrator may limit this requirement to Contributing Properties.  

(7) Design Standards for All Development in the Historic District Overlay 

a. Greene Street Mixed-Use Required 

(i) All new development or redevelopment of structures that abut 
Greene Street shall maintain an active principal nonresidential use 
on the ground floor of the building. An active principal nonresidential 
use shall be defined as a land use that tends to have or encourage 
interaction between the use and pedestrians on a street, including 
entering and exiting the use, and viewing activity and/or 
merchandise inside the use from a street. It does not include ground 
floor parking areas, storage areas, utility facilities, or stairwells that are 
not accessible from the street. 

(ii) The entirety of the ground floor shall be built to commercial building 
standards according to the Town’s adopted building code. 

Exhibit A



Article 2 Zoning Districts 
 Section 15-2-80 Overlay Zoning Districts 

15-2-80(a) Historic District Overlay 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  21 

(iii) The principal nonresidential space shall have a minimum depth of 20 
feet measured from the front of the building to the inside wall 
opposite of the street frontage. The remaining ground floor area and 
upper stories may contain residential dwelling units.  

 
Figure 15-2-1: Minimum Nonresidential Space Depth 

b. Build-to Line (Distance from Property Line) 

(i) All buildings shall be constructed to a build-to line at the back of the 
sidewalk.  

(ii) Building facades may be recessed if an arcade or similar covered 
passageway abuts the front setback. 

(iii) Existing structures located behind the build-to-line (e.g., further into 
the lot interior) may be modified provided the setback is not 
increased. 

c. Architectural Projections 

Architectural projections, including cornices, balconies, canopies, 
awnings and entry features, may encroach into public rights-of-way 
where contextually appropriate, subject to Public Works approval prior to 
submitting a Building Permit. 

d. Blank Walls 

Blank, windowless walls are prohibited on any street frontage, except for 
structures adjacent to undeveloped or vacant lots. If blank walls cannot 
be avoided, design accents such as pilasters or other façade articulations 
should be utilized to reduce the overall wall mass. 

e. Screening 

All HVAC systems, exhaust pipes or stacks, elevator housing, satellite 
dishes and other telecommunications receiving devices shall be 
screened from street-front and corner lot view. Solar energy devices such 
as panels are exempt from this requirement. 

Exhibit A



Article 2 Zoning Districts 
 Section 15-2-80 Overlay Zoning Districts 

15-2-80(a) Historic District Overlay 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  22 

(8) Additional Design Standards for New Construction and Non-Contributing 
Property  

New construction and Non-Contributing Property within the Historic District 
Overlay shall be differentiated from the Contributing Properties but shall be 
compatible with the historic materials, features, size, scale and proportion, 
and massing to protect the integrity of the Historic District Overlay and its 
environment. When included as part of the building design, elements that 
may be reviewed to establish consistency with the district and adjacent 
buildings include, but are not limited to: 

a. Kickplates; 

b. Plate glass commercial windows; 

c. Window head and sill details; 

d. Oriel windows; 

e. Paneled entry doors with transom above; 

f. Columns with bases and capitals; 

g. Belt course elements; 

h. Quality of materials and craftsmanship; 

i. Sidelights; 

j. Storefront cornice (denials, brackets, corbels); 

k. Upper cornice and parapet detail (corbelled treatments); and 

l.  Signage.  

(9) Additional Design Standards for Contributing Properties 

a. Compliance with Secretary of the Interior’s Standards 

In addition to the standards set forth in this Section, all exteriors of 
Contributing Properties including new additions in the Historic District 
Overlay shall comply with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the 
Treatment of Historic Properties: Standards for Rehabilitation as set forth 
in 36 CFR Part 68. The Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings are 
advisory and should be used to assist in applying the Standards. 

b. Façade Treatments 

Large buildings shall be articulated or designed to resemble the 
character and scale of the original buildings in the district, with each 
storefront 50 feet wide or less. 

c. Entries 

(i) On the first floor, entries shall incorporate glass doors and large, 
vertically oriented store front windows and front entry doors shall be 
recessed. The Town Administrator or Historic Preservation 

Exhibit A



Article 2 Zoning Districts 
 Section 15-2-80 Overlay Zoning Districts 

15-2-80(a) Historic District Overlay 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  23 

Committee may approve an alternative design if the design provides 
equivalent or superior results than compliance with the established 
standards of this Section. 

(ii) Entries shall be designed to adequately protect from falling snow. 
Snow guards shall be installed where necessary and as required by 
the Building Official. 

d. Windows 

Windows on all stories shall be vertically oriented and organized in a 
symmetrical, balanced, and regular pattern. The Town Administrator or 
Historic Preservation Committee may approve an alternative design if 
the design provides equivalent or superior results than compliance with 
the established standards of this Section.

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-10 Purpose 

15-3-20(c) Compliance with Additional Requirements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  24 

Article 3 Use Standards 
15-3-10 Purpose 
The purpose of this Article is to identify the land uses allowed in the Silverton zoning 
districts and establish the standards that apply to certain uses (use-specific 
standards). This article is organized as follows: 

(a) Table 15-3-1 lists the uses allowed by zoning district and cross-references 
applicable use-specific standards. 

(b) Section 15-3-50 establishes use-specific standards that are those unique 
standards applicable to certain land uses. 

(c) Section 15-3-60 establishes standards applicable to uses and structures that are 
accessory to the principal use of the property and/or structure. 

(d) Section 15-3-70 establishes standards applicable to non-permanent (temporary) 
structures and uses. 

15-3-20 Organization 

(a) In Table 15-3-1, land uses and activities are classified into six general use 
categories: (1) Residential; (2) Public, Institutional, and Civic; (3) Commercial; (4) 
Industrial; (5) Accessory; and (6) Temporary. Specific uses are organized within 
the general use categories, based on common functional, product, or physical 
characteristics such as the type and amount of activity, the type of customers or 
residents, how goods or services are sold or delivered, and site conditions. This 
provides a systematic basis for assigning present and future land uses into 
appropriate zoning districts and for avoiding overlaps and inconsistencies 
between similar land uses. 

(b) The left-side column of Table 15-3-1 lists all use categories and many of the 
specific uses that might be approved by the Town. Columns in the center of the 
table correspond to each base zoning district and indicate whether the use is 
allowed in that district. The right-side column provides a cross-reference to use-
specific standards that apply to that use in some or all of the zoning districts in 
which it is allowed. 

(c) Compliance with Additional Requirements 
(1) Any use approved within a zoning district shall also comply with all 

applicable standards in this Code, any requirements of local, state, or federal 
law, and any conditions placed on the approval. 

(2) All uses required by any unit of local, state, or federal government to have an 
approval, license, or permit to operate are required to have that local, state, or 
federal approval, license, or permit in effect at all times, and failure to do so is 
a violation of this Code. 

(3) All uses subject to the operational standards of a local, state, or federal 
government agency, including without limitation the regulations contained 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-30 Abbreviations Used in the Table 

15-3-30(a) Permitted Uses 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  25 

in the Silverton Municipal Code and regulations of the Colorado Department 
of Public Health and Environment, shall operate in compliance with those 
standards and regulations at all times, and failure to do so is a violation of 
this Code. 

15-3-30 Abbreviations Used in the Table 

(a) Permitted Uses 
A “P” indicates the use is allowed by right within the respective zoning district.  

(b) Uses Requiring Special Use Permit 
An “S” indicates the use is only allowed through the Special Use Permit process 
of Section 15-8-40(j), subject to specified conditions. 

(c) Prohibited Uses 
A blank space indicates the listed use is not allowed within the zoning district. 

(d) Uses for Other Purposes 
Approval of a use listed in Table 15-3-1 authorizes that use only. Development or 
use of a property for any other use not specifically allowed in Table 15-3-1 and 
approved pursuant to this Code is prohibited. 

15-3-40 Use Table 
 

Table 15-3-1: Use Table 

P = Permitted | S = Special Use 

Zoning Districts 

R
-1

 

R
-2

 

M
U

-1
 

C
-1

 

C
-2

 

P
 

Use-Specific 
Standards 

Residential        
Household Living        
Dwelling, Single-Unit 
Detached P P     15-3-50(a)(1) 

Dwelling, Single-Unit 
Attached (Townhome) P P     15-3-50(a)(2) 

Dwelling, Duplex P P P    15-3-50(a)(2)a 
Dwelling, Triplex or Fourplex  P P P   15-3-50(a)(4) 
Dwelling, Cottage Court  P  P   15-3-50(a)(5) 
Dwelling, Multiunit  P P P   15-3-50(a)(6) 
Dwelling, Live/Work    P P  15-3-50(a)(7) 
Dwelling, Mixed-Use   P     
Manufactured or Tiny Home 
Park  S     15-3-50(a)(8) 

Group Living        
Continuing Care Facility  S      

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-40 Use Table 

15-3-30(d) Uses for Other Purposes 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  26 

Table 15-3-1: Use Table 

P = Permitted | S = Special Use 

Zoning Districts 

R
-1

 

R
-2

 

M
U

-1
 

C
-1

 

C
-2

 

P
 

Use-Specific 
Standards 

Group Home P P S     
Civic        
Cultural         
Assembly S S P P S S  
Cemetery      P  
Library   P   P  
Museum   P P  P  
Parks and Open Spaces P P P P P P  
Custodial Care        
Day Care Center, Adult P P P P    
Day Care Center, Child P P P P    
Education        
School, Elementary or 
Secondary S S    P  

School, University or College    P P P  
School, Vocational   P P P   
Government Services        
Detention Facilities      P  
Governmental and Public 
Facilities   P P P P  

Public Safety Facilities S S P P P P  
Health Services        
Hospital    S S P  
Medical or Dental Clinic S  P P P P  
Commercial        
Animal and Agriculture        
Animal Services   P P P  15-3-50(b)(1) 
Equestrian Operation  S   S   
Greenhouse or Nursery    P P P  
Kennel    S S  15-3-50(b)(2) 
Market Garden S S S P P P  
Entertainment and 
Recreation        

Convention and Conference 
Center   P P    

Membership Club   P P    
Recreation and 
Entertainment, Indoor   P P P P  

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-40 Use Table 

15-3-30(d) Uses for Other Purposes 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  27 

Table 15-3-1: Use Table 

P = Permitted | S = Special Use 

Zoning Districts 

R
-1

 

R
-2

 

M
U

-1
 

C
-1

 

C
-2

 

P
 

Use-Specific 
Standards 

Recreation and 
Entertainment, Outdoor   P P P P  

Eating and Drinking 
Establishments        

Bar or Tavern   P P    
Craft Alcohol   P P P   
Restaurant   P P    
Lodging Accommodations        
Bed and Breakfast S S P  P   
Hotel or Motel    P P P   
Recreational Vehicle Park     S S  15-3-50(b)(3)  
Vacation Rental S S P  S  15-3-50(b)(4) 
Marijuana Related Activities        

All See Article 4, Chapter 6, Marijuana Licenses of the 
Silverton Municipal Code 

Retail, Personal, and 
Professional Services        

Financial Institution   P P    
Office   P P  P  
Personal Services   P P P   
Retail Sales   P P    
Transportation, Vehicles, 
and Equipment        

Car Wash    P P   
Repair, High Impact    P P   
Repair, Low Impact   P P P  15-3-50(b)(5) 
Service Station    P S  15-3-50(b)(6) 
Transportation Facilities   P P P P  
Vehicle and Equipment Sales, 
Leasing, and Rental 

  S P P   

Industrial        
Manufacturing and 
Processing        

Artisan Industrial   S P P  
15-3-50(c)(1) 

and 
15-3-50(c)(2) 

Junk or Salvage Yard     S  15-3-50(c)(1) 
Manufacturing and Assembly, 
Heavy    S S  15-3-50(c)(1) 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-40 Use Table 

15-3-30(d) Uses for Other Purposes 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  28 

Table 15-3-1: Use Table 

P = Permitted | S = Special Use 

Zoning Districts 

R
-1

 

R
-2

 

M
U

-1
 

C
-1

 

C
-2

 

P
 

Use-Specific 
Standards 

Manufacturing and Assembly, 
Light    P P  15-3-50(c)(1) 

Recycling or Composting 
Facility    S S  15-3-50(c)(1) 

Utilities        
Utility, Major    S S S 15-3-50(c)(1) 
Utility, Minor P P P P P P 15-3-50(c)(1) 
Wireless Communication 
Facilities P P P P P P 15-3-50(c)(3) 

Warehouse and Storage        
Contractor’s Yard    S P  15-3-50(c)(1) 
Distribution Services and 
Facilities    P P  15-3-50(c)(1) 

Principal Outdoor Storage     S   

Warehousing and Storage 
Facilities    P P  

15-3-50(c)(1) 
and 

15-3-50(c)(4) 
Accessory        
Accessory Dwelling Unit P P P P P  15-3-60(d) 
Cottage Industry P P P P P  15-3-60(e) 
Fowl or Domestic Animals P P P P P P 15-3-60(f) 
Drive-Through Facility    P P   
Electric Vehicle Charging 
Station   P P P P 15-3-60(g) 

Family Child Care Home P P P  S  15-3-60(h) 
Greenhouse P P P P P P 15-3-60(i) 
Home Occupation P P P P P  15-3-60(j) 
Horse and Livestock Keeping P P  P P  15-3-60(k) 
Outdoor Commercial Storage   P P P P 15-3-60(l) 
Outdoor Residential Storage P P P    15-3-60(m) 
Propane Tank P P P P P P 15-3-60(n) 
Recreational Vehicle Storage P P P P P  15-3-60(o) 
Solar-Energy Systems 
(Ground- or Roof-Mounted) P P P P P P 15-3-60(p) 

Temporary Uses        
Farm Stand P P P P P P 15-3-70(e) 
Farmers Market   P P  P 15-3-70(f) 
Food Truck   P P P P 15-3-70(g) 
Portable Storage Unit P P P P P P 15-3-70(h) 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards 

15-3-50(a) Residential Uses 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  29 

Table 15-3-1: Use Table 

P = Permitted | S = Special Use 

Zoning Districts 

R
-1

 

R
-2

 

M
U

-1
 

C
-1

 

C
-2

 

P
 

Use-Specific 
Standards 

Portable Waste Trailer   P   P 15-3-70(i) 
Temporary Event or Sales   P P P  15-3-70(j) 
Temporary Outdoor Dining   P    15-3-70(k) 

 

15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards 

(a) Residential Uses 
(1) Single-Unit Detached Dwelling 

a. Where allowed, each zoning lot shall be limited to one single-unit 
detached dwelling. 

b. In the R-1 district, the maximum building footprint per zoning lot is 2,500 
square feet. 

(2) Single-Unit Attached Dwelling 

a. Single-unit attached dwellings with three or more units shall provide 
residential bulk storage areas as follows: 

(i) A minimum of 100 square feet of storage per dwelling unit, either 
within individual dwelling units or in a shared on-site storage area 
shall be provided. The Town Administrator may waive or decrease 
this requirement based on site constraints or in order to 
accommodate a greater number of dwelling units. 

(ii) Bulk storage areas intended for storage of materials other than food 
and clothing, such as tools, bicycles, or ski equipment shall be 
designed for this purpose. Bulk storage areas shall be separate from 
water heaters or other types of mechanical or electrical equipment. 

1. Exterior or detached bulk storage areas shall be designed as an 
integral part of the project.  

2. Bulk storage areas shall be incorporated into garages, car ports, 
and screening walls, using materials and details similar to those 
of the dwelling unit to achieve an integrated appearance. 

b. In the R-1 district, single-unit attached structures are limited to two 
dwelling units with a maximum total building footprint of 2,500 square 
feet per unit. 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards 

15-3-50(a) Residential Uses 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  30 

(3) Duplex Dwelling 

In the R-1 district, a zoning lot containing a duplex dwelling shall be limited 
to a maximum building footprint of 2,500 square feet. 

(4) Triplex of Fourplex Dwelling 

Residential bulk storage areas shall be provided as follows: 

a. A minimum of 100 square feet of storage per dwelling unit, either within 
individual dwelling units or in a shared on-site storage area shall be 
provided. The Town Administrator may waive or decrease this 
requirement based on site constraints or in order to accommodate a 
greater number of dwelling units. 

b. Bulk storage areas intended for storage of materials other than food and 
clothing, such as tools, bicycles, or ski equipment shall be designed for 
this purpose. Bulk storage areas shall be separate from water heaters or 
other types of mechanical or electrical equipment. 

c. Exterior or detached bulk storage areas shall be designed as an integral 
part of the project. Bulk storage areas shall be incorporated into garages, 
car ports, and screening walls, using materials and details similar to 
those of the dwelling unit to achieve an integrated appearance. 

(5) Cottage Court Dwelling 

a. The minimum parcel size for a cottage court development is 10,000 
square feet. 

b. The building footprint of each detached single-unit dwelling shall not 
exceed 650 square feet. 

c. Individual units shall be clustered around a shared private common 
space containing at least 10 percent of the project area. 

d. A shared facility for communal cooking, dining, and other activities 
containing no more than 1,500 square feet may be provided. 

e. All other building and lot requirements, including building setbacks, for 
the base zoning district shall apply to the project site as a whole, not 
individual units. 

(6) Multiunit Dwelling 

Residential bulk storage areas shall be provided as follows: 

a. A minimum of 100 square feet of storage per dwelling unit, either within 
individual dwelling units or in a shared on-site storage area shall be 
provided. The Town Administrator may waive or decrease this 
requirement based on site constraints or in order to accommodate a 
greater number of dwelling units. 

b. Bulk storage areas intended for storage of materials other than food and 
clothing, such as tools, bicycles, or ski equipment shall be designed for 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards 

15-3-50(a) Residential Uses 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  31 

this purpose. Bulk storage areas shall be separate from water heaters or 
other types of mechanical or electrical equipment. 

c. Exterior or detached bulk storage areas shall be designed as an integral 
part of the project. Bulk storage areas shall be incorporated into garages, 
car ports, and screening walls, using materials and details similar to 
those of the dwelling unit to achieve an integrated appearance. 

(7) Live/Work Dwelling 

a. Residential areas shall be located on upper floors above nonresidential 
areas, or in the rear of the building behind nonresidential areas. 

b. The nonresidential use shall be a maximum of 60 percent of the gross 
floor area of the building. 

c. The nonresidential use shall be owned and operated by a resident of the 
live-work dwelling unit. 

(8) Manufactured or Tiny Home Park 

a. Manufactured Homes and Spaces 

(i) Each manufactured home shall be: 

1. Either permanently or semi-permanently affixed to the ground in 
accordance with 8 CCR 1302-7 and the manufacturer's 
specifications, with the running gear and towing hitch removed; 
and 

2. Set upon a base or pad having an anchoring system that is 
completely concealed under the structure. 

(ii) All manufactured homes must be fully skirted within 30 days of 
placement.  

(iii) The space below each manufactured home shall be kept clean and 
free from refuse. The space may be used for storage provided the 
ground is covered with an impervious material, the area is insulated, 
and the area is maintained to prevent harboring of rodents. 

(iv) Flammable materials shall not be stored beneath a manufactured 
home. 

(v) The owner of any existing manufactured or mobile home that is 
substantially damaged or destroyed (more than 50 percent of 
assessed valuation) shall submit an appraisal prepared by a 
professional appraiser within 60 days of notice of violation. If the 
appraisal shows that the home has been damaged by more than 50 
percent of assessed valuation, the manufactured or mobile home 
shall be removed from the park within 30 days.  

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards 

15-3-50(a) Residential Uses 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  32 

b. Tiny Homes 

Each tiny home within a manufactured or tiny home park shall have a 
state certification and installation insignia to confirm it has been built to 
meet the state requirements related to wind, snow, design temperature, 
wildfire risk, and wildfire suppression. 

c. Site Design 

(i) The minimum lot area required for a manufactured or tiny home 
park shall be 10,000 square feet. Individual manufactured or tiny 
home spaces within the park are not required to meet the minimum 
lot area. 

(ii) All building and lot requirements, including primary structure 
setbacks, for the base zoning district shall apply to the project site as 
a whole (not individual units). 

(iii) No manufactured or tiny home in a park shall be located closer than 
10 feet from the nearest manufactured or tiny home in any direction, 
including additions or added structures.  

(iv) Water, sewer, and electrical connections shall be installed pursuant 
to the Development Standards and Specifications, this Code, and all 
applicable Town ordinances.  

(v) All electric power lines within the park shall be buried.  

(vi) All manufactured or tiny homes shall be equipped with an automatic 
fire suppression system or a fire extinguishing handheld device in 
good working condition that is capable of extinguishing all types of 
fires and comply with the adopted fire code.  

(vii) Each manufactured or tiny home park shall provide: 

1. A minimum of three manufactured or tiny home spaces; 

2. One off-street parking space; 

3. 100 square feet of storage per manufactured or tiny home, either 
in individual structures or in a shared structure; and 

4. 400 square feet of common open space per manufactured or 
home to be centrally located in the park and used for recreational 
purposes including but not limited to adult recreation and child 
play areas such as outdoor games, picnic tables, seating, and 
playgrounds.  

(viii) All manufactured or tiny home parks shall be maintained in 
accordance with the requirements of this Section, applicable State of 
Colorado Department Health regulations, and other applicable Town 
regulations. 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards 

15-3-50(b) Commercial Uses 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  33 

(b) Commercial Uses 
(1) Animal Services 

a. Animals shall not be permitted outside except within an accessory 
kennel or secure animal run or fenced area. 

b. The overnight boarding of animals shall only be permitted when 
incidental to medical treatment and limited to short periods of time. 

(2) Kennel 

a. All kennels shall be enclosed within a building that prevents any sounds 
in excess of the maximum permissible noise levels for residential zoning 
districts, set forth in C.R.S. 25-12-103. 

b. Animals shall not be permitted outside except within a secure animal 
run or fenced area. 

(3) Recreational Vehicle Park 

a. Recreational Vehicle Spaces 

(i) The minimum lot area for a recreational vehicle park is 60,000 square 
feet.  

(ii) The minimum size of each individual recreational vehicle parking 
space within the park is 1,250 square feet.  

(iii) The minimum space required between parked recreational vehicles 
is 15 feet in any direction.  

b. Site Design 

(i) Water, sewer and electrical connections shall be provided for at least 
60 percent of the total number of recreational vehicle spaces and 
camp sites within the park, all of which shall be installed pursuant to 
the Development Standards and Specifications, this Code, and all 
applicable Town ordinances. All new electric power lines within the 
park shall be buried.  

(ii) The storage, collection, and disposal of refuse shall be performed to 
minimize accidents, fire hazards, air pollution, odors, insects, rodents, 
or other nuisance conditions. All trash containers shall be animal 
resistant.  

(iii) The park shall be sufficiently lighted to assure the security and safety 
of the residents. All lighting shall comply with the standards in 
Section 15-6-40, Outdoor Lighting. 

(iv) No permanent or semi-permanent structures, such as cabins, lean-
tos, accessory structures, sheds, or habitable buildings, whether 
placed on a permanent foundation or not, shall be erected on a site 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards 

15-3-50(b) Commercial Uses 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  34 

except when owned and managed by the owner/operator of the 
property. 

(v) Opaque screening, such as fences or landscaping materials, a 
maximum of six feet in height, shall be provided along property 
boundaries separating the park from adjacent residential property.  

(vi) Each recreational vehicle park shall comply with the requirements of 
the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment 
regulations for Campgrounds and Recreation Areas (6 CCR 1010-9) 
including those related to the provision of toilet, lavatory, and 
bathing fixtures. 

c. Review Required 

(i) Special Use Permit applications for the construction of a recreational 
vehicle park shall be submitted concurrently with the initial business 
license and shall include a site plan showing the layout of 
recreational vehicle spaces, sanitary facilities, and all other aspects of 
conformance with this Section as may be required.  

(ii) The plat and design shall be subject Planning Commission and 
Board of Trustees review prior to the granting of a business license.  

d. Damage, Destruction, or Inoperability 

Any recreational vehicle unit that does not meet the requirements of this 
Section must be removed from the park within 15 days of a notice of 
violation.  

(4) Vacation Rental 

a. Purpose 

(i) The purpose of this Section is to: 

1. Preserve the character and ambiance of Silverton's 
neighborhoods;  

2. Allow vacation rentals as short-term visitor accommodations 
within certain zoning districts; 

3. Minimize the negative impacts attributable to vacation rentals 
and the associated increase in the negative intensity of their use; 
and 

4. Ensure compatibility with the existing surrounding land uses.  

(ii) These provisions are intended to address concerns regarding the use 
of residential units as vacation rentals on a short-term basis by 
regulating guest turnover rates, housekeeping and maintenance 
activities, traffic, noise, overcrowding, health and safety concerns, on-
street parking, and other adverse neighborhood impacts. 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards 

15-3-50(b) Commercial Uses 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  35 

b. Planning and Zoning 

New and existing vacation rentals approved prior to the Effective Date 
shall comply with the following requirements and restrictions:  

(i) Permit Required 

Property owners are required to obtain a Vacation Rental Permit 
pursuant to Section 15-8-30(o) to operate a vacation rental within the 
town.  

(ii) Non Transferrable 

Vacation rental permits are non-transferable when a change in 
property ownership occurs. All vacation rental permits shall be 
granted solely to the property owner or legal entity for the residential 
dwelling unit at the address shown on the application.  

(iii) Caps by Zoning District 

Vacation rentals within the R-1, R-2, and C-2 zones are capped at a 
maximum of eight vacation rentals in each of these three zoning 
districts.  

(iv) Prohibitions 

Vacation rentals within the C-1 and P zoning districts, and in the red 
zone of avalanche hazard areas, are prohibited. No vacation rental 
applications will be accepted by the Town in any zoning district 
involving a structure that does not yet exist and/or has not yet 
received a Certificate of Occupancy.  

(v) Separation Distance 

No vacation rental application for a structure in the R-1, R-2, or C-2 
zoning districts will be approved if the proposed vacation rental is 
within a 100 foot radius (measured from the nearest property line) of 
a currently permitted vacation rental (measured to the nearest 
property line of an existing vacation rental), excluding adjacency to 
any permitted MU-1 zoning district vacation rentals. There shall be no 
minimum separation distance for vacation rentals in the MU-1 zoning 
district.  

(vi) Performance Standards 

The emission of noise, glare, flashing lights, vibrations, or odors shall 
not exceed those commonly experienced in the underlying zoning 
district.  

(vii) Parking 

1. Guests shall park their vehicles and trailers on-site within a 
designated parking area and/or on the public street directly 
adjacent to or nearest available space to the vacation rental, 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards 

15-3-50(b) Commercial Uses 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  36 

complying with the neighborhood parking pattern (i.e., 
perpendicular, angle, parallel).  

2. Parking shall not block fire hydrants, alleyways or through traffic 
lanes, and are subject to snow route parking regulations.  

3. The availability of guest parking, on-site and on-street (as 
provided for in this paragraph), shall be considered in calculating 
the allowable and appropriate capacity of the vacation rental. 

4. Consideration shall be given by the applicant to avoid limiting 
impacts to adjacent land owner parking, impeding traffic, 
creating safety hazards (traffic and pedestrian). Violations of 
Town traffic laws, snow removal regulations, and other applicable 
portions of the Silverton Municipal Code will be considered in the 
calculation. 

(viii) Signage 

Vacation rentals are permitted signage as described in Section 
15-7-50(f), Residential and Vacation Rental Signs. 

c. Owner Restrictions and Requirements 

Owners of vacation rentals shall comply with the following:  

(i) Limitation of Ownership 

1. Only one vacation rental permit shall be allowed per person.  

2. An individual who owns more than one property, whether jointly, 
individually, or through a corporation, partnership, trust, LLC, or 
similar entity, may obtain a vacation rental permit for only one of 
the properties. 

(ii) Permits and Licenses 

Owners of vacation rentals shall be required to obtain a vacation 
rental permit, current business license, and sales tax license. The 
required permit and licenses shall be obtained prior to operation of 
the vacation rental.  

(iii) Fees 

The vacation rental application fee and annual renewal permit fee 
are established by resolution by the Board of Trustees. Vacation 
rental owners are required to pay all applicable taxes and fees, 
including but not limited to the vacation rental application fee, 
annual permit renewal fee, Town lodger's fees and state sales tax.  

(iv) Inspections 

Vacation rentals are subject to safety, fire, code and health 
inspections and shall be in compliance with all applicable building, 
fire and zoning codes. Receipt of a vacation rental application 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards 

15-3-50(b) Commercial Uses 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  37 

constitutes permission by the property owner to allow the Town 
Administrator to inspect the property for compliance with said codes. 
The structure for which the application is submitted shall be owned 
by the applicant, shall possess a Certificate of Occupancy, be free 
from requiring major repairs, be adequately furnished and clean, and 
be in compliance with all applicable building, fire, and safety codes, 
prior to tenant occupancy.  

(v) Insurance 

Owners of vacation rentals shall obtain and maintain industry 
standard property and liability insurance required for the operation of 
the vacation rental. Proof of being able to obtain property and 
liability insurance shall be submitted as part of the vacation rental 
application. Proof of required property and liability insurance 
coverage for use as a vacation rental is required prior to the first 
tenancy in a new operation, and for renewal of a vacation rental 
permit.  

(vi) Safety 

All vacation rentals shall have smoke and carbon monoxide detectors 
and fire extinguishers as required by the building code. Fire 
extinguisher(s) location(s) shall be shown and described in posted 
guest information and supplemented with a floor plan, which shall 
include an emergency exiting plan. All windows noted for 
emergency egress and rescue shall be operational. All heating 
appliances shall be properly installed and combustion gases vented 
per code (no "vent-less" combustion heating units are allowed). The 
Building Official or Fire Inspector may identify other issues required 
to be addressed prior to the issuance of the vacation rental permit.  

(vii) Registration 

Guest registration is required for all vacation rentals. The registry shall 
include all tenancies for that licensed year to date, updated with each 
tenancy. The registration shall include the name and address of the 
person(s) that has contracted for the vacation rental, the number of 
occupants, and the dates of tenancy. The guest registration shall be 
kept in the possession of the property manager and/or the property 
owner and shall be made available upon request by the Town 
Administrator for inspection and photocopying.  

(viii) Management Enforcement 

It is the responsibility of the owner and/or manager(s) to self-regulate 
infractions and violations of this Section, as well as other Town codes 
and laws performed by or caused by the actions of the tenant(s) of 
the vacation rental. Examples of this include but are not limited to: 
parking violations, "red alert" snow removal violation, OHVs usage 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards 

15-3-50(b) Commercial Uses 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  38 

violations, excessive noise, or other infractions that requires law 
enforcement response or result in a substantiated complaint 
received the Town Administrator or elected officials. "Management" 
(owner/manager(s)) shall immediately revoke the renter's damage 
deposit and/or impose a substantial penalty. "Management's" 
imposed penalty shall be reported in writing (mail or email) to the 
Code Enforcement Officer to be placed on file as a positive indication 
of appropriate management of the vacation rental.  

(ix) Town Enforcement 

In the absence of self-regulation of tenancy by "Management," the 
Town Administrator will collect documentation on infractions and 
violations of the Municipal Code, Law Enforcement reports, and 
substantiated complaints for inclusion in the vacation rental's file. At 
permit renewal, or at any time during the calendar year upon receipt 
of complaints, the Town Administrator will review the vacation 
rental's file and determine if further corrective actions are to be taken 
such as immediate suspension or termination of the vacation rental 
permit.  

(x) Local Contact and Guest Information 

Each vacation rental shall have a designated local contact person(s). 
The local contact may be a property management/real estate 
company, rental agent or other person engaged or employed by the 
owner to rent, manage and/or supervise the vacation rental. A 
property owner may designate themselves as the local contact 
person if the owner meets the criteria of this Section. The local 
contact must reside within a 15 minute drive of the rental property 
and be available 24 hours a day during tenancies for timely response 
to guest and neighborhood issues and concerns. An alternate local 
contact shall be designated, available and meet the criteria of this 
Section when the primary is not available. All local contacts shall list 
their name, address and telephone/cell number and shall be posted 
in a prominent location within the vacation rental. Contact 
information also shall be provided to the Code Enforcement Officer. 
Any change to the local contact(s) name, address or telephone/cell 
number shall be promptly updated and submitted to the Code 
Enforcement Officer.  

(xi) Violations 

It is unlawful for any person to use or allow the use of vacation rental 
in violation of the provisions of this Section. Failure to be in complete 
compliance with this Section at any time may be grounds for 
suspension or revocation of the vacation rental permit and business 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards 

15-3-50(b) Commercial Uses 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  39 

license. A suspension or revocation of the license, if necessary, shall 
be determined at the discretion of the Town Administrator.  

(xii) Waiting List 

The Town Administrator will create and maintain a vacation rental 
application waiting list. The vacation rental application fee and 
business license fee payment is due when a vacation rental permit 
application, reasonably completed as determined by the Town 
Administrator, is placed on the waiting list. The application fee is non-
refundable. To remain in good standing on the waiting list, 
applicants shall pay an annual waiting list fee as set forth in the 
Town's Fee Schedule. If an opening becomes available for a wait-
listed application, an inspection shall be required prior to tenant 
occupancy. If a wait-listed applicant is contacted by the Town 
Administrator about the availability of a permit, the applicant shall 
have 30 days to file an updated vacation rental permit application, if 
necessary, that meets all requirements of Sections c. and d.  

d. Standards 

(i) Occupancy R-1, R-2, MU-1, and C-2 Zoning Districts 

The maximum occupancy shall not exceed two persons per 
bedroom, plus two additional guests. The Town may modify a 
maximum occupancy based upon the following considerations: 
location, size, building/fire code requirements, parking and/or other 
site-specific neighborhood considerations.  

(ii) Tenancy All Zoning Districts 

A vacation rental owner may choose to rent their vacation rental for a 
longer term than 30 days to one tenant without penalty or loss of 
their current vacation rental permit so long as owner remains in 
compliance with all terms of this Section.  

(iii) Guest Information 

Each vacation rental shall provide guests with information about the 
property, which shall include but is not limited to: 

1. Local contact(s) information; 

2. Procedures for use of appliances and heating safety and exiting; 

3. Fire extinguisher location(s); 

4. Emergency services; 

5. Designated parking; 

6. Snow route procedures and "Red Alert" notification sign up; 

7. A statement that all guests will be held to the local municipal 
laws and applicable Land Use Code regulations; and 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards 

15-3-50(c) Industrial Uses 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  40 

8. All other relevant information for the safe and legal occupancy of 
the rental unit.  

(5) Repair, Low Impact 

No outdoor storage of vehicle parts, discarded tires, or similar materials shall 
be permitted. 

(6) Service Station 

No above ground equipment for the service of gasoline, oil, air, water, or 
electric charging shall be closer than 10 feet to any right-of-way. 

(c) Industrial Uses 
(1) General Industrial Use Standards 

a. Residential Adjacency 

If a proposed industrial use shares common lot lines with or is separated 
only by an alley from a single-unit detached dwelling, all activities related 
to the industrial use shall be conducted within a completely enclosed 
building. 

b. Performance Standards 

(i) Industrial uses shall not create any danger to the safety of persons in 
surrounding areas nor cause water, soil, or air pollution in violation of 
state or federal statutory and regulatory provisions, nor create noise, 
vibration, smoke, dust, odors, or glare that is measurable beyond the 
property line of the property on which the use is located. 

(ii) Any operation producing intense glare or heat shall be conducted 
within an enclosed building or with other effective screening in order 
to make glare or heat completely imperceptible from off site when 
measured at the property line. 

(iii) Industrial operation shall cause no vibration perceptible without 
instruments at any point along the property line. 

(iv) All industrial uses that produce smoke or any air contaminant shall 
be subject to the jurisdiction and regulations of the Colorado Air 
Quality Control Department and the Colorado Air Quality Control 
Division. Visible emissions of any kind are prohibited when measured 
at ground level at the property line of the property on which the 
source of the emissions is located. 

(v) No industrial use shall cause or allow the emission of malodorous air 
contaminants from any single source that results in detectable odors 
that are apparent outside the property boundaries. 

(vi) All uses shall operate so that the volume of sound continuously or 
recurrently generated shall not exceed 70 decibels at any point on 
any boundary line of the property on which the use is located. 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards 

15-3-50(c) Industrial Uses 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  41 

(vii) No industrial operation shall be allowed to produce fugitive dust in 
amounts which are noticeable outside of the property boundaries of 
the use. 

(viii) All truck and other vehicular traffic to and from the site shall not 
create hazards or nuisances along any public roadways. 

(ix) All liquid and solid wastes produced shall be confined within the 
property boundaries until disposed of by proper means. No person 
shall cause or permit any materials to be handled, transported or 
stored in a manner which allows or may allow particulate matter to 
become airborne or liquid matter to drain onto or into the ground. 

c. Screening Required 

Any outdoor activities or storage associated with an industrial use shall 
be screened from public view to the maximum extent practicable. 
Methods of screening may include placing stored items inside a garage 
or storage shed, using an opaque fence to enclose the storage or activity 
area, or any method approved by the Town Administrator that would 
provide the same degree of screening as an opaque fence. Screening 
height shall be sufficient to hide the equipment, vehicles, or other 
materials, but shall not exceed six feet in height. 

(2) Artisan Industrial 

All activities shall be conducted within a completely enclosed building. 

(3) Wireless Communication Facilities (WCF) 

a. Purpose 

The purpose of this Section is to establish development standards that 
comply with the requirements of state and federal law for public private 
telecommunication service and to: 

(i) Protect the public safety and welfare, safeguard community land 
values, and promote orderly planning and development; 

(ii) Provide for the managed development, installation, maintenance, 
modification, and removal of wireless communications infrastructure 
in the town with the fewest number of WCFs to complete a network 
without unreasonably discriminating against wireless 
communications providers of functionally equivalent service; 

(iii) Encourage the joint use and location of new and existing WCFs; and 

(iv) Mitigate any adverse, undesirable visual impacts on the community. 

b. Applicability 

(i) This Section shall apply to all WCF applications and shall not 
preempt underlying zoning regulations unless explicitly stated in this 
subsection or as explicitly state in federal and/or state law. 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards 

15-3-50(c) Industrial Uses 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  42 

(ii) The requirements set forth in this subsection shall not apply to: 

1. Amateur radio antennas that are owned and operated by a 
federally licensed amateur radio station operator or are used 
exclusively for receive-only antennas, provided that the height be 
no more than the distance from the base of the antenna to the 
property line is met. 

2. Any WCF for which a permit has been properly issued prior to the 
Effective Date shall not be required to meet the requirements of 
this subsection, other than the operational standards set forth in 
this subsection. Changes and additions to pre-existing WCFs 
shall meet applicable operational standards set forth in this 
subsection.  

3. Antennas used for reception of television, multi-channel video 
programming and radio such as over the air reception devices 
("OTARD") antennas, television broadcast band antennas, and 
broadcast radio antennas, provided that any requirements 
related to special uses of this UDC and the requirement that the 
height be no more than the distance from the base to the 
property line are met. The Town Administrator has the authority 
to approve modifications to the height restriction related to 
OTARD antennas and OTARD antenna structures, if in the Town 
Administrator's reasonable discretion, modifications are 
necessary to comply with federal law. 

4. A WCF installed upon the declaration of a state of emergency by 
the federal, state, or local government, or a written determination 
of public necessity by the Town Administrator.  

c. General Provisions 

(i) Federal Requirements 

All WCFs shall meet the current standards and regulations of the 
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), the Federal Communications 
Commission (FCC), and any other agency of the federal government 
with the authority to regulate WCFs. If the standards and regulations 
are changed, then the owners of the WCF shall bring the facility into 
compliance with the revised standards and regulations within the 
time period mandated by the controlling federal agency. 

(ii) Radio Frequency Standards 

All WCFs shall comply with federal standards for radio frequency 
emissions. If concerns regarding compliance with radio frequency 
emissions standards for a WCF have been made to the Town, the 
Town may request that the owner or operator of the WCF provide 
information demonstrating compliance. If the information suggests, 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards 

15-3-50(c) Industrial Uses 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  43 

in the reasonable discretion of the Town, that the WCF may not be in 
compliance, the Town may request and the owner or operator of the 
WCF shall then submit a project implementation report which 
provides cumulative field measurements of radio frequency 
emissions of all antennas installed at the subject site, and which 
compares the results with established federal standards. If, upon 
review, the Town finds that the facility does not meet federal 
standards, the Town may require corrective action within a 
reasonable period of time, and if not corrected, may require removal 
of the WCF pursuant to this Section. Any reasonable costs incurred 
by the Town, including reasonable consulting costs to verify 
compliance with these requirements, shall be paid by the owner or 
operator. 

(iii) Signal Interference 

All WCFs shall be designed and sited, consistent with applicable 
federal regulations, so as not to cause interference with the normal 
operation of radio, television, telephone, and other communication 
services utilized by adjacent residential and nonresidential 
properties; nor shall any facilities interfere with any public safety 
communications.  

(iv) Operation and Maintenance 

To ensure the structural integrity of WCFs, the owner of a WCF shall 
ensure that it is maintained in compliance with standards contained 
in applicable local building and safety codes. If upon inspection, the 
Town concludes that a WCF fails to comply with applicable codes 
and constitutes a danger to persons or property, then, upon written 
notice being provided to the owner of the WCF, the owner shall have 
30 days from the date of notice to bring the WCF into compliance. 
Upon good cause shown by the owner, the Building Official may 
extend the compliance period not to exceed 90 days from the date of 
said notice. If the owner fails to bring the WCF into compliance 
within said time period, the Town may remove the WCF at the 
owner's expense. 

(v) Abandonment and Removal 

1. For any WCF constructed after the Effective Date, if the WCF is 
not used to transmit, receive, or relay voice and data signals to or 
from wireless communication devices for a period of six months, 
the WCF shall be considered abandoned and the owner of record 
shall notify the Building Official and apply for a permit to remove 
the structure. All WCFs shall be restored to service or removed by 
the person who constructed the facility, by the person who 
operated the facility, or by the property owner within 18 months 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards 

15-3-50(c) Industrial Uses 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  44 

from the time the WCF ceased being used to transmit, receive or 
relay voice and data signals to or from wireless communication 
devices. 

2. If the use of the WCF has not been restored within an 18-month 
period from the time the WCF have ceased being used to 
transmit, receive or relay voice and data signals to or from 
wireless communication devices, the WCF shall be removed and 
the WCF site restored to its original or better condition, at the 
property owner's expense. 

(vi) Building Permit Required 

A building permit is required for all new WCFs. 

d. Standards for Specific Facility Types 

All new WCFs or collocations that do not meet the definition of an 
eligible facilities request, shall be subject to the standards in the table 
below: 

Table 15-3-2: Summary of Standards by Facility Type 

 Building-Mounted Roof-
Mounted 

Ground-Mounted 

Maximum 
Height 

Maximum height 
permitted in the 
underlying zoning 
district [1] 

10’ in height 
above the 
existing 
roofline [1] 

50’ or the maximum 
height permitted in the 
underlying zoning districts, 
whichever is less [2] 

Camouflage 
and Design 

1. Roof- and building-mounted WCFs 
shall be camouflaged by minimizing 
the visibility of antennae and 
transmission equipment and be 
screened from view by materials that 
are consistent and compatible with 
the building design, color and 
materials without increasing the 
apparent height of the building. 
Camouflaging includes locating 
facilities in bell steeples or clock 
towers, or on similar alternative 
design mounting structures. 
 
2. Screening of roof- and building-
mounted WCFs include the use of 
existing parapets, walls, or similar 
architectural elements provided that 
it is painted and texturized to 
integrate with the architecture of the 
surrounding structure. Screening 

1. Ground-mounted WCFs 
shall use existing 
landforms, vegetation, and 
structures to aid in 
screening the facility from 
view or blending in with 
the surrounding built and 
natural environment. 
Camouflaging includes, 
but is not limited to, 
making ground-mounted 
WCFs resemble manmade 
trees, locating facilities in 
bell steeples or clock 
towers, or on similar 
alternative design 
mounting structures. 
 
2. Considerations such as 
architectural designs, 
adjacent land uses, scale, 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards 

15-3-50(c) Industrial Uses 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  45 

Table 15-3-2: Summary of Standards by Facility Type 

 Building-Mounted Roof-
Mounted 

Ground-Mounted 

may be waived by the Town 
Administrator on buildings where 
the height of the roofline is thirty-five 
feet or less based on evidence 
provided by the applicant that the 
roof cannot structurally support the 
screen. 

color, and texture should 
be reviewed to make 
facility as compatible as 
possible to the 
surrounding area, 
including views from 
public areas as well as from 
private residences. 
 
3. Ground-mounted WCFs 
shall be enclosed by 
security fencing or wall and 
shall also be equipped with 
an appropriate anti-
climbing device. 
 
4. Ground-mounted WCFs 
shall be compatible with 
the surrounding tree 
coverage and foliage. 

Minimum 
Setback N/A N/A 

2' from any abutting 
property line for every 1' of 
tower height or the 
minimum setback 
required in the underlying 
zoning district, whichever 
is greater 

Minimum 
Separation N/A N/A 2,000’ [3] 

Notes: 
[1] Height measured to top of steel or antenna, whichever is greater. 
[2] Height measured from base of facility to top of steel. 
[3] Separation measured from the outermost portion of the base of existing facility to the outermost 
portion of the base of proposed facility. 

e. Eligible Facilities Request  

All applications for approval of an eligible facilities request and treatment 
of WCFs that do not propose a substantial change to existing WCFs shall 
be processed according to and meet the requirements of the federal 
Telecommunications Act and Section 6409 of the Middle Class Tax Relief 
and Job Creation Act (2012), also known as the “Spectrum Act,” as 
amended by the federal courts. 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-60 Accessory Uses and Structures 

15-3-60(a) Purpose 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  46 

(4) Warehousing and Storage Facilities 

a. All storage areas shall be located within an enclosed building, except 
recreation or other oversized vehicles, which shall be stored only in 
exterior areas screened from view from any street frontage. 

b. Only storage of goods and materials is allowed in self-storage rental 
spaces. The use of storage spaces to conduct or operate a business is 
prohibited. 

c. The use of power tools, paint sprayers, or the servicing, repair or 
fabrication of furniture, boats, trailers, motor vehicles, lawn mowers, 
appliances, and other similar equipment within a storage unit is 
prohibited. 

d. The storage of hazardous materials is prohibited. 

15-3-60 Accessory Uses and Structures 

(a) Purpose 
The purpose of this Section is to allow for accessory uses that are customarily 
subordinate to principal uses, provided that the accessory use complies with all 
applicable standards in this Section. 

(b) Applicability 
All principal uses allowed in a zoning district per Table 15-3-1: Use Table, shall be 
deemed to include those accessory uses, structures, and activities typically 
associated with that use, unless specifically prohibited in this Section. Accessory 
uses are subject to the standards in this Section and any applicable use-specific 
standards for the associated principal use in Section 15-3-50. 

(c) General Standards 
All accessory uses and structures are subject to the following standards, except 
accessory dwelling units (ADUs), which are only required to meet the standards 
set forth in Section 15-3-60(d).  

(1) Accessory uses shall be located on the same lot as the associated principal 
use, either in a separate structure or in the same building. Accessory 
structures are subject to all applicable setbacks and required spacing 
between buildings. 

(2) Accessory uses shall be controlled in the same manner as the associated 
principal use, except as otherwise expressly provided in this Code. 

(3) The total square footage of accessory structures shall not exceed the total 
square footage of the primary structure. 

(4) The maximum height cannot exceed the height of primary structure. 

(5) No accessory use or structure shall be established prior to the principal use 
or primary structure to which it is accessory. 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-60 Accessory Uses and Structures 

15-3-60(d) Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  47 

(6) All accessory structures that are 120 square feet or larger shall be considered 
an accessory building and require a building permit.  

(d) Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)  
(1) Purpose 

The creation of legal accessory dwelling units (ADUs) is generally encouraged 
as an effective means to increase available long-term housing, while 
minimizing any increase in infrastructure maintenance, and while retaining 
existing neighborhood character. 

(2) General 

Any accessory dwelling unit (ADU) shall: 

a. Have a minimum size of 300 square feet usable floor area, as defined by 
the currently adopted building codes; 

b. Not exceed 800 square feet of usable floor space, or 50 percent of the 
gross floor area of the principal dwelling, whichever is greater; 

c. Include a kitchen and a bathroom (to include, but not limited to, a sink, a 
toilet, and a shower or bathtub); 

d. Have an individual exterior entry or a shared interior entryway, with direct 
pedestrian access to a public right-of-way. Provisions for maintaining safe 
exiting from the ADU and the public right-of-way during all weather 
conditions shall be addressed; and 

e. Not be subdivided and/or subsequently sold as fee simple ownership. It 
shall remain as part of the property where the principal dwelling is 
located. 

(3) Detached ADUs 

a. Detached ADUs shall be: 

(i) Separated from the principal unit by a minimum distance of three 
feet; and 

(ii) Located to the side or the rear of the principal dwelling unit. 

b. Detached ADUs shall not be calculated as part of the maximum building 
footprint limited by Section 15-3-50(a)(1), Single-Unit Detached Dwelling. 

c. Tiny homes, as defined in Section 15-11-30, shall be permitted as ADUs 
provided they meet all of the standards set forth in this Section. 

(4) Dimensional Standards 

a. Lot Size and Height 

The minimum lot size and maximum height shall conform to the 
underlying zoning district’s requirements. 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-60 Accessory Uses and Structures 

15-3-60(e) Cottage Industry 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  48 

b. Setbacks 

Front, side, street side, and rear setbacks shall conform to the underlying 
zoning district’s requirements. If the approximate setback distances 
cannot be determined, then the Town Administrator may require the 
applicant to submit a survey or an improvement location certificate (ILC).  

(5) Use and Occupancy of Principal and Accessory Dwelling Units 

a. If the owner obtains a valid approval for a vacation rental pursuant to 
Section 15-3-50(b)(4), the principal dwelling or the ADU can be used as a 
vacation rental, but not both dwellings. 

b. In the event of the simultaneous rental of both the ADU and the 
principal dwelling, the lease term for both units shall be for a minimum 
of three months. 

c. In the event an ADU is rented, not including those ADUs used as vacation 
rentals, it shall be rented by persons who meet the following criteria: 

(i) The unit shall be the primary residence of the tenant(s); and 

(ii) Long-term tenancy shall mean rental for a term of a minimum of 31 
days is required for an initial lease. 

(6) Design Standards 

a. All construction of ADUs in the Historic District Overlay shall comply with 
all applicable design requirements set forth in Section 15-2-80(a). 

b. ADUs shall be oriented and designed in a manner that maintains the 
privacy of the occupants on adjacent properties, as determined by a site 
visit and site-specific conditions, including but not limited to building 
heights, solar access, locations of doors, windows and outdoor spaces, 
walls, fences, and landscape screening. 

(7) Address 

Addresses for ADUs shall be the same as the principal dwelling plus one-half, 
or shall be assigned a number by the tap location method, as determined by 
the Town Administrator. 

(8) Utilities 

ADUs shall comply with the utility and billing requirements set forth in 
Chapter 13 of the Silverton Municipal Code. 

(e) Cottage Industry 
(1) Prohibited Cottage Industry 

The following cottage industries are prohibited in all districts: 

a. Industries that involve highly combustible materials or any material 
considered hazardous under federal or state law; 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-60 Accessory Uses and Structures 

15-3-60(f) Domestic Animals 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  49 

b. Industries that are objectionable due to unsightliness, odor, dust, smoke, 
noise, glare, heat, vibration, or similar disturbances; 

c. Heavy equipment or vehicle repair, unless all operations are conducted 
inside a fully enclosed structure; and 

d. Any other use that is not listed as a permitted or special use in any 
zoning district in the town. 

(2) Requirements and Restrictions 

a. Signage may be permitted pursuant to Article 7, Signs. 

b. The cottage industry may be located within a single-unit detached or 
attached dwelling, not to exceed 40 percent of the dwelling, or in a 
separate structure not to exceed 1,200 square feet. 

c. Hours of operation shall be limited to between 8:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. 

d. There shall be no visible storage of equipment, materials, or vehicles with 
more than two axles. 

e. On-site dining is prohibited. 

(3) Business License Required 

All cottage industries shall be required to obtain a business license in 
accordance with the procedure for review provided in Chapter 6 of the 
Silverton Municipal Code. 

(f) Domestic Animals 
Any property keeping domestic animals shall be subject to all applicable 
standards of Chapter 7, Article 8 of the Silverton Municipal Code including 
Section 7-8-100, Rabbits and Fowl and Chapter 7, Article 8, Division 3, Cats and 
Dogs. 

(g) Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Station 
(1) All EV charging facilities shall be connected to the proper transformer as 

determined by San Miguel Power Association. 

(2) EV charging facility spaces shall be signed for the charging of electric 
vehicles only. 

(3) EV charging facility equipment shall be located so that it does not interfere 
with vehicular, bicycle, or pedestrian access and circulation, or with required 
snow storage areas. 

(h) Family Child Care Home 
(1) All family child care homes shall comply with all applicable requirements set 

forth in 12 CCR 2509-8. 

(2) The child care operations shall be conducted only by the residents of the 
principal dwelling.  

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-60 Accessory Uses and Structures 

15-3-60(i) Greenhouse 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  50 

(3) One non-illuminated wall sign not exceeding four square feet in area and 
mounted flat against the building is allowed. 

(4) The child care operation shall not generate significantly greater traffic 
volume than would normally be expected in the residential area in which the 
home occupation is conducted. 

(i) Greenhouse 
(1) Accessory greenhouse structures, including but not limited to hoop houses, 

growing domes, and traditional framed greenhouses shall be limited to 400 
square feet and shall not be over 15 feet in height. 

(2) Accessory greenhouse structures shall only be located in rear or side yards. 

(j) Home Occupation 
(1) Prohibited Home Occupations 

The following home occupations are prohibited in all districts: 

a. Occupations that involve highly combustible materials or any material 
considered hazardous under federal or state law; 

b. Occupations that are objectionable due to unsightliness, odor, dust, 
smoke, noise, glare, heat, vibration, or similar disturbances; 

c. Retail sales, including but not limited to firearms sales; 

d. Any use that involves serving food, beverages, or meals to customers who 
visit the site for that purpose except cottage food operations as defined 
in this LUC; 

e. Heavy equipment or vehicle repair, unless all operations are conducted 
inside a fully enclosed structure; and 

f. Any other use that is not listed as a permitted or conditional use in any 
zoning district in the town. 

(2) Multiple Home Occupations 

a. More than one home occupation may be permitted within an individual 
dwelling unit. 

b. Where multiple home occupations are conducted within an individual 
dwelling unit, the requirements of Subsection (3), below, shall be applied 
to the combined total of all home occupation activities, not to each 
home occupation individually. 

(3) Requirements and Restrictions 

a. The operator of the home occupation shall reside in a permitted primary 
or accessory dwelling unit on the property.  

b. The home occupation shall be conducted within the principal dwelling 
or an accessory structure on the same property as the principal dwelling. 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-60 Accessory Uses and Structures 

15-3-60(k) Horse and Livestock Keeping 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  51 

c. Up to 25 percent of the floor area of the dwelling unit, but in no case 
more than 500 square feet, may be used in the conduct of the home 
occupation. 

d. The home occupation shall have a maximum of two employees who do 
not reside on the property.  

e. Customer shall not visit the home occupation between the hours of 9:00 
p.m. and 8:00 a.m. 

f. The home occupation shall not involve internal or external alterations or 
construction features not normally found in dwellings and shall not 
include a separate entrance. 

g. Any outdoor storage of equipment or materials in connection with the 
home occupation shall comply with the standards for outdoor residential 
storage in Section 15-3-60(m).  

h. No display of products, goods, or services that is visible from outside the 
dwelling unit are permitted.  

i. One non-illuminated wall sign not exceeding four square feet in area and 
mounted flat against the building is allowed. 

(4) Business License Required 

All home occupations shall be required to obtain a business license in 
accordance with the procedure for review provided in Chapter 6 of the 
Silverton Municipal Code. 

(k) Horse and Livestock Keeping 
Any property keeping livestock shall be subject to all applicable standards of 
Chapter 7, Article 8, Division 1 of the Silverton Municipal Code including Section 
7-8-110. 

(l) Outdoor Storage, Commercial 
(1) Accessory outdoor storage areas used in conjunction with a nonresidential 

use shall not cover an area larger than the primary building on the site or 50 
percent of the total area of the site, whichever is less. 

(2) Accessory outdoor storage areas shall be located to the side or rear of the 
primary building and outside any parking, traffic circulation, or right-of-way 
that serves the site. 

(3) Outdoor storage uses shall be maintained in an orderly manner with no junk, 
trash, or debris. 

(4) Outdoor storage areas shall be screened from public view to the maximum 
extent practicable. Screening height shall be sufficient to hide the 
equipment, vehicles, or other materials, but shall not exceed six feet in 
height. 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-70 Temporary Uses and Structures 

15-3-60(m) Outdoor Storage, Residential 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  52 

(m) Outdoor Storage, Residential 
(1) Accessory outdoor storage areas including enclosed structures used in 

conjunction with a residential use shall not exceed 200 square feet. 

(2) Outdoor storage areas shall be screened from public view to the maximum 
extent practicable. Screening height shall be sufficient to hide the 
equipment, vehicles, or other materials, but shall not exceed six feet in 
height. 

(n) Propane Tank 
Any existing or proposed above-ground or underground propane tank(s) shall be 
located the minimum distances from property lines and/or structures on the lot 
as required by the International Building Code (IBC) and National Fire Protection 
Association (NFPA) standards. 

(o) Recreational Vehicle Storage 
(1) One unoccupied recreational vehicle per dwelling may be kept, stored, or 

parked on the same property as the dwelling. Units in excess of one per 
dwelling must be stored in totally enclosed accessory structures conforming 
with current building codes.  

(2) Storage may be on private property, with permission of the property owner, 
or on the street right-of-way, with permission of Public Works.  

(3) All recreational vehicles stored under the above conditions must comply with 
Section 11-1-50 of the Silverton Municipal Code, with the Model Traffic Code 
adopted by the Town, and with all directives of the Public Works Director for 
purposes of street maintenance and snow removal.  

(4) No recreational vehicles shall be kept, stored, or parked in any alley. 

(p) Solar Energy System, Ground or Roof-Mounted 
(1) Solar collectors shall only be located in rear or side yards or on rooftops. 

(2) If the solar collector is not flush with the roof the applicant shall minimize the 
visibility of the collector from a public street, park, or open space to the 
maximum extent practicable without prohibiting the installation. 

(3) Ground-mounted accessory solar collectors shall not exceed the height of 
the primary structure on the lot or parcel. 

15-3-70 Temporary Uses and Structures 

(a) Purpose 
The purpose of this Section is to allow for temporary uses and structures of 
limited duration, provided that temporary uses comply with the standards in this 
Section and are discontinued upon the expiration of a set time period. 
Temporary uses shall not involve the construction or alteration of any permanent 
building or structure. 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-70 Temporary Uses and Structures 

15-3-70(b) Applicability 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  53 

(b) Applicability 
This Section shall apply to: 

(1) Temporary buildings; 

(2) Temporary display and sale of merchandise; 

(3) Mobile trailers, activities, and/or uses incidental to the construction of a 
building or group of buildings on the same or adjacent premises; 

(4) Seasonal uses (e.g., fireworks stands, Christmas tree lots, and produce 
stands); and 

(5) Other uses that clearly are not associated with a holiday, the growing season, 
or a construction project may be considered for approval by the Town 
Administrator. 

(c) Exemptions 
Temporary decorations or displays are allowed without a Temporary Use Permit 
or in conjunction with a temporary use subject to this Section provided: 

(1) Temporary decorations or displays are allowed when clearly incidental to and 
commonly associated with a particular season, holiday, cultural event, or any 
community-wide special event.  

(2) Temporary decorations and displays must be removed if damaged or in 
disrepair and within 72 hours following the conclusion of the particular event 
or holiday.  

(3) Temporary decorations and displays may not be erected so as to obstruct the 
use or visibility of the public right-of-way. 

(d) General Standards 
(1) Temporary Use Permit Required 

No temporary use may begin operation before approval of a permit pursuant 
to Section 15-8-30(n). 

(2) Location 

The temporary use shall allow for placement of a temporary structure, 
vehicle, or sign outside of any required setback, sidewalk, or any other 
position on a lot that may interfere with vehicular or pedestrian circulation, 
or the normal functions of other uses on the property, or be potentially 
hazardous to the public. 

(3) Duration 

Temporary uses shall not exceed 120 days, unless otherwise noted in this 
Section. One extension for up to an additional 120 may be granted by the 
Town Administrator. 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-70 Temporary Uses and Structures 

15-3-70(e) Farm Stand 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  54 

(4) Additional Permits 

Any tent, trailer, or structure subject to the requirements of this Section and 
intended or used for human occupancy shall comply with the adopted 
building and fire codes as well as with any local health regulations. 

(5) Removal 

After the termination of the temporary use, the site shall be restored to its 
prior condition by the removal of the any structures, debris or refuse 
associated with the temporary use. 

(e) Farm Stand 
(1) Farm stands may operate for up to six months of the year. When the farm 

stand is not in use, it must be removed and stored indoors. 

(2) In residential zoning districts, hours of operation shall be restricted from 7:00 
a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

(3) The stand shall comply with all dimensional standards of the applicable 
zoning district. 

(f) Farmer’s Market 
(1) A farmer’s market shall only operate, including any setup or breakdown 

activities, a total of 12 hours per day between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 
p.m. 

(2) A farmer’s market shall not occupy an area larger than 20,000 square feet 
and shall meet the zoning district required setbacks, unless otherwise 
approved by the Town Administrator. 

(g) Food Truck 
(1) Each food truck shall have written permission from the property owner for 

use of the site and allowed location on the site. 

(2) Each food truck shall comply with all applicable town, state, and federal 
requirements including those related to licensing and operating in the 
public right-of-way and shall be in good operating condition. 

(3) Food truck operations shall only occur between 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m., 
unless otherwise specified in an approved Special Event Permit. 

(h) Portable Storage Unit 
(1) A portable storage unit shall be used only for temporary storage. Long-term, 

on-site storage is prohibited. 

(2) The outside dimensions shall not exceed 16 feet in length, eight feet in width, 
and nine feet in height. 

(3) Portable storage units are prohibited within any public right-of-way. 

(4) A portable storage unit shall be located in a manner which does not hinder 
pedestrian or vehicular access to the premises. 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-70 Temporary Uses and Structures 

15-3-70(i) Portable Waste Trailer 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  55 

(i) Portable Waste Trailer 
Portable waste trailers may be parked in an on-street parking space or along a public 
street, excluding Greene Street, provided the trailer is located on the same block of 
the business(es) using the trailer. 

Trailer dimensions shall not exceed 16 feet in length and eight feet in width. 

(1) Portable waste trailers shall not encroach into or interfere with pedestrian or 
vehicular travel. 

(2) All trash or recyclables shall be emptied regularly so as not to overflow, and 
litter and debris shall not be allowed to accumulate around or near the 
trailer. 

(3) Portable waste trailers shall not create excessive odor problems or present a 
health hazard. 

(j) Temporary Event or Sales 
(1) Temporary events or sales conducted from movable structures or upon 

vacant lots shall submit a site plan, including, without limitation, the location, 
setback from property line, screening, sign and fence locations, if applicable, 
and electric meter locations or power source. 

(2) Upon termination of the use and on days for which no event is approved, the 
lot or portion of the lot used for the event or sales area shall be returned 
substantially to its original condition. All litter, fences, borders, tie-down 
materials, and other items associated with the temporary event shall be 
promptly removed. 

(3) Temporary events shall only be conducted by the owner or lessee of the 
property or with the permission of the owner or lessee of the property on 
which it is conducted. 

(4) Temporary events that require a liquor license shall obtain a Special Event 
Permit in accordance with Chapter 6, Article 2, Division 2 of the Silverton 
Municipal Code. 

(k) Temporary Outdoor Dining 
(1) General  

a. For the purpose of this Section, references to “restaurants” include the 
following uses described in Table 15-3-1: Use Table: bar or tavern, craft 
alcohol, and restaurant. 

b. All operation must comply with state and local guidance for food and 
beverage operations. 

c. Business owners are responsible for following any state or local public 
health agency orders imposing occupancy limits. 

d. All applicants shall hold a current/active business license from the Town 
of Silverton. 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-70 Temporary Uses and Structures 

15-3-70(k) Temporary Outdoor Dining 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  56 

e. It shall be the sole responsibility of the business owner to adequately 
maintain and furnish a sanitary environment in patio areas/restaurant 
extensions including frequent general cleaning, trash removal and 
placement of furniture. The Town will not be responsible for providing 
seating or tables and all patio spaces must maintain an orderly 
appearance when not in operation. 

f. If alcohol is to be permitted and served within a temporary outdoor 
dining area, the applicant shall comply with the standards set forth in 
Chapter 6, Article 2, Division 3, Outdoor Dining Within the Town’s Right-
of-Way, of the Silverton Municipal Code. 

(2) Location 

a. For outdoor dining areas within the public right-of-way, the area shall be 
located at the frontage or side street adjacent to the associated principal 
use restaurant. 

b. A maximum of 33 percent or one-third of existing private lots may be 
used for a restaurant patio extension for a currently permitted restaurant, 
subject to the written approval of the of the owner of the lot. Private lots 
to be used for this purpose must be immediately adjacent or attached to 
a principal use restaurant. 

(3) Operations 

a. Temporary outdoor dining areas are allowed between May 1st and 
October 31st. 

b. Hours of operation shall be limited to 7:00 a.m. through 10:00 p.m. 

c. Temporary outdoor dining areas shall only be used for sit-down dining or 
curbside service (pick-up or delivery). Temporary outdoor dining areas 
shall not be used for standing areas, yard games, or entertainment, 
including but not limited to live entertainment, amplified sound or 
entertainment such as music over speakers, movies, sports broadcasts, or 
loudspeaker call systems. 

(4) Design Standards 

a. Size 

Temporary outdoor dining areas shall be limited to 512 square feet or 
three parking spaces. 

b. Accessibility 

For all outdoor restaurant activity, operations may not block sidewalks, 
ADA parking, drive aisles, emergency access, fire hydrants or right-of-
way; and may not create tripping hazards (e.g., with extension cords). 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-70 Temporary Uses and Structures 

15-3-70(k) Temporary Outdoor Dining 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  57 

c. Barricades 

(i) In an effort to maintain a uniform appearance, the Town will provide 
metal barricades to business seeking to operate a temporary outdoor 
dining area in parking spaces adjacent to their business following 
issuance of an approved outdoor dining license. 

(ii) Town-issued barricades will be provided on a first come first served 
basis. If all Town owned barricades are in use, it will be the 
responsibility of the business owner to obtain approval from the 
Code Enforcement Officer for a suitable alternative. 

(iii) Barricades placed annually prior to May 31 will be the responsibility of 
the business owner to remove at the request of the Town with 48 
hours’ notice to accommodate for street cleaning, line painting, and 
other seasonal maintenance facilitated by the Fire Department and 
Public Works. Failure to comply with Town requests may result in 
revocation of outdoor dining program participation or fines. 

(iv) The Town will aid business owners who are physically unable to move 
barricades with removal processes and storage with 24 hours’ notice. 

(v) Barricade storage will be made available to all business owners 
behind the Quonset hut in the public works yard. Barricades shall be 
kept and dropped off in a neat and orderly manner. Failure to do so 
may result in revocation of outdoor dining program participation or 
fines. 

d. Additional Standards 

(i) Temporary tents shall be permitted provided they are weighted 
down a minimum of 40 pounds per leg of a 10 foot by 10 foot tent 
and more for larger tents. 

(ii) Temporary lighting is permitted and shall comply with the standards 
in Section 15-6-40, Outdoor Lighting. 

e. Review Required 

(i) Restaurants shall apply for a Temporary Use Permit. Restaurants shall 
be responsible for obtaining all Town approvals required by 
Planning/Building/Code Enforcement, as well as any relevant public 
health agency requirements. Restaurants must pay the fee prior to 
receiving their barricades. 

(ii) Applicants will be required to submit proof of insurance listing the 
“Town of Silverton” as additionally insured as defined in Ordinance 
2022-01. 

(iii) The holder of a Temporary Use Permit that authorizes the licensee to 
go upon public property shall indemnify and hold harmless the 

Exhibit A



Article 3 Use Standards 
 Section 15-3-70 Temporary Uses and Structures 

15-3-70(k) Temporary Outdoor Dining 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  58 

Town, its officers, employees and agents against any and all claims 
arising from any occurrence occasioned by the permitted use. 

  

Exhibit A



Article 4 Subdivision Design and Improvement 
 Section 15-4-10 General Provisions 

15-4-10(a) Purpose 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  59 

Article 4 Subdivision Design and 
Improvement 

15-4-10 General Provisions 

(a) Purpose 
The purpose of this Section is to provide for: 

(1) Efficient circulation through the proper arrangements of streets in relation to 
other existing or planned streets;  

(2) Adequate and convenient open spaces for traffic circulation, utilities, 
emergency access, recreation, light, air, snow, and drainage; and  

(3) Adequate infrastructure through the establishment of standards for the 
design and construction of improvements.  

(b) Applicability 
This Section shall apply to the subdivision of all land located within the legal 
boundaries of the Town and, when in reference to an adopted major street plan, 
all land located within three miles of the corporate limits of the Town. 

(c) Compliance with LUC 
(1) The general layout of lots, streets, driveways, utilities, drainage facilities, and 

other services within all proposed subdivisions shall be designed in a way 
that minimizes the amount of land disturbance, maximizes the amount of 
open space in the development, and otherwise accomplishes the purpose 
and intent of this LUC and of the zoning district in which the subdivision is 
located.  

(2) Applicants shall apply these standards in the design and creation of lots or 
patterns of lots to ensure compliance with applicable development 
standards to the maximum extent practicable. 

(d) Design Standards and Specifications 
(1) Required improvements shall be designed in accordance with this Article 

and the Development Standards and Specifications.  

(2) No improvements shall be made until all engineering plans, profiles, and 
specifications have been reviewed and approved by the Town.  

(e) Suitability of Land for Development 
Land subject to natural hazards such as flooding, wildfire, falling rock, landslides, 
and avalanches shall be considered unsuitable for any occupancy that may 
impair the health, safety, or welfare of the inhabitants, unless otherwise 
permitted by this LUC. Where hazardous conditions exist on or adjacent to lands 
proposed for subdivision, the application shall meet the applicable standards of 
Article 5, Environmentally Sensitive Lands. 

Exhibit A



Article 4 Subdivision Design and Improvement 
 Section 15-4-20 Subdivision Design Standards 

15-4-20(a) Lots and Blocks 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  60 

15-4-20 Subdivision Design Standards 

(a) Lots and Blocks 
(1) Lot size, width, depth, shape, orientation, and minimum building setback 

lines shall be appropriate for the location of the subdivision and for the type 
of development and use contemplated and shall conform to the dimensional 
standards for the zoning district.  

(2) Lots and blocks shall be designed to afford the maximum solar access to 
each building site.  

(3) Double frontage and reverse frontage lots are prohibited except where 
essential to provide separation of residential properties from arterial streets 
or commercial uses, or to overcome specific disadvantages of topography 
and orientation.  

(4) A statement relinquishing right of access from individual lots to Highway 550 
and/or an arterial road shall be included in the Final Plat.  

(5) Side lot lines shall be substantially at right angles to street lines, unless 
otherwise approved by the Board of Trustees.  

(6) The maximum block length between intersecting streets shall be 600 feet.  

 
Figure 15-4-1: Maximum Block Length 

(b) Streets 
(1) Minimum Design Standards 

All streets, alleys, bridges, sidewalks, curbs, gutters, and public right-of-way 
shall meet the minimum design standards as set forth in the Development 
Standards and Specifications. 

(2) Arrangements of Streets 

a. Adequate local streets shall be provided to accommodate the 
subdivision and provide access to lots.  

b. New streets and extensions of existing streets must bear a logical 
relationship to the topography and to the location of existing or planned 

Exhibit A



Article 4 Subdivision Design and Improvement 
 Section 15-4-20 Subdivision Design Standards 

15-4-20(b) Streets 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  61 

streets on adjacent properties, unless otherwise approved by the Town. 
The arrangement of streets in a subdivision shall either: 

(i) Provide for the continuation or appropriate projection to existing 
principal streets in surrounding areas; or 

(ii) Conform to a plan for a neighborhood or Planned Unit Development 
approved by the Planning Commission to meet a particular situation 
where topographical or other conditions make continuance or 
conformance to existing streets impracticable or where 
neighborhood design makes a varied plan appropriate. 

c. Any development requiring access onto a State highway shall obtain a 
permit for access from the Colorado Department of Transportation 
before the issuance of any Town development permit. State or federal 
highways shall not be intersected by local streets. 

d. Any development requiring access onto a County road shall obtain a 
permit for access from San Juan County before the issuance of any Town 
development permit.  

(3) Access Easement or Alley 

a. The use of an easement or alley for principal access to a lot shall be 
allowed where: 

1. Alleys currently exist; 

2. Alleys are part of an overall project design; or 

3. An alley can be used to provide access in a manner that 
corresponds to surrounding site design and allows maneuvering 
that is safe for vehicles, pedestrians, and bicyclists. 

(4) Closed-end Streets 

a. Closed-end streets should only be used when topography, the presence 
of natural features, and/or vehicular safety factors make a vehicular 
connection impractical. Closed-end streets are prohibited when street 
connection across adjacent property is possible. Ordinarily, closed-end 
streets shall be discouraged as they do not result in a continuation or 
conformance to existing streets or streets pattern. 

b. Closed-end streets shall be designed in compliance with the 
Development Standards and Specifications. 

c. An alternative design may be approved by the Fire Department and 
Public Works. 

(5) Intersections 

a. Streets shall intersect as nearly as possible at right angles. 

Exhibit A



Article 4 Subdivision Design and Improvement 
 Section 15-4-30 Required Improvements 

15-4-20(c) Utility Easements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  62 

b. All streets shall intersect at right angles for a minimum of 50 feet from 
the edge of the intersection. 

c. More than two streets intersecting at a point shall be avoided. 

(6) Half-streets 

Half streets are prohibited, except where essential to the reasonable 
development of the subdivision and where the Board of Trustees finds that it 
will be practicable to require the dedication of the other half of a street when 
the adjoining property is subdivided.  

(7) Street Names 

a. Names of new streets shall not duplicate names of existing streets, 
except for new streets that are extensions of, or that are in alignment 
with, existing or platted streets. 

b. Street names shall not be named for a living individual. 

(8) Sight Distance 

All portions of the grade line must meet sight distance requirements for the 
design speed. The minimum stopping sight distance is the distance required 
by the driver of a vehicle, traveling at the design speed, to bring the vehicle to 
a stop after an object on the road becomes visible.  

(c) Utility Easements 
(1) Where necessary for installation and/or maintenance of utility systems, 

easements of at least 10 feet in width shall be reserved along rear lot lines of 
each lot, or at other locations which will not interfere with the siting of 
buildings.  

(2) In general, utility systems shall be arranged and located to avoid cross-
connections, minimize trenching, and adequately separate incompatible 
systems.  

15-4-30 Required Improvements 

(a) Water and Sewer Service Extensions 
Extension of the municipal water and sewer services to serve every existing or 
proposed structure in any subdivision within or seeking to be annexed to the 
Town is mandatory. Fees and procedures for municipal utility extensions and 
services shall be governed by Chapter 13 of the Silverton Municipal Code and 
shall be payable as provided in Chapter 13.  

(b) Storm Drainage System 
The following criteria shall be followed in the design of all drainage systems:  

(1) The storm drainage system shall consist of natural drainage courses 
whenever possible and/or surface drainage structures, catch basins, and 
other underground drainage structures. The storm drainage system shall be 
of sufficient size and design to carry off all predictable surface water runoff 

Exhibit A



Article 4 Subdivision Design and Improvement 
 Section 15-4-30 Required Improvements 

15-4-30(c) Sanitary Sewerage System 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  63 

within the subdivision or development and stormwater drainage which 
enters the development from adjacent areas based on a 25-year frequency 
storm.  

(2) Catch basins shall be provided at all low points, at street intersections and at 
intermediate locations as necessary to prevent overloading of the street 
gutters. Catch basins provided shall be connected to collection mains of 
adequate size with outfalls approved by Public Works.  

(3) Storm drainage shall not be permitted to empty into any sanitary sewerage 
system.  

(c) Sanitary Sewerage System 
(1) The sanitary sewerage system shall be connected to an existing public 

sanitary sewer system and shall consist of a closed system of sanitary sewer 
mains and lateral branch connections to each structure or lot upon which a 
structure is to be built.  

(2) The sanitary sewerage system shall be of sufficient size and design to collect 
all sewage from all proposed or probable structures within the subdivision or 
development and comply with the requirements in the Development 
Standards and Specifications with review and acceptance by the Public 
Works Director. 

(d) Potable Water System  
(1) The potable water system provided shall connect to an existing public water 

system and shall consist of water mains directly connected to using 
structures by means of lateral branches.  

(2) The water system shall be of sufficient size and design to supply potable 
water to each structure or lot upon which a structure is to be built and 
comply with the requirements in the Development Standards and 
Specifications with review and acceptance by the Public Works Director. 

(e) Fire Hydrants 
Fire hydrants shall be installed pursuant to applicable Fire Code requirements. 

(f) Utilities 
All new electric utilities shall be installed underground. Above-ground facilities 
associated with new installations (e.g., pedestals, transformers, and transmission 
lines of 50kv capacity or greater) may be allowed if deemed necessary by Public 
Works. 

(g) Street Lights 
(1) Ornamental street lighting and associated underground street lighting 

supply circuits shall be installed. Street lights shall maintain maximum 
spacing of 400 feet, with lighting at each intersection. 

(2) All street lighting shall meet the requirements of Section 15-6-40, Outdoor 
Lighting. 

Exhibit A



Article 4 Subdivision Design and Improvement 
 Section 15-4-40 Public Land Dedication 

15-4-30(h) Arterial Roads 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  64 

The street lighting plan specifying the number, line and approximate location of 
street lights must be included with the Final Plat application.  

(h) Arterial Roads 
An applicant for a subdivision that is access from Highway 550 or an arterial road 
may be required to submit a traffic impact analysis that considers the following 
factors: street capacity and level of service; vehicle access and loading; on-street 
parking impacts; impacts on adjacent neighborhoods; and traffic safety 
including pedestrian safety. 

(i) Street Improvements 
All street improvements shall meet the standards of Section 15-4-20(b) including 
the minimum design standards set forth in the Development Standards and 
Specifications. 

15-4-40 Public Land Dedication 

(a) Dedication or Cash in Lieu Requirement 
(1) Every Major Subdivision and PUD shall include a dedication of land to the 

Town, or other entity, as determined by the Board of Trustees, to be used for 
parks and recreation, open space, school sites, municipal facilities, or cash in 
lieu of the dedication in an amount established by this Section. 

(2) The applicant shall dedicate a minimum of 10 percent of the gross land area, 
exclusive of streets, alleys, and utility easements for one or more of the public 
purposes listed above.  

(b) Cash in Lieu 
(1) If the Board of Trustees finds that the park and recreational needs of a 

proposed development would be better served by a park in a different 
location or the expansion or improvement of an existing park or recreational 
area, the Board of Trustees may substitute a cash payment or other 
equivalent conveyance in lieu of land dedication. 

(2) The amount of cash payment shall be calculated based on the land area that 
would be required as a dedication. The Board of Trustees shall establish by 
resolution the per-square foot fee based on the current fair market value for 
raw lands within the corporate limits of the Town. 

(3) The equivalent cash valuation, when used, shall be based upon an appraisal 
by a competent, independent appraiser selected by the Town and the 
applicant. The applicant shall pay one-half the total cost of the services of the 
appraiser, with payment to be deposited to the General Fund of the Town 
prior to approval of the Final Plat by the Board of Trustees.  

Exhibit A



Article 4 Subdivision Design and Improvement 
 Section 15-4-40 Public Land Dedication 

15-4-40(c) Acceptance 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  65 

(c) Acceptance 
(1) All land dedicated to the Town shall be formally accepted by the Town 

through the adoption of an appropriate ordinance if it chooses to accept the 
dedication and the dedication conforms to the requirements of this Section.  

(2) The proceeds of any equivalent cash payment under this Section shall be 
placed in a separate Town fund and shall be used only for the acquisition or 
improvement of land for public park and recreation areas or other public 
facilities. 

(d) Reservations 
(1) Reservation by covenant, in lieu of dedication, may be permitted in some 

cases, such as a Planned Unit Development where land is to be used for 
recreational or amenity purposes by the property owners.  

(2) Reservation of land within a subdivision may be required for the duration of 
the Preliminary Plan approval in order to afford the appropriate public 
agency the opportunity to coordinate its acquisition of public land with the 
development of the subdivision. An agreement shall be entered into 
between the subdivider and the public agency regarding the timing and 
method of acquisition. 

Exhibit A



Article 5 Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
 Section 15-5-10 Avalanche Hazard Areas  

15-5-10(a) Purpose Purpose 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  66 

Article 5 Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
15-5-10 Avalanche Hazard Areas 

(a) Purpose 
The purpose of this Section is to:  

(1) Identify those areas within the Town where, after due investigation and 
study, hazards to the safety of property and occupants exist due to potential 
avalanche activity impacting the areas;  

(2) Give notice to the public of those areas within the Town where avalanche 
hazards to property and occupants potentially exist;  

(3) Mitigate the public's exposure to health, safety, and welfare hazards within 
avalanche hazard areas; and 

(4) Allow for the use and development of properties situated within avalanche 
hazard areas only when the use and development comply with the 
requirements of this Section. 

(b) Applicability 
(1) This Section shall apply to the land areas subject to potential avalanche 

danger identified in the "Snow Avalanche Mapping Analysis, Silverton, 
Colorado," by Arthur I. Mears, P.E., Inc., dated February 1998, together with 
supplemental avalanche mapping information submitted by Arthur I. Mears 
in conjunction with the referenced study. This analysis may be updated by 
the Town from time to time. 

(2) Avalanche hazard areas shall consist of two sub-zone designations as follows:  

a. The High Hazard Red Zone means land areas exposed to avalanches with 
a return period of less than 30 years and/or avalanche impact pressures 
greater than 600 pounds per square foot on a flat, rigid surface situated 
perpendicular to the direction of avalanche flow.  

b. The Moderate Hazard Blue Zone means land areas exposed to 
avalanches with a return period in excess of 30 years and avalanche 
impact pressures of less than 600 pounds per square foot on a flat, rigid 
surface situated perpendicular to the direction of avalanche flow.  

(3) The standards in this Section shall only apply to the portion of the lot that is 
encumbered by an avalanche hazard area. Partial encumbrance shall not 
render a lot undevelopable.  

(c) Review Required 
All development within the boundaries of the High Hazard Red and Moderate 
Hazard Blue Zones shall obtain a Minor or Major Avalanche Hazard Development 
Permit as set forth in Sections 15-8-30(h)and 15-8-40(d) below before beginning 
any development or use activity. 

Exhibit A



Article 5 Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
 Section 15-5-10 Avalanche Hazard Areas  

15-5-10(d) Restrictions on Development Restrictions on Development 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  67 

(d) Restrictions on Development 
(1) New Construction Prohibited in High Hazard Red Zone 

New permanent residential or nonresidential occupied structures are 
prohibited in the High Hazard Red Zone, unless the applicant follows the 
procedure in Subsection (f) to adjust the map designation of the property. 

(2) Prohibited Uses in the Moderate Hazard Blue Zone 

The following types of land development and use are prohibited within the 
Moderate Hazard Blue Zone:  

a. Critical facilities as defined in Section 15-5-20(f)(1);  

b. Multiunit dwellings, hotels, motels, bed and breakfasts, manufactured or 
tiny home parks, and recreational vehicle parks that continue operation 
or seasonal recreational vehicle occupancy between November 1 to April 
30; and 

c. Solid waste disposal sites, sewage treatment plants or aboveground 
facilities for the storage or disposal of hazardous, toxic, nuclear, 
flammable or explosive materials, including aboveground propane tanks. 

(3) Nonconforming Structures 

Any building or structure that has been constructed within the High Hazard 
Red or Moderate Hazard Blue Zone prior to the Effective Date and does not 
meet the standards in this Section shall be a nonconforming building or 
structure and is subject to the standards in Section 15-9-50(a), 
Nonconforming Structures in Avalanche Hazard Areas. 

(4) Certification of Construction  

Building construction shall be certified to withstand avalanche impact and 
static loads and otherwise protected by external avalanche-defense 
structures that have been similarly certified.  

(5) Vegetation Removal Prohibited 

The development shall not result in timber clear cutting or other large scale 
removal of vegetation in avalanche hazard areas. Alteration of plant cover 
which would decrease the stabilizing effect shall be prohibited, especially on 
slopes above the proposed development. 

(6) General Notice Requirements 

a. Any person who rents, leases or sublets any structure or premises within 
the High Hazard Red Zone or Moderate Hazard Blue Zone for any portion 
of the months of November, December, January, February, March, or 
April shall provide the Town with written notice, signed and notarized by 
the tenant, lessee, or sub-tenant that they have been informed that the 
property is located within the High Hazard Red Zone or Moderate Hazard 
Blue Zone and the tenant shall execute and file with the Town a release 
and indemnification agreement. Written notice and proper execution of 

Exhibit A



Article 5 Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
 Section 15-5-10 Avalanche Hazard Areas  

15-5-10(e) Administration Administration 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  68 

the release and indemnification agreement to the Town shall be 
accomplished prior to any occupancy of the structure or premises.  

b. Every real estate agent, sales person, broker, and private party owning 
property within the High Hazard Red Zone or Moderate Hazard Blue 
Zone shall, upon first inquiry, provide the prospective purchaser, lessee, 
or tenant, prior to or in conjunction with viewing the property, with 
written notice that the real property is located within the High Hazard 
Red Zone or Moderate Hazard Blue Zone. 

(e) Administration 
All development subject to this Section shall obtain a Major or Minor Avalanche 
Permit pursuant to Section 

(f) Amendments to Map Boundaries 
(1) In the event that any property owner affected by a High Hazard Red Zone or 

Moderate Hazard Blue Zone believes that as a result of the erection of 
avalanche protective, deflective, and preventative structures, devices, or 
earth work, or through a change in topography or erection of other 
structures, the boundaries of the sub-zone designation should be altered or 
changed, a Major Avalanche Development Permit application is required. 

(2) The application shall include, at a minimum, an analysis performed by a 
licensed Colorado engineer as to the effect of the avalanche protective, 
deflective, or preventative structure, device, or earth work, or other changes 
upon the areas within the High Hazard Red Zone or Moderate Hazard Blue 
Zone, together with a map of the newly defined area within the High Hazard 
Red Zone or Moderate Hazard Blue Zone.  

(3) If the Town of Silverton erected avalanche protective, deflective, and 
preventative structures, devices, or earth work, it shall make available 
information to engineers as requested.  

(4) Upon an application, the High Hazard Red Zone or Moderate Hazard Blue 
Zone boundaries may be amended subsequent to public hearing and 
adoption of an ordinance amending the map. 

(g) Warning and Disclaimer of Safety and Liability 
(1) Avalanches occur naturally, suddenly, and unpredictably based upon 

steepness of slope and runout area, exposure, snowpack composition, wind, 
temperature, rate of snowfall and other little understood interacting factors. 
The avalanche hazard areas designated in this Section are considered 
reasonable for regulatory purposes and is based upon and limited by the 
engineering and scientific methods of study.  

(2) This Section does not represent or imply that areas outside the High Hazard 
Red Zone and Moderate Hazard Blue Zone are free from avalanches or 
avalanche danger. The fact that the Town has not prohibited all 
development, construction, or use of real property within these areas does 

Exhibit A



Article 5 Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
 Section 15-5-20 Flood Hazard Areas  

15-5-20(a) General Provisions General Provisions 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  69 

not constitute a representation, guarantee or warranty of any kind as to the 
safety of any construction, use, or occupancy.  

(3) The granting of any permit or approval for any structure or use, or the 
declaration or failure to declare the existence of an avalanche hazard shall 
not constitute a representation, guarantee or warranty of any kind or nature 
by the Town, or any official or employee, of the practicality or safety of any 
construction, use or occupancy thereof, and shall create no liability upon or 
cause of action against the Town, or its officials or employees, for any injury, 
loss or damage that may result. 

15-5-20 Flood Hazard Areas 

(a) General Provisions 
(1) Statutory Authorization 

Pursuant to C.R.S. 31-23-301, the legislature of the state has delegated the 
responsibility of the local governmental units to adopt regulations designed 
to minimize flood losses.  

(2) Purpose 

The purpose of this Section is to promote the public health, safety, and 
general welfare, and to minimize public and private losses due to flood 
conditions to specific areas by provisions designed to: 

a. Avoid or mitigate the potential adverse impacts of flood on property, 
economic activity, and the environment; 

b. Ensure development does not increase the extent or severity of the flood 
hazard; 

c. Ensure development does not cause injury, loss of life, or damage to 
premises and property due to flooding; and 

d. Regulate the use of areas subject to periodic flooding. 

(3) Applicability 

This Section shall apply to all areas of special flood hazard and areas removed 
from the floodplain by the issuance of a Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) Letter of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-F) within the 
jurisdiction of the Town. 

(4) Basis for Establishing Areas of Special Flood Hazard  

a. The special flood hazard areas identified by FEMA in a scientific and 
engineering report entitled, “The Flood Insurance Study for the Town of 
Silverton, Colorado and Incorporated Areas,” dated May 9, 2023, with 
accompanying Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM), as amended, are the 
minimum area of applicability of this Section and may be supplemented 
by studies designated and approved the Town. The Flood Hazard 

Exhibit A



Article 5 Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
 Section 15-5-20 Flood Hazard Areas  

15-5-20(b) Review Required Review Required 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  70 

Administrator shall keep a copy of the FIS, DFIRMs, and FIRMs on file and 
available for public inspection. 

b. Areas of special flood hazard are divided into two separate and distinct 
areas:  

(i) The floodway; and  

(ii) The flood fringe.  

(5) Compliance 

No structure shall be constructed, located, extended, converted, substantially 
improved or altered, and no development shall be permitted, within the 
areas of special flood hazard without full compliance with the terms of this 
Section and other applicable regulations.  

(6) Abrogation and Greater Restrictions 

This Section is not intended to repeal, abrogate, or impair any existing 
easements, covenants, or deed restrictions. However, where this Section and 
another ordinance, easement, covenant, or deed restriction conflict or 
overlap, whichever imposes the more stringent restrictions shall prevail.  

(7) Interpretation 

In the interpretation and application of this Section, all provisions shall be: 

a. Considered as minimum requirements; 

b. Liberally construed in favor of the Town; and 

c. Deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted under state 
statutes. 

(8) Warning and Disclaimer of Safety and Liability 

a. The degree of flood protection required by this Section is considered 
reasonable for regulatory purposes and is based on scientific and 
engineering considerations. Larger floods can and will occur on rare 
occasions. Flood height may be increased by man-made or natural 
causes.  

b. This Section does not imply that lands outside the areas of special flood 
hazard or uses permitted within those areas will be free from flooding or 
flood damage. This Section shall not create liability on the part of the 
Town, any officer or employee of the Town, or the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency, for any flood damages that result from reliance on 
this Section or any administrative decision lawfully made under this 
Section.  

(b) Review Required 
(1) A Flood Hazard Development Permit shall be obtained before construction, 

substantial improvement, or development begins within any area of special 
flood hazard. Any structure of nonstructural activity or development that 

Exhibit A



Article 5 Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
 Section 15-5-20 Flood Hazard Areas  

15-5-20(c) General Regulations General Regulations 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  71 

may affect flooding or flood damage must have a permit. Flood Hazard 
Development Permits shall be reviewed in accordance with Section 15-8-
30(e). 

(2) Encroachments into the area of special flood hazard must be certified by a 
Colorado registered professional engineer that the encroachments are in 
accordance with this Section. Within Zones A1-30 and AE on the 
community's FIRM, it shall be demonstrated that: 

a. The cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined 
with all other existing and anticipated development, will not increase the 
water surface elevation of the base flood more than one-half foot at any 
point within the community; and 

b. Within the adopted regulatory floodway, it must be demonstrated 
through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses in accordance with standard 
engineering practice that the proposed encroachment would not result 
in any increase (require a no-rise certification) in flood levels in the 
community during the occurrence of the base flood discharge.  

(c) General Regulations 
(1) Minimum Federal and State Standards 

Development in the area of special flood hazard must comply with the 
National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and State of Colorado minimum 
standards. These standards require applicants to demonstrate that those 
development projects allowed in the floodway, when combined with all 
other existing and anticipated development, will not cause an increase in the 
modeled 1-percent annual chance water surface greater than 0.00 feet and, 
for projects in the flood fringe, will not cause an increase greater than 0.50 
feet. 

(2) General Provisions  

a. No structure (temporary or permanent), fill, (including fill for roads and 
levees), deposits, obstruction, storage of materials or other floodplain 
uses that, acting alone or in combination with existing or future 
floodplain uses, shall adversely affect the efficiency or decrease the 
storage capacity of the floodplain. 

b. No floodplain use shall adversely affect the efficiency of or unduly restrict 
the capacity of the channels or floodways of any tributaries to the main 
stream, drainage ditches, or any other drainage facilities or systems.  

(d) Uses Allowed in Floodway 
The following uses shall be permitted in the floodway unless the use is 
prohibited in the underlying zoning district, adversely affects the efficiency of the 
floodway, changes the direction of flow, or poses a significant safety hazard. Any 
use or structure not listed is prohibited. 

Exhibit A



Article 5 Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
 Section 15-5-20 Flood Hazard Areas  

15-5-20(e) Development Standards in Flood Fringe Development Standards in Flood Fringe 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  72 

(1) Uses accessory to residential uses, including, but not limited to lawns, open 
areas, gardens, driveways, and play areas; 

(2) Parks and open space; 

(3) Multi-modal path or trail; 

(4) Minor utilities not requiring structures; and 

(5) Hydraulic structures such as bridges, culverts, weirs, diversions, drop 
structures, and fish ladders, for access and flood or stormwater control. 

(e) Development Standards in Flood Fringe 
(1) Construction Materials and Methods 

a. All new construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed 
using methods and practices that minimize flood damage.  

b. All new construction and substantial improvements shall be designed 
and adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral 
movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic 
loads, including the effects of buoyancy, and must be certified by a 
Colorado registered professional engineer that they have been 
constructed to withstand hydrodynamic and hydrostatic forces and are 
adequately protected from flooding up to one foot above the base flood 
elevation.  

c. All new construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed 
with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage.  

(2) Residential Construction 

All new construction and substantial improvement of residential structures 
must have the lowest floor (including basement), electrical heating, 
ventilation, plumbing and air conditioning equipment, and other service 
facilities (including ductwork) elevated to at least one foot above the base 
flood elevation on the community's FIRM. Upon completion of the structure, 
the elevation of the lowest floor, including basement, shall be certified by a 
Colorado registered professional engineer, architect, or land surveyor. The 
certification shall be submitted to the Flood Hazard Administrator.  

(3) Nonresidential Construction 

All new construction and substantial improvements of nonresidential 
structures must have the lowest floor (including basement), electrical, 
heating, ventilation, plumbing and air conditioning equipment, and other 
service facilities (including ductwork) elevated at least one foot above the 
base flood elevation specified in feet on the community's FIRM, or, together 
with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, be designed so that the structure 
is watertight to at least one foot above the base flood level, with walls 
substantially impermeable to the passage of water, and with structural 
components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic 
loads and effects of buoyancy. A Colorado registered professional engineer or 

Exhibit A



Article 5 Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
 Section 15-5-20 Flood Hazard Areas  

15-5-20(e) Development Standards in Flood Fringe Development Standards in Flood Fringe 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  73 

architect shall submit certification to the Flood Hazard Administrator that 
the standards are satisfied.  

(4) Enclosed Areas Below Lowest Floor 

For all new construction and substantial improvements, fully enclosed areas 
below the lowest floor that are in the flood hazard area and are subject to 
flooding shall be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces 
on exterior walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters. Designs for 
meeting this requirement must either be certified by a Colorado registered 
professional engineer or architect or must meet or exceed the following 
minimum criteria:  

a. A minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one 
square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding 
shall be provided; and  

b. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade. 
Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers or other coverings or 
devices, provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of 
floodwaters.  

(5) Manufactured Homes 

a. Manufactured homes shall be anchored to resist flotation, collapse, or 
lateral movement and be able to withstand hydrodynamic loads. 
Methods of anchoring may include over-the-top frame ties to ground 
anchors. Specific requirements shall be that:  

(i) Over-the-top ties shall be provided at each of the four corners of the 
manufactured home, with two additional ties per side at 
intermediate locations, with manufactured homes less than 50 feet 
long requiring one additional tie per side;  

(ii) Frames ties shall be provided at each corner of the home, with five 
additional ties per side at intermediate points, with manufactured 
homes less than 50 feet long requiring four additional ties per side;  

(iii) All components of the anchoring system shall be capable of carrying 
a force of 4,800 pounds; and  

(iv) Any additions to the manufactured home shall be similarly anchored.  

b. All manufactured homes or those to be substantially improved shall be 
elevated on a permanent foundation such that the lowest floor of the 
manufactured home is one foot above the base flood elevation and is 
securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation system. For 
homes placed on pilings: 

(i) Lots shall be large enough to permit steps; 

(ii) Piling foundations shall be placed in a stable soil no more than 10 
feet apart; and 

Exhibit A



Article 5 Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
 Section 15-5-20 Flood Hazard Areas  
15-5-20(f) Standards for Critical Facilities Standards for Critical Facilities 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  74 

(iii) Reinforcements shall be provided for pilings more than six feet above 
the ground level. 

(6) Recreational Vehicles 

All recreational vehicles placed on sites within Zones A1-30, AH, and AE on the 
community's FIRM shall either:  

a. Be on the site for fewer than 90 consecutive days;  

b. Be fully licensed and ready for highway use; or  

c. Meet the requirements for manufactured homes in Subsection (5) above.  

(7) Utilities 

a. All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to 
minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the system.  

b. New and replacement sanitary water supply systems shall be designed 
to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the systems and 
discharge from the systems into the floodwaters.  

c. On-site waste disposal systems shall be located to avoid impairment to 
them or contamination from them during flooding.  

(8) Mechanical and Utility Equipment  

Electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing and other service facilities shall be 
designed and/or located so as to prevent water from entering or 
accumulating within the components during conditions of flooding.  

(f) Standards for Critical Facilities 
(1) Classification of Critical Facilities 

Critical facilities are those facilities identifies in Rule 6 of 2 CCR 408-1. 

(2) Protection for Critical Facilities 

a. New critical facilities are prohibited in the special flood hazard area. 

b. Substantially improved critical facilities and new additions to critical 
facilities located within the special flood hazard area shall be regulated to 
a higher standard than structures not determined to be critical facilities. 
For the purposes of this Section, protection shall include one of the 
following:  

(i) Location outside the special flood hazard area; 

(ii) Elevation of the lowest floor or floodproofing of the structure, 
together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, to at least two 
feet above the base flood elevation; or 

(iii) Be retrofitted so that the building is watertight with walls 
substantially impermeable to the passage of water and with 
structural components having the capability of resisting 
hydrodynamic loads. 

Exhibit A



Article 5 Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
 Section 15-5-30 Slope Hazard Areas  

15-5-20(g) Administration Administration 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  75 

(g) Administration 
(1) Flood Hazard Development Permit 

All development subject to this Section shall obtain a Flood Hazard 
Development Permit pursuant to Section 15-8-30(e). 

(2) Flood Hazard Variance 

All requests for a Variance of standards in this Section shall obtain a Flood 
Hazard Variance pursuant to Section 15-8-40(d). 

15-5-30 Slope Hazard Areas 

(a) Purpose 
The purpose of this Section is to: 

(1) Prevent soil erosion and landslides; 

(2) Protect the public by preventing or regulating development in locations with 
steep slopes over 25 percent; 

(3) Provide safe circulation of vehicular and pedestrian traffic to and within 
hillside areas and to provide access for emergency vehicles necessary to 
serve the hillside areas; and 

(4) Encourage only minimal grading that relates to the natural contour of the 
land. 

(b) Applicability 
This Section shall apply to any development or subdivision that contain slopes of 
25 percent or greater as identified in the Unified Hazard Overlay Map I, Flood, II, 
Avalanche, III, Slope dated March 23, 1992, on file in the office of the Planning 
Director or where adverse conditions associated with slope stability, erosion, or 
sedimentation are present as determined by the Town Administrator. 

(c) Development on Slopes Between 25 and 30 Percent 
(1) Engineering Study 

Lots with 25 percent or greater slope shall require a special engineering 
study performed by a qualified professional engineer licensed in Colorado, or 
qualified professional geologist to establish the feasibility of development 
proposed for the site. The study shall address feasibility of construction 
required for the use and describe the mitigation measures to be used to 
overcome excessive slope problems. 

(2) Maximum Disturbance 

No more than 30 percent of the slopes between 25 and 30 percent shall be 
disturbed during development. 

(3) Grading Standards 

a. Grading shall be limited to the minimum necessary for development of 
streets, building sites, utilities, and driveways. 

Exhibit A



Article 5 Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
 Section 15-5-30 Slope Hazard Areas  

15-5-30(d) Development on Slopes Greater than 30 Percent Development on Slopes Greater than 30 
Percent 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  76 

b. Visible cut or fill slopes shall not exceed three horizontal to one vertical 
(3:1); provided, however, that slopes as steep as two horizontal to one 
vertical (2:1) may be approved by a qualified engineer upon a finding that 
the appearance or stability of the completed project will be superior to 
the result that would be obtained by adhering to the three horizontal to 
one vertical (3:1) standard. 

(4) Erosion Control 

Standard erosion control methods shall be used during construction to 
protect water quality, control drainage, and reduce soil erosion. Sediment 
traps, small dams, barriers of straw bales, or other methods acceptable to the 
Town shall be located wherever there are grade changes to slow the velocity 
of runoff. 

(5) Building Location  

Where permitted, structures shall be integrated into the hillside or built at 
the base of the slope. 

(6) Streets 

Streets shall be design in accordance with the Development Standards and 
Specifications. 

(d) Development on Slopes Greater than 30 Percent 
The creation of new lots, construction of structures, or clearing, excavation, and 
grading where the average slope within the limits of disturbance is greater than 
30 percent shall require a Special Use Permit. 

(e) Development on Unstable or Potentially Unstable Slopes  
If a site is identified as having unstable or potentially unstable slopes, then 
development may be allowed if the applicant demonstrates that the 
development cannot avoid those areas and the development complies with 
certified geotechnical design and construction stabilization and maintenance 
measures.  

(1) Cutting Into a Slope  

Cutting into the slope is prohibited without provision of adequate 
mechanical support.  

(2) Adding Water or Weight  

Adding water or weight to the top of the slope, or along the length of the 
slope is prohibited.  

(3) Removing Vegetation  

Vegetation shall not be removed from the slope unless it will be replaced on 
a timely basis acceptable to the Town.  

Exhibit A



Article 5 Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
 Section 15-5-40 Wildfire Hazard Study  

15-5-30(f) Administration Administration 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  77 

(4) Over-Steeping  

Activities that over-steep the existing grade of an unstable slope are prohibited. site 
is identified as having unstable or potentially unstable slopes, then 
development may be allowed if the applicant demonstrates that the 
development cannot avoid those areas and the development complies with 
certified geotechnical design and construction stabilization and 
maintenance measures. 

(f) Administration 
All development subject to the standards of this Section shall obtain a Slope 
Hazard Development Permit pursuant to Section 15-8-30(m). 

15-5-40 Wildfire Hazard Study 

(a) Purpose 
The purpose of this Section is to protect public health and safety and to protect 
public and private property from avoidable damage, by requiring additional 
protections from risks of wildfire in areas of increased wildfire risk, as shown on 
any maps of wildfire risk that the Town determines to be reasonable. 

(b) Applicability 
The following standards shall apply to new development or subdivision and 
redevelopment in the areas identified as areas of High Intensity wildfire risk as 
defined by the Colorado State Forest Service or the Colorado Division of Fire 
Prevention and Control, excluding applications for single-unit detached 
dwellings. Single-unit detached dwellings shall follow Firewise planting 
techniques and materials to the maximum extent practicable.  

(c) Wildfire Hazard Study 
The study shall be submitted with any applicable Planned Unit Development, 
Special Use Permit, Major Subdivision, or Site Plan, and shall provide a detailed, 
site specific analysis that includes the following minimum information: 

(1) A schedule delineating how the wildfire mitigation actions identified in the 
study will be implemented including, but not limited to, vegetation thinning, 
creation of fuel breaks, and the installation of working fire hydrants, fire 
cisterns, or dry hydrants prior to the introduction of combustible 
construction materials on the site; 

(2) Communication capabilities during construction with the ERFPD and the 
type of communication system. A physical address is required for E-911 
purposes; 

(3) Detailed specification of fire protection equipment and emergency 
preparedness actions to be installed or implemented and maintained within 
the subdivision during construction; 

Exhibit A



Article 5 Environmentally Sensitive Lands 
 Section 15-5-40 Wildfire Hazard Study  

15-5-40(d) Referral to Colorado State Forest Service or Division of Fire Prevention and Control Referral to 
Colorado State Forest Service or Division of Fire Prevention and Control 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  78 

(4) Detailed mitigation actions including, but not limited to, thinning, spacing, 
and removal of trees and vegetation and building construction techniques 
designed to mitigate wildfire hazard areas; 

(5) The identification of building envelopes shall be required to locate structures 
outside of severe hazard areas, off of steep slopes, and outside of ravines to 
the maximum extent practicable; 

(6) Identification of the entities responsible for implementing the plan, 
constructing required improvements, and maintenance in perpetuity of the 
improvements and appropriate easements, if any; and 

(7) A map identifying major timber stands and vegetation, locations of fire 
hydrants, water tanks, cisterns or dry hydrants, as well as locations and flows 
or capacity of fire hydrants, water tanks, cisterns, or dry hydrants. 

(d) Referral to Colorado State Forest Service or Division of Fire Prevention 
and Control 
(1) As part of the review of the wildfire hazard study, the Town Administrator 

shall refer the development application to the Colorado State Forest Service 
(CSFS) or the Colorado Division of Fire Prevention and Control (DFPC). 
Referral of Final Plat applications will be at the discretion of the Town 
Administrator. 

(2) CSFS or DFPC shall review the application and comment on the potential 
effectiveness of the management plan and the mitigation techniques 
proposed and make recommendations based on guidelines promulgated by 
CSFS or DFPC. (See, for example, “Creating Wildfire Defensible Zones, No. 
6.302 or currently accepted standards.) 

(3) The Town shall consider the recommendations of the CSFS or DFPC and 
apply the appropriate recommendations as conditions of approval of the 
development application. 

(e) Requirements for Final Approvals 
Based on Town and CSFS or DFPC review, the applicant may be required to 
revise the study. The applicant must demonstrate prior to development approval 
how the development complies with the mitigation strategies identified in the 
study. 

Exhibit A



Article 6 Site Development Standards 
 Section 15-6-10 Mobility, Connectivity, and Parking  

15-6-10(a) Purpose Purpose 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  79 

Article 6 Site Development Standards 
15-6-10 Mobility, Connectivity, and Parking 

(a) Purpose 
The purpose of this Section is to: 

(1) Provide for safe and convenient interaction between vehicles, bicycle, and 
pedestrians; 

(2) Encourage multi-modal transportation options and enhanced pedestrian 
safety; and 

(3) Ensure the quality of life of the community will not be impeded by off-street 
parking requirements when adequate on-street parking is available.  

(b) Applicability 
This Section shall apply to new development or redevelopment of three or more 
single-unit attached dwellings, triplex or fourplex dwellings, multiunit dwellings, 
mixed-use development, and nonresidential development. 

(c) Mobility 
(1) Sidewalks designed to Town standards are required along all public streets. 

The Town Administrator may approve a walkway that is surfaced in pavers, 
bricks, colored or patterned concrete, gravel, or other methods approved by 
the Town to enhance pedestrian safety and the attractiveness of the 
walkway. 

(2) All development in the MU-1, C-1 and C-2 districts shall provide a pedestrian 
walkway system as follows: 

a. There shall be a walkway from the perimeter public sidewalk or street to 
the primary building entrance. Walkways shall be constructed with using 
firm, stable, and slip resistant surface. 

b. Pedestrian walkways or sidewalks shall connect all primary building 
entrances and must be provided along any building wall featuring an 
entrance that exits into a parking area or public right-of-way. 

Exhibit A



Article 6 Site Development Standards 
 Section 15-6-10 Mobility, Connectivity, and Parking  

15-6-10(d) Connectivity Connectivity 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  80 

 

Figure 15-6-1: Pedestrian Walkway Requirements 

(d) Connectivity 
(1) Every mixed-use, commercial, and industrial lot shall have sufficient access 

providing reasonable means of ingress and egress for emergency vehicles, 
trucks supplying necessary services, and for those needing access to the 
property for its intended use. 

(2) All driveway entrance and other openings onto streets shall be constructed 
so that: 

a. Vehicles may safely enter and exit the property; and 

b. Interference with the free and convenient flow of traffic in abutting or 
surrounding streets is minimized. 

(e) Parking for those Experiencing Disabilities 
Where ADA-compliant parking is required, it shall be consistent with the ADA 
design requirements, including but not limited to providing a firm, stable, and 
slip resistant surface, the minimum number of spaces for automobiles, van-
accessible spaces, location of spaces relative to building entrances, accessible 
routes between parking areas and building entrances, identification signs, 
lighting, and other design and construction requirements. 

(f) Bicycle Parking 
Multiunit dwellings, including five or more dwellings within a mixed-use 
building, are encouraged to provide a minimum of one short- or long-term 
bicycle space per dwelling unit. A combination of short- and long-term spaces 
may be provided. 

(g) Parking Area Design 
Where provided, parking areas shall meet the following standards. 

Exhibit A



Article 6 Site Development Standards 
 Section 15-6-20 Landscaping and Screening  

15-6-20(a) Applicability Applicability 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  81 

(1) Vehicle Parking 

a. Each off-street parking space shall consist of an open area measuring at 
least nine feet wide by 18 feet long and seven feet high; provided, 
however, parallel parking spaces shall measure at least nine feet wide by 
23 feet long and seven feet high. 

b. Off-street parking shall be free of weeds, properly drained, and surfaced 
with concrete, asphalt, sealed pavers, cobbles, sealed brick, gravel or rock 
a minimum depth of four inches to ensure a dust-free surface or any 
other material with similar characteristics and uses and shall be 
maintained in a usable condition at all times. 

c. The Town Administrator may prohibit the use of gravel or rock for 
parking areas when deemed necessary for erosion control, drainage, or 
other ecological considerations. 

(2) Bicycle Parking 

Where provided, short- and long-term bicycle parking shall meet the 
following standards. 

a. Short-Term Bicycle Spaces 

Short-term bicycle racks shall be located so that they: 

(i) Are easily accessed from the street and protected from motor 
vehicles; 

(ii) Are visible to passers‐by to promote usage and enhance security; 

(iii) Do not impede or interfere with pedestrian traffic or routine 
maintenance activities; 

(iv) Do not block access to buildings; and 

(v) Allow reasonable clearance for opening of passenger‐side doors of 
parked cars. 

b. Long-Term Bicycle Spaces 

Long-term bicycle parking shall be enclosed and secured to the 
maximum extent practicable. Enclosed bicycle parking includes but is 
not limited to: an area enclosed by a secure fence with a lockable 
entrance or a secure and accessible room in a building. 

15-6-20 Landscaping and Screening 

(a) Applicability 
This Section shall apply to new development or redevelopment of three or more 
single-unit attached dwellings, triplex or fourplex dwellings, multiunit dwellings, 
mixed-use development, and nonresidential development unless otherwise 
specified. 

Exhibit A



Article 6 Site Development Standards 
 Section 15-6-20 Landscaping and Screening  

15-6-20(b) Nonfunctional Turf, Artificial Turf, and Invasive Plant Species Nonfunctional Turf, Artificial Turf, 
and Invasive Plant Species 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  82 

(b) Nonfunctional Turf, Artificial Turf, and Invasive Plant Species 
(1) On or after January 1, 2026, all new development and redevelopment, as 

defined below, of nonresidential principal uses are prohibited from installing, 
planting, or placing any nonfunctional turf, artificial turf, or invasive plant 
species as defined in Colorado Statutes. 

(2) Redevelopment, for the purposes of this Section, requires both of the 
following: 

a. A disturbance of more than 50 percent of the aggregate landscape area, 
and 

b. Activity that requires a building permit or Site Plan. 

(c) Screening 
(1) Fences and Walls 

a. Maximum Fence Height 

The maximum height for fences or walls shall be six feet, unless 
otherwise approved through an Administrative Adjustment in Section 15-
8-30(a).  

b. Setbacks 

Fences and walls, including those over six feet in height, are not 
considered structures and therefore not required to meet the principal or 
accessory building setbacks for the underlying zoning district.  

c. Clear Vision Triangle 

No obstructions above 42 inches in height are permitted within the clear 
vision triangle as defined in Section 15-11-20(b), Clear Vision Triangle 
Measurement.  

(2) Roof-mounted Mechanical and Utility Equipment 

Roof-mounted mechanical and utility equipment, excluding solar panels, 
shall be an integral part of the building's overall architectural design and 
shall be screened from view to the maximum extent practicable from public 
rights-of-way, residential land uses, public parking areas, and/or adjacent 
properties using parapet walls or other means of screening. When reviewing 
the type and amount of screening, the Town Administrator shall consider the 
following: 

a. The proximity of the development to surrounding residential land uses 
and the visual impact that roof-mounted equipment may have upon 
those surrounding residential land uses; 

b. The number and size of roof-mounted equipment. The greater the 
number and/or size, the more screening may be warranted; and 

Exhibit A



Article 6 Site Development Standards 
 Section 15-6-30 Site and Building Design Standards  

15-6-30(a) Purpose Purpose 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  83 

c. Roof-mounted equipment shall maintain a color and finish that are 
compatible with the primary building façade. 

15-6-30 Site and Building Design Standards 

(a) Purpose 
The purpose of this Section is to: 

(1) Establish design and development standards that foster high-quality 
development;  

(2) Enhance the human and pedestrian scale of commercial developments and 
ensure compatibility between residential neighborhoods and adjacent 
nonresidential uses; and 

(3) Balance the community’s economic and aesthetic concerns. 

(b) Townwide Design Standards 
(1) Applicability  

This Section shall apply to all new residential and nonresidential 
development or redevelopment that requires a Site Plan. 

(2) Roofs, Eaves, and Parapets 

Roofs, eaves, and parapets shall be designed to withstand the Town’s variable 
mountain climate by using appropriate pitch, drainage, R-value, and 
materials. 

(3) Climatic Conditions 

a. Local climatic conditions shall be considered when designing the 
orientation of new buildings. For example, north-facing facades are 
especially susceptible to winter snow and ice accumulation, and entries 
may require special treatment.  

b. Adequate solar access shall be considered when planning outdoor 
spaces, with shade and relief from glare provided by landscaping and 
overhead structures. 

(4) Reflective Materials Prohibited 

No glare-producing material including, but not limited to, unpainted metal 
or reflective glass, shall be used on the exterior of structures. The light 
reflectance value (LRV) of any material shall not exceed 60 percent. 

(5) On-Site Snow Shedding and Storage 

Each application for a Site Plan or a Special Use Permit shall submit a snow 
shedding and storage plan that demonstrates compliance with the following 
requirements. 

a. Snow Storage 

(i) In all districts except the MU-1 district, a minimum snow storage area 
equaling 10 percent of the impervious surface on the lot, either 

Exhibit A



Article 6 Site Development Standards 
 Section 15-6-30 Site and Building Design Standards  

15-6-30(b) Townwide Design Standards Townwide Design Standards 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  84 

located in one location or distributed across multiple areas, shall be 
provided for the removal, management, and storage of snow 
removed from pedestrian and vehicular ways, driveways, parking, 
and loading spaces. 

(ii) In all districts, adequate drainage shall be provided for the snow 
storage area to accommodate snowmelt and to ensure it does not 
drain onto adjacent property. 

b. Snow Shedding 

(i) Sites and structures shall be designed so that snow does not shed 
across the property line onto an adjacent property.  

(ii) Snow shall not be allowed to shed freely into building entrances. The 
buildup of ice and snow within pedestrian areas shall be minimized 
to the maximum extent practicable. 

(iii) Any roof that may shed snow onto walkways and entries shall include 
rooftop snow retention techniques including snow guards and/or 
snow fences designed in accordance with adopted building codes to 
prevent injury, as deemed necessary by the Building Official. The 
Town Administrator may waive this requirement if the snow 
shedding plan shows that the standards of this Section can be met 
without using retention techniques. 

(6) Refuse Containers 

a. Dumpsters and refuse containers shall be animal resistant. Animal 
resistant containers are fully enclosed containers that may be 
constructed of pliable materials reinforced to deter access by wildlife. The 
containers must employ sturdy lids that have a latching mechanism that 
prevent access to their contents by wildlife. 

b. Enclosures shall be located to minimize view and odors from public 
locations at the primary street frontage and neighboring properties and 
uses to the maximum extent practicable. 

(7) Mechanical 

a. Underground utility connection is required unless otherwise provided by 
the Building Official. 

b. Risers, utility meters, panel boxes, or similar, are encouraged to be 
covered with the same or compatible material as the siding material 
where the connection meets the building, unless prohibited by utility 
company regulations. 

(8) Small Lot Development Bulk Plane 

The following standards shall apply to lots less than 5,000 square feet in area. 

Exhibit A



Article 6 Site Development Standards 
 Section 15-6-30 Site and Building Design Standards  

15-6-30(b) Townwide Design Standards Townwide Design Standards 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  85 

a. A bulk plane analysis shall be applied to define the three-dimensional 
area to which development will be limited. The bulk plane extends up 12 
feet from all four lot lines and angles in at 45 degree angles from the side 
lot lines until it reaches the maximum building height in the zoning 
district or intersects with the plane that is created by the lot line on the 
opposite side of the lot. The buildable area, or area in which development 
may occur, consists of the area within the required front, side and rear 
yard setback and the defined bulk plane. 

 

Figure 15-6-2: Bulk Plane Analysis 

b. Individual dormers (shed or gable) may extend up to six feet beyond the 
buildable area, with a maximum width of eight feet. The portion(s) that 
extend beyond the buildable area shall have a combined width no 
greater than 50 percent of the length of the roof upon which they are 
located. The width of the dormer shall be measured at the point that it 
intersects the bulk plane. 

c. The end(s) of a shed roof may extend up to five feet beyond the buildable 
area. 

d. The end(s) of a side-gabled roof may extend up to five feet beyond the 
buildable area with a maximum width of 20 feet or no more than 50 
percent of the length of the home, whichever is less. The width of the 
side-gabled roof shall be measured at the point that it intersects the bulk 
plane. 

e. A rooftop solar system, that is flush-mounted to the roof or mounted at 
up to a 15 degree angle measured from a horizontal plane may extend 
beyond the buildable area provided that the roof structure supporting 
the solar system does not extend beyond the bulk plane limit. 

Exhibit A



Article 6 Site Development Standards 
 Section 15-6-30 Site and Building Design Standards  
15-6-30(c) Historic District Overlay Standards Historic District Overlay Standards 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  86 

(c) Historic District Overlay Standards 
All lots within the Historic District Overlay shall be subject to Section 15-2-80(a)(7), 
Design Standards for All Development in the Historic District Overlay. 

(d) Additional Greene Street Standards 
(1) Applicability 

In addition to the standards set forth in Subsection(b) above, this Section 
shall apply to any new development or redevelopment on lots abutting 
Greene Street outside of the Historic District Overlay.  

(2) Referral to Historic Preservation Committee 

The Town Administrator may refer any application subject to the Greene 
Street standards to the Historic Preservation Committee for review and 
comments regarding the structure's compatibility with nearby historic 
buildings, the original and historic facade of existing buildings, and the 
aesthetics as viewed from the main heritage tourism thoroughfares. 

(3) Building Orientation 

The facade containing the primary entry way shall parallel the street. 
Building entrances shall be visible and accessible from the pedestrian right-
of-way along the building’s primary street. 

(4) Building Mass and Form 

a. The following elements shall be used to provide relief and contrast in the 
façade and delineate individual units. A minimum of three elements shall 
be incorporated: 

(i) Balconies; 

(ii) Overhangs; 

(iii) Covered patios; 

(iv) Prominent entry features; 

(v) Window variations; 

(vi) Door opening variations; 

(vii) Variations in materials with an alternative material use for at least 20 
percent of the structure; 

(viii) Variations in building height with differing levels of height 
provided for at least 20 percent of the total height; 

(ix) Variation in roof form, with differing roof forms provided for at least 
20 percent of the total room; 

(x) Projected or recessed building walls that vary from the primary 
vertical plane by at least six inches; or 

(xi) Another architectural feature as approved by the Town Administrator. 

Exhibit A



Article 6 Site Development Standards 
 Section 15-6-40 Outdoor Lighting  

15-6-40(a) Purpose Purpose 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  87 

b. Entries and stairwells shall be an integral part of the building design. 
Exterior stairwells shall be protected from the weather and partially 
screening or designed with architectural treatments that are integrated 
into the overall building elevation. 

(5) Building Materials 

New additions and new buildings shall be designed with building materials 
that preserve or complement exterior building materials characteristic of the 
Town’s history. Applicants are encouraged to use History Colorado’s Field 
Guide to Historic Architecture and Engineering as a reference document. 

(6) Roof Form 

a. Roofs should be similar in scale to those used historically on comparable 
buildings. Typical primary roof shapes are gabled, hipped, and shed. 

b. Bowed or curved roof forms are prohibited. 

(7) Parking 

If on-site parking is provided, parking shall be located to the side or rear of 
the primary structure to the maximum extent practicable. 

15-6-40 Outdoor Lighting 

(a) Purpose 
The purpose of this Section is to: 

(1) Preserve and protect the natural dark sky resource; 

(2) Minimize light pollution, glare, light trespass, and sky glow; 

(3) Promote energy conservation; 

(4) Maintain nighttime visibility for safety and security; 

(5) Prevent unnecessary or inappropriate outdoor lighting; 

(6) Minimize nighttime lighting impacts on wildlife; 

(7) Maintain the rural atmosphere and character of the town; and 

(8) Make the town an attractive place for residents and tourists.  

(b) General Provisions  
(1) All outdoor light fixtures permanently or temporarily installed outdoors, 

except for those listed under Subsection (d), shall: 

Be the minimum necessary to provide for safety and functionality;  

a. Be turned off when no one is present to use the light;  

Be fully shielded; and 

Be directed such that illumination is within the property boundary where the 
outdoor light fixture is located. This provision does not apply to publicly owned 
outdoor light fixtures.  

The correlated color temperature of each lamp shall not exceed 3,000 Kelvins.  

Exhibit A



Article 6 Site Development Standards 
 Section 15-6-40 Outdoor Lighting  
15-6-40(c) Specialized Outdoor Lighting Specialized Outdoor Lighting 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  88 

(2) The following lumen per net acre values are an upper limit and not a design 
goal. 

a. All uses except single-unit detached dwellings are limited to 15,000 
lumens per net acre and fixtures are limited to 1,600 lumens each.  

Single-unit detached dwellings are limited to 10,000 lumens per net acre and fixtures 
are limited to 850 lumens each.  

(c) Specialized Outdoor Lighting  
(1) Canopies  

Canopies for service stations and other overhangs may be illuminated 
provided all light fixtures are mounted on the undersurface of the canopy 
and all light fixtures are full cutoff. Except for directed beam lighting, merely 
placing the fixtures on the underside of the canopy does not qualify as fully 
shielding the light fixture. Directed beam lighting mounted under the 
canopy is allowed, provided the light source cannot be seen from outside the 
property boundaries. 

 
Figure 15-6-3: Canopy Lighting for Fuel Station 

(2) Outdoor Recreational Facilities  

Lighting for sporting and/or athletic facilities do not have to be fully shielded 
or be limited to 3,000 Kelvins if all the following are met:  

a. Illuminating Engineering Society (IES) lighting guidelines (RP-6) are 
followed according to the appropriate class of play. 

b. Field lighting is provided exclusively for illumination of the surface of play 
and viewing stands, and not for any other applications. 

c. Illuminance levels are adjustable based on the task (e.g., active play 
versus field maintenance). 

Exhibit A



Article 6 Site Development Standards 
 Section 15-6-40 Outdoor Lighting  

15-6-40(d) Exemptions Exemptions 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  89 

d. Off-site impacts of the lighting are limited to the maximum extent 
practicable. 

e. Lights are extinguished by 10:00 p.m. or one hour after the end of play, 
whichever is later. 

f. Timers are installed to prevent lights being left on accidentally overnight 
by automatically extinguishing them. 

(3) Publicly Owned Outdoor Lighting  

a. New publicly owned outdoor light fixtures shall only be installed where 
needed for safety and functionality.  

b. All new publicly owned outdoor light fixtures installed six months or 
more after the adoption of these regulations shall incorporate adaptive 
controls.  

(4) Signs  

a. Luminance levels for operation between sunset and sunrise shall not 
exceed 100 nits (100 candelas per square meter, cd/m2) as measured 
under conditions of a full white display. 

b. During the first hour after sunset and during the last hour immediately 
preceding sunrise, sign luminance shall not exceed 100 nits (100 candelas 
per square meter, cd/m2).  

c. Sign illumination shall be extinguished completely during the hours the 
business is closed. 

d. The luminous/illuminated surface area of an individual sign shall not 
exceed 40 square feet. 

(d) Exemptions  
The following are exempt from this Section: 

(1) Temporary emergency lighting in use by law enforcement or government 
agencies or at their direction;  

(2) Temporary lighting for events that do not create issues of light trespass or 
safety as approved by the Town Administrator for a period of up to seven 
days; 

Temporary holiday decorative lights from November 15 through January 15 and one 
other seven-day period a year. Lights shall be extinguished by 10pm and remain off 
until one hour before sunrise. Holiday decorative lights may blink, so long as the 
safety of any moving vehicle is not impacted; 

(3) String, bistro, and similar lighting, provided the emission of no individual 
lamp exceeds 50 lumens and no installation of lighting exceeds, in the 
aggregate, 6,000 lumens. These lights must be rated at or below 2,700 Kelvin. 
Lights shall be extinguished by 10:00 p.m. and remain off until one hour 
before sunrise; 

Exhibit A



Article 6 Site Development Standards 
 Section 15-6-40 Outdoor Lighting  

15-6-40(e) Prohibited Outdoor Lighting Prohibited Outdoor Lighting 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  90 

(4) Low voltage LED lights and solar lights used to illuminate pathways in 
residential areas, provided the lights are installed not more than 18 inches 
above the adjacent ground level;  

(5) The lighting of artwork that is outdoors and on publicly owned property. 
Lighting shall not exceed 850 lumens per artwork nor more than 3000 
Kelvin. Lights shall be extinguished by 10:00 p.m. and remain off until one 
hour before sunrise;  

(6) Lighting on structures or signs for buildings on the National Register of 
Historic Places in which the lighting contributes to the historical significance 
of the building. Efforts shall be made to comply with the outdoor lighting 
standards where it does not compromise the historic integrity; 

(7) The lighting of federal or state flags, provided that the light is above the flag 
and faces downward;  

(8) Traffic control signals and devices; and  

(9) Lighting required by federal, state, county, or Town ordinance and 
regulations.  

(e) Prohibited Outdoor Lighting  
The following are prohibited: 

Searchlights, sky beams, and similar lighting except as required by response 
personnel during emergency conditions;  

Blinking, flashing, rotating, or moving lights, including those used for signage. This 
does not apply to holiday-type decorative lights as exempted above;   

Lighting which produces any glare or distraction for any passing motorist;  

Neon or luminous tube lighting including any sign, except “open/closed” or 
"vacancy/no vacancy" type signs; and 

(1) Mercury vapor lighting.  

(f) Nonconforming Outdoor Lighting  
(1) All existing outdoor lighting that was legally installed before the adoption of 

this Section but does not meet the requirements of this Section shall be 
considered nonconforming.  

(2) Nonconforming outdoor lighting is allowed to remain in use unless any of 
the following occurs:  

a. Replacement of the fixture;  

b. Non-use of the fixture for a period of six months; and/or  

c. Damage to the light fixture such that the cost or repair is 50 percent or 
more of the cost to replace the fixture with a conforming fixture.  

(3) No alteration may be made to outdoor lighting which would increase the 
amount of degree of the nonconformity. 

Exhibit A



Article 6 Site Development Standards 
 Section 15-6-40 Outdoor Lighting  

15-6-40(g) Plan Submission and Compliance Review Plan Submission and Compliance Review 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  91 

(4) After 10 years from the date of adoption of this Section, all nonconforming 
outdoor light fixtures shall be brought into compliance with this Section.  

(g) Plan Submission and Compliance Review  
(1) All applications for business permits, building permits, Sign Permits, Site 

Plan, Historic District Overlay Review, Planned Unit Development, Special 
Use Permit, and Simple and Major Subdivisions shall submit a lighting plan 
showing compliance with this Section. The lighting plan shall include the 
following information:  

a. The manufacture’s cut sheet for each proposed outdoor light fixture;  

b. A site plan with property boundaries including all existing and proposed 
light fixture locations and their light spill; 

c. A table showing the total lumens by fixture and a calculation explaining 
the total lumens per net acre;  

d. Total Kelvin for each proposed lamp; and  

e. Other materials necessary to show compliance with this Section.  

(2) Review of lighting plans shall be by the Town Administrator who may refer 
review to the Planning Commission if that, in their opinion, issues are present 
that require Planning Commission attention. 

  

Exhibit A



Article 7 Signs 
 Section 15-7-10 Purpose  

15-7-40(a) Building Frontage Building Frontage 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  92 

Article 7 Signs 
15-7-10 Purpose 
The purpose of this Section is to: 

(a) Provide signs that do not present a safety hazard to the public; 
(b) Promote aesthetics in the community by encouraging signs that are compatible 

with their surroundings; 
(c) Protect and encourage local tourist-related businesses for the general economic 

wellbeing of Silverton; 
(d) Provide a reasonable balance between the need to advertise businesses and the 

need to protect the public from the effects of unsafe signs; and 
(e) Establish procedures and regulations that control the location, size, type, and 

number of signs permitted. 

15-7-20 Applicability 

(a) This Section shall apply to all signs within the Town of Silverton, unless 
specifically exempted by Section 15-7-50. 

(b) No sign shall be located, erected, modified, or maintained except in compliance 
with the regulations contained in this Article. 

15-7-30 Permit Required 
All signs subject to the regulations in this Article shall obtain a Sign Permit as set 
forth in Section 15-8-30(i). 

15-7-40 Measurement and Calculation 

(a) Building Frontage 
The building frontage shall be measured as the length in feet of the wall, 
including all windows, doors, and other openings, of the primary building that 
faces the street abutting the property. If the primary building is located on a 
corner lot, the frontage shall be the wall of the primary building that contains the 
primary entrance to the building. 

Exhibit A



Article 7 Signs 
 Section 15-7-40 Measurement and Calculation  

15-7-40(b) Sign Area Sign Area 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  93 

 
Figure 15-7-1: Building Frontage 

(b) Sign Area 
(1) The area of a two-dimensional sign is measured by encompassing the 

advertising display surface area within any combination of geometric figures 
(e.g., rectangles, squares, triangles, parallelograms, circles, or ellipses), having 
no more than eight sides, that would enclose all parts of the sign. 

 
Figure 15-7-2: Sign Area Measurement 

(2) The sign area of three-dimensional free-form or sculptural (non-planar) signs 
is calculated as 50 percent of the sum of the area of the four vertical sides of 
the smallest cube that will encompass the sign. 

Exhibit A



Article 7 Signs 
 Section 15-7-40 Measurement and Calculation  

15-7-40(c) Freestanding Sign Height Freestanding Sign Height 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  94 

 
Figure 15-7-3: 3-D Sign Area Measurement 

(3) If elements of a sign are movable or flexible, such as a flag or banner, or if the 
sign includes any permitted copy extensions, the measurement is taken 
when the elements or extensions are fully extended and parallel to the plane 
of view. 

(4) Only structural components shall be excluded in computing the total 
allowable area. 

(c) Freestanding Sign Height 
(1) The height of a freestanding sign shall be computed as the distance from the 

base of the sign at existing finished grade to the top of the highest attached 
component of the sign. 

(2) When the existing finished grade at the point of measurement is lower than 
the average elevation of the adjacent street finished grade parallel to the 
location where the sign will be installed, that portion of the sign below the 
street shall not be included in determining the sign's overall height. 

(3) The height of any monument sign base or other structure erected to support 
or adorn the sign is measured as part of the sign height. 

Exhibit A



Article 7 Signs 
 Section 15-7-50 Exempt Signs  

15-7-50(a) Internal and Integral Signs Internal and Integral Signs 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  95 

 

Figure 15-7-4: Freestanding Sign Height Measurement 

(4) If a sign is located on a mound, berm, or other raised area for the sole 
purpose of increasing the height of the sign, the height of the mound, berm, 
or other raised area shall be included in the height of the sign. 

15-7-50 Exempt Signs 
The following signs, items, and activities do not require a Sign Permit, but shall 
comply with the requirements identified below. 

(a) Internal and Integral Signs 
(1) Signs not intended for view or readily legible from the public right-of-way. 

(2) Integral signs that are carved into stone, concrete, or similar material or 
made of metal or other permanent-type construction and made an integral 
part of the structure. Integral signs shall not exceed four square feet in area. 

(3) Signs that do not exceed two square feet per face or four square feet in total 
surface area that are affixed to machines, equipment, fences, gates, walls, 
gasoline pumps/electric vehicle charging units, or utility cabinets. 

(4) Signs or banners on fences and structures within a Town park or recreational 
area, provided the signs or banners face inward to the Town park or 
recreational area. 

(b) Flags or Insignia 
Entryway flags shall not exceed three feet by five feet, or 15 square feet in size. All 
other flags, crests, or banners shall be 24 square feet or less and affixed to a 
permanent flagpole or building. 

(1) Entryway flags shall be a minimum of eight feet and a maximum of 20 feet 
above grade and shall not extend more than six feet over any public right-of-
way.  

(2) Each business may display one entryway flag during business hours.  

(3) Each building is limited to two flags.  

Exhibit A



Article 7 Signs 
 Section 15-7-50 Exempt Signs  

15-7-50(c) Public Signs Public Signs 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  96 

(4) When applicable, flags shall comply with Chapter 10 of Title 36 of the United 
States Code named "The Flag Code," as it pertains to all rules and regulations 
to the official Flag of the United States of America. 

(c) Public Signs 
Official public signs or plaques approved by a governmental or quasi-
governmental body, Town department, or special district (collectively 
"governmental organizations") for structures used by the governmental 
organization and signs related to issues that the governmental organization has 
jurisdiction over, such as traffic safety, pedestrian safety, construction safety, 
schools, legal and public notices, railroad crossings, health, historic matters, 
hazards, parking, swimming, or dumping. Traffic signs shall follow the Manual on 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways issued by the Federal 
Highway Administration. 

(1) Signs and notices required to be maintained by law or governmental order, 
rule, or regulation, provided that the content and size of the sign does not 
exceed the requirements of the law, order, rule, or regulation. 

(2) Town-sponsored, Town-owned, and Town-maintained signs and temporary 
banners that are displayed and erected above Greene Street and/or Blair 
Street, at or near the Visitor’s Center, on the fence surrounding the ballpark 
located at Greene Street and 4th Street and at the Kendall Mountain 
Recreation Center, provided that any sign or banner erected above and over 
a public right-of-way or thoroughfare shall meet the minimum and 
maximum height requirement by state or federal law. All banners must 
obtain and be in compliance with the standards for a public banner permit. 

(d) Artwork 
Works of art that in no way identify, advertise, or display, directly or indirectly, a 
product or business. This shall include wall murals, yard art, or other public 
mosaics or sculptures. 

(e) Menu-Sized Sign Boxes and Changeable Sign Boards 
Each restaurant or bar may display one menu-sized sign box attached to the 
building in which they are located. Menu-sized sign boxes may not exceed two 
feet in height, two feet in width, and three inches in depth. Each restaurant 
and/or bar may display one pedestrian-oriented changeable sign board of chalk, 
dry-erase, or similar nature, attached to the building in which it is located. 
Changeable sign boards may not exceed two feet in height, two feet in width, 
and three inches in depth.  

(f) Residential and Vacation Rental Signs 
Non-illuminated signs (either freestanding or wall signs only), provided that they 
are located on the same lot as the dwelling unit with which they are associated, 
there is not more than one sign displayed on any street frontage, and the sign 
does not exceed two square feet in sign area per dwelling unit.  

Exhibit A



Article 7 Signs 
 Section 15-7-60 Prohibited Signs and Sign Locations  

15-7-50(g) Temporary Signs Temporary Signs 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  97 

(g) Temporary Signs 
See Section 15-7-90, Standards for Temporary Signs. 

(h) Vehicle Signs 
The vehicle shall be owned by the business or employee of the business, 
operable and properly licensed, and regularly used in the normal conduct of 
business, such as delivering or transporting goods or providing services related 
to the business. 

(i) Window Signs 
(1) Window signs may be affixed directly to the inside or outside window or 

hung/mounted inside the window from the top, side, or bottom of the 
window frame or similar architectural element. 

(2) Each sign shall be no more than four square feet in area. 

(3) Signs in windows visible from public rights-of-way are limited to 20 percent 
of the total area of each architecturally distinct ground floor window area. 

(4) In buildings with multiple tenants, these provisions shall be applied to each 
individual tenant based on the size of the windows located within that 
portion of the facade adjacent to the tenant’s leased premises. 

15-7-60 Prohibited Signs and Sign Locations 

(a) Improper Location 
Signs shall not be installed or located so that they: 

(1) Obstruct the driver’s vision of a moving vehicle;  

(2) Create conflict with traffic control signs, signals, or various private signs 
resulting in vehicular or pedestrian safety hazards, including any sign placed 
at any location where it may, by reason of its size, shape, design, location, 
content, coloring, or manner of illumination, constitute a traffic hazard or a 
detriment to traffic safety by obstructing the vision of drivers, by obscuring or 
otherwise physically interfering with any official traffic control device, or that 
may be confused with an official traffic control device; 

(3) Create a danger to the public during periods of inclement weather or high 
winds due to their location or the manner in which they are placed; 

(4) Create a hazard due to collapse, fire, collision, decay, abandonment, or other 
safety considerations; or 

(5) Are improperly mounted or installed, such as signs attached to a standpipe, 
gutter drain, unbraced parapet wall, or fire escape, unless the safety of the 
sign and the mounting have been verified in writing by a structural 
engineered licensed to practice in the state. 

(b) Prohibited Sign Types 
The following types of signs shall not be permitted in any zoning district: 

Exhibit A



Article 7 Signs 
 Section 15-7-70 Standards for Permanent Signs  

15-7-70(a) Sign Materials Sign Materials 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  98 

(1) Off-premise signs or signs in the public right-of-way, unless approved by 
Public Works and the Town Administrator; 

(2) Electronic signs and signs that have blinking, flashing or fluttering lights or 
other illuminating devices that have a changing light intensity, brightness, or 
color; 

(3) Signs that move in any mechanical manner, have structural moving part(s) 
powered by a motor, or swing because of their design or by the manner of 
their suspension or attachment as a result of wind pressure, mechanically-
driven apparatus, electrically-driven apparatus, or any combination;  

(4) Neon signs; 

(5) Roof signs; and 

(6) Wind signs (pennants, streamers, balloons, whirligigs, or similar devices) or 
flutter flags, unless otherwise allowed by this Article. 

15-7-70 Standards for Permanent Signs 

(a) Sign Materials 
Exterior signs shall be constructed of durable materials able to withstand 
Silverton’s climate and shall not be constructed of paper, cloth, canvas, 
cardboard, wallboard, or other similar nondurable material. 

(b) Requirements by Sign Type 
All signs shall comply with the following standards, as applicable. 

Table 15-7-1: Requirements by Sign Type  

Sign Type Freestanding Sign Wall Sign Projecting Sign 

Number One per zoning lot Subject to total aggregate square footage 
limitations 

Area 40 square feet 40 square feet [1][2] 20 square feet 

Height 20 feet [3] 

No higher than the 
eave line or parapet 
wall of the building 
on which they are 
located 

20 feet [3][4] 

Notes: 
[1] Signs on awnings shall be considered wall signs for the purpose of measuring sign area. 
[2] No sign part, including cut-out letters, shall extend more than 12 inches from the building wall. 
[3] Any sign that projects over any public pedestrian way shall be located a minimum of eight feet 
above grade and shall not extend more than six feet over any public right-of-way. 
[4] Signs affixed to or located on the posts or pillars supporting a marquee, or signs affixed to the 
eaves of the marquee, are allowed, provided that the signs do not project above the eaves. 

Exhibit A



Article 7 Signs 
 Section 15-7-80 Allowable Signage by Zoning District  

15-7-80(a) Residential Districts Residential Districts 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  99 

15-7-80 Allowable Signage by Zoning District 

(a) Residential Districts 
(1) The maximum total signage permitted per property is 32 square feet per 

sign and 16 square feet per sign face. 

(2) Each property is limited to one permanent sign per street frontage. 

(3) Freestanding signs shall be limited 12 feet in height. 

(b) Mixed-Use, Commercial, and Public Districts 
(1) The total sign area for all signs for which permits are required shall not 

exceed 1.25 square foot per lineal foot of building frontage. For buildings with 
multiple tenants, the calculation shall be based on the length of the leased 
space of the frontage for each individual tenant. The aggregate sign area 
square footage allowance may include any desired combination of sign 
styles and types, but in no event shall any sign or combination of all signs on 
a building be greater than the maximum aggregate sign area computed 
using the above restrictions. 

(2) Buildings with more than one frontage on a public street, such as a corner 
lot, may have the maximum total sign area on each frontage, but only one 
frontage per lot may include a freestanding sign. 

In addition to the total sign area allowed in Subsection (1), above, any building or 
property with multiple lots or buildings or one building with multiple tenants shall 
be allowed one additional sign, not to exceed the maximum limitations for the 
particular sign type in Table 15-7-1. 

(3) Buildings or businesses that have no actual frontage on a public street 
because other buildings or businesses on the same lot capture the allowed 
frontage shall be entitled to erect signage at the building's location that is 
equal to the signage allowed if they did have actual street frontage.  

15-7-90 Standards for Temporary Signs 

(a) General Standards for All Temporary Signs 
(1) No temporary sign shall be erected, re-erected, or maintained for more than 

a cumulative 30 days per year, unless otherwise permitted by this Section. 

(2) Temporary signs are subject to the prohibited sign locations identified in 
Section 15-7-60(a). 

(3) Temporary signs shall not be illuminated. 

(4) Temporary signs shall not contain any electronic components or display any 
digital or electronically projected copy on the sign face. 

(5) All temporary signs shall be made of durable materials. 

(b) Sandwich Boards and Signboards 
Each building having at least one licensed and authorized business may display one 
sandwich board or signboard per building entrance. The sandwich board or 

Exhibit A



Article 7 Signs 
 Section 15-7-100 Nonconforming Signs  

15-7-90(c) Temporary Banner Signs Temporary Banner Signs 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  100 

signboard shall be located on the sidewalk within 10 feet of the building entrance 
and located so that it does not disrupt pedestrian movement. Sandwich boards and 
signboards shall be removed when the use is closed or during severe weather. 

(1) No sandwich board or signboard shall be greater than two feet in width and 
four feet in height.  

(2) A sandwich board or signboard shall not impede or block pedestrian traffic in 
any way or be located within any right-of-way. 

(3) Signboards shall not be greater than eight square feet in total sign area. 

(c) Temporary Banner Signs 
(1) Design Standards 

a. Temporary banners shall not exceed 40 square feet in total sign area. 

b. Banners shall be firmly attached to a wall or fence on all four corners. 

(2) Construction Site Banners 

a. Construction site banners shall not be erected prior to the issuance of a 
building permit for the project to which the sign pertains and shall be 
removed prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy. 

b. Active construction sites shall be limited to one temporary banner per 
street frontage. For a lot with multiple street frontages, the banners may 
be placed on separate frontages or grouped together on one frontage. 

(3) All Other Banners 

a. Any nonresidential establishment may display one banner sign, not to 
exceed 40 square feet, for a maximum of 60 consecutive days at the 
same location, one time during the first three months after the issuance 
of a Certificate of Occupancy or change in ownership. 

b. Each lot shall be limited to one temporary banner sign per tenant. 

(d) Yard Signs 
(1) Each yard sign shall not exceed 12 square feet in area (or six square feet per 

side if double-sided) and four feet in height. 

(2) Yard signs up to an aggregate area of 12 square feet may be displayed for an 
unlimited amount of time.  

(3) An aggregate area of up to 48 square feet is allowed 60 days prior to and 15 
days following an election. 

(4) A minimum of four feet of sidewalk width clearance shall be available for 
pedestrian use. 

15-7-100 Nonconforming Signs 
All nonconforming signs shall be subject to the standards in Section 15-9-70, 
Nonconforming Signs. 

Exhibit A



Article 7 Signs 
 Section 15-7-110 Coordinated Sign Plan  

15-7-110(a) Applicability Applicability 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  101 

15-7-110 Coordinated Sign Plan 

(a) Applicability 
The owner of any building or property with multiple lots or multiple tenants may 
apply for a Coordinated Sign Plan for the property per 15-8-30(j). 

(b) Standards 
(1) Prohibited signs and sign elements are not eligible for inclusion in a 

Coordinated Sign Plan. 

(2) All signs included in the Coordinated Sign Plan shall be architecturally 
integrated into or complementary to the design of the building(s) and 
character of the site, and shall use similar and coordinated design features, 
materials, and colors. 

(3) The Town Administrator may approve a deviation in one or more dimensional 
or numerical standards including sign area, sign height, and number of 
individual signs, based on the following criteria: 

a. The overall size of the development site and the scale of the use or uses 
located or anticipated to be located there; 

b. Access and visibility to the site; 

c. Intended traffic circulation pattern and the need for wayfinding; 

d. Relationship between the site and adjacent uses; or 

e. The desired function of the site. 

15-7-120 Abandoned Signs 

(a) Any sign that is located on property that becomes vacant or is unoccupied for a 
period of 12 months or more, any sign that was erected for an occupant or 
business unrelated to the present occupant or business, or any sign that pertains 
to a time, event or purpose that no longer exists or has passed, shall be 
determined to be abandoned, and no person shall maintain or permit to be 
maintained any abandoned sign upon their property, building, structure, or 
business.  

(b) Any sign that has been determined to be abandoned must be removed by the 
property owner. If the property owner fails to remove an abandoned sign, upon a 
public hearing before the Board of Trustees on the matter, the Town may cause 
the sign to be removed and charge to the property owner all costs which are 
incurred in the sign removal. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-10 Review and Decision-Making Bodies  

15-8-10(a) San Juan Regional Planning Commission San Juan Regional Planning Commission 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  102 

Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
15-8-10 Review and Decision-Making Bodies 

(a) San Juan Regional Planning Commission  
(1) Creation 

The San Juan Regional Planning Commission has been created pursuant to 
Article 28 of Title 30 and Article 23 of Title 31, C.R.S., (“Planning Commission”). 

(2) Powers and Duties  

The Planning Commission is authorized to perform each and all of the duties 
specified by Article 28 of Title 30 and Article 23 of Title 31, C.R.S., together with 
any other duties or authority conferred upon it by the laws of the state, 
including:  

a. Making and adopting a master plan for the physical development of the 
county and town; and 

b. Recommending the boundaries of the various zoning districts and 
appropriate regulations to be enforced in the districts.   

(3) Membership  

a. The Planning Commission shall consist of seven members as follows:  

(i) Two members of the Board of Trustees appointed by the Board of 
Trustees, who shall be ex officio members of the Planning 
Commission and shall serve during their respective official tenures;  

(ii) One member of the Board of County Commissioners, appointed by 
the Board of County Commissioners, who shall be an ex officio 
member of the Planning Commission and shall serve during their 
official tenure; and  

(iii) Four members at large, two appointed by the Board of Trustees and 
two appointed by the Board of County Commissioners, who shall 
serve for a term of three years, or until a successor takes office. 

b. All members of the Planning Commission shall live within the Town of 
Silverton or San Juan County, and, if any member ceases to reside in the 
town or county, that membership shall immediately terminate.  

c. All members of the Planning Commission shall serve without 
compensation. 

d. The appointing authority shall have the power to remove any member of 
the Planning Commission with just cause.  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-10 Review and Decision-Making Bodies  

15-8-10(b) Board of Adjustment Board of Adjustment 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  103 

(4) Officers and Procedures 

a. The Planning Commission shall elect a chairperson and vice chairperson 
from among the members, whose terms shall be for one year, with 
eligibility for reelection. The chairperson shall preside at all meetings and 
perform the other duties as may be necessary and the vice chairperson 
shall act in the absence of the chairperson.   

b. The Planning Commission shall adopt by-laws, operating policies, and 
other rules of procedure as deemed appropriate; provided, however, that 
the rules are not inconsistent with this Code or statutes of the state. 

c. The Town Administrator shall keep a record of the Planning 
Commission’s resolutions, transactions, findings and determinations, 
which record shall be a public record. The public record shall show the 
action of the Planning Commission and the vote of each member upon 
each item considered.   

d. Four voting members of the Planning Commission shall constitute a 
quorum and the affirmative vote of a majority of the members in 
attendance shall be necessary to pass any motion.  

e. The Planning Commission shall hold at least one regular meeting per 
month unless there are no items for the agenda. Special meetings and/or 
workshops may be called as deemed necessary by the Town 
Administrator.  

(b) Board of Adjustment 
(1) Creation  

The Board of Adjustment has been created pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-23-307. 

(2) Powers and Duties  

The Board of Adjustment shall be empowered and required to: 

a. Meet at the call of the chairperson, by their request, by petition from an 
aggrieved party or an applicant for Variance, or by order of the Board of 
Trustees; and 

b. Hear and decide on granting of certain Variances, reviews of Variances, 
and certain appeals. 

(3) Membership  

a. The Board of Trustees shall act as the Board of Adjustment.  

b. All members of the Board of Adjustment shall serve without 
compensation, unless otherwise compensated as a member of the 
Board of Trustees or Board of County Commissioners. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-10 Review and Decision-Making Bodies  

15-8-10(c) Historic Preservation Committee Historic Preservation Committee 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  104 

(4) Officers and Procedures 

a. The Town Administrator shall keep a record of the meetings showing the 
action of the Board of Adjustment and the vote of each member upon 
each question considered, which record shall be a public record. 

b. Four members of the Board of Adjustment shall constitute a quorum, 
and a concurring vote of the majority of the members of the Board of 
Adjustment in attendance shall be necessary to decide on most matters. 
The concurring vote of four members shall be necessary to: 

(i) Reverse any administrative order, requirement, decision, or 
determination, or 

(ii) Approve any variance. 

c. The Board of Adjustment shall hold one regular meeting per month 
unless there are no items for the agenda. Special meetings and/or 
workshops may be called by as deemed necessary by the Town 
Administrator.  

d. Appeals from the Board of Trustees acting as the Board of Adjustment 
may be made to the County District Court pursuant to the Colorado 
Rules of Civil Procedure. 

(c) Historic Preservation Committee 
(1) Creation  

There is hereby created the Historic Preservation Committee. 

(2) Powers and Duties 

The Historic Preservation Committee shall advise the Board of Trustees and 
staff on the following:  

a. Conduct surveys and create inventories of properties and areas for the 
purpose of defining those of historic significance; 

b. Review and determine qualifications of buildings, structures, objects, 
sites, and districts nominated for designation and recommend that the 
Board of Trustees designate by ordinance the buildings, structures, 
objects, sites, or districts qualifying for designation; 

c. Recommend to the Board of Trustees the establishment of construction 
and design guidelines, consistent with the Secretary of the Interior's 
Standards for The Treatment of Historic Properties, for review of 
proposals to alter, relocate, or demolish historic properties; 

d. Hear and decide on Historic District Overlay Review, Major. 

e. Participate in review of National Register of Historic Places nominations; 

f. Maintain online data base of resources related to physical and financial 
aspects of preservation, rehabilitation, restoration, and reconstruction, 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-10 Review and Decision-Making Bodies  

15-8-10(c) Historic Preservation Committee Historic Preservation Committee 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  105 

including nomination to the Town's Historic Register, The Colorado State 
Register of Historic Properties, and The National Register of Historic 
Places; 

g. Develop and assist in public education programs on history, archaeology, 
and historic preservation; 

h. Advise the Board of Trustees on matters related to preserving the historic 
character and substance of the town and recommend easements, 
covenants, licenses, and other methods which will implement the 
completion of the purposes of this Code; 

i. Participate in federal Section 106 review as requested by the Board of 
Trustees or the Town Administrator; and 

j. Identify and advise the Board of Trustees regarding the implementation 
of economic incentives for the preservation of historic properties.  

(3) Membership  

a. The Historic Preservation Committee shall be appointed by the Board of 
Trustees and comprised of the following members: 

b. One year-round resident of the Town of Silverton and owner of property 
in the Historic District Overlay, voting member; 

(i) One year-round resident of the Town of Silverton, voting member; 

(ii) One member of the Board of Trustees, voting member;  

(iii) One member of the San Juan Regional Planning Commission who is 
not also on the Board of Trustees, voting member; 

(iv) One member of the Historical Society or Member of San Juan County 
Historic Impact Assessment Review Committee, voting member;  

(v) One high school student (when available), non-voting member; and 

(vi) One Town staff member, non-voting member. 

c. The five voting members shall have demonstrated interest in, 
competence with or knowledge of preservation. At least 40 percent of 
voting members shall be professionals or shall have extensive expertise 
in a preservation-related discipline, including but not limited to history, 
architecture, landscape architecture, American studies, American 
civilization, cultural geography, cultural anthropology, planning, 
archaeology, building trades, real estate, or law. 

d. The five voting members shall serve for a term of three years and may 
serve an unlimited number of terms. Terms shall be staggered. 

e. All members shall be residents of the Town of Silverton, unless approved 
by the Board of Trustees.  If any member ceases to reside in the town, 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-10 Review and Decision-Making Bodies  

15-8-10(d) Floodplain Administrator Floodplain Administrator 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  106 

that membership shall immediately terminate, unless approved by the 
Board of Trustees.  

f. All members of the Historic Preservation Committee shall serve without 
compensation. 

g. The Board of Trustees shall have the power to remove any member of 
the Historic Preservation Committee with just cause. 

(4) Officers and Procedures 

a. The five voting members shall elect a chairperson and vice chairperson 
from among the members, whose terms shall be for one year, with 
eligibility for reelection. The chairperson shall preside at all meetings and 
perform the other duties as may be necessary and the vice chairperson 
shall act in the absence of the chairperson. 

b. The Town Administrator shall keep a record of the meetings showing the 
action of the Historic Preservation Committee and the vote of each 
member upon each question considered, which record shall be a public 
record.  

c. The Historic Preservation Committee may draft and recommend for 
adoption by the Board of Trustees by-laws, operating policies, and other 
rules of procedure as deemed appropriate; provided, however, that the 
rules are not inconsistent with this Code or statutes of the state. 

d. A quorum shall consist of a majority, or 51 percent, of the members. For a 
committee of five members, three members shall be in attendance to 
establish a quorum. A quorum is necessary to conduct business, 
including holding a public hearing. A roll call vote shall be taken upon 
the request of any member. A tie vote shall be deemed a denial of the 
motion or recommended action. 

e. The Historic Preservation Committee shall meet at least four times a year. 
Meetings shall be held monthly unless there are no items for the agenda. 
Special meetings and/or workshops may be called as deemed necessary 
by the Town Administrator.  

(d) Floodplain Administrator 
(1) Designation of Flood Hazard Administrator 

The Town Administrator is hereby appointed the Flood Hazard Administrator 
to administer and implement this Section by granting or denying Flood 
Hazard Development Permit applications. The Building Official may delegate 
this responsibility to a Town staff representative or qualified consultant hired 
by the Town. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-10 Review and Decision-Making Bodies  

15-8-10(d) Floodplain Administrator Floodplain Administrator 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  107 

(2) Duties and Responsibilities of Flood Hazard Administrator 

a. Permit Review 

The Flood Hazard Administrator shall:  

(i) Review all Flood Hazard Development Permits to determine that the 
requirements of this Section have been satisfied;  

(ii) Review all Flood Hazard Development Permits to determine that all 
necessary permits have been obtained from those federal, state, or 
local governmental agencies from which prior approval is required;  

(iii) Review all Flood Hazard Development Permits to determine if the 
proposed development adversely affects the flood-carrying capacity 
of the area of special flood hazard. For the purpose of this Section, 
adversely affects means damage to adjacent properties because of 
rises in flood stages attributed to physical changes of the channel 
and the adjacent overbank areas.  

1. If it is determined that there is no adverse effect and the 
development is not a structure, then the permit shall be granted 
without further consideration.  

2. If it is determined that there is an adverse effect, then technical 
justification prepared by a Colorado registered professional 
engineer for the proposed development shall be required.  

3. If the development is a structure, then all other requirements set 
forth in this Section must be complied with; and  

(iv) Review all Flood Hazard Development Permits to determine if the 
proposed development or structure is located in the floodway. If it is 
located in the floodway, all relevant encroachment provisions 
contained in this Section must be met.  

b. Use of Other Base Floodplain Data 

In the event of a conflict, or if base floodplain data is not available, the 
Flood Hazard Administrator may obtain, review, and reasonably use any 
base flood elevation and floodway data available from a federal, state, or 
other source, in order to administer this Section.  

c. Information to be Obtained and Maintained 

The Flood Hazard Administrator shall:  

(i) Obtain and record the actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) 
of the lowest floor (including basement) of all new or substantially 
improved structures;  

(ii) For all new or substantially improved floodproofed structures:  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-20 Development Review Procedures  

15-8-20(a) Summary Table of Development Review Procedures Summary Table of Development Review 
Procedures 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  108 

1. Verify and record the actual elevation to which the structure has 
been floodproofed; and  

2. Maintain all floodproofing certifications required in this Section; 
and  

(iii) Maintain for public inspection all records pertaining to the provisions 
of this Section.  

d. Alterations of Watercourses 

The Flood Hazard Administrator shall: 

(i) Notify downstream communities, the Colorado Conservation Board 
and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers prior to any alteration or 
relocation of a watercourse and submit evidence of the notification 
to the Federal Emergency Management Agency; and  

(ii) Require that the maintenance be provided within the altered or 
relocated portion of the watercourse to preclude diminishing the 
flood-carrying capacity.  

e. Interpretation of Flood Insurance Rate Map boundaries 

The Flood Hazard Administrator shall make interpretation, where 
needed, as to the exact location of the boundaries of the areas of special 
flood hazards (for example, where there appears to be a conflict between 
mapped boundary and actual field conditions). The person contesting 
the location of the boundary shall be given a reasonable opportunity to 
appeal the interpretation as provided in this Section. 

15-8-20 Development Review Procedures 

(a) Summary Table of Development Review Procedures  
Table 15-8-1 summarizes the procedural steps that are applicable for each specific 
application or action, and in the case of recommendation and decision hearings, 
which decision-making body has authority. 

Table 15-8-1: Summary of Development Review Procedures 

Application 
Type 

Code 
Sec. 

Pre-
app 
Mtg. 

Info
Mtg 

Notice 
[1] 

Admin Recom’d  Decision  
Final 

Decision 

Key 

✓ = Required      P = Published notice required     M = Mailed notice required  
BOT = Board of Trustees   HPC = Historic Preservation Committee   PC = Planning 
Commission BOA = Board of Adjustment     Admin = Town Administrator  
NoD = Notice of Decision     Ord. = Ordinance 

Admin. 
Adjustment 15-8-30(a)    Decide   NoD 

Avalanche 
Hazard 15-8-30(b) ✓   Decide   NoD 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-20 Development Review Procedures  

15-8-20(a) Summary Table of Development Review Procedures Summary Table of Development Review 
Procedures 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  109 

Table 15-8-1: Summary of Development Review Procedures 

Application 
Type 

Code 
Sec. 

Pre-
app 
Mtg. 

Info
Mtg 

Notice 
[1] 

Admin Recom’d  Decision  Final 
Decision 

Key 

✓ = Required      P = Published notice required     M = Mailed notice required  
BOT = Board of Trustees   HPC = Historic Preservation Committee   PC = Planning 
Commission BOA = Board of Adjustment     Admin = Town Administrator  
NoD = Notice of Decision     Ord. = Ordinance 

Development 
Permit, Minor 
Expedited 
Review for AH 15-8-30(c) ✓   Decide   NoD 

Final Plat, 
Condo. or 
Townhome 

15-8-30(d)    Decide   NoD 

Flood Hazard 
Development 
Permit 

15-8-30(e) ✓   Decide   NoD 

Historic Dist. 
Overlay Review, 
Minor 

15-8-30(f) ✓   Decide   NoD 

LUC 
Interpretation 15-8-30(g)    Decide   NoD 

Minor Plat 
Amend. 

15-8-30(h)    Decide   NoD 

Sign Permit 15-8-30(i)    Decide   NoD 
Sign Plan, 
Coordinated 15-8-30(j)    Decide   NoD 

Simple 
Subdivision 15-8-30(k) ✓   Decide   NoD 

Site Plan  15-8-30(l) ✓   Decide    NoD 
Slope Hazard 
Development 
Permit 

15-8-30(m) ✓   Decide    NoD 

Temporary Use 
Permit 15-8-30(n)    Decide   NoD 

Vacation Rental 
Permit 15-8-30(o)    Decide   NoD 

Annexation/ 
Disconn. 15-8-40(a) Per Colorado Statutes 

Appeal of 
Administrative 
Decision 

15-8-40(b)   P   BOA/ 
BOT [2] NoD 

Appeal of PC or 
HPC Decision 15-8-40(c)   P   BOT NoD 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-20 Development Review Procedures  

15-8-20(a) Summary Table of Development Review Procedures Summary Table of Development Review 
Procedures 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  110 

Table 15-8-1: Summary of Development Review Procedures 

Application 
Type 

Code 
Sec. 

Pre-
app 
Mtg. 

Info
Mtg 

Notice 
[1] 

Admin Recom’d  Decision  Final 
Decision 

Key 

✓ = Required      P = Published notice required     M = Mailed notice required  
BOT = Board of Trustees   HPC = Historic Preservation Committee   PC = Planning 
Commission BOA = Board of Adjustment     Admin = Town Administrator  
NoD = Notice of Decision     Ord. = Ordinance 

Avalanche 
Hazard 
Development 
Permit, Major 

15-8-40(d) ✓  P Review PC BOT NoD 

Flood Hazard 
Variance 15-8-40(e) ✓  P, M Review  BOA NoD 

Historic District 
Overlay 
Designation 

15-8-40(f) ✓ ✓ P Review HPC BOT Ord. 

Historic District 
Overlay Review, 
Major  

15-8-40(g) ✓   Review  HPC NoD 

LUC Text 
Amend. 15-8-40(h) ✓  P Review PC BOT Ord. 

Master Plan 
Amend 15-8-40(i) ✓  P Review PC BOT Ord. 

Special Use 
Permit 15-8-40(j) ✓  P Review  PC NoD 

Subdivision, 
Major  

Sketch Plan 15-8-40(k)(2) ✓ ✓  Review  PC NoD 
Prelim. Plan 15-8-40(k)(3) ✓ ✓ P Review PC BOT NoD 
Final Plat 15-8-40(k)(4) ✓  P Review PC BOT NoD 

Subdivision 
Design 
Modification 

15-8-40(l) Processed with Preliminary Plat 

Vacation of 
ROW  15-8-40(m) ✓  P Review  BOT Ord. 

Variance  15-8-40(n) ✓  P, M Review  BOA/PC 
[3] NoD 

Zoning Map 
Amend. 15-8-40(o) ✓ ✓ P Review PC BOT Ord. 

Notes: 
[1] Notice to mineral estate owners is required for all public hearings per Section 15-8-20(g)(3). 
[2] All Appeals of Administrative Decisions are reviewed and decided on by the Board of Adjustment except 
Appeals of Administrative Decisions on vacation rental permit renewals which are reviewed and decided on by the 
Board of Trustees. 
[3] All Variances are reviewed and decided on by the Board of Adjustment except Variances to subdivision 
standards which are reviewed and decided on by the Planning Commission. 

 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-20 Development Review Procedures  

15-8-20(b) Common Review Procedures Described Common Review Procedures Described 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  111 

(b) Common Review Procedures Described 
(1) This Article establishes the Common Review Procedures for development 

application review and decision-making. The following procedures are 
standard and generally apply to all, or most, types of applications as shown in 
Table 15-8-1.  

(2) Sections 15-8-30 and 15-8-30(o) establish additional provisions for specific 
procedures. Where these Common Review Procedures conflict with specific 
procedure provisions, the specific procedures provisions shall apply. 

(c) Preapplication Meeting 
(1) Purpose 

Preapplication meetings are established to: 

a. Provide the applicant and Town an opportunity to discuss the following 
prior to application submission: 

(i) The application concept;  

(ii) General compliance with the LUC and Building Regulations; and 

(iii) Any potentially significant issues regarding compliance;  

b. Determine the applicable process(es) and estimated timing; and  

c. Assist the applicant in understanding the submittal requirements and 
review procedures.  

(2) When Required 

This meeting is required prior to the formal submission of an application, as 
identified in Table 15-8-1. This step is optional for all other applications. 

(3) Information and Effect 

a. The applicant shall bring supporting documentation such as a narrative 
explaining the project, plans, diagrams, plats, or other information 
sufficient to allow a conceptual review of the proposed application.  

b. The informal evaluation provided at the preapplication meeting is not 
binding upon the applicant or the Town. The Town will create and share a 
meeting summary letter with the applicant that identifies applicable 
code sections and recommends next steps. The meeting summary letter 
shall be submitted with the formal application submission. 

(d) Informational Meeting  
(1) Purpose 

Informational meetings are established to allow residents, business, and 
community members a pre-submission opportunity to learn from the 
applicant about a proposed development project, including but not limited 
to land uses, size, height, and layout, at an early stage of the development 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-20 Development Review Procedures  

15-8-20(e) Application Submittal and Acceptance Application Submittal and Acceptance 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  112 

process and to communicate directly with the applicant about their issues, 
concerns, or comments. 

(2) When Required 

a. Generally 

This meeting is required prior to the submittal of an application as 
identified in Table 15-8-1. This step is optional for all other applications.  

b. Informational Meeting Requirement or Waiver 

(i) The Town Administrator may require, or the Planning Commission or 
Board of Trustees may request, an informational meeting when the 
proposed development may impact neighboring properties more 
than the typical development allowed on the site. 

(ii) At an applicant’s request, the Town Administrator may waive a 
required informational meeting when, in the Town Administrator's 
opinion, the proposed development will not have any impact on 
neighboring properties. The Town Administrator shall provide the 
applicant with a written confirmation that the informational meeting 
has been waived and generally describe the reasons for the waiver. 

(3) Scheduling and Notice 

a. The Town Administrator and the applicant shall coordinate meeting 
time, place, and notice to the community.  

b. The applicant shall be responsible for: 

(i) Notifying all property owners and residents within 300 feet of the 
property line by mail and publishing notice of the meeting in the 
newspaper at least 15 days prior to the meeting; 

(ii) Conducting and facilitating the meeting; 

(iii) Covering all expenses of the meeting including but not limited to 
facility costs and the cost of the meeting notice; and 

(iv) Preparing a written report of meeting comments and submit the 
report with the development application. The applicant may elect to 
make changes to the proposal based on comments to improve the 
project outcome. 

c. A representative from the Town of Silverton may be in attendance to 
listen but will not provide information about project specifics or facilitate 
the meeting.  

(e) Application Submittal and Acceptance 
(1) Application Requirements  

a. Applications may be filed by the property owner(s) with title to the entire 
property subject to the application or their authorized representative, 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-20 Development Review Procedures  

15-8-20(e) Application Submittal and Acceptance Application Submittal and Acceptance 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  113 

unless specified otherwise under each specific procedure in Sections 15-
8-30 and 15-8-30(o). 

b. The applicant shall prepare and submit an application(s) that meets all 
requirements of this Code.  

c. The Town Administrator is authorized to establish and amend application 
forms based on the requirements of this Code and Colorado law. All 
applications shall include, at a minimum, the following, in addition to any 
submittal requirements listed under each specific procedure in Sections 
15-8-30 and 15-8-30(o):  

(i) Completed application form;  

(ii) Application fee, any required deposits, and Agreement for Payment 
of Development Review Expenses per Section 15-8-20(e)(3);  

(iii) If a specific property is involved in the application:  

1. Proof of ownership or authorization to submit the application on 
behalf of the owner(s); 

2. A list of all mineral interest owners with interests severed from 
the subject property; and 

3. Vicinity map showing the project area with all applicable lot and 
parcel lines and abutting roads; and 

4. Written narrative explaining the project and the request, exact 
Section(s) of the Code involved in the request, and a detailed 
description of how the requests complies with the generally 
applicable review criteria and the review criteria for the specific 
procedure. 

d. All applications shall be submitted electronically to the Town 
Administrator. Hard copies of plats, site design surveys, construction 
plans, and other similar documents may be required as determined by 
the Town Administrator once the application is determined to be 
complete.  

(2) Concurrent Application  

Where multiple applications are submitted for the same property, the Town 
Administrator may allow concurrent review of applications for efficiency and 
practicality. 

(3) Fees 

The Board of Trustees may adopt and amend from time to time a fee 
schedule for all applications and proceedings under this Code. 

a. Town Cost Reimbursement 

All applicants shall comply with the following at the time of application: 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-20 Development Review Procedures  

15-8-20(e) Application Submittal and Acceptance Application Submittal and Acceptance 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  114 

(i) The applicant shall pay all required fees for the purpose of the Town's 
review and processing of the application. Where the application will 
require additional staff or Town consultant time or services (such as 
but not limited to notice, recording fees, subject matter expert 
review, or legal services), the Town Administrator will prepare an 
estimate of fees and establish a deposit amount for the applicant to 
submit to the Town. 

(ii) The applicant shall enter into an Agreement for Payment of 
Development Review Expenses ("Reimbursement Agreement").  

1. The final form of an Agreement shall be subject to the Town 
Attorney’s review and revision, based on the particular 
circumstances of the proposed development.  

2. The Town Administrator may, at their discretion, execute the 
Agreement on behalf of the Town or forward the agreement to 
the Board of Trustees for consideration.  

b. Expenses 

(i) The Town shall maintain separate accounts of all monies expended 
as a result of the review of an application. Statements of expenses 
incurred will be made available to the applicant upon reasonable 
request. 

(ii) In the event the Town incurs expenses for the review of the 
applicant's request greater than the deposit monies collected from 
the applicant, the applicant shall reimburse the Town for the 
additional expenses. The Town will invoice the applicant for the 
additional fees and applicant shall reimburse the Town within 10 days 
of receipt of the invoice. If the applicant fails to pay the invoice on 
time, the Town Administrator may instruct the Planning Department 
to cease processing the application or deny approval of the 
application. 

(iii) All unused funds will be returned to the applicant within 30 days 
after final action on the application. 

c. Waivers and Modification of Fees and Expenses  

When a project specifically addresses an identified community need, the 
applicant may submit a written request to the Board of Trustees to 
refund any portion of a fee or expense associated with the processing of 
any application. The written request shall be submitted with the 
associated application. If approved, the applicant will be reimbursed and 
required to enter into a development agreement or record a covenant on 
the property ensuring the community need will be secured for a 
specified period of time. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-20 Development Review Procedures  
15-8-20(f) Administrative Review and Action Administrative Review and Action 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  115 

(4) Completeness Review 

a. The Town Administrator shall review an application within a reasonable 
timeframe to determine whether the application is complete.  

b. If the application is missing required information, including information 
necessary or sufficient to decide on the application, it will be determined 
to be incomplete, and the Town Administrator shall inform the applicant 
in writing of what materials are missing or insufficient.  

c. The application will not be processed further until the application is 
determined to be complete.  

d. No application shall be deemed complete unless accompanied by a 
properly executed Reimbursement Agreement. 

e. Once the application is determined to be complete, the Town 
Administrator shall process the application for review.  

(f) Administrative Review and Action 
(1) Referral Agency Review  

The Town Administrator shall distribute the complete application to Town 
staff and agencies or entities outside of the Town that may be affected by the 
application. Referral of applications shall be for a time frame of 14 days unless 
extended by the Town Administrator for applications that present technical 
issues requiring additional review or for modified applications. Referral 
agencies may include:  

a. Town employees or contractors including but not limited to Public Works 
staff and the Town Attorney; 

b. County employees; 

c. Fire district; 

d. Utility providers and districts; 

e. School district; 

f. State of Colorado agencies including the Department of Transportation, 
Department of Health and Environment, State Forest Service, Parks and 
Wildlife, Colorado Geological Survey, Division of Water Resources, 
Division of Reclamation, Mining and Safety; and  

g. Federal land management agencies including the Bureau of Land 
Management, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Environmental Protection 
Agency, and U.S. Forest Service. 

(2) Readiness for Decision  

a. Following completion of any referral agency review, the Town 
Administrator shall determine if the application is ready for a decision.  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-20 Development Review Procedures  
15-8-20(f) Administrative Review and Action Administrative Review and Action 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  116 

b. If not, the Town Administrator shall request, in writing, additional 
information or corrections from the applicant. New and revised materials 
shall be reviewed in a reasonable timeframe.  

c. Once the application is ready for a decision, the Town Administrator shall 
proceed to make the decision per Subsection (5) below or prepare the 
application for decision by a decision-making body per Subsection (6) 
below.  

(3) Inactive Applications 

a. Criteria 

(i) The Town Administrator may notify an applicant that an application 
will be considered inactive unless corrective action is taken within 45 
days, if at any point in a development review process the following 
have occurred: 

1. The applicant fails to attend any scheduled mandatory meeting, 
meeting with the Town Administrator, meeting or hearing before 
the Planning Commission, Board of Trustees, Board of 
Adjustment, or Historic Preservation Committee; or 

2. The applicant has not responded to a staff request for 
information, has not agreed to a date for a meeting or hearing, or 
has not taken some other affirmative step within a reasonable 
timeframe that is within the applicant’s control and is necessary 
to advance the application for a final determination. 

(ii) If an applicant is no longer reasonably able to be reached, the Town 
Administrator may publish inactive application notice on the Town’s 
website. 

b. Application Terminated 

(i) No further processing of any inactive application shall occur until the 
deficiencies are corrected.  

(ii) If the applicant does not correct the deficiencies within the 45 day 
correction period, the application shall be considered withdrawn and 
terminated with no further action by the Town. Any resubmittal of 
the application by the applicant will be treated as a new application 
for purposes of review, scheduling, and payment of application fees. 

(4) Withdrawal  

The applicant may choose to withdraw the application for any reason by 
providing written notice, through email or hard copy, to the Town 
Administrator at least one day prior to the hearing. An applicant is not 
entitled to a refund of application fees for withdrawn applications. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-20 Development Review Procedures  

15-8-20(g) Public Notice Public Notice 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  117 

(5) Administrative Decisions  

a. Where the Town Administrator has the authority to decide an 
application, the application shall be reviewed against the applicable 
provisions of this Code, which may include review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), Generally Applicable Review Criteria or 15-8-30, Specific 
Procedures – Administrative Decisions.  

(i) To be approved, the application shall be fully consistent with the 
standards of this Code unless an Administrative Adjustment is 
concurrently approved.  

(ii) Administrative approvals shall not be conditioned, but instructions 
may be provided to ensure compliance with this Code.  

(iii) Applications found to be inconsistent with the standards of this Code 
shall be denied.  

b. A Notice of Decision per 15-8-20(i)(1) shall be provided to the applicant 
and Board of Trustees within a reasonable timeframe.  

(6) Preparation for Decisions by Decision-Making Bodies  

For procedures where the Planning Commission, Board of Trustees, Board of 
Adjustment, or Historic Preservation Committee has authority to make a 
recommendation or decide an application, the Town Administrator shall:  

a. Set the date, time, and location of the public hearing within a reasonable 
timeframe;  

b. Notify, in writing, the applicant and any staff involved of the hearing date, 
time, and location; and 

c. Prepare a staff report including:  

(i) All applicable provisions of this Code and an analysis of how each is 
satisfied or not, including the review criteria;  

(ii) A recommendation whether to approve, approve with conditions, or 
deny the application. If approval with conditions is recommended, a 
list of suggested conditions; and 

(iii) Any additional information pertinent to the review of the application.  

(g) Public Notice  
When an application requires a public hearing as specified in Section 15-8-40, 
each public hearing shall be noticed in accordance with Table 15-8-1.  

(1) Published Notice 

The Town Administrator shall publish the date, time, place, and purpose of 
the public hearing in a newspaper of general circulation of the town at least 
15 days prior to the meeting. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-20 Development Review Procedures  

15-8-20(h) Decision-Making Review and Action Decision-Making Review and Action 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  118 

(2) Mailed Notice 

The Town Administrator shall send mailed notice, describing the date, time, 
place, and purpose of the public hearing to all property owners within a 300 
foot radius from the center point of the subject property at least 15 days prior 
to the public hearing. 

(3) Mineral Estate Notice  

The applicant shall provide mailed notice to any mineral estate owner that 
has a severed mineral interest within the proposed development not less 
than 30 days before the initial public hearing for the application. The notice 
shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, or by a nationally 
recognized overnight courier and shall contain the date, time, place, and 
purpose of the public hearing as well as the location of the property and 
name of the applicant. A copy of the notice, including the names and 
addresses of where notices were sent along with the applicant’s certification 
of compliance with these notification requirements shall be submitted to the 
Town.  

(h) Decision-Making Review and Action 
(1) All Meetings  

a. All Planning Commission, Board of Trustees, Board of Adjustment, and 
Historic Preservation Committee meetings shall be open to the public 
unless otherwise allowed by law. 

b. The applicant shall bear the burden of presenting sufficient competent 
evidence at the public hearing to prove compliance with the applicable 
standards and criteria.  

c. Any decision by the reviewing body shall be based upon consideration of 
all evidence presented during the public hearing. Where evidence 
presented is contradictory, the reviewing body shall weigh the evidence 
and judge the credibility and sufficiency of the evidence prior to 
rendering a decision. 

d. The decision-making body may continue or postpone the public hearing 
or any other action at any time to a specified date in order to allow for 
the preparation of additional information for further review by the 
decision-making body. 

(2) Recommendation Hearing 

a. The reviewing body shall review the application for conformance with 
the applicable procedure, review criteria, and the staff report. The 
reviewing body shall issue a recommendation whether to approve, 
approve with conditions, or deny the application within a reasonable 
timeframe.  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-20 Development Review Procedures  

15-8-20(h) Decision-Making Review and Action Decision-Making Review and Action 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  119 

b. The recommendation shall be forwarded to the appropriate decision-
making body. 

(3) Decision Hearing 

a. The decision-making body shall host a public hearing to review the 
application for conformance with the applicable procedure and review 
criteria within this Code, staff report, and recommendation from the 
reviewing body, if applicable. 

b. The decision-making body shall approve, approve with conditions, or 
deny the application within a reasonable timeframe. If the application is 
denied, the written notification shall include the reasons for denial.  

(4) Generally Applicable Review Criteria 

The decision-making body shall consider the following generally applicable 
review criteria:  

a. Conformance with prior approvals, if applicable; 

b. Compliance with applicable provisions of this Code; 

c. Compliance with the Development Standards and Specifications;  

d. Conformance with the Master Plan and other applicable Town plans and 
policy guides; and 

e. Compliance with review criteria for the specific procedure identified in 
Sections 15-8-30 and 15-8-30(o). 

(5) Conditions  

a. The decision-making body may impose conditions on an approval to 
safeguard the welfare and protection of the town and adjacent property. 

b. All conditions of approval shall be reasonably related to the anticipated 
impacts of the proposed use or development and implementing the 
requirements of this Code and the intent of the Master Plan.  

c. The decision-making body may place specific time limits on the 
satisfaction of any condition of approval. If a time limit is not specified in 
the approval or in the specific provisions of this Code then a one year 
time limit shall apply.  

d. The Town Administrator shall determine when conditions have been 
met. 

(6) Guarantee of Completion for Required Improvements 

a. When public improvements are required by this LUC or as a condition of 
approval, the applicant shall enter into a written Development 
Improvement Agreement with the Town to guarantee construction of all 
required improvements, including streets, curbs and gutters, driveways, 
sidewalks, storm drainage system, sanitary sewerage, potable water 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-20 Development Review Procedures  

15-8-20(h) Decision-Making Review and Action Decision-Making Review and Action 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  120 

system, street lights, street name signs and all other improvements 
covered by Article 4, Subdivision Design and Improvement.  

b. The Development Improvement Agreement shall include terms for 
required improvements, construction specifications in compliance with 
the Development Standards and Specifications and other applicable 
regulations, the date for completion of the improvements, and the terms 
and conditions upon default by the subdivider or acceptance of the 
improvements by the Town.  

c. Under the agreement, the applicant shall post a performance bond, 
letter of credit, or certified check, prior to commencing construction, 
which bond or check shall be drawn in favor of the Town in an amount 
equal to the estimated cost of construction of improvements required as 
enumerated.  

d. The performance bond, letter of credit, or certified check posted by the 
applicant shall not be released until final construction of improvements 
has been completed, inspected at the applicant’s expense and approved 
and accepted by the Town.  

e. If the Town determines that the applicant will not construct any or all of 
the improvements in accordance with the Development Improvement 
Agreement, the Town shall have the power to annul the agreement and 
apply all or part of the financial guarantee to the construction or 
completion of any or all of the specified improvements in accordance 
with the agreed specification. 

f. The Development Improvement Agreement shall be reviewed with the 
specific procedure that requires public improvements and by the Town 
Attorney based on the particular circumstances of the proposed 
improvements. 

(7) Call Up of Administrative Decisions  

a. The Board of Trustees may exercise review over an application decided 
by the Town Administrator, Planning Commission, or Historic 
Preservation Committee by calling-up the application for addition to the 
Board of Trustee’s agenda. The purpose of the call-up process is to allow 
the Board of Trustees to exercise oversight of administrative, Planning 
Commission, and Historic Preservation Committee approvals as it deems 
necessary, not to provide an applicant with an unofficial appeal. 

b. Any member of the Board of Trustees may call-up decisions made by the 
Town Administrator, Planning Commission, or Historic Preservation 
Committee within 15 days of the Notice of Decision being issued. 

c. Called-up applications shall be reviewed at the next regularly scheduled 
Board of Trustees meeting. A vote of the majority of the members 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-20 Development Review Procedures  

15-8-20(i) Post-Decision Actions and Obligations Post-Decision Actions and Obligations 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  121 

present to review the application is required prior to any action on the 
application. 

d. The Town Administrator shall notify the applicant that the decision has 
been called-up, which requires they do not take any action on the 
application, and the meeting date. The Board of Trustees shall review the 
application as it was submitted to the Town. An applicant who wishes to 
submit additional information regarding an application shall first submit 
the additional information through a new application. 

(i) Post-Decision Actions and Obligations 
(1) Notice of Decision  

For all final decisions requiring a Notice of Decision in Table 15-8-1 after a 
decision is made, the Town Administrator shall prepare and send to the 
applicant and Board of Trustees a Notice of Decision that identifies the 
decision, any conditions attached to the approval, and all applicable 
timeframes.  

(2) Appeals 

a. Appeals of any administrative determination shall be made per Section 
15-8-40(b). 

b. Appeals of any decision of the Planning Commission or the Historic 
Preservation Committee shall be made per Section 15-8-40(c). 

c. Appeals of any decision of the Board of Adjustment and the Board of 
Trustees may be scheduled for a rehearing by the decision-making body. 
Following a rehearing or rehearing denial, further appeal shall be made 
to the District Court, as provided by state statute. 

(3) Limitation on Resubmission  

Whenever the Town Administrator, Planning Commission, Board of Trustees, 
Board of Adjustment, or Historic Preservation Committee decides an 
application or an appeal of an application, no person shall submit an 
application that is the same, or substantially the same, for at least one year 
from the date of the final action on the application. The Town Administrator 
shall determine whether a new application or reapplication is limited by this 
provision. 

(4) Final Documents and Recordation  

a. The applicant shall submit all final documents reflecting any conditions 
of approval to the Town for final review and acknowledgement. 

b. Ordinances, plats, vacation of plats, and other processes that require the 
recording of documents as specified in the specific procedures listed in 
Section 15-8-30(o), shall be required to be recorded with the San Juan 
County Clerk and Recorder. These documents shall be fully executed by 
the applicant and submitted for execution and recording by the Town 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-20 Development Review Procedures  

15-8-20(i) Post-Decision Actions and Obligations Post-Decision Actions and Obligations 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  122 

within 60 days from the date of approval by the decision-making body. 
The approval expires if documents are not properly recorded within 60 
days. The Town Administrator may provide one 60-day extension for 
good cause. 

c. No person shall record a plat of a subdivision nor prepare or execute any 
documents that purport to create or creates a new lot or airspace unit, 
nor record or execute a deed of trust or a mortgage descriptive of the 
property other than all of a lot unless the plat, deed, deed of trust or 
mortgage has been approved by the Town and unless it conforms to all 
of the provisions of this Code. 

(5) Termination of Approval 

a. Expiration 

Except for Rezoning approvals or as otherwise specified in Sections 15-8-
30 and 15-8-30(o), an approval granted under this Code shall lapse and 
become void one year following the date of the final decision unless, 
prior to the expiration date, a building permit based upon the approval is 
issued and construction is commenced and diligently pursued without 
expiration toward completion.  

b. Extension 

(i) An approval may be extended by up to one year by the Town 
Administrator. The request for extension shall be submitted in 
writing to the Town Administrator prior to the expiration of the 
original approval. 

(ii) All additional requests for extensions shall be approved by the 
decision-making body that issued the original approval. The request 
shall be submitted to the Town Administrator in writing at least 30 
days prior to the expiration of approval. An extension request shall 
include payment of required fees and written description of the 
reasons for the applicant's inability to comply with the specified 
deadlines, listing any changes to the Master Plan or this Code that 
have occurred since approval of the permit/plan as these changes 
affect the permit/plan, and the anticipated time schedule for 
completing the approval process or project.  

(iii) The decision-making body shall review the request for compliance. 
This review for extension may result in additional conditions. 

(iv) If the extension is denied, the applicant may resubmit a new 
application, subject to the fees and regulations in effect at the time 
of resubmittal, for the same project. 

(6) Revocation of Approval 

The Town Administrator may recommend that the approving body review 
and revoke an approval that was granted with conditions. The matter will be 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(a) Administrative Adjustment Administrative Adjustment 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  123 

scheduled for review in the same manner as it was originally heard, at either 
a regular meeting or public hearing. The approving body will determine 
whether the development fails to comply with applicable conditions in a 
manner that is detrimental to the site or surrounding area such that the 
approval should be revoked. The burden to show compliance with approval 
conditions is on the approval holder. 

(7) Amendments or Modifications to Approvals  

All changes, modifications, removal, or release of the provisions of an 
approval that do not qualify for an Administrative Adjustment per Section 15-
8-30(a) or Site Plan per Section 15-8-30(l) shall be considered an amendment. 
For purposes of review and scheduling, proposed amendments are treated 
as new applications subject to the applicable procedures and review criteria 
set forth in this Article.  

15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions 

(a) Administrative Adjustment  
(1) Purpose  

Administrative Adjustments allow the modification of an existing numeric 
dimensional standard such as lot area, setbacks, and building height to 
accommodate site-specific or minor construction issues. 

(2) Applicability  

a. Permitted Types of Adjustments  

Applications for Administrative Adjustments that are not related to a 
request for reasonable accommodation under the Federal Fair Housing 
Act or the Religious Land Use and Institutionalized Persons Act may only 
be considered for the adjustments listed below. 

Table 15-8-2: Permitted Administrative Adjustments  

Standard Allowed Adjustment 
Lot Area, Minimum 10% 

Setbacks, Minimum Lots > 5,000 SF: 10% 
Lots ≤ 5,000 SF: 15% 

Building Height 10% 
Fence Height 15% (one foot maximum) 
Sign Area, Maximum 10% 
Sign Height, Maximum 15% 

All dimensional standards, if 
providing Affordable Housing 

If not listed in this table: 
20% 
If listed in this table: 
Allowed Adjustment + 20% 

b. Limitations on Administrative Adjustment 

Administrative Adjustment may not be used to: 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(a) Administrative Adjustment Administrative Adjustment 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  124 

(i) Create, intensify, or expand any nonconformity with maximum or 
minimum requirements of the zoning district; 

(ii) Modify standards not listed in or modify any standard outside this 
Code; 

(iii) Permit uses other than those permitted in the zoning district; or 

(iv) Modify a standard that has already been modified through a 
separate Variance pursuant to Section 15-8-40(n). 

(3) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-
10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with the 
modifications listed below.  

(4) Application Submittal  

a. Any requests for an Administrative 
Adjustment shall be submitted concurrently 
with any applicable application.  

b. Mailed public notice shall be completed per 
Section 15-8-20(g)(2) except that the notice 
shall contain the application and provide a 
method in which notified property owners 
can submit comments on the application 
before a decision is made. 

(5) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Review and Decision  

(i) Administrative Adjustment applications are reviewed and decided on 
by the Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5). 

(ii) The Town Administrator may refer any Administrative Adjustment 
application to the Planning Commission that, in their opinion, 
presents issues that require Planning Commission attention. 

b. Review Criteria 

In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on an 
Administrative Adjustment:  

(i) The proposed use, structure, or activity is permitted in the underlying 
zoning district;  

(ii) There are special circumstances existing on the property for which 
the application is made related to size, shape, area, topography, 
surrounding conditions, and location that do not apply generally to 
other property in the same area and zoning district;  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(b) Avalanche Hazard Permit, Minor Avalanche Hazard Permit, Minor 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  125 

(iii) The special circumstances have not been created by the applicant; 
and 

(iv) The impact of the Administrative Adjustment is internal to the 
subject property. 

(b) Avalanche Hazard Permit, Minor 
(1) Purpose  

The purpose a Minor Avalanche Hazard Development Permit is to regulate 
the approval of certain substantive building and construction activities 
within the Moderate Hazard Blue Zone.  

(2) Applicability 

Minor Avalanche Development Permits are required for the following 
development in the Moderate Hazard Blue Zone: 

a. New single-unit detached dwellings and detached accessory dwellings 
units (ADUs); 

b. Parks and open space uses, as defined in this LUC; 

c. Minor utilities, as defined in this LUC; 

d. Accessory buildings and structures; 

e. Any seasonal development activity or land use not occurring between 
November 1 and May 1 of any year, including the placement of temporary 
structures; and 

f. Outdoor recreation and entertainment uses that involve no structures 
being built or situated within the Moderate Hazard Blue Zone from 
November 1 to May 1 of any year. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(b) Avalanche Hazard Permit, Minor Avalanche Hazard Permit, Minor 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  126 

(3) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-
10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with the 
modifications listed below. 

(4) Application Submittal 

In addition to the general application submittal 
requirements, the application shall contain the 
following:  

a. A two-part, site specific engineering study 
report that contains: 

(i) The complete study and report (as 
prepared by a qualified professional civil or 
geotechnical engineer licensed in 
Colorado or qualified professional 
geologist in the field of avalanche 
occurrence, force and behavior) 
documenting avalanche impact pressures 
present at any and all proposed building 
and construction sites on the applicant's property; and 

(ii) Complete construction plans and specifications for all proposed 
buildings and structures (as prepared by a qualified structural 
engineer licensed to practice in the State of Colorado), including the 
structural engineer's certification that the buildings and structures, if 
constructed in accordance with the submitted plans and 
specifications, will withstand the avalanche impact pressures as 
documented in the study and report.  

b. All investigations, studies, and reports shall be prepared at the 
applicant's expense. The investigations, studies, and reports must 
specifically answer the following:  

(i) Whether the site specific conditions are such that the property can 
or cannot be developed for the specific structures or proposed uses 
with or without on-site protective measures and, if protective 
measures are necessary, what those specific measures are, including 
site and construction plans for the protective measures; and 

(ii) Whether the on-site protective measures will increase the hazard to 
other properties, structures, roads, rights-of-way, easements, utilities, 
or construction located adjacent to or downslope from the 
applicant's property.  

c. Certification by the design engineer that the on-site protective measures, 
if constructed as designed, will withstand the documented avalanche 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(b) Avalanche Hazard Permit, Minor Avalanche Hazard Permit, Minor 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  127 

impact pressures and protect the subject properties without adversely 
impacting adjoining and/or downslope properties. 

d. A vegetation protection and removal plan that demonstrates compliance 
with Section 15-5-10(d)(5), Vegetation Removal Prohibited.  

(5) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Minor Avalanche Hazard Development Permit applications are reviewed 
and decided on by the Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5). 

b. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Minor 
Avalanche Hazard Development Permit: 

(i) The application shall comply with all standards set forth in Section 15-
5-10. 

(ii) The applicant has submitted sufficient proof that the site can be 
developed for the proposed use because the danger posed by an 
avalanche can be reduced or mitigated to a reasonable level.  

(iii) The public health, safety, and welfare hazards associated with 
developing and occupying property are maximally reduced to a 
reasonable and acceptable level, including specific findings that 
establishment of the proposed improvements and/or land uses will 
not increase the potential avalanche hazard or public health, safety 
and welfare hazards associated with avalanches on adjoining 
properties, both within and outside of the Moderate Hazard Blue 
Zone, especially downslope of the subject property.  

(iv) The applicant does not have the opportunity to build outside the 
hazard and chooses, with substantial hardship reason, to develop 
within the avalanche hazard area boundaries. 

(6) Post Decision Actions and Obligations  

a. Prior to issuance of any building permit for construction within the 
Moderate Hazard Blue Zone, the applicant shall sign a release and 
indemnification agreement and the agreement shall be properly 
recorded in the office of the County Clerk and Recorder, at the expense 
of the applicant, by the Town. 

b. All plans submitted with a building permit application for property 
within a Moderate Hazard Blue Zone shall be stamped "Construction in 
Avalanche Hazard Area," together with the applicable sub-zone 
designation. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(c) Expedited Review for Affordable Housing Expedited Review for Affordable Housing 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  128 

(c) Expedited Review for Affordable Housing  
(1) Purpose  

This procedure allows for expedited review of certain procedures for qualified 
affordable housing projects to help facilitate the creation of affordable 
housing within the Town of Silverton and to comply with Colorado 
Proposition 123. 

(2) Applicability 

a. This procedure may be requested by an applicant for the following 
procedures except when related to a procedure in Subsection b below:  

(i) Administrative Adjustment;  

(ii) Avalanche, Flood, and Slope Hazard Permits; 

(iii) Historic District Overlay Review, Major and Minor;  

(iv) Special Use Permit;  

(v) Site Plan;  

(vi) Variance; and  

(vii) Building permits.  

b. This process may not be requested or applied to the following 
procedures:  

(i) Annexations/Disconnections;  

(ii) Appeals;  

(iii) Historic District Overlay Designation; 

(iv) LUC Text Amendments;  

(v) Master Plan Amendments;  

(vi) Plat Amendments and Final Plats for Condos or Townhomes; 

(vii) Subdivisions, Simple and Major; 

(viii) Subdivision Design Modifications;  

(ix) Planned Unit Development;  

(x) Temporary Use Permits;  

(xi) Vacation of Right-of-way ; and  

(xii) Zoning Map Amendments.  

c. In order to qualify for Expedited Review, at least 50 percent of the 
residential units in the development must qualify as affordable housing, 
as defined by this LUC, and those units will remain affordable for a period 
of at least 99 years.  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(c) Expedited Review for Affordable Housing Expedited Review for Affordable Housing 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  129 

(3) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-20 
apply, as shown in the flow chart, with the 
modifications listed below.  

(4) Application Submittal 

a. The application must specifically request 
Expedited Review. 

b. Development for the purpose of affordable 
housing may formally request the Board of 
Trustees allow a reduction in application fees. 

(5) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Review and Decision 

(i) The Expedited Review shall be reviewed and 
decided on by the Town Administrator per 
Section 15-8-20(f)(5).  

(ii) The Town Administrator may refer any 
Expedited Review application to the decision-making body identified 
for the specific procedure that, in their opinion, presents issues that 
require additional attention. 

(iii) Upon determination of a complete application by the Town, a final 
decision on the application shall occur not more than 90 days after 
the determination. This shall include all required public hearings, as 
appropriate. 

(iv) Qualified affordable housing expedited review projects will be given 
first priority for scheduling of all meetings, as applicable, including 
but not limited to preapplication meetings and public hearings.  

(v) The 90 day review timeframe may be extended in the following 
circumstances: 

1. At the request of the applicant, a one-time 90 day extension may 
be provided for the applicant to address comments on the 
application from an agency that has approval authority like a 
state agency. 

2. At the discretion of the Town, a 30 day extension may be 
provided. The Town shall notify the applicant of the intent to 
extend the process. These extensions should be utilized to 
provide additional time for the developer and local government 
to review address submittal materials and comments.  

(vi) The requirements of this Section do not preclude the Town from 
processing an application in less than 90 days. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(d) Final Plat for Condominium or Townhome Final Plat for Condominium or Townhome 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  130 

b. Review Criteria 

In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(f)(5), the review criteria within each specific procedure shall be 
considered. 

(6) Post Decision Actions and Obligations  

See specific procedures.  

(d) Final Plat for Condominium or Townhome 
(1) Purpose 

A Final Plat for Condominium or Townhome is a mechanism to ensure that 
condominium and townhome subdivisions and conversions comply with this 
Code. 

(2) Applicability 

a. This process is applicable to existing buildings converting into 
condominiums or townhomes and as the final step for new 
condominiums or townhomes. A new condominium or townhouse 
subdivision shall first be processed as a Simple Subdivision per Section 
15-8-30(k)or as a Major Subdivision per Section 15-8-40(k). 

b. Approval is required before any sale of individual units in a multiunit 
dwelling, or of individual commercial or other space within a larger 
building, whether or not there is tenancy in common.  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(e) Flood Hazard Development Permit Flood Hazard Development Permit 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  131 

(3) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-
8-10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with 
the modifications listed below. 

(4) Application Submittal  

In addition to the application requirements in 
Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall 
contain a plat map as required for a Final Plat in 
Section 15-8-40(k)(4). 

(5) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Final Plats for Condominium or Townhome 
applications are reviewed and decided on by 
the Town Administrator per Section 15-8-
20(f)(5). 

b. No requirement for public improvements, 
dedication of land to public use or cash-in-
lieu, or other subdivision requirement shall 
be imposed as a condition of approval for a 
condominium subdivision or common 
interest community which would not be 
imposed upon a physically identical 
development under a different form of ownership. This provision shall 
not be construed to prevent the Town from imposing the review 
requirements of this Code upon any change of use, expansion of use, 
increase in intensity of use, or other change in a condominium or 
common interest community unrelated to its form of ownership. 

c. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Final Plat 
for a Condominium or Townhome:  

(i) The proper dedications have been made; and  

(ii) The plat accurately depicts the completion of the improvements in a 
manner that is substantially consistent with the approved Final Plat. 

(6) Post-Decision Actions 

An approved plat map shall be recorded per Section 15-8-20(i)(4). 

(e) Flood Hazard Development Permit 
(1) Purpose 

Flood Hazard Development Permits ensure development does not affect 
flooding or flood damage and minimize public and private losses due to 
flooding. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(e) Flood Hazard Development Permit Flood Hazard Development Permit 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  132 

(2) Applicability 

A Flood Hazard Development Permit is required before construction, 
substantial improvement or development begins within any area of special 
flood hazard. Any structure or nonstructural activity or development that 
may affect flooding or flood damage must have a permit. 

(3) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-
10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with the 
modifications listed below. 

(4) Application Submittal 

In addition to the general application submittal 
requirements, the application shall include plans 
drawn to a scale legible for reasonable review and 
interpretation by the Town Administrator showing 
the nature, location, dimensions and elevations of 
the area in question; existing or proposed 
structures; fill; storage of materials; drainage 
facilities; and the location of the foregoing. 
Specifically, the following information is required:  

a. Elevation in relation to mean sea level of the 
lowest floor (including basement) of all 
structures;  

b. Elevation in relation to mean sea level to 
which any structure has been floodproofed;  

c. Certification by a Colorado registered professional engineer or architect 
that the floodproofing methods for any nonresidential structure meet 
the relevant floodproofing criteria set forth in Section 15-5-20; and  

d. Description of the extent to which any watercourse will be altered or 
relocated as a result of proposed development. 

(5) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Flood Hazard Development Permit applications are reviewed and 
decided on by the Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5). 

b. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Flood 
Hazard Development Permit: 

(i) The application shall comply with all standards set forth in this 
Section 15-5-20; 

(ii) The uses, activities, and structures included in the application: 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(f) Historic District Overlay Review, Minor Historic District Overlay Review, Minor 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  133 

(iii) Are likely to have little or no effect on lands upstream, downstream 
and in the immediate vicinity of the development covered under the 
Flood Hazard Development Permit including, without limitation, 
utility and transportation facilities; 

(iv) Will not result in an unreasonable risk of harm to people or property – 
both on site and in the surrounding area – from natural hazards; 

(v) Are likely to have little or no effect on any tributaries to the main 
stream, drainage ditches, water supply and irrigation ditches, storm 
drainage facilities, reservoirs, or any other drainage or irrigation 
facilities or systems; and 

(vi) Are likely to have little or no effect on the safety of access to property 
in times of flood for ordinary and emergency vehicles. 

(vii) The heights and velocities of the floodwaters expected at the site 
shall not adversely affect the development of surrounding property. 

(f) Historic District Overlay Review, Minor 
(1) Purpose 

Minor Historic District Overlay Review allows for the regulation of minor 
exterior building and construction activities within the Historic District 
Overlay. 

(2) Applicability 

Historic District Overlay Review is required for all new construction, exterior 
alterations, relocations, and demolitions on any property within the Historic 
District Overlay. Minor Alterations include all alterations of building exteriors 
that do not have a significant or detrimental impact on the historic building 
or the district, excluding signs. This includes, but is not limited to: 

a. Building repairs and maintenance, including painting; 

b. In kind replacement of exterior building elements; 

c. Alterations that are not viewable by the public from a public right-of-way, 
except from alleys;  

d. Reroofing with the same materials and colors;  

e. Utility modifications that do not impact the exterior of the building or 
increase mass of the building; and 

f. Artwork painted on or attached to the exterior of the building. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(f) Historic District Overlay Review, Minor Historic District Overlay Review, Minor 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  134 

(3) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 
15-8-20 apply, as shown in the flow chart, with 
the modifications listed below.  

(4) Application Submittal  

In addition to the application requirements in 
Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall 
contain: 

a. An explanation of the how the project will 
affect or impact the Historic District 
Overlay within the written narrative;  

b. A site plan including existing and 
proposed easements, buildings, and 
utilities; and  

c. Building design plans including detailed 
elevations showing exterior materials, 
finishes, design detail, and the proposed 
structure alongside the adjacent structures. 

(5) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Minor Alteration applications are reviewed and decided on by the Town 
Administrator. The Town Administrator may refer any application to the 
Historic Preservation Committee that, in their opinion, presents issues 
that require Historic Preservation Committee attention. 

b. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Historic 
District Overlay Review: 

(i) The following criteria apply to all applications: 

1. Compliance with Section 15-2-80(a)(7), Design Standards for All 
Development in the Historic District Overlay.  

(ii) The following criteria apply to Non-Contributing Property:  

1. Compatibility with the property’s current design, materials, 
features, size, scale and proportion, and massing; or 

2. Compatibility with the Historic District Overlay’s design, 
materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing. 

(iii) The following criteria apply to total demolition of Contributing 
Property: 

1. The property proposed for demolition is not structurally sound, 
despite evidence of the owner’s efforts to properly maintain it;  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(g) LUC Interpretation LUC Interpretation 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  135 

2. The property cannot be preserved, restored, rehabbed, or reused 
on site to provide for any reasonable, beneficial use of the 
property regardless of any proposed development plan for the 
property’s site or adjacent properties; and 

3. The property cannot be practically moved to another site in 
Town. 

(iv) The following criteria apply to partial demolition of Contributing 
Property: 

1. The partial demolition is required for the preservation, 
restoration, or rehabilitation of the property. 

(6) Post-Decision Actions 

If the application is denied, the applicant may request a Variance as outlined 
in Section 15-8-40(n). 

(g) LUC Interpretation 
(1) Purpose 

An LUC Interpretation request allows a code user to ask the Town to clarify 
how a specific provision(s) of this LUC is interpreted. 

(2) Applicability 

a. An applicant, any person affected by an action proposed pursuant to this 
Code, or any Town department or other governmental agencies that may 
be subject to the provisions of this Code may request an LUC 
Interpretation.  

b. Interpretations may be requested for a provision of this LUC subject to a 
proposed or current application, hearing, or appeal.  

c. The Town Administrator may also provide a property-specific LUC 
Interpretation in the form of a LUC clarification that identifies whether 
specific regulations in this LUC are applicable to the subject property. 

  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(h) Minor Plat Amendment Minor Plat Amendment 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  136 

 

(3) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-
10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with the 
following exceptions and the modifications listed 
below: 

a. Section 15-8-20(e)(3)a, Town Cost 
Reimbursement, is not required. 

b. Section 15-8-20(f)(1) Referral Agency Review, is 
not required. 

(4) Review and Decision-Making 

a. LUC Interpretation applications are reviewed 
and decided on by the Town Administrator 
per Section 15-8-20(f)(5). 

b. Interpretations shall be made in accordance 
with the following review criteria: 

(i) The intent or purpose statement of the 
specific regulation; 

(ii) Context of related regulations;  

(iii) Implementation of the Master Plan and other applicable Town plans; 
and 

(iv) Individual and community life, safety, and public health. 

(5) Post-Decision Actions 

a. The Town Administrator shall maintain an official record of all 
interpretations, which shall be available for public inspection during 
normal business hours. 

b. LUC Interpretations do not expire. The Town Administrator, in their 
discretion, may reconsider and revise a previous interpretation. 

(h) Minor Plat Amendment 
(1) Purpose  

A Minor Plat Amendment allows specific adjustments to approved plats, 
vacation of easements, or the vacation of a plat of record.  

(2) Applicability  

This procedure may be used for the following changes to an approved plat:  

a. Correct an error or omission; 

b. Indicate monument changes or corrections; 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(h) Minor Plat Amendment Minor Plat Amendment 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  137 

c. Correct an error in courses and distances of lot lines between two 
adjacent lots if: 

(i) Both lot owners join in the application for amending the plat; 

(ii) Neither lot is abolished; 

(iii) The amendment does not attempt to remove recorded covenants or 
restrictions; and 

(iv) The amendment does not have a material adverse effect on the 
property rights of the owners in the plat; 

d. Relocate a lot line to eliminate an inadvertent encroachment of a 
building or other improvement on a lot line or easement;  

e. Relocate or remove one or more lot lines between one or more adjacent 
lots if all of the following have been met: 

(i) The owners of all those lots join in the application; 

(ii) The amendment does not attempt to remove recorded covenants or 
restrictions; and  

(iii) The amendment does not increase the number of lots;  

f. Consolidate no more than three previously platted lots into fewer lots; 

g. Vacate an easement; or  

h. Vacate a previously recorded plat of 
record.  

(3) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 
15-8-10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, 
with the modifications listed below.  

(4) Application Submittal 

a. In addition to the application 
requirements in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the 
application shall be prepared in the form 
of an affidavit or, where deemed 
necessary by the Town Administrator, a 
revised plat certified by a land surveyor 
licensed with the State of Colorado and 
shall be recorded per Section 15-8-20(i)(4). 

b. Vacation of a utility easement shall be 
accomplished by letters of acquiescence 
from all interested utility companies.  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(i) Sign Permit Sign Permit 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  138 

(5) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Minor Plat Amendment applications are reviewed and decided on by the 
Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5). 

b. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Minor 
Plat Amendment:  

(i) There is no increase the number of lots and the amendment does 
not create new lots; 

(ii) The amendment does not affect a recorded easement without 
approval of the easement holder; 

(iii) Street locations will not be changed; and 

(iv) The amendment will not create any nonconformities or increase the 
degree of nonconformity of any existing structure, use, or 
development standards. 

(6) Post-Decision Actions 

The approved minor plat amendment, a plat map or text description, shall be 
recorded per Section 15-8-20(i)(4). 

(i) Sign Permit 
(1) Purpose 

All signs, temporary or permanent, shall require the 
issuance of a Sign Permit. 

(2) Common Review Procedures  

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-
10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with the 
modifications listed below. 

(3) Application Submittal  

a. An application may be submitted by the owner, 
occupant, or lease holder.  

b. An application may include all signs to be 
installed at a single building location, including 
multiple tenants, but may not include more 
than one business location at a different 
building. 

(4) Review and Decision-Making 

Sign Permit applications are reviewed and decided on by the Town 
Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5). 

(5) Post-Decision Actions 

Sign Permits do not expire.  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(j) Sign Plan, Coordinated Sign Plan, Coordinated 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  139 

(j) Sign Plan, Coordinated 
(1) Purpose 

A Coordinated Sign Plan may be developed for buildings or properties with 
multiple lots, buildings, or multiple tenants to determine how sign area will 
be allocated among the lots, buildings, or tenants and to develop a cohesive 
plan for lot or building signage. 

(2) Common Review Procedures  

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-
10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with the 
modifications listed below. 

(3) Application Submittal  

In addition to the application requirements in 
Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall identify 
all proposed signage for an entire lot or 
development site and shall include the following 
information: 

a. Sign dimensions and approximate locations; 

b. Materials and colors; 

c. Proposed illumination, including illumination 
levels; 

d. Maximum numbers of tenant signs per sign 
face; 

e. A design theme with illustrative examples of each sign type and the 
proposed general locations of each sign type; 

f. A demonstration that the Coordinated Sign Plan will improve the 
aesthetics of the development and will not have an adverse impact on 
the use, enjoyment, or value of adjacent properties; and 

g. Other maps, drawings or materials as required by the Town 
Administrator. 

(4) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Coordinated Sign Plans applications are reviewed and decided on by the 
Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5). 

b. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(f)(5), the standards in Section 15-7-110(b) shall be met when deciding 
on a Coordinated Sign Plan. 

(5) Post-Decision Actions 

Coordinated Sign Plans do not expire.  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(k) Simple Subdivision Simple Subdivision 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  140 

(k) Simple Subdivision  
(1) Purpose  

This procedure can be used to: 

a. Create up to four additional lots or condominium/townhouse units 
where no new infrastructure or public improvements are required; 

b. Relocate or remove one or more lot lines, that does not qualify as a Minor 
Plat Amendment; or 

c. Change a plat beyond the amendments allowed under a Minor Plat 
Amendment. 

(2) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-
10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with the 
modifications listed below.  

(3) Application Submittal 

a. A Simple Subdivision application may be 
filed by any property owner with title to the 
entire property subject to the application. 

b. In addition to the application requirements 
in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall 
contain the following information: 

(i) A plat map as required for a Final Plat in 
Section 15-8-40(k)(4);  

(ii) A site plan of the property at a scale 
legible for reasonable review and 
interpretation by the Town Administrator 
showing:  

1. Existing and proposed lot or unit and 
parcel boundaries; 

2. Existing zoning; and  

3. The location and dimensions of existing conditions including, but 
not limited to, improvements such as buildings, easements, 
parking areas, sidewalks, streets, drives, alleys and roads on or 
adjoining the property. Other significant conditions existing on 
the property, including but not limited to watercourses, marshes, 
rock outcrops, major rock formations, groves of trees, major 
vegetation categories, and potential geologic hazard; and 

(iii) Other materials necessary to show compliance with Article 4, 
Subdivision Design and Improvement and this Code. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(l) Site Plan Site Plan 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  141 

(4) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Simple Subdivision applications are reviewed and decided on by the 
Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5). 

b. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Simple 
Subdivision:  

(i) The resulting lots or units comply with all applicable requirements of 
this Code; 

(ii) Any changes to existing easements or right-of-way have been 
completed in accordance with this Code or otherwise allowed by law 
(additional easements or right-of-way may be dedicated); 

(iii) The existing right-of-way is not changed;  

(iv) If a new lot(s) is being created, the total number of new lots on the 
property created through Simple Subdivision within the preceding 10 
years does not exceed four; and  

(v) If vacating a plat, the result of the vacation will not interfere with 
development or deny access via public right-of-way to adjoining 
properties, utility service, or other improvements.  

(5) Post-Decision Actions 

Once approved, the plat map shall be recorded per Section 15-8-20(i)(4). 

(l) Site Plan  
(1) Purpose  

Site Plan review provides a visual representation of a proposed development 
to ensure compliance with the standards of this Code and to encourage 
quality development reflective of the goals, policies, and objectives of the 
Master Plan. 

(2) Applicability  

This procedure is required for:  

a. All new construction, except those that are part of an application for 
Subdivision or PUD.  

b. Placing a built or partially built building on a property including 
accessory structures greater than 150 square feet in area. 

c. The following applications or requests: 

(i) Temporary uses and structures;  

(ii) Change of use into a new category as set forth in Table 15-3-1: Use 
Table; and 

(iii) Special Use Permit; 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(l) Site Plan Site Plan 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  142 

d. Any proposed redevelopment that meets the definition in this Code; and 

e. Requests for amendments or modifications to approvals that do not 
qualify for an Administrative Adjustment including: 

(i) Relocation of development pads, buildings, or dwelling units for 
some practical reasons such as topography, road alignment or 
easements provided that the modification does not significantly alter 
the site design in terms of parking layouts, vehicular circulation, 
landscape design, and other similar components of the development 
plans; 

(ii) A modification to a recreation area or open space design, but not 
elimination or more than a 10 percent reduction;  

(iii) A change in the parking layout or vehicular circulation; 

(iv) Any change that may affect an adjoining development; 

(v) Any request that would significantly 
alter the design of the site or 
building(s); and 

(vi) A request to change or delete a 
condition of approval established by 
the decision-making body. 

(3) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-
8-10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with 
the modifications listed below. 

(4) Application Submittal 

a. In addition to the application requirements 
in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall 
contain a site plan of the property at a scale 
legible for reasonable review and 
interpretation by the Town Administrator 
including, but not limited to, the following: 

(i) Lot and parcel boundaries and dimensions; 

(ii) Existing easements and natural features; 

(iii) Abutting roads; 

(iv) Location and dimensions of vehicular and pedestrian access and 
circulation on the property;  

(v) Location and dimensions of all existing and proposed uses and 
structures, including any proposed temporary uses; 

(vi) Distance of all structures from property lines; 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(l) Site Plan Site Plan 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  143 

(vii) Parking layout with dimensions; 

(viii) Landscaping; 

(ix) Outdoor lighting;  

(x) Layout of recreational vehicle or manufactured home spaces and 
utilities, if applicable; 

(xi) Proposed Administrative Adjustment, if applicable; 

(xii) A phasing plan, if applicable; and  

(xiii) Any other information necessary to show the requirements of 
this Code and the review criteria have been met 

(5) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Site Plan applications are reviewed and decided on by the Town 
Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5). 

b. The Town Administrator may refer any Site Plan application to the 
Planning Commission that, in the Town Administrator’s opinion, presents 
issues that require Planning Commission attention. 

c. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Site Plan:  

(i) Any significant adverse impacts reasonably anticipated to result from 
the Site Plan application will be mitigated or offset to the maximum 
extent practicable; 

(ii) The development proposed and its general location is, or will be, 
compatible with the character of surrounding land uses and 
structures; and  

(iii) The development can be adequately served by Town services 
including, but not limited to roads, water, and wastewater. 

(6) Post-Decision Actions  

a. Approved Site Plan documents shall be binding upon the applicants and 
their successors and assigns.  

b. When Site Plan review is required, structures and uses may be 
established and building permits may be issued only after a Site Plan 
showing the proposed development or redevelopment has been 
approved in accordance with the procedures and requirements of this 
Section. 

c. The construction, location, use or operation of all land and structures 
within the site shall conform to all conditions and limitations set forth in 
the documents. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(m) Slope Hazard Development Permit Slope Hazard Development Permit 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  144 

d. No structure, use, or other element of approved Site Plan documents 
shall be eliminated, altered, or provided in another manner unless an 
amended Site Plan is approved. Requests for amendments of approved 
Site Plans shall be processed in accordance with the procedures for an 
initial Site Plan submittal. 

(m) Slope Hazard Development Permit 
(1) Purpose  

Slope Hazard Development Permits regulate the approval of certain building 
and construction activities within the slope hazard areas.  

(2) Applicability 

Slope Hazard Development Permits are required for any development that 
meets the standards in this Section. 

(3) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-
10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with the 
modification listed below.  

(4) Application Submittal 

a. In addition to the general application 
submittal requirements, the application shall 
contain: 

(i) A topographic map or maps showing the 
location, nature and dimensions of the 
proposed development at a scale legible 
for reasonable review and interpretation 
by the Town Administrator;  

(ii) A detailed site plan showing: 

1. The location of all existing and 
proposed structures and paved 
surfaces on the applicant's property 
and any existing septic systems and wells on the property; 

2. The location of the proposed area of disturbance on the 
applicant's property and its relation to neighboring properties' 
structures, roads, and watercourses; 

3. The location on the applicant's property of all existing 
watercourses, marshes, wooded areas, rock outcrops, single trees 
with a diameter of eight inches or more measured three feet 
above the base of the trunk, and all other significant existing land 
features; and 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(n) Temporary Use Permit Temporary Use Permit 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  145 

4. The existing grades on the applicant's property with contour 
lines at two-foot intervals and proposed grades within the area of 
the proposed construction or alteration. 

(iii) A drainage plan submitted by a licensed professional engineer 
showing: 

1. All existing and proposed natural and artificial drainage courses 
and other features for the control of drainage, erosion, and water. 

2. The calculated volume of water runoff from the slope(s) and from 
the lot in question, as unimproved. 

3. The calculated volume of water runoff from the slope(s) and from 
the lot in question, as improved. 

4. The existence, location and capacity of all natural and artificial 
drainage courses and facilities within 500 feet of the lot which 
are or will be used to carry or contain the water runoff from the 
slope(s) and the lot; and 

5. A geologist’s or registered geotechnical engineer’s report 
explaining the maps and cross sections required in this Section 
with particular emphasis on evaluating and predicting the 
impact of the slope hazard areas on the proposed developments. 
It shall also include recommended mitigating procedures to be 
employed in meeting the standards of this Section. 

(iv) A vegetation protection plan that demonstrates compliance with 
Section 15-5-30(e)(3), Removing Vegetation. 

(5) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Slope Hazard Development Permit applications are reviewed and 
decided on by the Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5). 

b. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), application shall comply with all standards set forth in this 
Section. 

(n) Temporary Use Permit 
(1) Purpose 

Temporary Use Permits ensure that a proposed temporary use or structure 
complies with the applicable regulations in this LUC. 

(2) Applicability 

This procedure is required for any use listed as a temporary use in Table 15-
3-1: Use Table. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(o) Vacation Rental Permit Vacation Rental Permit 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  146 

(3) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-
8-10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with 
the modifications listed below.  

(4) Review and Decision-Making  

a. Temporary Use Permit applications are 
reviewed and decided on by the Town 
Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5). 

b. In addition to the generally applicable 
review criteria in Section 15-8-20(h)(4), the 
following criteria shall be met when 
deciding on a Temporary Use Permit:  

(i) Requirements for vehicular 
ingress/egress and corresponding 
traffic safety provisions, parking 
requirements and facilities, and hours 
of operation; 

(ii) Regulation of public nuisance factors (e.g., light glare, noise, vibration, 
smoke, dust, dirt, odors, gases, and heat); and 

(iii) Regulation of maintenance and site restoration during, and after 
termination of the temporary use or expiration of the Temporary Use 
Permit. 

(5) Post-Decision Actions 

Expiration is as stated in an approved permit. 

(o) Vacation Rental Permit 
(1) Purpose 

Vacation Rental Permits ensure that a proposed vacation rental complies 
with the applicable regulations in this LUC. 

(2) Applicability 

This procedure is required for any vacation rental as defined in Section 15-11-
30, General Terms. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(o) Vacation Rental Permit Vacation Rental Permit 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  147 

(3) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-
8-10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with 
the modifications listed below. 

(4) Application Submittal 

In addition to the application requirements in 
Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall 
contain:  

a. Required Maps and Plans  

(i) Graphic Bar Scale Required 

All maps and plans listed in this Section 
shall include a graphic bar scale legible 
for reasonable review and 
interpretation by the Town 
Administrator. 

(ii) Vicinity Map 

Provide a vicinity map or aerial photo 
that clearly identifies, with text labels, the property, local blocks, lots, 
streets, and alleys.  

(iii) Adjacent Land Owner Map 

Provide a map with a 300 foot radius circle from the center-point of 
the vacation rental property that indicates the adjacent land owner 
notification area. Indicate neighboring properties by name or other 
indicator tied to notification mailing list.  

(iv) Site Plan 

Provide a drawn-to-scale site plan of the property, indicating with 
text labels all existing buildings, decks, walkways, trash bin, propane 
tanks, snow storage areas, on-site parking space(s), and other 
relevant site features, and any proposed improvements within the 
property boundaries.  

(v) Parking Plan 

Indicate the availability of guest parking, both on street and onsite 
parking, provided for evaluation of tenant capacity. Indicate a 
proposed parking area for one passenger pickup with attached 
trailer.  

(vi) Floor Plans 

Sketch the residential unit's existing floor plans that includes all 
habitable areas, including but not limited to: the number of 
bedrooms, baths, and other rooms, and their use names, and fire 
extinguisher location(s).  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions  

15-8-30(o) Vacation Rental Permit Vacation Rental Permit 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  148 

(vii) Proposed Improvements Plan 

Sketch any changes which are proposed in the use of all habitable 
areas of the structure, including but not limited to: the number of 
bedrooms, baths, kitchen and other rooms and their use names, and 
any modification or additions that are proposed to the interior or 
exterior of the structure. Any structural changes or additions to the 
residential unit require a building permit per the provisions of the 
building code.  

b. Adjacent Land Owner List 

Provide a list of adjacent land owners (according to the current records of 
the San Juan County Assessor) within a 300 foot radius of the center 
point of the proposed vacation rental property.  

c. Manager Contact Information for Adjacent Land Owners 

Inside each of the envelopes, the applicant shall place business card(s), or 
a one page flyer, providing each of the adjacent land owners with the 
names and phone numbers of the proposed primary and secondary 
managers of the proposed vacation rental.  

d. Proof of Ownership 

Deed proof of the applicant's current ownership of the vacation rental 
per a legally recorded document.  

e. Proof of Insurance 

Insurance proof of the Town-required property and liability insurance for 
operation of the vacation rental.  

f. Signage and Lighting Drawing 

Drawing showing existing and proposed signage and lighting at the site 
based on the standards set forth in Article 7, Signs, and Section 15-6-40, 
Outdoor Lighting.  

g. Management Information 

Listing of individual(s), owner, manager, management firm, local contact, 
back-up contact; and all description of all other management 
requirements per the provisions of this Section.  

h. Additional Information 

Additional reasonable submittal items may be required by the Town 
Staff, to allow for the proper evaluation of the vacation rental application.  

(5) Review and Decision-Making  

Vacation Rental Permit applications are reviewed and decided on by the 
Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5).  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(a) Annexation and Disconnection Annexation and Disconnection 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  149 

(6) Post-Decision Actions 

Vacation Rental Permits are valid for the calendar year in which the permit is 
approved. Application for a vacation rental permit shall be submitted each 
calendar year in accordance with application requirements. Annual permits 
expire on December 31. Annual renewal applications are due by January 31. 
The Town Administrator may administratively approve, modify, amend or 
deny renewal permits based on the renewal application and review of 
documented violations and complaints. Applicants may appeal 
administrative decisions to the Board of trustees. 

15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required 

(a) Annexation and Disconnection 
(1) Purpose  

Annexation and Disconnection establishes a procedure to bring land under 
the jurisdiction of the Town or to remove land from the jurisdiction of the 
Town.  

(2) Applicability  

This procedure is required to add or remove land from the Town of Silverton’s 
jurisdiction. 

(3) Review Procedures  

Procedures for review and decision of Annexations are established in the 
Colorado Municipal Annexation Act of 1965, as amended. See Title 31, Article 
12 C.R.S.  

(b) Appeal of an Administrative Decision 
(1) Purpose 

This process allows the review of administrative decisions made by Town 
staff. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  
15-8-40(b) Appeal of an Administrative Decision Appeal of an Administrative Decision 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  150 

(2) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-
8-10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with 
the modifications listed below.  

(3) Application Submittal 

a. Appeals may be requested by an affected 
party aggrieved by an administrative 
decision made under this Code. For 
purposes of this Section, an affected party 
is: 

(i) The applicant for the decision being 
appealed; 

(ii) The owner or tenant of a lot or parcel of 
land located within 1,000 feet of the 
subject property; or 

(iii) Any resident of the Town who has 
submitted written comments prior to 
the public hearing on the application. 

b. Recommendations to another decision-
making body cannot be appealed. 

c. All requests shall be submitted within 30 
days following issuance of the Notice of 
Decision being appealed.  

d. In addition to the application requirements in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the 
application shall contain a written narrative that includes an explanation 
of the appeal and how it meets the approval criteria in Section 15-8-
40(b)(5). 

e. The Town Administrator shall notify, in writing, the applicant, any 
administrative official involved, and the Board of Trustees of all appeal 
public hearings scheduled. 

f. The published notice of the public hearing shall be in accordance with 
Section 15-8-20(g)(1). 

(4) Stay of Proceedings 

a. An appeal stays all proceedings in furtherance of the action appealed 
from except as provided in Section 4.b below. No further action will be 
taken by the Town on the initial application or request while the 
administrative decision is being appealed.  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(c) Appeal of a Planning Commission or Historic Preservation Committee Decision Appeal of a 
Planning Commission or Historic Preservation Committee Decision 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  151 

b. The Town may decide not to stay activities related to the application 
while the administrative decision is being appealed where a stay would 
cause imminent peril to life or property, determined as follows: 

(i) The staff member from whom the appeal is taken certifies to the 
Planning Commission that by reason of facts stated in the appeal, a 
stay would, in that officer’s opinion, cause imminent peril to life or 
property.  

(ii) In these cases, proceedings shall not be stayed other than by a court 
of record upon application to same and notice to the officer from 
whom the appeal is taken and on due cause shown. 

(5) Review and Decision-Making  

a. Appeals of Administrative Decisions, except for vacation rental permit 
renewals, shall be made to the Board of Adjustment. Decisions on 
Appeals of vacation rental permit renewals shall be made to the Board of 
Trustees. Both types of appeal shall require a public hearing. 

b. The Board of Adjustment or Board of Trustees may reverse or modify the 
action.  

c. The decision being appealed may only be reversed upon finding all of the 
following criteria have been met: 

(i) The administrative officer acted in a manner inconsistent with the 
provisions of this LUC; or 

(ii) Made erroneous findings of fact based on the evidence and 
testimony on the record. 

(c) Appeal of a Planning Commission or Historic Preservation Committee 
Decision 
(1) Purpose  

This process allows the review of Planning Commission and Historic 
Preservation Committee decisions.  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(c) Appeal of a Planning Commission or Historic Preservation Committee Decision Appeal of a 
Planning Commission or Historic Preservation Committee Decision 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  152 

(2) Common Review Procedures  

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-
10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with the 
modifications listed below. 

(3) Application Submittal  

a. Appeals may be requested by an affected 
party aggrieved by a Planning Commission 
or Historic Preservation Committee decision 
made under this Code. For purposes of this 
Section, an affected party is: 

(i) The applicant for the decision being 
appealed; 

(ii) The owner or tenant of a lot or parcel of 
land located within 1,000 feet of the 
subject property; or 

(iii) Any resident of the Town who has 
submitted written comments prior to the 
review hearing on the application. 

b. Recommendations to another decision-
making body cannot be appealed. 

c. All requests shall be submitted within 30 
days following issuance of the Notice of 
Decision being appealed. 

d. In addition to the application requirements in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the 
application shall contain a written narrative that includes an explanation 
of the appeal and how it meets the approval criteria in Section 15-8-
40(b)(5). 

e. The Town Administrator shall notify, in writing, the applicant, any 
administrative official involved, and the Board of Trustees of all appeal 
public hearings scheduled. 

f. The published notice of the public hearing shall be in accordance with 
Section 15-8-20(g)(1). 

(4) Stay of Proceedings  

a. An appeal stays all proceedings in furtherance of the action appealed 
from except as provided in Section 4.b below. No further action will be 
taken by the Town on the initial application or request while the decision 
is being appealed.  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(d) Avalanche Hazard Permit, Major Avalanche Hazard Permit, Major 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  153 

b. The Town may decide not to stay activities related to the application 
while the decision is being appealed where a stay would cause imminent 
peril to life or property, determined as follows: 

(i) A staff member certifies to the Board of Trustees that by reason of 
facts stated in the appeal, a stay would, in that officer’s opinion, cause 
imminent peril to life or property.  

(ii) In these cases, proceedings shall not be stayed other than by a court 
of record upon application to same and notice to the officer from 
whom the appeal is taken and on due cause shown. 

(5) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Appeals of Planning Commission and Historic Preservation Committee 
Decisions shall be made to the Board of Trustees in a public hearing.  

b. The Board of Trustees may reverse or modify the action.  

c. The decision being appealed may only be overturned upon finding all of 
the following criteria have been met: 

(i) The Planning Commission or Historic Preservation Committee acted 
in a manner inconsistent with the provisions of this LUC; or 

(ii) Made erroneous findings of fact based on the evidence and 
testimony on the record. 

(d) Avalanche Hazard Permit, Major 
(1) Purpose  

Major Avalanche Hazard Development Permits regulate the approval of 
certain substantive building and construction activities within the Moderate 
Hazard Blue Zone or High Hazard Red Zone.  

(2) Applicability 

Major Avalanche Development Permits are required for the following 
development: 

a. All development activity or land use not expressly allowed through a 
Minor Avalanche Development Permit including development in the 
High Hazard Red Zone; and 

b. Avalanche control structures, including deflecting berms and structures, 
mounds and structures, direct-protection structures, catching structures, 
snow drift fences, snow support structures and similar facilities designed 
to inhibit, block, divert, split, or otherwise control the release, extent or 
direction of avalanche runs 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(d) Avalanche Hazard Permit, Major Avalanche Hazard Permit, Major 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  154 

(3) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-
10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with the 
modifications listed below. 

(4) Application Submittal 

In addition to the general application submittal 
requirements, the application shall contain the 
following:  

a. A two-part, site specific engineering study 
report that contains: 

(i) The complete study and report (as 
prepared by a qualified professional civil 
or geotechnical engineer licensed in 
Colorado or qualified professional 
geologist in the field of avalanche 
occurrence, force and behavior) 
documenting avalanche impact pressures 
present at any and all proposed building 
and construction sites on the applicant's 
property; and 

(ii) Complete construction plans and 
specifications for all proposed buildings 
and structures (as prepared by a qualified structural engineer 
licensed to practice in the State of Colorado), including the structural 
engineer's certification that the buildings and structures, if 
constructed in accordance with the submitted plans and 
specifications, will withstand the avalanche impact pressures as 
documented in the study and report.  

b. All investigations, studies, and reports shall be prepared at the 
applicant's expense. The investigations, studies, and reports must 
specifically answer the following:  

(i) Whether the site specific conditions are such that the property can 
or cannot be developed for the specific structures or proposed uses 
with or without on-site protective measures and, if protective 
measures are necessary, what those specific measures are, including 
site and construction plans for the protective measures; and 

(ii) Whether the on-site protective measures will increase the hazard to 
other properties, structures, roads, rights-of-way, easements, utilities, 
or construction located adjacent to or downslope from the 
applicant's property.  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(d) Avalanche Hazard Permit, Major Avalanche Hazard Permit, Major 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  155 

c. Certification by the design engineer that the on-site protective measures, 
if constructed as designed, will withstand the documented avalanche 
impact pressures and protect the subject properties without adversely 
impacting adjoining and/or downslope properties. 

d. A vegetation protection and removal plan that demonstrates compliance 
with Section 15-5-10(d)(5), Vegetation Removal Prohibited.  

(5) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Review and Decision 

Major Avalanche Hazard Development Permits are reviewed and 
recommended by the Planning Commission and decided on by the 
Board of Trustees, both in a public hearing.  

b. Review Criteria 

In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Major 
Avalanche Hazard Development Permit: 

(i) The application shall comply with all standards set forth in Section 15-
5-10. 

(ii) The applicant has submitted sufficient proof that the site can be 
developed for the proposed use because the danger posed by an 
avalanche can be reduced or mitigated to a reasonable level.  

(iii) The public health, safety, and welfare hazards associated with 
developing and occupying property are maximally reduced to a 
reasonable and acceptable level, including specific findings that 
establishment of the proposed improvements and/or land uses will 
not increase the potential avalanche hazard or public health, safety 
and welfare hazards associated with avalanches on adjoining 
properties, both within and outside of the High Hazard Red Zone and 
Moderate Hazard Blue Zone, especially downslope of the subject 
property.  

(iv) The applicant does not have the opportunity to build outside the 
hazard and chooses, with substantial hardship reason, to develop 
within the avalanche hazard area boundaries. 

(6) Post Decision Actions and Obligations 

a. Prior to issuance of any building permit for construction within the High 
Hazard Red Zone or Moderate Hazard Blue Zone, the applicant shall sign 
a release and indemnification agreement and the agreement shall be 
properly recorded in the office of the County Clerk and Recorder, at the 
expense of the applicant, by the Town. 

b. All plans submitted with a building permit application for property 
within a High Hazard Red or Moderate Hazard Blue Zone shall be 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(e) Flood Hazard Variance Flood Hazard Variance 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  156 

stamped "Construction in Avalanche Hazard Area," together with the 
applicable sub-zone designation. 

(e) Flood Hazard Variance 
(1) Purpose 

Flood Hazard Variances allow for deviations from requirements of this 
Section 15-5-20, relative to flood damage prevention. 

(2) Applicability 

a. Flood Hazard Variances may be issued for new construction and 
substantial improvements to be erected on a lot contiguous to and 
surrounded by lots with existing structures constructed below the base 
flood level, provided that the criteria set forth in Subsection d. below 
have been fully considered.  

b. Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of structures 
upon a determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not 
preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure 
and the variance is the minimum necessary 
to preserve the historic character and design 
of the structure.  

c. Variances shall not be issued within any 
floodway if any increase in flood levels during 
the base flood discharge would result. 

(3) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-
10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with 
the modifications listed below. 

(4) Application Submittal 

In addition to the general application submittal 
requirements, the application shall contain the 
following:  

a. A contour map of existing and proposed 
contours prepared by a Colorado registered 
land surveyor showing the subject property 
and at least 300 feet of the area outside the 
perimeter of the subject property;  

b. A drainage study prepared by a Colorado 
registered professional engineer which 
utilizes the criteria presented in this Section, 
which is supplemented by other reliable 
source material (e.g., Corps of Engineers, Housing and Urban 
Development), and contains the engineer's recommendations; and  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(e) Flood Hazard Variance Flood Hazard Variance 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  157 

c. An appendix to the drainage study that addresses each of the subjects 
cited by Subsection (4) below. 

(5) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Review and Decision 

Flood Hazard Variances shall be reviewed and decided on by the Board 
of Adjustment in a public hearing.  

b. Review Criteria 

In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following considerations shall be made when deciding on a 
Flood Hazard Variance:  

(i) All technical evaluations and all relevant factors and standards 
specified in Section 15-5-20 have been met; 

(ii) The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands to the 
injury of others;  

(iii) The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage;  

(iv) The susceptibility of the proposed facility and the contents to flood 
damage and the effect of flood damage on the individual owner;  

(v) The importance of the services provided by the proposed facility to 
the community;  

(vi) The availability of alternative locations for the proposed use which 
are not subject to flooding or erosion damage;  

(vii) The compatibility of the proposed use with existing and anticipated 
development;  

(viii) The relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive and 
flooding management program for the area;  

(ix) The safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and 
emergency vehicles; 

(x) The cost of providing governmental services during and after flood 
conditions, including maintenance and repair of public utilities and 
facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical and water systems, and streets 
and bridges;  

(xi) Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the 
variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to 
afford relief; and 

(xii) Variances shall only be issued upon:  

1. A showing of sufficient cause; 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(f) Historic District Overlay Designation Historic District Overlay Designation 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  158 

2. A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in 
exceptional hardship to the applicant; and  

3. A determination that failure to grant the variance will not result 
in increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety or 
extraordinary public expense, or create nuisances, cause fraud on 
or victimization of the public, or conflict with existing local laws 
or ordinances.  

(6) Post Decision Actions and Obligations 

Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice 
that the requested structure will be permitted and that the cost of flood 
insurance will be commensurate with increased risk from the reduced lowest 
floor elevation. 

(f) Historic District Overlay Designation  
(1) Purpose  

This procedure is required to make any changes to the Historic District 
Overlay, the Town’s Historic Register, including adding or removing property. 

(2) Applicability 

Once an application for Historic District Overlay Designation has been 
submitted, the Town will not issue a building or demolition permit until a 
final decision on the application is issued. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(f) Historic District Overlay Designation Historic District Overlay Designation 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  159 

(3) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-
20 apply, as shown in the flow chart, with the 
modifications listed below.  

(4) Application Submittal 

a. Historic District Overlay Designation may be 
initiated by: 

(i) The owner(s) of the property to be 
designated; 

(ii) A member(s) of the Historic Preservation 
Committee, Planning Commission, 
and/or Board of Trustees, and/or 

(iii) Any person residing, owning, or leasing 
property in the Town. 

b. Where nominated by someone other than 
the property owner, the Town Administrator 
shall contact the owner(s) in writing outlining 
the reasons and effect of Historic District 
Overlay Designation.  

c. Applications for designation shall not be 
considered complete if more than 25 percent 
of the property owners oppose in writing or 
though ballot prepared and administered by 
the Town. 

d. In addition to the application requirements 
in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall contain the following: 

(i) A description of the land area, including lot and block numbers to be 
added, removed, or otherwise modified;  

(ii) A drawing drawn to a scale legible for reasonable review and 
interpretation by the Town Administrator showing boundaries of the 
area requested to be added, removed, or otherwise modified; and 

(iii) Identification of Contributing and Non-Contributing Property within 
the land area to be added, removed, or otherwise modified. 

(5) Review and Decision-Making  

a. Review and Decision  

Historic District Overlay Designations are reviewed and recommended 
on by the Historic Preservation Committee and decided on by the Board 
of Trustees, both in a public hearing. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(f) Historic District Overlay Designation Historic District Overlay Designation 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  160 

b. Review Criteria  

In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on Historic 
District Overlay Designation:  

(i) Eligibility Criteria 

1. Properties shall be at least 50 years old and meet one or more of 
the following criteria: 

a. Association with an event or events that have made a 
significant contribution to history; 

b. Connection with persons significant in history; 

c. Distinctive characteristics of a type, period, method of 
construction, or artisan; 

d. Geographic importance; and/or 

e. Possibility to yield important information related to 
prehistory or history. 

2. A property may be exempted from the age standard if the Board 
of Trustees finds it to be exceptionally important in other criteria. 

(ii) Integrity Criteria 

All properties shall be evaluated for their physical integrity. At least 
two of the following criteria shall be met: 

1. Location: The place where the property was constructed or the 
place where the historic event occurred. 

2. Design: The combination of elements that create the form, plan, 
space, structure, and style of a property. 

3. Setting: The physical environment of a property. 

4. Materials: The physical elements that were combined or 
deposited during a particular period of time and in a particular 
pattern or configuration to form a property. 

5. Workmanship: The physical evidence of the crafts of a particular 
culture or people during any given period in history or prehistory. 

6. Feeling: A property’s expression of the aesthetic or historic sense 
of a particular period of time. 

7. Association: The direct link between an important historic event 
or person and a property. 

(iii) Removal Criteria  

The property has been altered to a degree that it no longer retains its 
historic integrity. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(g) Historic District Overlay Review, Major Historic District Overlay Review, Major 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  161 

(6) Post-Decision Actions 

a. Historic District Overlay Designations must be completed by Ordinance 
in accordance with Chapter 1, Article 3, Division 2 of the Municipal Code.  

b. Historic District Overlay Designations do not expire. 

(g) Historic District Overlay Review, Major 
(1) Purpose 

Major Historic District Overlay Review allows for the regulation of major 
exterior building and construction activities within the Historic District 
Overlay. 

(2) Applicability 

Historic District Overlay Review is required for all new construction, exterior 
alterations, relocations, and demolitions on any property within the Historic 
District Overlay. Major alterations include all alterations of building exteriors 
that do not qualify as a Minor Alteration as well as new construction, 
additions, relocation, and partial and full demolition. This includes, but is not 
limited to: 

a. Creating new openings and changing 
exiting openings, unless the openings are 
located along an alley; 

b. Modifying exterior materials; 

c. Any alteration that changes size or mass of 
building; and 

d. Removal of building elements. 

(3) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-
8-20 apply, as shown in the flow chart, with the 
modifications listed below.  

(4) Application Submittal  

In addition to the application requirements in 
Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall 
contain: 

a. An explanation of the how the project will 
affect or impact the Historic District Overlay 
within the written narrative;  

b. A site plan including existing and proposed 
easements, buildings, and utilities; and  

c. Building design plans including detailed 
elevations showing exterior materials, 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(g) Historic District Overlay Review, Major Historic District Overlay Review, Major 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  162 

finishes, design detail, and the proposed structure alongside the 
adjacent structures. 

(5) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Major Alterations are reviewed and decided on by the Historic 
Preservation Committee at a public meeting that is not required to be a 
public hearing. 

b. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Historic 
District Overlay Review: 

(i) The following criteria apply to all applications: 

1. Compliance with Section 15-2-80(a)(7), Design Standards for All 
Development in the Historic District Overlay.  

(ii) The following criteria apply to Non-Contributing Property:  

1. Compatibility with the property’s current design, materials, 
features, size, scale and proportion, and massing; or 

2. Compatibility with the Historic District Overlay’s design, 
materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing. 

(iii) The following criteria apply to total demolition of Contributing 
Property: 

1. The property proposed for demolition is not structurally sound, 
despite evidence of the owner’s efforts to properly maintain it;  

2. The property cannot be preserved, restored, rehabbed, or reused 
on site to provide for any reasonable, beneficial use of the 
property regardless of any proposed development plan for the 
property’s site or adjacent properties; and 

3. The property cannot be practically moved to another site in 
Town. 

(iv) The following criteria apply to partial demolition of Contributing 
Property: 

1. The partial demolition is required for the preservation, 
restoration, or rehabilitation of the property. 

(6) Post-Decision Actions 

If the application is denied, the applicant may request a Variance as outlined 
in Section 15-8-40(n). 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(h) Land Use Code Text Amendment Land Use Code Text Amendment 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  163 

(h) Land Use Code Text Amendment 
(1) Purpose  

This procedure is required to amend, supplement, change, modify, or repeal 
any portion of this Code, excluding the zoning map. 

(2) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-
10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with the 
modifications listed below. 

(3) Application Submittal  

a. Text Amendments may be initiated by the 
Board of Trustees, the Planning Commission, 
the Town Administrator, or by the application 
of any person residing, owning, or leasing 
property in the Town. 

b. Text Amendments initiated by the Town 
Administrator, Planning Commission, or 
Board of Trustees are exempt from 
preapplication meetings and application 
submittal and acceptance steps of the 
Common Review Procedures. 

(4) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Review and Decision 

(i) The Text Amendment shall be reviewed 
and recommended by the Planning 
Commission and decided on by the 
Board of Trustees, both in a public 
hearing. 

(ii) Approval of a Text Amendment requires a 
favorable vote of a majority of the Board 
of Trustees unless a protest is filed. 

(iii) A favorable vote of two-thirds of all the members of the Board of 
Trustees shall also be required when an amendment or change has 
not been recommended by the Planning Commission or in the event 
of the repeal of all or part of this Code. 

b. Review Criteria 

In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the proposed LUC Text Amendment shall meet at least one of 
the following specific reasons:  

(i) To address trends in development or regulatory practices;  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(i) Master Plan Amendment Master Plan Amendment 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  164 

(ii) To expand, modify, or add requirements for development in general 
or to address specific development issues;  

(iii) To add, modify, or expand zoning districts; or  

(iv) To clarify or modify procedures for processing development 
applications. 

(5) Post-Decision Actions 

a. Text Amendments must be completed by Ordinance in accordance with 
Chapter 1, Article 3, Division 2 of the Municipal Code. 

b. Text Amendments do not expire. 

(i) Master Plan Amendment  
(1) Purpose  

Master Plan Amendments provide standards and 
requirements for amending the Master Plan and 
other adopted Town plans. The amendment 
process is established in order to provide flexibility 
in response to changing circumstances, to reflect 
changes in public policy, and to advance the 
general welfare of the Town. 

(2) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-
10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with the 
following and below modifications:  

a. Before processing an application, the Town 
Administrator shall determine whether it is in 
the best interests of the Town to devote staff 
and Planning Commission resources to a full 
review of the Master Plan Amendment 
application.  

b. Master Plan Amendments requested by the 
Town Administrator, Planning Commission, or 
Board of Trustees are exempt from 
preapplication meetings and application 
submittal and acceptance steps of the 
Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-20. 

(3) Application Submittal  

a. Master Plan Amendment may be initiated by the Town Administrator, 
Planning Commission, Board of Trustees, or any Silverton property 
owner, resident, or tenant. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(i) Master Plan Amendment Master Plan Amendment 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  165 

b. The Town Administrator may limit the timing and frequency of when 
Master Plan Amendments are considered to better ensure a holistic 
review process and avoid small or piecemeal amendments. 

(4) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Review and Decision 

The Master Plan Amendment shall be reviewed and recommended by 
the Planning Commission and decided on by the Board of Trustees, both 
in a public hearing. 

b. Review Criteria 

In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Master 
Plan Amendment:  

(i) The amendment is consistent with the overall intent of the Master 
Plan; 

(ii) The existing Master Plan and any related element thereof is in need 
of the proposed amendment; 

(iii) It is necessary or desirable because of changing social values, new 
planning concepts, or other social or economic conditions and strict 
adherence to the Master Plan will result in a situation neither 
intended nor in keeping with other key elements and policies of the 
plan; 

(iv) The proposed amendment will not have a negative effect on the 
immediate areas or on transportation, services, and facilities; 

(v) The proposed amendment will have minimal effect on service 
provision, including adequacy or availability of public facilities and 
services, and is compatible with existing and planned service 
provision and future development of the area; 

(vi) The proposed amendment, if for an area that is outside of the Town’s 
current municipal boundaries, is consistent with the Town’s ability to 
annex the property; and 

(vii) The proposed amendment will promote the public health, safety, 
and general welfare of the people of Silverton. 

(5) Post-Decision Actions 

a. Master Plan Amendments must be completed by Ordinance in 
accordance with Chapter 1, Article 3, Division 2 of the Municipal Code.  

b. Master Plan Amendments do not expire.  

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(j) Special Use Permit Special Use Permit 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  166 

(j) Special Use Permit  
(1) Purpose  

a. Special uses are land uses that are generally not allowed in a zoning 
district because they have the potential for causing adverse impacts on 
other uses due to factors such as location, method of operation, scale or 
intensity of activity, or traffic generated. Because of their unusual or 
special characteristics, special uses require individual review and 
evaluation so that they may be located properly with respect to their 
effects on surrounding properties and the town at large.  

b. Special Use Permits are required for: 

(i) All uses listed as special uses in Table 15-3-1: Use Table; 

(ii) Any change or expansion of a special use 
shall require a new Special Use Permit; 
and 

(iii) Development on slopes greater than 30 
percent pursuant to Section 15-5-30(d). 

(2) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-
10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with the 
modifications listed below.  

(3) Application Submittal  

a. Special Use Permit applications may be filed 
by any property owner. 

b. In addition to the application requirements 
in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall 
include a Site Plan that also identifies the 
time schedule for any contemplated new 
construction or uses. 

(4) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Review and Decision 

The Special Use Permit shall be reviewed and 
decided on by the Planning Commission in a 
public hearing. 

b. Review Criteria 

In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Special 
Use Permit:  

(i) The use will not be contrary to public health, safety, or welfare. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(k) Subdivision, Major Subdivision, Major 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  167 

(ii) The use will not have an adverse effect upon surrounding property 
values. 

(iii) The use will not generate light, noise, odor, vibration, or other effects 
which would unreasonably interfere with the reasonable enjoyment 
of other property in the area. 

(iv) The use is compatible with existing uses in the area and other 
allowed uses in the zoning district. 

(v) Streets, access points, and pedestrian facilities are adequate or will 
be adequate to handle traffic generated by the use with safety and 
convenience. 

(vi) The use and site layout will be compatible with the mass and scale of 
adjacent properties, or compatible with the mass and scale of 
properties in the area generally.  

(vii) If needed, the visual impact of the use will be mitigated by means of 
design, landscaping, berming, or other methods of site treatment. 

(5) Post-Decision Actions 

Special Use Permits run with the land. The approved permit may be revoked 
upon failure to comply with conditions associated with the original approval. 

(k) Subdivision, Major 
(1) Purpose and Description 

a. The Major Subdivision process is to ensure that proposed subdivisions 
are compliant with the standards and requirements of this Code and to: 

(i) Assist orderly, efficient, and integrated development;  

(ii) Ensure conformance of land subdivision plans with the plans of the 
town, county, and state;  

(iii) Improve land survey monuments and records by establishing 
minimal standards for survey and plats; 

(iv) Safeguard the interests of the public, the homeowner, and the 
applicant; 

(v) Secure equitable handling of all subdivision plans by providing 
uniform procedures; and  

(vi) Ensure the proposal will not impose hardship or substantial 
inconvenience to nearby landowners or residents. 

b. This procedure shall apply to all subdivisions that do not meet the criteria 
for a Simple Subdivision. Applications for a Major Subdivision shall 
include the following steps:  

(i) Sketch Plan. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(k) Subdivision, Major Subdivision, Major 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  168 

(ii) Preliminary Plan. 

(iii) Final Plat. 

c. There shall be no sales, agreements to sell, leases or rentals of any lots in 
a subdivision, and the Town shall not issue building permits for 
structures within the subdivision until the Final Plat has been recorded 
in the office of the San Juan County Clerk and Recorder.  

(2) Sketch Plan 

a. Purpose 

Sketch Plan review provides the Town the opportunity to describe the 
community's vision to the applicant. It also gives the applicant an 
opportunity to discuss the proposed subdivision, explain how it will 
further the community's vision, and obtain input and direction from the 
Planning Commission early in the process. The ultimate goal of this 
process is to help the applicant develop a subdivision plan that fosters 
the community's vision and is in line with this Code. 

b. Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 
15-8-10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, 
with the modifications listed below.  

c. Application Submittal 

In addition to the application requirements 
in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall 
contain the following information:  

(i) Location map: The location map shall 
indicate clearly the relationship of the 
proposed subdivision to the surrounding 
area within one-quarter mile of the 
subdivision's boundaries. The map shall 
show existing development, including all 
streets, utilities, and zoning on and 
adjacent to the proposed subdivision. 
The location map shall include a title, 
scale, total acreage of the tract, north 
arrow and date. The map shall be drawn 
at a scale legible for reasonable review 
and interpretation by the Town 
Administrator. 

(ii) Sketch subdivision plan: The plan shall be at a scale legible for 
reasonable review and interpretation by the Town Administrator, in a 
legible medium, and shall clearly show the following: the proposed 
name of the subdivision; date of preparation; north arrow; the 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(k) Subdivision, Major Subdivision, Major 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  169 

proposed layout of streets and lots in relation to topographic 
conditions and natural landscape features on the site; the proposed 
location and extent of major open surfaces and public sites; general 
location of utilities, easements and installations; proposed land uses; 
and indication of building types, with approximate location of major 
buildings, exclusive of single-unit residential dwellings. 

(iii) General development information: This information shall describe or 
outline the existing conditions of the site and proposed development 
as necessary to supplement the drawings required in Subsections (i) 
and (ii) above, and shall include information on existing covenants 
and land characteristics and information describing the 
development proposal, such as the number of residential lots or 
dwelling units, typical lot width and depth, price range for lots and 
dwelling units, proposed utilities and street improvements. 

d. Review and Decision-Making 

(i) Planning Commission Comments 

1. The Planning Commission shall review the Sketch Plan and 
provide non-binding comments for applicant consideration in 
preparation of the Preliminary Plan.  

2. The public meeting to review the application is not required to 
be a public hearing.  

(ii) Review Considerations 

In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the Planning Commission may comment on any of the 
following criteria:  

1. How the proposed subdivision complies conceptually with the 
Master Plan, and the applicable requirements of this Code; 

2. How the proposed subdivision will be connected to and 
integrated with surrounding natural and developed areas; 

3. How the project will impact neighboring properties (i.e., water 
drainage, traffic circulation, environmental impacts); and 

4. How the proposal promotes the efficient use of land and public 
streets, utilities, and governmental services. 

e. Post-Decision Actions 

Sketch Plan comments are valid for a period of one year.  

(3) Preliminary Plan 

a. Purpose 

The Preliminary Plan procedure provides a mechanism for the Town to 
review an overall plan for a proposed subdivision to ensure compliance 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(k) Subdivision, Major Subdivision, Major 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  170 

with this Code, the Master Plan, and the adequate provision of facilities 
and services in the town. 

b. Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 
15-8-10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow 
chart, with the modifications listed below.  

c. Application Submittal 

(i) A Preliminary Plan application may be 
filed by an applicant after a completed 
Sketch Plan review. 

(ii) In addition to the application 
requirements in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the 
application shall contain the following 
information: 

1. A preliminary plat map at a scale 
legible for reasonable review and 
interpretation by the Town 
Administrator containing at least the 
following information: 

a. Outer boundary lines of the 
tract(s) to be subdivided by 
reference to a permanent survey 
monument; 

b. Location and dimensions of all 
existing streets, alleys, 
easements, drainage areas, 
irrigation ditches and laterals, 
100 year floodplain, and all other significant features; 

c. Location and dimension of all proposed streets, alleys, 
easement, drainage areas, irrigation ditches and laterals and 
all other significant features. For all rights-of-way, include the 
name, width, type, and elevation of surfacing;  

d. Location and dimension of proposed lot lines, lot numbers, 
and block numbers; 

e. Location, dimensions, and purpose of all other proposed 
easements and areas to be reserved or dedicated for public 
use, such as schools, parks, playgrounds or open space, or of 
all facilities or open space to be commonly held or 
maintained; 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(k) Subdivision, Major Subdivision, Major 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  171 

f. Location and full description of all monuments as required 
by Title 38, Article 51, C.R.S.; 

g. Site data, including gross acreage of the subdivision, number 
of lots, and size of each lot; 

h. Name of the proposed subdivision; names and addresses of 
owners, subdividers, designers and engineers; date; scale; 
north arrow; and legal description of tract; 

i. Vicinity map; and 

j. Standard certificate blocks and plat notes as provided by the 
Town Administrator;  

2. A site plan of the subdivision at a scale legible for reasonable 
review and interpretation by the Town Administrator showing at 
least the following:  

a. Existing and proposed lot and parcel boundaries; 

b. Existing zoning; 

c. The location and dimensions of existing conditions including 
but not limited to improvements such as buildings, 
easements, parking areas, sidewalks, streets, drives, alleys 
and roads on or adjoining the property. Other significant 
conditions existing on the property, including but not limited 
to watercourses, marshes, rock outcrops, major rock 
formations, groves of trees, major vegetation categories, and 
potential geologic hazard; and 

d. Other data or conditions on immediately adjacent land, 
including but not limited to names and addresses of all 
adjoining property owners; character and location of 
buildings, power lines, railroad or common carrier facilities, 
towers and other nearby land uses or possible adverse 
influences; and analysis of wildfire hazard potential, 
influences on wildlife and relationship to known historic or 
archaeological sites of value; 

3. A grading and drainage plan showing at least the following 
information: 

a. A topographic map of ground elevations on the tract based 
on the United States Geological Survey datum plane or an 
approved datum plane by the Town Administrator, showing 
contours at two-foot intervals and showing the outer 
boundary lines of the tract; 

b. Cut and fill requirements; 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(k) Subdivision, Major Subdivision, Major 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  172 

c. A map showing the method of moving runoff water through 
the subdivision. The map should show runoff concentrations 
in acres of drainage area on each street entering each 
intersection (this may be combined with the topographic 
map). Flow arrows should clearly show the complete runoff 
flow pattern at each intersection. For storm drainage facilities 
not on or adjacent to the tract, indicate the direction and 
distance to, size and invert elevation or nearest extension of 
the utilities; and 

d. Snow removal patterns and any major snow storage areas, 
and the relationship to the drainage patterns; 

4. Draft infrastructure and utilities plan in compliance with the 
Development Standards and Specifications showing the 
following: 

a. Location and size of existing utilities within and adjacent to 
the subdivision, including water, sewer, electricity, and 
communication; 

b. Location, plan, and profile of all proposed utilities, including 
water mains, fire hydrants, sewers, other utility mains or 
routes (electricity, communication) and any other services 
that shall supply the subdivision. All utilities must be within 
approved easements; 

c. Letter of commitment from all utility providers and data as 
may be required to show the capability and commitment of 
utility provision; 

d. Location and dimensions of all existing roads, sidewalks, curb, 
gutter or other pedestrian facilities; and 

e. Location, plan, and profile of all proposed roads, driveways, 
off-street parking spaces, sidewalk, curb, and gutter; and 

5. Supplemental data, as follows: 

a. Subsurface conditions on the tract: location and results of 
tests to ascertain subsurface soil, rock and groundwater 
conditions; 

b. Draft of proposed covenants whereby the applicant proposes 
to regulate land use in the subdivision and otherwise protect 
the proposed development, if applicable; 

c. Application for rezoning, if applicable; 

d. Application for annexation, if applicable; and 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(k) Subdivision, Major Subdivision, Major 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  173 

e. Other materials necessary to show compliance with Article 4, 
Subdivision Design and Improvement and this Code.  

d. Review and Decision-Making 

(i) Review and Decision  

The Preliminary Plan shall be reviewed and recommended by the 
Planning Commission and decided on by the Board of Trustees, both 
in a public hearing. 

(ii) Review Criteria 

In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be considered when deciding on 
a Preliminary Plan:  

1. The Preliminary Plan is substantially consistent with the Sketch 
Plan comments; 

2. The Preliminary Plan will not have an adverse effect on the 
surrounding area or create an unsafe or hazardous condition;  

3. The Preliminary Plan will not cast an undue burden on public 
utilities and community facilities; and 

4. The Preliminary Plan proposes reasonable project phasing in 
terms of infrastructure capacity, transportation connections, 
provision of parks and recreation areas and public facilities, and 
any other aspect of the development that will be developed 
across multiple phases. 

e. Post-Decision Actions 

(i) Any conditions assigned with an approval of a Preliminary Plan must 
be met before submittal of the Final Plat. 

(ii) Preliminary Plan approval is valid for two years. Filing of a Final Plat 
for all or some of the area within the Preliminary Plan extends the 
approval by two more years with each Final Plat. The Town 
Administrator may grant an extension of time for up to two 
additional years if requested by the applicant. 

(4) Final Plat  

a. Purpose 

Final Plats ensure compliance with the approved Preliminary Plan and 
applicable standards of this Code. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(k) Subdivision, Major Subdivision, Major 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  174 

b. Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 
15-8-10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow 
chart, with the modifications listed below.  

c. Application Submittal  

(i) The Final Plat shall conform 
substantially with the Preliminary Plan 
as approved and address all conditions 
of approval.  

(ii) The approved Preliminary Plan may be 
completed through application for one 
or more Final Plats. Each area subject to 
Final Plat shall conform to all 
requirements of this Code.  

(iii) In addition to the application 
requirements in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), 
the application shall contain the 
following information: 

1. A Final Plat map at a scale legible 
for reasonable review and 
interpretation by the Town 
Administrator containing at least 
the following: 

a. All information required for a 
preliminary plan map;  

b. Primary control points, or 
descriptions, and "ties" to the 
control points to which all 
dimensions, angles, bearings and similar data on the plat 
shall be referred, to include at least one permanent survey 
monument; 

c. Tract boundary lines, right-of-way lines of streets, easements 
and other rights-of-way, and property lines of residential lots 
and other sites, with accurate dimensions, bearing or 
deflection angles and radii, arcs and central angles of all 
curves. All dimensions, both linear and angular, shall be 
determined by an accurate control survey in the field which 
must balance and close within a limit of one in 10,000. No 
Final Plat showing plus or minus dimensions will be 
approved; 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(k) Subdivision, Major Subdivision, Major 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  175 

d. Surveyed legal description of the subdivision, and area of 
each lot; 

e. Location and description of all monuments, both found and 
set; 

f. Names of record owners of all adjoining land; 

g. Reference to recorded subdivision plats of adjoining platted 
land by record name, date, and number; 

h. Signature and seal of land surveyor registered in the State, 
certifying to the accuracy of the survey and plat, including a 
statement explaining how bearings, if used, were 
determined; 

i. Statement by the land owner dedicating streets, rights-of-
way, easements and public sites. A warranty deed to the 
Town shall be required for conveyance of any public lands 
other than streets; 

j. Title under which the subdivision is to be recorded; and 

k. If the subdivision is within avalanche hazard areas, applicable 
sub-zone (High Hazard Red or Moderate Hazard Blue) 
designation for each lot, or portion of a lot by a stamp or 
other written note; 

2. Final grading and drainage plans;  

3. Final infrastructure and engineering plans and specifications in 
compliance with the Development Standards and Specifications 
for all required improvements per Section 15-4-30. The Town 
Administrator shall submit to the Planning Commission a staff 
report for the Final Plat public hearing; 

4. Agreements with ditch companies, if applicable; 

5. A Development Improvement Agreement and performance 
bond drawn and posted in favor of the Town, which bond shall be 
of sufficient amount to assure completion of all required 
improvements, as further defined in Section 15-4-30, Required 
Improvements; 

6. Final covenants in a form suitable for recording, if applicable; 

7. A title commitment no older than 30 days; and 

8. Other materials necessary to show compliance with Article 4, 
Subdivision Design and Improvement and this Code. 

(iv) In no case shall additions, corrections, or modifications of any kind be 
made to the Final Plat other than signatures required after the Board 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(l) Subdivision Design Modification Subdivision Design Modification 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  176 

of Trustees have approved the Final Plat, unless necessary to comply 
with any conditions of approval. 

d. Review and Decision-Making 

(i) Review and Decision 

The Final Plat shall be reviewed and recommended by the Planning 
Commission and decided on by the Board of Trustees, both in a 
public hearing. 

(ii) Review Criteria 

In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Final 
Plat:  

1. The Final Plat is substantially consistent with the Preliminary 
Plan approval and any conditions assigned; 

2. Status of all fees paid to the Town;  

3. Proof of any required land dedication including rights-of-way, 
parks and recreation areas, and public facilities; and  

4. Provision of adequate guarantee of completion and financial 
security through a Development Improvement Agreement.  

e. Post-Decision Action 

(i) Recordation 

Once approved, the Final Plat map shall be recorded per Section 15-
8-40(k)(4). 

(ii) Expiration 

1. If the public improvements for a subdivision have not been 
constructed and accepted by the Town or provision for public 
improvements has not been accounted for in a Development 
Improvement Agreement, and the corresponding Final Plat for 
the subdivision not recorded within three years from the date of 
Final Plat approval by the Town, the Final Plat shall be lapsed and 
deemed to be withdrawn, without further action by the Town; 
provided however, that this provision shall not apply to Final Plats 
approved by the Town prior to the adoption of this Code.  

2. The Board of Trustees may grant an extension of time up to an 
additional one year at a time at the request of the applicant.  

(l) Subdivision Design Modification 
(1) Purpose 

A Subdivision Design Modification is intended to allow specific changes to 
the provisions Article 4, Subdivision Design and Improvement where there 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(m) Vacation of Right-of-Way (ROW Vacation) Vacation of Right-of-Way (ROW Vacation) 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  177 

are conditions on the site that require design modification to protect a 
natural feature or environmentally sensitive area or improve the subdivision 
design. 

(2) Applicability 

An applicant may request a Subdivision Design Modification to specific 
regulations for projects that meet the requirements of the review criteria 
below.  

(3) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-20 apply, as shown in the 
flow chart, with the following and below modifications: 

a. A Subdivision Design Modification request shall be made and reviewed 
concurrently with the Preliminary Plan. 

b. The provisions of Article 4, Subdivision Design and Improvement, but not 
the Development Standards and Specifications, may be modified by the 
Planning Commission for a Planned Unit Development without a 
separate application for a Subdivision Design Modification. 

(4) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Review Criteria  

In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a 
Subdivision Design Modification: 

(i) There exists on the site exceptional topographical, soil, or other 
subsurface condition, or other extraordinary conditions peculiar to 
the site or existing buildings or lot configuration such that strict 
application of the requirement of the regulation from which the 
design modification is requested would result in peculiar and 
exceptional practical difficulties to or exceptional and undue 
hardship upon the applicant or owner of the property in question.  

(ii) A Subdivision Design Modification shall not be granted if granting it 
would impair the intent and purposes of this LUC.  

(m) Vacation of Right-of-Way (ROW Vacation) 
(1) Purpose  

Vacation of Right-of-Way provides a mechanism for the Town to evaluate 
requests to vacate public rights-of-way. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(m) Vacation of Right-of-Way (ROW Vacation) Vacation of Right-of-Way (ROW Vacation) 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  178 

(2) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-
8-10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with 
the modifications listed below.  

(3) Application Submittal  

A ROW Vacation may be requested by the 
owner of the property on both sides of the 
right-of-way to be vacated or at the joint 
request of both or all owners of property on 
both sides of the right-of-way. 

(4) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Review and Decision 

The Vacation of Right-of-Way application 
shall be reviewed and decided on by the 
Board of Trustees in a public hearing. 

b. Review Criteria 

In addition to the generally applicable 
review criteria in Section 15-8-20(h)(4), the 
following criteria shall be considered when 
deciding on a Vacation of Right-of-Way:  

(i) The public use, convenience, and 
necessity no longer require the use of 
the portions of rights-of-way, as shown 
by decreased or non-use over time.  

(ii) No lot or parcel shall be landlocked as a result of the vacation. 

(iii) Access to any lot or parcel shall not be restricted to the point where 
access is unreasonable, economically prohibitive, or reduces or 
devalues any property affected by the proposed vacation. 

(iv) There shall be no adverse impacts on the health, safety, and/or 
welfare of the general community, and the quality of public facilities 
and services provided to any lot or parcel of land shall not be 
reduced, including, but not limited to, police and fire protection and 
utility services. 

(v) The proposal shall not hinder public and Town functions. 

(5) Post-Decision Actions  

Vacation of a public right-of-way must be completed by Ordinance in 
accordance with Chapter 1, Article 3, Division 2 of the Municipal Code. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(n) Variance Variance 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  179 

(n) Variance 
(1) Purpose  

A variance is a deviation from the standards of this Code, including 
deviations that exceed what may be allowed as an Administrative 
Adjustment.  

(2) Applicability  

a. Variances may be applied for when an applicant seeks to deviate from 
the standards of this Code or an application 
for Historic District Overlay Review is denied.  

b. This process also includes requests for 
reviews of Variances by the holder of the 
Variance and requests for reviews of 
Variances based upon a signed written 
complaint submitted to the Town. 

c. The use tables and use standards in 15-2-
80(a), Use Standards, are not subject to 
Variance. This prohibition includes Variances 
for the purpose of allowing a proposed 
vacation rental where prohibited by this 
Code. 

(3) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-
10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with the 
modifications listed below.  

(4) Application Submittal 

In addition to the application requirements in 
Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall contain 

supporting evidence such as maps, diagrams, 
and notations to help show compliance with the 
review criteria. 

(5) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Review and Decision 

(i) A request for Variance is reviewed and decided on by the Board of 
Adjustment except Variances to subdivision standards which are 
reviewed and decided on by the Planning Commission, both in a 
public hearing. 

(ii) In granting variances, the Planning Commission and Board of 
Adjustment may require conditions, submissions, reports, affidavits, 
maps, plats or documents as will, in their judgment, secure 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  

15-8-40(n) Variance Variance 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  180 

substantially the objectives of the requirements and standards so 
varied and modified. 

b. Review Criteria 

In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Variance:  

(i) Strict compliance with the regulations would result in an 
extraordinary hardship defined as a condition of the property related 
to the land that makes it exceptionally challenging or impossible to 
meet the requirements of this LUC; 

(ii) Exceptional conditions exist, such as unusual topography;  

(iii) Granting the variance will not have the effect of nullifying the intent 
and purpose of these regulations; and 

(iv) That the spirit of this Code is observed, public safety, and welfare 
secured, and substantial justice done. 

(v) For a Variance to Historic District Overlay Review, the following 
criteria shall be considered:  

1. Economic hardship, including:  

a. The structural soundness of any buildings or structures on 
the property and their potential for rehabilitation. 

b. The economic feasibility of rehabilitation or reuse of the 
existing property in the case of a proposed demolition. 

c. For investment or income producing properties, the ability to 
obtain a reasonable rate of return on the property in its 
present condition, or in a rehabbed condition pursuant to the 
requirements for the Historic District Overlay. 

d. For non-income producing properties consisting of owner-
occupied single-unit dwellings and/or non-income 
producing institutional properties not solely operating for 
profit, the ability to maintain or to convert the property to a 
reasonable residential or institutional use in its present 
condition or in a rehabbed condition pursuant to the 
requirements of the Historic District Overlay or the ability to 
transfer the property for a reasonable rate of return. 

e. The consideration for economic hardship shall not include 
any of the following: 

i. Willful or negligent acts by the owner; 

ii. Purchase of the property for substantially more than its 
market value; 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  
15-8-40(o) Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  181 

iii. Failure to perform normal maintenance and repairs; 

iv. Failure to diligently solicit and retain tenants; 

v. Failure to prescribe a rental amount which is reasonable; or 

vi. Failure to provide normal tenant improvements; or 

2. Undue hardship in which the application of the criteria creates a 
situation that is substantially inadequate to meet the applicant’s 
needs because of specific health and/or safety issues. 

(o) Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) 
(1) Purpose  

This procedure is required to make any change to the zoning map including 
the boundary of a zoning district, the assignment of a lot a different zoning 
district, or to assign a zoning district to land annexed to the Town of Silverton.  

(2) Common Review Procedures 

The Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-
10(d)(1) apply, as shown in the flow chart, with the 
following and below modifications:  

a. Zoning Map Amendments initiated by the 
Town Administrator, Planning Commission, 
or Board of Trustees are exempt from 
preapplication meetings and application 
submittal and acceptance steps in the 
Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-
10(d)(1). 

(3) Application Submittal 

a. Rezoning to Base Zoning District 

(i) A Zoning Map Amendment (Base 
District) may be initiated by:  

1. The Board of Trustees, Planning 
Commission, or Town Administrator; 
or  

2. Any person residing, owning, or 
leasing property in the Town. 

(ii) In addition to the application 
requirements in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the 
application shall contain a description of 
land area, including lot and block 
numbers to be rezoned, and requested 
new classification, along with a drawing to scale legible for 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  
15-8-40(o) Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  182 

reasonable review and interpretation by the Town Administrator 
showing boundaries of the area requested to be rezoned. 

b. Rezoning to PUD  

(i) A Zoning Map Amendment (PUD) may be initiated on lots under 
single unified ownership or control. 

(ii) In addition to the general application submittal requirements in 
Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall contain an Overall 
Development Plan that includes the following information: 

1. Description of land area, including lot and block numbers to be 
rezoned, and requested new classification, along with a drawing 
to scale legible for reasonable review and interpretation by the 
Town Administrator showing boundaries of the area requested to 
be rezoned; 

2. General land uses proposed for each portion of the property; 

3. Time schedule for any contemplated new construction or uses; 

4. Hazard areas including slope, flood, and avalanche hazard areas; 

5. Conceptual points of connection for any streets, and for on-street 
bicycle and pedestrian connections through the property and to 
adjacent properties; 

6. Conceptual open space, trail, and wildlife habitat areas and 
corridor connections through the property and to adjacent 
properties; and 

7. Other details as required by the Town Administrator. 

(4) Review and Decision-Making 

a. Review and Decision 

(i) All Zoning Map Amendment applications shall be reviewed and 
recommended by the Planning Commission and decided on by the 
Board of Trustees, both in a public hearing. 

(ii) The adoption of any Zoning Map Amendment shall require favorable 
vote of a majority of the Board of Trustees; however, a favorable vote 
of two-thirds of all members of the Board of Trustees shall be 
required when a protest is filed with the Town Administrator at least 
24 hours prior to the vote of the Board of Trustees on the change and 
is signed by the owners of 20 percent or more of the area of land 
which is subject to the proposed change, or 20 percent or more of 
the land extending a radius of 100 feet from the land which is subject 
to the proposed change, disregarding intervening public streets and 
alleys. A favorable vote of two-thirds of all the members of the Board 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  
15-8-40(o) Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  183 

of Trustees shall also be required when an amendment or change 
has not been recommended by the Planning Commission. 

b. Review Criteria 

In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-
20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be considered when deciding on a 
Zoning Map Amendment; however, comprehensive review and 
reenactment of all or a significant portion of the Zoning Map shall be a 
legislative action and shall not be required to meet the following criteria:  

(i) The rezoning is not adverse to the public health, safety, and welfare.  

(ii) The rezoning presents the Town with an opportunity for an 
appropriate site, at an appropriate location, for the particular type of 
land use or development proposed and will help the Town achieve a 
balance of land use, tax base, or housing types consistent with the 
Town’s goals.  

(iii) The following additional criteria shall be met when deciding on a 
Zoning Map Amendment (PUD): 

(iv) The PUD meets the eligibility criteria of Section 15-2-70(c); and 

(v) The proposed development cannot be accomplished by the use of 
any combination of base and overlay zoning districts of this Code. 

(5) Post-Decision Actions 

a. General 

(i) All Zoning Map Amendments must be completed by Ordinance in 
accordance with Chapter 1, Article 3, Division 2 of the Municipal Code.  

(ii) Rezonings do not expire. 

b. Modification of Previous PUD Approval 

(i) PUD amendments are classified as major or minor. Minor 
amendments do not exceed the criteria of Subsection (ii) below. All 
other changes are considered major amendments and require the 
review and approval of a new PUD pursuant to Section 15-8-40(o), 
Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning). 

(ii) Minor amendments to an approved PUD Overall Development Plan 
may be approved by the Town Administrator if the proposed 
amendment complies with the following criteria: 

1. The number of residential units shall not be increased by more 
than 20 percent. The Board of Trustees may approve an increase 
of up to 40 percent if at least 10 percent of the units provided are 
affordable housing. 

Exhibit A



Article 8 Administration and Procedures 
 Section 15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required  
15-8-40(o) Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  184 

2. The gross square footage of nonresidential building area shall not 
be increased by more than 20 percent. 

3. The number or location of vehicular access points shall not be 
changed in a way that negatively impacts public safety or the 
flow of traffic onto public streets. 

4. The numeric standards in the PUD shall not be revised by more 
than would be allowed through the administrative adjustment 
procedure in Section 15-8-30(a). 

(iii) The Town Administrator may determine an amendment meeting the 
criteria in Subsections 1. – 4. Above should be processed as a major 
amendment because of the size or complexity of the proposed 
amendment or to allow for community input. 

 

  

Exhibit A



Article 9 Nonconformities 
 Section 15-9-10 Purpose  

15-9-30(a) Nonconforming Status Nonconforming Status 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  185 

Article 9 Nonconformities 
15-9-10 Purpose 
The purpose of this Article is to regulate and limit the development and continued 
existence of uses, structures, lots, signs, and site features that were lawfully 
established prior to the Effective Date, but that no longer conform to the 
requirements of this Code.  

15-9-20 Applicability 

(a) This Article applies to buildings, structures, lands, and uses that become 
nonconforming as a result of adoption, revision, or amendment to this Code. 

(b) Any legal nonconformity existing as of the Effective Date of this Code will also be 
a legal nonconformity under this Code, as long as the situation that resulted in 
the nonconforming status under the previous Code continues to exist. 

(c) If a nonconformity under the previous Code becomes conforming because of the 
adoption of this Code, then the situation will no longer be a nonconformity. 

15-9-30 Regulations Applicable to All Nonconformities 

(a) Nonconforming Status 
(1) It is the owner’s burden to establish that a nonconforming use, lot, sign, or 

structure exists lawfully under this Code.  

(2) The use of land, use of a structure, lot, sign, outdoor lighting fixture, or 
structure may be determined to have a nonconforming status when each of 
the following conditions is satisfied: 

a. The use, lot, sign, outdoor lighting fixture, or structure was in existence 
and lawfully constructed, located and operating prior to, and at the time 
of, the event that made it nonconforming. 

b. The nonconforming status was caused by one of the following: 

(i) Annexation into the Town; 

(ii) Adoption of this Code or a previous zoning ordinance; or 

(iii) Amendment of this Code or a previous zoning ordinance. 

c. The nonconforming use, lot, sign, outdoor lighting fixture, or structure 
has been operating since the time that it first became nonconforming 
without abandonment, as defined in Section 15-9-30(e). 

(3) Nonconforming outdoor lighting fixtures are regulated in Section 15-6-40(f). 

(4) Nothing in this Section shall be interpreted as authorization for or approval of 
a continuance of the use of a structure or premises in violation of the 
regulations in effect at the time of the effective date of this LUC. 

Exhibit A



Article 9 Nonconformities 
 Section 15-9-30 Regulations Applicable to All Nonconformities  

15-9-30(b) Authority to Continue Authority to Continue 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  186 

(b) Authority to Continue 
Nonconformities may continue to be used and occupied, subject to regulations 
as to the maintenance of premises and conditions of operations set forth in this 
Section, or unless the nonconformity is terminated as provided in this Section. 

(c) Ordinary Repair and Maintenance 
Minor repairs or maintenance of nonconformities are permitted and encouraged, 
provided that the minor repairs and maintenance do not increase the extent of 
nonconformity. For purposes of this Section, “maintenance or minor repair” shall 
mean: 

(1) Repairs that are necessary to maintain and to correct any damage or 
deterioration to the structural soundness or exterior or interior appearance of 
a building or structure without expanding the building or structure; 

(2) Maintenance of land areas to protect against health and environmental 
hazards; and 

(3) Repairs that are required to remedy unsafe conditions that cause a threat to 
public safety. 

(d) Change of Ownership or Tenancy 
Changes of ownership, tenancy, or management of property with an existing 
nonconformity may occur, but the nonconformities shall continue to be subject 
to the provisions of this Article. 

(e) Discontinuance and Abandonment 
(1) When a nonconforming use is replaced with a conforming use, the 

nonconforming use is considered terminated and may not be resumed.  

(2) Any nonconforming use that is discontinued for, or a structure that remains 
vacant for a period of one year, shall be considered to have been abandoned.  

(3) Maintaining connection to or payment of public services or utilities is not 
evidence of continuing operations.  

(4) All nonconforming rights shall cease and the use of the premises shall be 
brought into conformance with this Code.  

(5) Abandonment shall involve the actual act of discontinuance, regardless of 
the intent of the user or owner to discontinue a nonconforming operation.  

(6) Any nonconforming use that is moved from the premises shall be considered 
to have been abandoned. 

(f) Destruction 
(1) If a nonconforming structure or structure specifically designed to be 

occupied by a nonconforming use is substantially damaged or destroyed, the 
owner of the damaged or destroyed structure shall have one year from the 
date of damage or destruction to reconstruct the building. Reconstruction of 

Exhibit A



Article 9 Nonconformities 
 Section 15-9-40 Nonconforming Uses  

15-9-40(a) Expansion Expansion 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  187 

the nonconforming structure may take place and the nonconforming status 
retained if all the following conditions are met:  

a. No less than the total gross floor area of the original nonconforming 
structure or the minimum requirements of the applicable zoning district 
shall be included in the new building.  

b. Setback distances of the new building are no less than those of the 
original structure or the minimum requirements of the applicable zoning 
district.  

c. Substantial completion of the new structure takes place within one year 
of the removal, damage, or destruction of the original building.  

d. Compliance with all applicable building and fire codes adopted by the 
Town. 

(2) Failure to meet the above conditions for reconstruction shall require that the 
nonconforming structure be brought into full compliance with all the 
provisions of this Article and the zoning district within which the structure is 
located.  

15-9-40 Nonconforming Uses 

(a) Expansion 
(1) A nonconforming use that is not in a category of uses permitted in the 

zoning district may be expanded or increased to occupy the structure in 
which it is located, but not any land outside of the structure. 

(2) No existing structure or portion of a building that contains a nonconforming 
use shall be enlarged, extended, constructed, reconstructed, moved, or 
structurally altered in any manner that increases existing nonconformities, 
unless otherwise allowed in Subsections (3) and (4), below. 

(3) Any existing occupied single-unit detached dwelling that is deemed to be a 
nonconforming use may make improvements to the main and accessory 
structures so long as improvements do not increase the degree of 
nonconformity or increase the height or building footprint. Roof-mounted 
small scale solar energy systems may increase the height of a 
nonconforming structure by eight feet, but shall not extend above the roof 
peak or ridge or impact solar access to an adjacent property. 

(4) A nonconforming single-unit detached dwelling that has been damaged or 
destroyed by natural causes may be restored to its original condition, 
provided that the work is commenced within two years of the event and 
completed within three years of the event. Following written request from 
the property owner, the Town Administrator may grant one, one year 
extension of either the work commencement and/or completion of work 
time period. 

Exhibit A



Article 9 Nonconformities 
 Section 15-9-50 Nonconforming Structures  

15-9-40(b) Change of Use Change of Use 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  188 

(b) Change of Use 
(1) Any nonconforming use may be changed to a conforming use and once the 

change is made, the use shall not be changed back to a nonconforming use 
in the future. 

(2) Where a conforming use is located in a nonconforming structure, the use 
may be changed to another conforming use. 

(c) Manufactured Home 
Within a period of one year or less from its removal from a lot of record, a 
nonconforming manufactured home used for residential purposes may be 
replaced by another manufactured home for residential purposes, so long as the 
new home is not more than 50 percent larger in gross floor area than the 
manufactured home that it replaced and can be placed on the lot in compliance 
with the applicable zoning district standards. 

(d) Obsolete Structure  
The right to operate and maintain any nonconforming use in a nonresidential 
structure shall terminate if the structure becomes obsolete or substandard 
under any applicable state or Town code and the cost of bringing the structure 
into lawful compliance with the applicable regulation exceeds 50 percent of the 
replacement cost of the structure on the date it is determined to be obsolete or 
substandard; provided, however, that determining the replacement cost of any 
structure shall not include the cost of land or any factors other than the structure 
itself. 

15-9-50 Nonconforming Structures 

(a) Nonconforming Structures in Avalanche Hazard Areas 
(1) Any building or structure that has been constructed within the High Hazard 

Red or Moderate Hazard Blue Zone prior to the Effective Date and does not 
meet the standards in Section 15-5-10, Avalanche Hazard Areas shall be a 
nonconforming building or structure relative to this Section and may remain 
until it is moved, substantially damaged, or destroyed. 

(2) No nonconforming building in the High Hazard Red or Moderate Hazard 
Blue Zone may be altered to increase the building dimensions in any way, 
construct additional bedrooms, increase human occupancy, or increase the 
building's market value by 50 percent or more. A nonconforming building or 
structure under this Section may be maintained and altered to construct 
approved avalanche protective measures regardless of how much the 
building's value increases.  

(3) If a nonconforming building or structure under this Section is destroyed or 
damaged such that the cost of repairs will equal or exceed 50 percent of the 
structure's assessed value, the structure shall not be repaired or rebuilt 
without full compliance with the provisions of this Section and the provisions 

Exhibit A



Article 9 Nonconformities 
 Section 15-9-60 Nonconforming Lots  

15-9-50(b) All Other Nonconforming Structures All Other Nonconforming Structures 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  189 

of any underlying zoning district classification. The assessed value shall be 
determined by a qualified assessor or appraiser, designated by the Board of 
Trustees, at the property owner's expense, and the assessed value shall be 
determined either before the improvement or repair is started or before the 
damage occurred.  

(b) All Other Nonconforming Structures 
(1) A nonconforming structure may not be enlarged or altered in a way which 

increases its nonconformity except in the following circumstances: 

a. An enlargement or structural alteration is required by law.  

b. The structure is nonconforming to a required setback, in which case 
alterations are only permitted to that part of the structure located within 
the required setback. If the entire structure is located between the 
property line and the required setback (i.e., “outside” of the setback), the 
structure may not be altered. 

(2) Structural alterations may be permitted when necessary to adapt a 
nonconforming building to new technologies or equipment pertaining to 
uses that occupy the building.  

(3) Any enlargement greater than 10 percent of the gross floor area that is 
necessary to adapt to new technologies shall be authorized only by a 
Variance. 

15-9-60 Nonconforming Lots 
A residential dwelling unit(s) and customary accessory buildings may be erected on 
any nonconforming lot in a residential zoning district as follows: 

(a) The lot must be in separate ownership and not of contiguous frontage with other 
lots in the same ownership.  

(b) This provision shall apply even though a lot fails to meet the applicable 
requirements for lot width or area, as applicable, provided the setback 
dimensions, lot coverage, and other requirements not involving lot width or area 
of the lot shall conform to the regulations of the district in which the lot is 
located.  

(c) Either Section 15-8-30(a), Administrative Adjustment, or Section 15-8-40(n), 
Variance may be used to make requests for adjustments to area and setback 
requirements. 

15-9-70 Nonconforming Signs 
In addition to the general standards set forth in in Section 15-9-30, nonconforming 
signs shall comply with the following: 

(a) Any sign that is permitted to remain in place as a nonconforming use may be 
continued in use until the sign, or a substantial part of it, is blown down or 
otherwise destroyed or dismantled for any purpose other than maintenance 
operations or for changing the letters, symbols, or other matter on the sign. 

Exhibit A



Article 9 Nonconformities 
 Section 15-9-70 Nonconforming Signs  

15-9-50(b) All Other Nonconforming Structures All Other Nonconforming Structures 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  190 

(b) If a nonconforming sign is damaged, destroyed or removed from its current 
property location for any reason, it may be reconstructed in compliance with its 
nonconforming status, provided that the reconstruction occurs within six 
months of its destruction or removal from the subject property. If the sign copy is 
modified or changed, a Sign Permit must be obtained prior to reconstructing the 
nonconforming sign. 

  

Exhibit A



Article 10 Enforcement and Penalties 
 Section 15-10-10 Purpose 

15-9-50(b) All Other Nonconforming Structures 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  191 

Article 10 Enforcement and Penalties 
15-10-10 Purpose 
The purpose of this Section is to establish the procedures through which the Town 
seeks to ensure compliance with the provisions of this Code and obtain corrections 
for violations of this Code. This Section also sets forth the remedies and penalties 
that apply to violations of this Code. 

15-10-20 Compliance Required 
It is unlawful for any person to erect, construct, reconstruct, use, or alter any building 
or structure or to use any land in violation of this Code or the terms and conditions of 
permits or other approvals or entitlements issued under this Code. 

15-10-30 Authority 
The provisions of this Article shall be administered and enforced by the officers or 
departments designated by the Board of Trustees. 

15-10-40 Violations  

(a) A violation shall be defined as violation or failure to comply with: 

(1) Any provision or requirement of this Code; or 

(2) Any condition, requirement or commitment established with the approval of 
a Variance, Special Use Permit, Site Plan, Planned Unit Development, 
subdivision, or other development approval under this Code. 

(b) Each day that a violation is permitted to exist shall constitute a separate offense. 

15-10-50 Enforcement 

(a) All alleged violations of any of the provisions of this Code shall be investigated by 
the enforcing official either on their own initiative, upon receipt of a written 
complaint from a person who believes that a violation exists, or by order of the 
Board of Trustees.  

(b) To enforce the terms and provisions of this Code, the enforcing official shall 
conduct inspections of buildings, structures, and use of land to determine 
compliance with this Code. 

(c) If a violation is found to exist, it shall be corrected in one or more of the following 
ways:  

(1) The enforcing official shall notify the property owner and any other persons 
responsible for the violation, in writing, and order the necessary correction.  

(2) The Building Official may issue a stop-work order by notice in writing posted 
on the building or property in or upon which a violation is occurring, as 
provided by the building code adopted by the Town.  

Exhibit A



Article 10 Enforcement and Penalties 
 Section 15-10-60 Penalties 

15-10-60(a) General 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  192 

(3) Any local law enforcement officer may cite the property owner and/or any 
other persons who may be responsible with a violation of this Code, as 
provided in Section 15-10-60 below.  

(4) Unless otherwise provided by this Code or otherwise required by state or 
federal law, a period of 15 days after the date of notice shall be allowed for 
response to a notice of violation. In order to avoid further enforcement 
proceedings by the Town or the imposition of financial penalties under this 
Code, within the 15-day period: 

(5) The alleged violator shall respond by providing evidence satisfactory to the 
Town to show that the determination is in error and that a violation of this 
Code has not occurred; 

(6) The alleged violator shall restore the site, structure, or use of the property to 
compliance with this Code, and shall allow the Town to inspect the property 
to confirm compliance; or 

(7) The alleged violator shall obtain approval from the Town for an extension of 
time to attain compliance, showing good cause for extension, with the 
extension limited to 60 days unless a longer period is approved due to 
extenuating circumstances, and shall allow the Town to inspect the property 
at the end of the extension period to confirm compliance. 

(d) Upon the failure of any official to act in the case of a violation of this Chapter, the 
necessary notification of violation or stop-work order may be issued by the Board 
of Trustees, either upon its own initiative or that of the Planning Commission, or 
upon receipt of a written complaint from an individual or a group of individuals.  

15-10-60 Penalties 

(a) General 
Failure to comply with any of the provisions of this Code, unless a Variance has 
been authorized by the Board of Adjustment, shall constitute a misdemeanor, 
and, upon conviction, is punishable as set forth in Section 1-4-20 of the Municipal 
Code.  

(b) Forfeiture for Sales in Unapproved Subdivisions 
Any party selling, agreeing, contracting, or negotiating to sell any parcel of land 
in a subdivision for which a Final Plat has not been properly filed or recorded 
shall be liable for forfeiture of the penalty established in Section 31-23-216, C.R.S. 

15-10-70 Mandatory Demolition 
In the event a structure, building, unit or improvement, either permanent or mobile, 
is substantially damaged, destroyed or deteriorated by any means, the owner of the 
property where structure or facility is located shall obtain a building permit for either 
the repair or the demolition of said facility no later than 15 days after said damage 
occurs. If the permit is for demolition, said demolition shall be completed and the 

Exhibit A



Article 10 Enforcement and Penalties 
 Section 15-10-80 Building and Property Appearance and Maintenance 

15-10-80(a) Applicability 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  193 

land cleared and leveled to the satisfaction of the Building Official no later than 180 
days after said damage occurs. 

15-10-80 Building and Property Appearance and Maintenance 

(a) Applicability 
This Section shall apply to all buildings in the town. 

(b) Boarding Up 
Buildings shall be prohibited from boarding up, except for the purpose of 
temporarily protecting the existing windows from snow shed between October 
and April. If boarding up is necessary for snow protection, durable materials 
suited for winter climates, such as plexiglass, shall be used and wood should be 
avoided. Any materials used to board up an egress window shall be easily 
removed from the window in case of emergency.  

(c) Damaged Buildings 
A building that has been damaged by fire, storm, vandalism, or accident may be 
boarded up, pending repair or demolition, with written permission from the 
Town Administrator for a period not to exceed 30 days.  

(d) Drainage and Snow Storage Impacted Buildings 
A building that is impacted by surface drainage, snow storage, and/or snow drifts 
within the public right-of-way, such as Lots 12 and 24 at the northerly end of 
blocks adjoining numbered streets, may be boarded up with written permission 
from the Town Administrator when the situation is repaired or abated.  

(e) Maintenance and Appearance 
Minimum standards for the maintenance and appearance of structures and 
property are:  

(1) Exterior siding and roofing shall be properly maintained and provide the 
building with a weather-resistant walled envelope.  

(2) Window frames and glass shall be reasonably weather-tight and shall have 
panes without cracks or holes, and the sash shall fit properly. Missing or 
broken panes shall be promptly repaired. Windows and any other structural 
openings in the building shall not be boarded up for a period exceeding 30 
days in any given calendar year.  

(3) Doors providing entrance and exits for any structure shall fit properly and 
have locking devices capable of being operated from the inside and outside 
of the building. Barrel bolts and hasps with padlocks are not adequate for 
primary doors.  

(4) Fences, walls, and accessory buildings shall be maintained in a reasonably 
good condition, free of excess amounts of missing, broken, dilapidated or 
nonfunctional elements or safety hazards.  

Exhibit A



Article 10 Enforcement and Penalties 
 Section 15-10-80 Building and Property Appearance and Maintenance 

15-10-80(f) Enforcement 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  194 

(5) Platforms, landings, decks, and steps shall be provided, where appropriate, to 
serve as exits and shall be maintained in a safe condition.  

(6) Exterior awnings, shutters, and other architectural features shall be 
maintained in reasonably good condition, free of excess amounts of missing, 
broken, dilapidated or nonfunctional elements or safety hazards.  

(7) Vacant lots shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner, free of 
noxious weeds, litter, rubbish, graffiti, storage of any type of vehicle, trailer 
and/or materials, or any objectionable, unsanitary or unsightly matter of 
whatever nature. 

(8) Sidewalks, curbs and gutters are the duty and responsibility of any owner 
with property fronting any street within the Town. Sidewalks, curbs and/or 
gutters shall be constructed, maintained, repaired or replaced so that they 
are in good repair, in conformity with the established grade of the adjacent 
street, in accordance with Chapter 11, Article 2 of the Silverton Municipal 
Code, consistent with the Development Standards and Specifications, in 
compliance with any other applicable Town policies, and free from snow, ice, 
mud, dirt, debris, rubbish, refuse, obstacles, encroachments or obstructions.  

(f) Enforcement 
(1) Responsibility for the administration of this Section shall be with the Building 

Official and the Code Enforcement Officer.  

(2) The Building Official and Code Enforcement Officer shall provide the 
property owner, via hand-delivery or certified mail, a detailed account of the 
nature and extent of the deficiencies of any structure in violation of this 
Subsection. The property owner shall have not more than 60 days from the 
receipt of the written notice to correct all deficiencies. In the event that the 
certified letter is not accepted, the 60-day period shall commence on the 
date of the U.S. Postal Service's last failed attempt at delivery. Failure to 
remedy the deficient conditions shall be deemed a violation of this 
Subsection.  

(3) Upon the failure, neglect or refusal of any owner to correct the deficiencies 
identified by the Building Official and Code Enforcement Officer, the Town 
Administrator may, by order in writing, direct the condition to be abated. The 
order may be served upon the property owner in person or by certified mail.  

(4) Failure to comply with any of the provisions of this Section shall constitute a 
misdemeanor in accordance with Section 15-10-40, Violations. 

  

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-10 Rules of Construction 

15-11-10(a) Meanings and Intent 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  195 

Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
15-11-10 Rules of Construction 
The following rules shall apply for construing or interpreting the terms and 
provisions of this Code. 

(a) Meanings and Intent 
All provisions, terms, phrases, and expressions contained in this Code shall be 
construed according to the general purposes set forth in this Section and the 
specific purpose statements set forth throughout this Code. 

(b) Headings, Illustrations, And Text 
In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between the text of this Code and any 
heading, caption, figure, illustration, table, or map, the text shall control. 

(c) Lists and Examples 
Unless otherwise specifically indicated, lists of items or examples that use terms 
such as "for example," "including," and "such as," or similar language are intended 
to provide examples and are not exhaustive lists of all possibilities. 

(d) Computation of Time 
The time in which an act is to be done shall be computed by excluding the first 
day and including the last day. If a deadline or required date of action falls on a 
Saturday, Sunday, or holiday observed by the Town, the deadline or required date 
of action shall be the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or holiday observed 
by the Town. References to days are calendar days unless otherwise stated. 

(e) References to Other Regulations/Publications 
Whenever reference is made to a resolution, ordinance, statute, regulation, or 
document, it shall be construed as a reference to the most recent edition of the 
regulation, resolution, ordinance, statute, or document, unless otherwise 
specifically stated. 

(f) Delegation of Authority 
Any act authorized by this Code to be carried out by a specific official of the Town 
may be carried out by a designee of the official. 

(g) Technical and Non-Technical Terms 
Words and phrases shall be construed according to the common and approved 
usage of the language, but technical words and phrases that may have acquired 
a peculiar and appropriate meaning in law shall be construed and understood 
according to the common meaning. 

(h) Public Officials and Agencies 
All public officials, bodies, and agencies to which references are made are those 
of the Town of Silverton unless otherwise indicated. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-20 Measurements and Associated Terms 

15-11-10(i) Mandatory and Discretionary Terms 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  196 

(i) Mandatory and Discretionary Terms 
The words "shall," "must," and "will" are mandatory in nature, establishing an 
obligation or duty to comply with the particular provision. The words "may" and 
"should" are permissive in nature. 

(j) Conjunctions 
Unless the context clearly suggests the contrary, conjunctions shall be 
interpreted as follows: "And" indicates that all connected items, conditions, 
provisions, or events apply; and "Or" indicates that one or more of the connected 
items, conditions, provisions, or events apply. 

(k) Tenses and Plurals 
Words used in the present tense include the future tense. Words used in the 
singular number include the plural number and the plural number includes the 
singular number, unless the context of the usage clearly indicates otherwise. 

15-11-20 Measurements and Associated Terms 

(a) Building Footprint Measurement 
The total gross area of the ground level footprint of a building measured to the 
exterior faces of the building, including any enclosed projection as well as 
porches, decks, and balconies. 

(b) Clear Vision Triangle Measurement 
The clear vision triangle is the area that is included between the lines of an 
intersecting public street or private driveway, extended to the point where the 
lines intersect, and, at points on each line 20 feet distant from that point for a 
public street or 10 feet distant for a private driveway, a straight line connecting 
them. 

(c) Gross Floor Area Measurement 
The total gross area on all floors of a structure, including finished basement, as 
measured to the outside surfaces of existing walls, excluding crawl spaces, 
carports, ventilation shafts, courts, breezeways, open porches, balconies and 
terraces. 

(d) Fence Height 
(1) The height of all fences will be measured from finished grade at the base of 

the fence to the highest point of the fence, excluding strands of wire strung 
above a wood, metal, or other synthetic material fence. 

(2) The height of all fences built on berms or retaining walls shall include the 
height of the berm or wall. 

(e) Floor Area Ratio 
The total gross floor area divided by the total gross lot area. For the purpose of 
calculating floor area ratio, gross floor area shall include accessory structures 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-20 Measurements and Associated Terms 

15-11-20(f) Height Measurement 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  197 

such as sheds, accessory dwelling units, attached and detaches garages, or other 
structures that are roofed and enclosed on more than two sides whether or not 
they include habitable space. 

(f) Height Measurement 
(1) Height shall be measured as the vertical distance from the highest point on 

a structure or building, excluding any chimney, antenna, cupola or steeple, to 
the average ground level of the grade. 

 
Figure 15-11-1: Height Measurement 

Average ground level shall be calculated as the mean (average) ground level at the 
four principal corners of the subject structure where the walls or other structural 
elements intersect the ground. 

 
Figure 15-11-2: Average Ground Level Calculation 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-20 Measurements and Associated Terms 

15-11-20(g) Lot Terms and Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  198 

(g) Lot Terms and Measurements 
(1) Lot 

A parcel of real property as shown with a separate and distinct number or 
letter on a plat recorded with the San Juan County Clerk and Recorder or 
when not platted in a recorded subdivision, a parcel of real property abutting 
upon at least one public street.  

 
Figure 15-11-3: Lot Examples 

(2) Lot Line 

a. A line marking the boundary of a lot or parcel. 

b. Front lot line means a boundary line separating a lot or parcel of land 
from any front street. 

c. Rear lot line means a boundary line opposite the front lot line. 

d. Side lot line means any lot line that is not a front, street-side, or a rear lot 
line abutting an interior lot. 

e. Street side lot line means the lot line abutting any non-front street. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(h) Setback Measurement 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  199 

 
Figure 15-11-4: Lot Line Types 

(3) Lot Area 

The net area of the lot, excluding portions of streets and alleys. 

(4) Lot Width 

The horizontal distance between the side lot lines, measured at the front lot 
line adjacent to the street or public right-of-way. 

(5) Zoning Lot 

A portion or parcel of land, including a portion of a platted subdivision, 
occupied or intended to be occupied by a building or use and its accessories, 
that is an integral unit of land held under unified ownership in fee or co-
tenancy, or under legal control tantamount to the ownership. 

(h) Setback Measurement 
Setback means the required distance between the farthest protrusion of a 
building or structure and any lot line of the lot or parcel on which it is located. 

(i) Sign Measurements 
See Section 15-7-40, Measurement and Calculation. 

15-11-30 General Terms 

A 

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) 

A residential dwelling unit, but not a mobile home or recreation vehicle, located on the 
same lot as a principal dwelling unit or commercial unit, either within the same building 
or in a detached building. The unit includes its own independent living facilities with 
provisions for sleeping, cooking, and sanitation, and is designed for residential 
occupancy independent of the principal dwelling unit or commercial unit. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  200 

Adaptive Controls 

Devices such as timers, motion-sensors, and light-sensitive switches used to actively 
regulate the emission of light from light fixtures. 

Administrative Adjustment 

See Section 15-8-30(a). 

Affordable Housing 

1. Rental housing that is affordable to a household with an annual income at or 
below 80 percent of the area median income, and for which the rent payment 
costs the household less than 30 percent of its monthly income.  

2. For-sale housing that could be purchased by a household with an annual income 
at or below 140 percent of the area median income, for which the mortgage 
payment costs the household less than 30 percent of its monthly income. 

Animal Services 

Any place or premise used in whole or in part to provide care and service for animals, 
including grooming, training, day care, and veterinary facilities where animals or pets are 
given medical or surgical treatment and are cared for during the time of their treatment. 

Annexation and Disconnection 

See Section 15-8-40(a). 

Appeal of an Administrative Decision 

See Section 15-8-40(b). 

Appeal of a Planning Commission or Historic Review Committee Decision 

See Section 15-8-40(c). 

Arcade 

A covered passageway, typically found at street level, often comprised of a series of 
arches supported by columns. 

Area Median Income (AMI) 

The median family income of a household of a given size within a given geographic area 
that is calculated on an annual basis by the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD). 

Artisan Industrial 

Application, teaching, making, or fabrication of crafts or products by an artist, artisan, or 
craftsperson either by hand or with minimal automation and may include direct sales to 
consumers, in a facility not exceeding 10,000 square feet in gross floor area. This 
definition includes uses such as small-scale fabrication, manufacturing, and other 
industrial uses and processes typically not permitted in non-industrial zoning districts 
such as welding and sculpting. 

Artwork 

Works of art that in no way identify, advertise, or display, directly or indirectly, a product 
or business. This shall include wall murals, yard art, or other public mosaics or sculptures. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  201 

Assembly 

A facility for social, educational, worship, or recreational purposes that is open to the 
public or a designated part of the public, usually owned and operated by a public or 
nonprofit group or agency. Accessory uses may include but are not limited to offices, 
meeting areas, food preparation areas, concessions, parking, nonpublic schools, and 
maintenance facilities. 

Avalanche Hazard-Related Definitions 

When used in the context of avalanche hazard regulations in Section 15-5-10, Avalanche 
Hazard Areas, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 

Afforestation 

The act or process of planting and establishing a dense timber forest stand on a tract 
of land.  

Avalanche 

A mass of snow, ice and debris flowing and sliding across mountainous terrain and 
also includes the design avalanche, which is an avalanche of potential size and 
destructive force so as to have one percent mathematical probability of occurring in 
any one year.  

Avalanche Hazard Permit, Major 

See Section 15-8-40(d). 

Avalanche Hazard Permit, Minor 

See Section 15-8-30(b).  

Avalanche Path 

The terrain boundaries of known or potential avalanches, to include the starting 
zone, the avalanche track and the runout zone.  

Catching Structure 

An earthen berm or other physical structure built perpendicular to the direction of 
avalanche flow for the purpose of stopping the avalanche and thereby reducing the 
avalanche runout distance.  

Deflecting Structure 

An earthen berm or other physical structure built at an angle to the direction of 
avalanche flow for the purpose of directing the avalanche away from areas to be 
protected.  

Deforestation 

The act or process of cutting and removing a dense timber forest stand from a tract 
of land.  

Direct-Protection Structure 

Detached or internal splitting wedges and walls; direct reinforcement of structures; 
and avalanche sheds for the purpose of protecting individual structures or areas by 
diverting avalanches around or over the objects or areas to be protected.  

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  202 

High Hazard Red Zone 

A geographical land area impacted by snow avalanche activity producing a total 
avalanche impact pressure in excess of 600 pounds per square foot on a flat surface 
normal to the direction of avalanche flow and/or having a return interval of less than 
30 years.  

Moderate Hazard Blue Zone 

A geographical land area impacted by snow avalanche activity, producing a total 
avalanche impact pressure of less than 600 pounds per square foot on a flat surface 
normal to the direction of avalanche flow and having a return interval in excess of 30 
years.  

Retarding Structure 

Earthen mounds or other physical structures built in an avalanche path to create 
additional friction between the avalanche and the ground, spread the avalanche 
laterally and reduce the effective flow height and runout distance of the avalanche.  

Snow Drift Fence 

Wind fences installed in and adjacent to avalanche starting zones to reduce the 
amount of snow blowing into the starting zone or to distribute snow lower on the 
slope, thus reducing the frequency and size of avalanches.  

Snow Support Structure 

Continuous or closely spaced fences, vertical rakes, wire-rope nets or other structures 
built in rows across avalanche slopes to anchor the snow in the starting zone, 
thereby preventing release. 

B 

Bar or Tavern 

An establishment providing or dispensing by the drink for on-site consumption 
fermented malt beverages, and/or malt, special malt, vinous or spirituous liquors, and in 
which the sale of food products is secondary. 

Bed and Breakfast 

A single-unit detached dwelling used as a lodging establishment for transient guests 
staying 30 days or less, and that has a common guest area, contains no more than five 
guest rooms and is operated by the on-site owner or resident manager. 

Block 

A parcel of land bounded on all sides by a street or alley. 

Block Face 

The properties abutting on one side of a block. 

C 

Car Wash 

A facility for the cleaning of automobiles, providing either self-serve facilities, automated 
machines, or employees to perform washing operations. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  203 

Cemetery 

A facility or area used or intended to be used for the burial of the dead, including 
crematories, mausoleums, and mortuaries when operated in conjunction with, and 
within the boundaries of the cemetery. 

Common Open Space 

A type of open space reserved for the use of the residents of a development and their 
guests for passive and/or active recreation. 

Condominium 

A building, or buildings, consisting of separate fee simple estates to individual units of a 
multiunit property, together with an undivided fee simple interest in common elements. 

Consumer 

Any person contacted as a potential purchaser, lessee or renter, as well as one who 
actually purchases, leases or rents property in a subdivision. 

Convention or Conference Center 

A private or publicly operated venue for the gathering of professionals, associations or 
other groups in a single location. The facility may or may not be attached to another use, 
such as a hotel or restaurant, and may include any offices directly related to the primary 
activity of the facility. 

Continuing Care Facility 

A facility or integrated group of facilities that provides retirement-age persons a 
continuum of accommodations and care, from independent living to convalescence care 
and long-term skilled nursing care. This use typically includes a full range of living 
arrangements from independent living, congregate housing, residential care and skilled 
nursing and sometimes hospice care. It also provide a range of ancillary facilities and 
services such as health care, meals with common dining facilities, physical therapy, 
education, recreation, and other social and cultural activities. 

Cottage Industry 

An individual or firm that manufactures, fabricates, creates, or assembles goods for on-
site sales to the general public for personal or household consumption. The goods may 
also be sold at wholesale to other outlets or firms, but on-site, retail sales is a significant 
component of the operation. The use operates on a small scale, in keeping with the 
surrounding neighborhood, with no impact in terms of noise, and no discernible impact 
in terms of vibration, dust, or odor. This use includes but is not limited to artisanal 
fabrication of craft or custom home goods, furniture, or other products; artist studios; 
and small-scale food or beverage production such as a bakery. As used in this Code, 
cottage industry is a use definition and is not identical to the Colorado Cottage Food Act. 

Cottage Food Operations 

The preparation and packaging of food products that are eligible to be prepared and 
sold following the requirements of the Colorado Cottage Foods Act codified at C.R.S. 25-
4-1614 in a private home kitchen, or a commercial, private, or public kitchen, when the 
kitchen is not licensed, inspected, or regulated. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  204 

Craft Alcohol 

The production of small batches of wine, hard cider, beer, or distilled alcoholic beverage 
as licensed by Colorado law. 

D 

Day Care Center, Adult 

A nonresidential, protective facility specializing in providing activities and socialization for 
the elderly and/or disabled adults. Care is generally provided during daytime hours, but 
less than a 24-hour consecutive period, with a variety of planned program activities. 

Day Care Center, Child 

A facility that meets the definition of child care center as set forth in C.R.S. 26-6-102(1.5).  

Dedication 

A grant by the owner to the public in general of a right to use land involving a transfer of 
property rights and an acceptance of the dedicated property by the appropriate public 
agency. 

Detention Facility 

A facility established by a law enforcement agency for the detention of adult or juvenile 
persons while being processed for arrest or detention, awaiting trial, or for punishment 
and/or counseling as a result of sentencing by a court of jurisdiction for criminal or 
antisocial behavior. 

Distribution Services and Facility 

The intake of goods and merchandise, individually or in bulk, the short-term holding or 
storage of those goods or merchandise, and/or the breaking up into lots or parcels and 
subsequent shipment off-site of those goods and merchandise. Distribution may be 
provided to an entity with an identity of interest with the distribution facility or to 
businesses and individuals unrelated to the distributor. 

Drive-Through Facility 

A site design or site feature that, by design, physical facilities, service, or packaging 
procedures, encourages or permits customers to receive services or obtain goods while 
remaining in their vehicles. This use includes but is not limited to drive-by and drive- up 
pickup facilities for parcels, goods, food, or beverages. 

Dwelling, Cottage Court 

A residential development, including co-housing developments, that combines a group 
of small individually owned or rented single-unit dwelling units, including tiny homes, on 
a single parcel of land that are oriented around a shared open space for communal use 
by the residents of the development and may include a shared parking area and/or a 
shared community building. 

Dwelling, Duplex 

A single building containing two dwelling units where each dwelling includes a separate 
bathroom and kitchen. The two units shall be able to function as dwelling units 
independently of each other, but may be located side-by-side, in front and behind, or 
above and below each other. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  205 

Dwelling, Live/Work 

A dwelling unit combining both a residential living space and also an integrated work 
space principally used by one or more of the residents. The unit typically has a storefront, 
workspace or studio, and public display area on the ground floor, with residential located 
either on the upper floor or in the back of the workspace. 

Dwelling, Mixed-Use 

One or more dwelling units that are located in the a building with space for a principal 
nonresidential use. The residents of the dwelling units are not required to use or operate 
the nonresidential space. 

Dwelling, Multiunit 

One or more buildings or portion of buildings on a single lot that contains five or more 
individual dwelling units, where each unit is occupied by one household regardless of 
whether the dwelling units are owned or rented or condominium units. 

Dwelling, Single-Unit Attached 

Two or more dwelling units attached side by side under one roof, or in a townhouse or 
row house layout in which each unit: 

1. Shares one or two interior common vertical side or rear walls reaching from the 
building foundation to the roof structure; 

2. Has an entrance facing and giving direct entrance from the dwelling unit to at 
least one street fronting the lot on which the unit is located; and 

3. Is designed for use and occupancy for one household. 

Dwelling, Single-Unit Detached 

A residential building designed for use and occupancy by no more than one household. 
This use shall include manufactured homes and tiny homes. 

Dwelling, Triplex or Fourplex 

A single building on a single lot containing three or four dwelling units under one roof, 
each of which is designed for use and occupancy by one household. 

Dwelling Unit 

An IBC standard constructed structure or portion of a structure that is designed, 
occupied, or intended to be occupied exclusively by one household and includes facilities 
for cooking, sleeping, and sanitation. 

E 

Educational Facilities 

A public or private facility, including any offices directly related to the primary purpose of 
the facility, of which that purpose is to provide education, conduct research or otherwise 
serve to increase or disseminate academic knowledge. 

Easement 

A dedication of land for a specified use, such as providing access for maintenance of 
utilities. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  206 

Electric Vehicle Charging Station 

A facility in which electric vehicle charging services are made available to the public or to 
members or to a group of occupants or users of the property or development, including 
structures, machinery, and equipment necessary and integral to support an electric 
vehicle, including battery charging stations, rapid charging stations, and battery 
exchange stations. 

Equestrian Operation 

A facility where horses, donkeys, or mules are sheltered, fed, trained, or kept for sale or 
hire to the public. 

Expedited Review for Affordable Housing 

See Section 15-8-30(c). 

F 

Family Child Care Home 

A type of family care home that provides less than 24 hour care at any time for two or 
more children that are unrelated to each other or the provider, and are cared for in the 
provider's place of residence. 

Farm Stand 

A temporary structure used for the sale and display of agricultural or horticultural 
products such as vegetables, fruits, dairy products, eggs, grains, meat, poultry, fish, 
honey, hay, bedding plants, herbs, and wool. 

Farmer’s Market 

An occasional or periodic market held in an open area or structure where groups of 
individual sellers offer for sale to the public items such as fresh produce, seasonal fruits, 
fresh flowers, arts and crafts items, and food and beverages dispensed from booths 
located on site. 

Final Plat for Condominium or Townhome 

See Section 15-8-30(d). 

Financial Institution 

A facility that provides financial and banking services to individuals and businesses. 
These services may include deposit banking and closely related functions such as 
making loans, investments, check cashing, and fiduciary activities.  

Finished Grade 

The final elevation of the ground surface after completion of authorized development 
and associated man-made alterations of the ground surface such as grading, grubbing, 
fillings, or excavating. 

Flood Hazard-Related Definitions 

When used in the context of flood hazard regulations in Section 15-5-20, Flood Hazard 
Areas, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  207 

Area of Special Flood Hazard 

The land in the floodplain within a community subject to a one-percent or greater 
change of flooding in any given year; i.e., the 100-year floodplain.  

Base Flood 

A flood having a one-percent change of being equaled or exceeded in any given 
year.  

Base Flood Elevation (BFE) 

The elevation shown on a FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map for Zones AE, AH, A1-A30, 
AR, AR/A, AR/AE, AR/A1-A30, AR/AH, AR/AO, V1-V30 and VE that indicates the water 
surface elevation resulting from a flood that has a one-percent chance of equaling or 
exceeding that level in any given year.  

Basement 

Any area of a building having its floor sub-grade (below ground level) on all sides.  

Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) 

FEMA's comment on a proposed project, which does not revise an effective 
floodplain map, that would, upon construction, affect the hydrologic or hydraulic 
characteristics of a flooding source and thus result in the modification of the existing 
regulatory floodplain.  

Critical Facility 

A structure or related infrastructure, but not the land on which it is situated, as 
specified in Section 15-5-20(f), Standards for Critical Facilities, that, if flooded, may 
result in significant hazards to public health and safety or interrupt essential services 
and operations for the community at any time before, during and after a flood. 

Critical Feature 

An integral and readily identifiable part of a flood protection system, without which 
the flood protection provided by the entire system would be compromised.  

Development 

Any man-made change in improved and unimproved real estate, including but not 
limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, 
excavation or drilling operations or storage of equipment or materials.  

Flood or Flooding 

A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally dry 
land areas from the unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from 
any source.  

Flood Fringe 

The portion of the land lying outside of the floodway adjoining a stream or river 
which would be covered by floodwaters upon the occurrence of a 100-year flood.  

Flood Hazard Development Permit 

See Section 15-8-30(e). 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  208 

Flood Hazard Variance 

See Section 15-8-40(e). 

Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 

An official map on which the Federal Emergency Management Agency has 
delineated both the areas of special flood hazard and the insurance risk premium 
zones applicable to the community.  

Flood Insurance Study (FIS) 

The official report provided by the Federal Emergency Management Agency that 
includes flood profiles, as well as the Flood Boundary-Floodway Map, and the water 
surface elevation of the base flood.  

Floodway (Regulatory Floodway) 

The channel of a river or other watercourse and adjacent land areas that must be 
reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the 
water surface elevation more than a designated height. The statewide standard for 
the designated height to be used for all newly studied reaches shall be one-half foot 
(six inches). Letters of Map Revision to existing floodway delineations may continue 
to use the floodway criteria in place at the time of the existing floodway delineation.  

Historic Structure 

Any structure that is:  

1. Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing 
maintained by the Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the 
Secretary of the Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing on 
the National Register;  

2. Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as 
Contributing to the historical significance of a registered historic district or a 
district preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior to qualify as a 
registered historic district;  

3. Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic 
preservation programs which have been approved by the Secretary of the 
Interior; or  

4. Contributing Property within the Historic District Overlay.  

Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) 

FEMA's official revision of an effective Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) or Flood 
Boundary and Floodway Map (FBFM), or both. LOMRs are generally based on the 
implementation of physical measures that affect the hydrologic or hydraulic 
characteristics of a flooding source and thus result in the modification of the existing 
regulatory floodway, the effective Base Flood Elevations (BFEs) or the Special Flood 
Hazard Area (SFHA).  

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  209 

Letter of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-F) 

FEMA's modification of the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) shown on the Flood 
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) based on the placement of fill outside the existing 
regulatory floodway.  

Levee 

A man-made embankment, usually an earthen embankment, designed and 
constructed in accordance with sound engineering practices to contain, control or 
divert the flow of water so as to provide protection from temporary flooding.  

Levee System 

A flood protection system which consists of a levee or levees and associated 
structures, such as closure and drainage devices, which are constructed and 
operated in accordance with sound engineering practices.  

Lowest Floor 

The lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement). An unfinished or 
flood-resistant structure, usable solely for the parking of vehicles, building access or 
storage of non-floatable materials in an area other than a basement area, is not 
considered a building's lowest floor.  

Manufactured Home 

Any wheeled vehicle, exceeding either eight feet in width or 32 feet in length, 
excluding towing gear and bumpers, without motive power, which is designed and 
commonly used for occupancy by persons for residential purposes, in either 
temporary or permanent locations, and which may be drawn over the highways by a 
motor vehicle.  

Manufactured Home Park or Manufactured Home Subdivision 

A parcel or contiguous parcels of land divided into two or more manufactured home 
lots for rent or sale.  

Mean Sea Level 

For purposes of the National Flood Insurance Program, the National Geodetic 
Vertical Datum (NGVD) of 1929, or other datum, to which Base Flood Elevations 
shown on a community's Flood Insurance Rate Map are referenced.  

New Construction 

A structure for which the start of construction commenced on or after the effective 
date of the initial ordinance codified herein.  

No-Rise Certification 

A record of the results of an engineering analysis conducted to determine whether a 
project will increase flood heights in a floodway. A no-rise certification must be 
supported by technical data and signed by a registered Colorado professional 
engineer. The supporting technical data should be based on the standard step-
backwater computer model used to develop the 100-year floodway shown on the 
Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) or Flood Boundary-Floodway Map (FBFM).  

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  210 

Physical Map Revision (PMR) 

FEMA's action whereby one or more map panels are physically revised and 
republished. A PMR is used to change flood risk zones, floodplain and/or floodway 
delineations, flood elevations and/or planimetric features.  

Program Deficiency 

A defect in a community's floodplain management regulations or administrative 
procedures that impairs effective implementation of those floodplain management 
regulations or of the NFIP standards in 60.3, 60.4, 60.5 or 60.6.  

Recreational Vehicle 

A vehicle that is:  

1. Built on a single chassis;  

2. Four hundred square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal 
projections;  

3. Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck; and  

4. Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living 
quarters for recreational, camping, travel or seasonal use.  

Remedy a Violation 

To bring the structure or other development into compliance with the state or local 
floodplain management regulations or, if this is not possible, to reduce the impacts 
of its noncompliance. Ways that impacts may be reduced include protecting the 
structure or other affected development from flood damages, implementing the 
enforcement provisions of this Section or otherwise deterring future similar 
violations or reducing federal financial exposure with regard to the structure or other 
development.  

Start of Construction 

Start of construction includes substantial improvement and means the date the 
building permit was issued, provided that the actual start of construction, repair, 
reconstruction, placement or other improvement was within 180 days of the permit 
date. The actual start means the first placement of permanent construction of a 
structure on a site, such as the pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles, 
the construction of columns or any work beyond the stage of excavation; or the 
placement of a manufactured home on a foundation. Permanent construction does 
not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling; nor does it include 
the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include excavation for a 
basement, footings, piers or foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor 
does it include the installation on the property of accessory buildings, such as 
garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main structure.  

Structure 

Any constructed or erected material or combination of materials in or upon the 
ground, including but not limited to buildings, manufactured homes, mobile homes, 
radio towers, sheds, decks, storage bins and walls and fences over six feet high, but 
excluding sidewalks and patios.  

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  211 

Substantial Improvement 

Any repair, reconstruction or improvement of a structure, the cost of which equals or 
exceeds 50 percent of the market value of the structure either:  

1. Before the improvement or repair is started; or  

2. If the structure has been damaged and is being restored as before the damage 
occurred.  

For the purpose of this definition, substantial improvement is considered to occur 
when the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor or other structural part of the 
building commences, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions 
of the structure. The term does not, however, include either:  

1. Any project for improvement of a structure required to comply with existing 
state or local health, sanitary or safety code specifications which are solely 
necessary to assure safe living conditions; or  

2. Any alteration of a structure listed on the National Register of Historic Places or 
a State Inventory of Historic Places.  

Variance 

A grant of relief from the requirements of this Section, which permits construction in 
a manner that would otherwise be prohibited by this Code.  

Violation 

The failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the 
community's floodplain management regulations. A structure or other development 
without the elevation certificate, other certifications or other evidence of compliance 
required in NFIP standards 60.3(b)(5), (c)(4), (c)(10), (d)(3), (e)(2), (e)(4) or (e)(5) is 
presumed to be in violation until documentation is provided to prove otherwise.  

Water Surface Elevation 

The height, in relation to the National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) of 1929, or 
other datum, where specified, of floods of various magnitudes and frequencies in the 
floodplains of coastal or riverine areas. 

Fowl or Domestic Animals 

Small animals including dogs, cats, ferrets, rodents, birds, reptiles, fish, rabbits, hares, fowl 
(e.g., chicken, geese or turkeys), or any other species of animal that is sold or retained as a 
household pet. 

Fully Shielded  

A light source screened, and its light directed in such a way that none is emitted above 
the horizontal plane passing through its lowest light-emitting part. 

G 

Government or Public Facility 

An office of a governmental agency that provides administrative and/or direct services to 
the public, such as, but not limited to: post offices, employment offices, public assistance 
offices, or motor vehicle licensing and registration services. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  212 

Greenhouse 

A building or structure in which the temperature and humidity can be regulated for the 
cultivation of fragile or out-of-season plants for personal enjoyment. 

Greenhouse or Nursery 

An establishment, including a building, part of a building, or open space, for the growth, 
display, and/or sale of plants, shrubs, trees, flowers and other materials used in indoor or 
outdoor planting for retail sales. 

Group Home 

A structure in which housing is provided for a group of unrelated individuals or related 
and unrelated individuals pursuant to state statute. 

H 

Hardship 

The property in question cannot be put to reasonable use under existing regulations and 
the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property and not 
created by the landowner. Economic considerations alone shall not constitute a 
hardship. 

Highway 

Any main road or public passage, existing or proposed. 

Historic Review-Related Definitions 

Colorado State Register of Historic Properties 

The official listing of state designated cultural resources. 

Compatible or Compatibility 

Consistent or harmonious with location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, 
feeling, or association of an individual building or site or of surrounding properties. 

Contributing Property 

A building or site that reflects the historic or architectural character within the 
Historic District Overlay as determined by the Town’s historic resource survey. Prior to 
the Town completing the historic resource survey, all property within the Historic 
District Overlay will be considered Contributing Property unless the property is 
determined to be Non-Contributing by a historic resource survey completed by a 
preservation professional. 

Design Guidelines 

A standard of appropriate activity that will preserve the historic and architectural 
character of a Contributing Property or the Historic District Overlay. 

Historic District 

1. A geographically definable area including a concentration, linkage, or 
continuity of properties within a specified Period of Significance and may 
include within its geographic boundaries one or more Contributing Properties, 
which has been designated by the Board of Trustees.  

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  213 

2. A Historic District is related by a pattern of either physical elements or social 
activities. Historic Significance is determined by applying eligibility and 
integrity criteria to the pattern(s) and unifying element(s). 

3. Historic District boundaries will be defined by visual changes, historical 
documentation of different associations or patterns of development, or 
evidence of changes in property type, density, or Integrity. 

Properties that do not contribute to the Historic Significance of the Historic District 
may be included within its boundaries. 

Historic District Overlay Designation 

See Section 15-8-40(f). 

Historic District Overlay Review, Major 

See Section 15-8-40(g). 

Historic District Overlay Review, Minor 

See Section 15-8-30(f). 

Historic Significance 

The meaning or value ascribed to a building, site, or district based on criteria 
established for Historic District Overlay Designation. 

National Register of Historic Places 

The list of significant buildings, structures, sites, objects, or districts in American 
history, architecture, archaeology, engineering, or culture maintained by the U.S. 
Secretary of the Interior. 

Non-Contributing Property 

A building or site that does not reflect the historic or architectural character within 
the Historic District Overlay because of age or lack of integrity as determined by the 
Town’s historic resource survey. Prior to the Town completing the historic resource 
survey, all property within the Historic District Overlay will be considered 
Contributing Property unless the property is determined to be Non-Contributing by 
a historic resource survey completed by a preservation professional. 

Period of Significance  

Span of time during which significant events and activities occurred.  

Preservation 

The act or process of applying measures to sustain the existing form, integrity, and 
materials of a building or structure. It may include initial stabilization work, where 
necessary, as well as ongoing maintenance of the historic building or materials. 

Rehabilitation 

The act or process of returning property to a state of utility through repair, which 
makes possible a contemporary use while preserving those portions or features of 
the property which are significant to its historical, architectural and cultural value. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  214 

Relocation or Relocate 

Moving a building, structure, or object on its site or to another site to another site, 
either temporarily or permanently. 

Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties  

The preservation, rehabilitation, restoration, and reconstruction standards adopted 
by the U.S. Department of the Interior. 

Town’s Historic Register 

The historic register established pursuant to Section 15-2-80(a), Historic District 
Overlay. 

Home Occupation 

A business, profession, occupation, or trade that is conducted within a residential 
dwelling unit for the economic gain or support of a resident of the dwelling and is 
incidental and secondary to the residential use of the lot. 

Hospital 

An establishment that provides diagnosis and treatment, both surgical and nonsurgical, 
for patients who have any of a variety of medical conditions through an organized 
medical staff and permanent facilities that include inpatient beds, medical services, and 
continuous licensed professional nursing services. 

Hotel or Motel 

An establishment in which lodging is provided and offered to the public for 
compensation for periods of time not exceeding 30 days and that customarily provides 
services such as maid service, the furnishing and laundering of linen, telephone and 
secretarial or desk service, and the use and upkeep of furniture. This use may provide 
ancillary uses such as conference and meeting rooms, restaurants, bars, gift shops, and 
recreational facilities. 

Household 

Any individual, or two or more persons related by blood or marriage or between whom 
there is a legally recognized relationship, or a group of unrelated persons, occupying the 
same dwelling unit, including but not limited to any group of persons whose right to live 
together or without undue restrictions are protected by the provisions of the federal Fair 
Housing Act Amendments of 1988, as defined in that Act and interpreted by the courts, 
or by any similar legislation of the State of Colorado. 

I 

Impervious Surface 

Any surface artificially covered or hardened so as to prevent or impede the percolation or 
absorption of water into the ground, including but not limited to asphalt, concrete, 
roofing material, brick, plastic, and gravel. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  215 

J 

Junk 

Any manufactured goods, appliance, fixture, furniture, machinery, vehicle, personal 
property, or any other thing or part thereof, whether of value or valueless, that is 
demolished, discarded, dismantled, partially dismantled, dilapidated, or so worn and 
deteriorated that it would not be normally usable in its current state for its original 
manufactured use. 

K 

Horse and Livestock Keeping 

The keeping of horses, mules, burros, asses, cattle, sheep or goats for the use of the 
occupants of the lot and their guests. 

Kennel 

A facility licensed to house dogs, cats, or other household pets and/or where grooming, 
breeding, boarding, or training or selling of animals occurs. 

L 

Landscaping Professional 

An individual employed by a company that engages in landscaping activities as a 
primary or substantial source of revenue. 

Land Use Code Interpretation 

See Section 15-8-30(g). 

Land Use Code Text Amendment 

See Section 15-8-40(h). 

Library 

A facility for storing and loaning books, periodicals, reference materials, audio and video 
media, and other similar media. A library may also include meeting rooms, offices for 
library personnel, and similar support facilities. 

Lot 

A parcel of land intended for transfer of ownership or building development, having its 
full frontage on a public street. 

M 

Manufactured Home 

A factory-built structure that is manufactured or constructed in compliance with the 
National Manufactured Housing Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974, that 
became effective July 15, 1976 (HUD Code).  

Manufactured or Tiny Home Park 

Any parcel of land designed for the placement of two or more manufactured homes or 
tiny homes, located and maintained for dwelling purposes on a permanent or semi-

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  216 

permanent basis on individual lots, pads, or spaces; whether those lots, pads, or spaces 
be individually owned, leased, or rented. 

Manufacturing and Assembly, Heavy 

An establishment or use of land that includes the assembly, fabrication, or processing of 
goods and materials using processes that ordinarily have impacts on the environment or 
significant impacts on the use and enjoyment of surrounding properties in terms of 
noise, smoke, fumes, odors, glare, or health or safety hazards, or any use where the area 
occupied by outside storage of goods and materials used in the assembly, fabrication, or 
processing exceeds 25 percent of the floor area of buildings on the lot. Examples include 
but are not limited to: battery, chemicals, machinery, and plastics manufacture; 
mushroom plant; batching plant; beverage bottling and distribution, packaging plant; 
slaughterhouse; and rendering plant. This use does not include any use that meets the 
definition of “light manufacturing” or “hazardous or special manufacturing”, or a solid 
waste disposal site, or a yard waste compost facility, and does not include any use that 
constitutes a public nuisance. 

Manufacturing and Assembly, Light 

A facility or area used for the assembly, fabrication, or processing of goods and materials 
using processes that ordinarily do not create noise, smoke, fumes, odors, glare, or health 
or safety hazards outside of the building or lot where assembly, fabrication, or processing 
takes place, where the processes are housed entirely within a building, or where the area 
occupied by outside operations or storage of goods and materials used in the assembly, 
fabrication, or processing does not exceed 25 percent of the floor area of buildings on the 
lot. Examples include but are not limited to: Food processing, electronic equipment 
assembly and manufacturing and assembly from finished products. 

Market Garden 

The commercial (for profit) production of vegetables, fruits, flowers, and other plants on 
an area of land not more than one acre. This may be accomplished using one or more 
greenhouses. Any greenhouse on properties zoned residential shall be considered an 
accessory use. 

Master Plan 

A plan for guiding and controlling the physical development of land use and circulation 
facilities in the Town and any amendment or extension of the plan. 

Master Plan Amendment   

See Section 15-8-40(i). 

Maximum Extent Practicable 

The Town Administrator has determined that no feasible or prudent alternative exists, 
that all possible efforts to comply with the standards or regulation or minimize potential 
harmful or adverse impacts have been undertaken by an applicant, and that the costs of 
complying with a Code standard or criteria clearly outweigh the benefits to the public of 
complying with the standard or criteria. Economic considerations may be taken into 
account, but shall not be the overriding factor determining whether compliance with a 
standard or criteria in this Code is impracticable. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  217 

Medical or Dental Clinic 

A facility for a group of one or more medical professionals for the examination and 
treatment of human patients, primarily engaged in providing, on an outpatient basis, 
chiropractic, dental, medical, surgical, medical imaging, or other services to individuals. 
Patients are not kept overnight except under emergency conditions. Ancillary laboratory 
facilities may be included. 

Membership Club 

Meeting, recreational, or social facilities of a private or nonprofit organization primarily for 
use by members or guests. This classification includes union halls, social clubs and youth 
centers, fraternal and veteran’s organizations. 

Minor Plat Amendment 

See Section 15-8-30(h). 

Mobile Home 

Any vehicle or similar portable structure having no foundation other than wheels or jacks 
or skirtings and so designed or constructed as to permit occupancy for dwelling or 
sleeping purposes. Mobile home includes any structure that otherwise meets this 
description, but that was not subject to the National Manufactured Home Construction 
and Safety Standards (generally known as the HUD Code), established in 1976 pursuant 
to 42 U.S.C. Sec. 5403, at the time it was manufactured. 

Museum 

A facility open to the public, with or without charge, for the collection of nature, scientific, 
or literary objects of interest or works of art, not including the regular sale or distribution 
of the objects collected. Museums may include incidental retail and food and beverage 
sales. 

N 

Nonconforming Lot 

A lot, the area, dimensions, or location of which was lawful when the lot was created but 
that was rendered noncompliant with this LUC by its adoption or the adoption of an 
amendment to it. 

Nonconforming Structure 

A structure or building that was lawful prior to the adoption, revision, or amendment of 
this Code, but that fails by reason of the adoption, revision, or amendment, to conform to 
the present requirements for a conforming or compliant structure in the zoning district 
in which the structure or building is located. 

Nonconforming Use 

A use or activity that was lawful prior to the adoption, revision, or amendment of this 
Code, but that by reason of adoption, revision, or amendment, is no longer permitted in 
the zoning district in which the use or activity is located. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  218 

O 

Obsolete Structure 

A building or structure which is no longer usable because of its physical condition. 

Office 

Establishments providing executive, management, administrative, professional services, 
consulting, record keeping, or a headquarters of an enterprise or organization. 

Outdoor Commercial Storage 

The storage of items used in connection with a nonresidential principal use outside of an 
enclosed structure, including but not limited to the storage of goods in trade, bunks of 
lumber, pallets of material, unassembled products, baled cardboard, defective/old 
appliances, scrap material, or loose materials such as gravel, mulch or discarded 
materials, storage pods, trailers, sheds, and similar material. 

Outdoor Light Fixture 

An outdoor electrically powered illuminating lamp or similar devise used for lighting 
structures, parking areas, pathways, sidewalks, streets, alleys, service canopies, 
recreational areas, signs, or other similar outdoor lighting uses.  

Outdoor Residential Storage 

The storage of items used in connection with a residential principal use outside of an 
enclosed structure, including but not limited to the storage of gardening tools, bicycles, 
outdoor furniture, and similar personal belongings 

P 

Parks and Open Space 

Outdoor areas designed and used for public recreation, exercise, sports, education, 
rehabilitation, or similar activities, or a land area intended to enhance the enjoyment of 
natural features or natural beauty. This may include paved greenways, natural surface 
trails, open fields, arboreta, botanical gardens, sports fields, dog parks, skate parks, plazas, 
splash pads, playgrounds, picnic areas, and similar amenities. 

Person 

An individual, partnership, corporation, association, unincorporated organization, trust or 
any other legal or commercial entity, including a joint venture or affiliated ownership. 
The word person also means a municipality or state agency. 

Personal Services 

A facility that provides individualized services generally related to personal or business 
needs including but not limited to laundry, including cleaning and pressing service, 
beauty shops, barbershops, shoe repair, personal copying/shipping services, health and 
fitness facilities, photographic studios, tailor/sewing shop, indoor equipment/party/event 
rental, tanning salon, bicycle and sports equipment repair, small appliance repair, tattoo 
parlors and similar uses. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  219 

Plat 

A map, drawing or chart upon which the subdivider presents proposals for the physical 
development of a subdivision, and which he or she submits for approval and intends to 
record in final form. 

Portable Storage Unit 

A transportable unit designed and used primarily for temporary storage of building 
materials, household goods, personal items, and other materials, and uniquely designed 
for ease of loading to and from a transport vehicle. 

Portable Waste Trailer 

A portable utility trailer that contains a trash or recycling enclosure. 

Primary Building or Structure 

A structure or building in which the principal use of the lot on which the building is 
located is conducted. 

Principal Outdoor Storage 

As a principal use, a property or area used for the long term (more than 24 hours) storage 
of materials, merchandise, products, stock, supplies, machines, operable vehicles, 
equipment, manufacturing materials, or other items not kept within a structure having 
at least four walls and a roof. 

Principal Use 

The primary or predominant use of any lot, building, or structure. 

Propane Tank 

A cylindrical storage tank that contains liquefied propane under high pressure. 

Public Safety Facilities 

The conduct of publicly owned safety and emergency services, such as, but not limited to 
fire stations, police stations, and emergency medical and ambulance service. 

Q 

R 

Reasonable Timeframe 

A timeframe in which the review of an application will take place, determined by staff, 
related to the complexity of the application, staff’s current workload, and the Internal 
Application Processing Policy.  

Recreation and Entertainment, Indoor 

A building or part of a building devoted to providing amusement, entertainment, or 
recreation for a fee, including movie theaters and theatrical space for dramatic, musical, 
or live performances, bowling, billiards, arcades, skating, swimming, tennis, teen clubs, 
escape rooms, archery and axe-throwing, trampolines, and similar indoor activities 
taking place inside an enclosed building. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  220 

Recreation and Entertainment, Outdoor 

Commercial entertainment, recreation, or games of skill where any portion of the activity 
takes place outside of a building. Activities include, but are not limited to ball parks 
(baseball, football, soccer, tennis), water parks, batting cages, miniature golf, go-cart 
tracks, amusement parks, golf driving ranges, swimming pools, and other similar uses. 

Recreational Vehicle 

Vehicle type unit primarily designed as temporary living quarters for recreational, 
camping, or travel use, which either has its own motive power or is mounted on or drawn 
by another vehicle. The basic types are: 

1. Travel Trailer: A vehicular portable unit, mounted on wheels, of such a size or 
weight as not to require special highway movement permits when drawn by a 
motorized vehicle, and of a body width of no more than eight feet and six inches 
(8'6"), excluding awnings, and a body length of no more than 35 feet when factory 
equipped for the road. 

2. Tent recreational vehicle: A portable unit mounted on wheels and constructed 
with collapsible partial side walls which fold for towing by another vehicle. 

3. Truck recreational vehicle: A portable unit, designed to be loaded onto, or affixed 
to, the bed or chassis of a truck. Truck recreational vehicles are of two basic types: 

a. Slide-in recreational vehicle - A portable unit designed to be loaded onto and 
unloaded from the bed of a pickup truck. 

b. Chassis-mount recreational vehicle - A portable unit designed to be affixed to 
a truck chassis. 

4. Motorhome: A vehicular unit built on a self-propelled motor vehicle chassis.  

Recreational Vehicle Park 

A parcel of land on which two or more recreational vehicle sites and/or camping sites are 
located, established, or maintained for occupancy by recreational vehicles or camping 
units of the general public as temporary living quarters for vacation or recreation 
purposes. 

Redevelopment 

1. For the purpose of prohibitions on nonfunctional turf, artificial turf, and invasive 
plant species, redevelopment requires both of the following: 

a. A disturbance of more than 50 percent of the aggregate landscape area, and 

b. Activity that requires a building permit or Site Plan. 

2. For all other purposes, redevelopment includes any activity that requires a 
building permit or Site Plan. This shall not include basic maintenance and repair 
of existing structures or interior structural improvements. 

Repair, High Impact 

An establishment primarily engaged in the repair or maintenance of motor vehicles, 
trailers, and similar large mechanical equipment, including paint, bodywork, upholstery, 
muffler, transmission work and major engine and engine part overhaul. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  221 

Repair, Low Impact 

An establishment primarily engaged in the repair or maintenance of motor vehicles, 
trailers, and similar mechanical equipment, including brake, muffler, tire repair and 
change, lubrication, and tune ups, provided it is conducted within a completely enclosed 
building. 

Reservation 

A legal obligation to keep property free from development for a stated period of time, 
not involving any transfer of property rights.  

Restaurant 

An establishment that sells food or beverages in a ready-to-consume state, in individual 
servings, that the customer consumes while seated at tables or counters located in or 
immediately adjacent to the building in which the use is located, and that may include 
carry-out service. This includes any portion of an establishment used for seating for the 
consumption of food on the premises that sells prepared food or beverages, such as a 
bakery, delicatessen, cafes, and coffee shops. 

Retail Sales 

Retail sales uses are private enterprises involved in the sale, lease, or rent of new or used 
products directly to the general public. This use does not include food service, personal 
service, or recreation uses. No outdoor display or outdoor storage is permitted unless 
specifically authorized by this by-law. Accessory uses may include offices, parking, 
storage of goods, assembly, repackaging, or repair of goods for on-site sale. 

Right-of-way 

The width between property lines of a street. 

S 

School, Elementary or Secondary 

An educational institution that satisfies the compulsory education laws of the State of 
Colorado for students in the elementary grades, middle school grades, or high school 
grades. This definition includes public, private, non-profit, and charter non-boarding 
schools. 

School, University or College 

A public or private institution for higher learning (beyond grade 12) providing instruction 
as approved by the Colorado Department of Education or a national collegiate or 
university accreditation agency. This definition also includes higher learning facilities for 
religious institutions. 

School, Vocational 

A vocational or technical school, trade school, language school, business school, training 
center, beauty school, culinary school, and comparable advanced or continuing 
education facilities. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  222 

Service Station 

A facility limited to retail sales to the public of gasoline, biodiesel, electricity, ethanol fuel 
blends, hydrogen, natural gas, or other fuels for motor vehicles, as well as motor oil, 
lubricants, travel aides, and minor automobile accessories. Accessory use may include 
restaurants, and convenience food and beverage sales. 

Sign-Related Definitions 

Flag 

Any fabric or bunting containing distinctive colors, patterns, symbols or graphic 
depictions or text that is attached to a pole or similar staff. 

Sign 

Any identification, illustration, means of communication, or device, illuminated or 
non-illuminated, that is visible from any public place or is located on private property 
and exposed to the public and that is intended to direct attention, advertise, 
announce, communicate, declare, demonstrate, or display a particular use, product, 
service, idea, interest, or message. 

Sign, Awning 

A sign that is a part of or attached to an awning, canopy, or other fabric, plastic, or 
structural protective cover over a door, entrance, window, or outdoor service area. 

Sign, Electronic 

A sign that is internally lit to display messages and images that are changed 
electronically. The lit sign area may be of various types, including but not limited to 
flat screen, active display matrix, or a board with a single or multiple lines of text or 
graphics. The light source may vary but is typically Light Emitting Diodes (LED). 

Sign, Freestanding 

A sign anchored directly to the ground or supported by one or more posts, columns, 
or other vertical structures or supports; and not attached to or dependent for 
support from any building. 

Sign, Nonconforming 

Any sign lawfully constructed prior to the Effective Date that fails to conform to the 
provisions of this Code. 

Sign, Off-Premise 

A sign that carries a message of any kind or directs attention to a business, 
commodity, service, or entertainment conducted, sold, or offered elsewhere than 
upon the premises where the sign is located, or to which it is affixed. 

Sign Permit 

See Section 15-8-30(i). 

Sign Plan, Coordinated 

See Section 15-8-30(j). 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  223 

Sign, Projecting 

A sign attached to and projecting out from a building face or wall, generally at right 
angles to the building. 

Sign, Public 

A sign erected by or on the order of a public officer in the performance of a public 
duty, such as signs to promote safety or traffic signs; signs to indicate transit stops; 
memorial plaques; or signs of historic interest. 

Sign, Roof 

A business sign erected upon or above a roof or parapet of a building or structure. 
Mansard roof signs shall be considered wall signs. 

Sign, Sandwich Board 

A movable sign not secured or attached to the ground or surface upon which it is 
located and constructed in such a manner as to form an "A" or a tent-like shape, 
hinged or not hinged at the top; each angular face held at an appropriate distance 
by a supporting member. 

Sign, Temporary 

A sign that is placed for display during a limited period of time only. A temporary 
sign is generally constructed of lightweight materials and installed in a manner so as 
to be easily removed. 

Sign, Temporary Banner 

A temporary sign composed of lightweight material secured or mounted so as to 
allow movement caused by wind. 

Sign, Vacation Rental 

A sign located on the same lot as a legally permitted vacation rental. 

Sign, Vehicle 

A sign or other advertising device painted on or otherwise permanently affixed to a 
car, truck, trailer, or other similar vehicle. 

Sign, Wall 

A sign painted on or attached flat and parallel to the exterior wall or surface of a 
building or other structure, and that projects not more than 12 inches from that wall 
or surface. 

Sign, Wind 

Any sign consisting of one or a series of two or more banners, flags, pennants, 
ribbons, spinners, streamers, captive balloons or other objects or material fastened in 
such a manner as to move, upon being subjected to pressure by wind or breeze. 

Sign, Window 

Any sign or advertising device affixed to the interior or exterior of a window or placed 
immediately behind a window frame so as to be seen from persons outside the 
building. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  224 

Sign, Yard 

A type of temporary sign that is constructed of paper, vinyl, plastic, wood, metal or 
other comparable material, which is mounted on a stake or a frame structure (often 
made from wire) that includes one or more stakes. 

Simple Subdivision 

See Section 15-8-30(k). 

Site Plan 

See Section 15-8-30(l). 

Slope Hazard Development Permit 

See Section 15-8-30(m). 

Solar Energy System, Ground- or Roof-Mounted (Accessory) 

A device, array of devices, or structural design feature, the purpose of which is to provide 
for generation or storage of electricity from sunlight, or the collection, storage, and/or 
distribution of solar energy for space heating or cooling, electricity generation, or water 
heating. Ground-mounted systems are mounted on a rack or pole that is ballasted on, or 
is attached to, the ground. Roof-mounted systems are mounted on a rack that is 
ballasted on, or is attached to, the roof of a building or structure. 

Special Use Permit  

See Section 15-8-40(j). 

Street 

A way for vehicular traffic, further classified and defined as follows:  

1. Arterial streets are those which permit the relatively rapid and unimpeded 
movement of large volumes of traffic from one part of the community to another.  

2. Collector streets are those which collect traffic from local streets and carry it to 
arterial streets or to local traffic generators, such as neighborhood shopping 
centers and schools. Collector streets include the principal entrance streets to a 
residential development, those linking adjacent developments, and those streets 
providing circulation within the developments.  

3. Local streets are those used primarily for direct access to properties abutting the 
right-of-way. Local streets carry traffic having an origin or destination within the 
development and do not carry through traffic.  

4. Alley means a minor way which is used primarily for vehicular service access to 
the rear or side of properties otherwise abutting on a street.  

Subdivider or Developer 

Any person, individual, firm, partnership, association, corporation, estate, trust or any 
other group or combination acting as a unit, dividing or proposing to divide land as to 
constitute a subdivision as herein defined, including any agent of the subdivider.  

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  225 

Subdivision 

1. The division of a parcel of land into two or more parcels, sites or lots for the 
purpose, whether immediate or future, of transfer of ownership or building 
development; or  

2. The improvement of one or more parcels of land for residential, commercial or 
industrial structures or groups of structures involving the division or allocation of 
land for the opening, widening or extension of any street or streets, except private 
streets serving industrial structures; and/or the division or allocation of land as 
open spaces for common use by owners, occupants or lease holders, or as 
easements for the extension and maintenance of public sewerage, water, storm 
drainage or other public utilities or facilities. 

Subdivision, Major 

See Section 15-8-40(k). 

Subdivision Design Modification 

See Section 15-8-40(l). 

Substantial Damage 

Damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of restoring the 
structure to its before damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the 
market value of the structure before the damage occurred 

T 

Temporary Event or Sales 

A temporary outdoor use on private property including, but not limited to outdoor 
entertainment, educational and cultural events, art shows, sidewalk sales, or seasonal 
sales (e.g., fireworks or Christmas trees). This use does not include events held on Town 
property or Town-owned public right-of-way that require a Special Events Permit from 
the Town. 

Temporary Use Permit 

See Section 15-8-30(n). 

Tiny Home 

A structure that: 

1. Is permanently constructed on a vehicle chassis; 

2. Is designed for long-term residency; 

3. Includes electrical, mechanical, or plumbing services that are fabricated, formed, 
or assembled at a location other than the site of the completed home; 

4. Is not self-propelled; and 

5. Has a square footage of not more than 400 square feet. 

In order to meet this definition, a tiny home must be built to the International Residential 
Code as adopted by the Building Codes and Standards program within the Division of 
Housing. Colorado tiny homes will receive a metal plate insignia that certifies the tiny 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  226 

home is built to the codes and standards of the program. This use does not include 
manufactured homes, recreational park trailers, or recreational vehicles. 

Transportation Facilities 

Any structure or transit facility that is primarily used as part of a local or regional transit 
system for the purpose of loading, unloading, or transferring of passengers or 
accommodating the movement of passengers from one mode of transportation to 
another. This includes bus or rail terminals/stations, transfer points, and depots. 

U 

Utility, Major 

A facility providing an important regional utility service, such as water, sewer, or drainage, 
that normally entails construction of new buildings or structures, and that typically has 
employees on the site on an ongoing basis. Examples include but are not limited to: 
utility-scale solar, water works, sewage treatment plants, reservoirs, regional storm water 
detention ponds and other similar facilities. 

Utility, Minor 

Utility facilities that are necessary to support legally established uses and involve utility 
structures such as water and sewage pump stations, electrical substations, telephone 
exchanges, poles or cables, switch boxes, transformer boxes, cap banks, and 
underground water and sewer lines. 

V 

Vacation of Right-of-Way (ROW Vacation) 

See Section 15-8-40(m). 

Vacation Rental 

A residential dwelling unit, including either a single-unit or multiunit dwelling, assessed 
and taxed as a residential dwelling unit, rented for the purpose of transient lodging or 
transient living accommodations for a maximum period not to exceed 30 consecutive 
days to the same renter, with tenancies defined per zoning district, per month. Hotels, 
motels, lodges, inns, bed and breakfasts, recreational vehicle spaces and campsites are 
not vacation rentals. Individual bedrooms within a single-unit dwelling or multiunit 
dwelling are prohibited from being used as vacation rentals. 

Variance 

See Section 15-8-40(n). 

Vehicle and Equipment Sales, Leasing, and Rental 

The sale, display, lease, rental, or storage of light motor vehicles, including automobiles, 
vans, light trucks, light trailers, boats, motorcycles, all-terrain vehicles, snowmobiles, 
personal watercraft, and recreational vehicles. This use does not include salvage 
operations, scrap operations, vehicle impound yards, or commercial parking lots available 
for short-term use. 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  227 

W 

Warehousing and Storage Facility 

An establishment whose primary activity is the storage of residential, commercial, 
industrial, or other goods, including inventory and/or finished products, and where no 
goods are sold either at wholesale or at retail. 

Wireless Communications Facility (WCF)-Related Definitions 

Eligible Facilities Request  

Any request for modification of an existing WCF that involves the collocation of new 
transmission equipment, removal of transmission equipment, or replacement of 
transmission equipment. 

Eligible Support Structure  

Any WCF as defined in this UDC that is existing at the time an application is filed. 

Existing  

A constructed WCF that was reviewed and approved in accordance with all 
requirements of applicable law as of the time of an eligible facilities request. 

Substantial Change  

A modification that substantially changes the physical dimensions of an eligible 
support structure that meets any of the following criteria: 

1. For ground-mounted WCFs, an increase in the height of the facility by more 
than 10 percent or by the height of one additional antenna array with 
separation from the nearest existing antenna not to exceed 20 feet, whichever 
is greater; for roof- and building-mounted WCFs, it increases the height of the 
structure by more than 10 percent or more than 10 feet, whichever is greater. 
Changes in height should be measured from the original support structure in 
cases where deployments are or will be separated horizontally, such as on 
buildings' rooftops; in other circumstances, changes in height should be 
measured from the dimensions of the WCF, inclusive of originally approved 
appurtenances and any modifications that were approved prior to the passage 
of the Spectrum Act. 

2. For ground-mounted WCFs, it involves adding an appurtenance to the body of 
the facility that would protrude from the edge of the facility more than 20 feet, 
or more than the width of the facility at the level of the appurtenance, 
whichever is greater for eligible support structures, it involves adding an 
appurtenance to the body of the structure that would protrude from the edge 
of the structure by more than six feet; 

3. For any eligible support structure, it involves installation of more than the 
standard number of new equipment cabinets for the technology involved, but 
not to exceed four cabinets; or roof- and building-mounted WCFs, it involves 
installation of any new equipment cabinets on the ground if there are no pre-
existing ground cabinets associated with the structure, or else involves 
installation of ground cabinets that are more than 10 percent larger in height or 
overall volume than any other ground cabinets associated with the 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  228 

structure;4.For any eligible support structure, it entails any excavation or 
deployment outside the current site; or would impair the concealment 
elements of the eligible support structure; 

4. It entails any excavation or deployment outside of the current site, except that, 
for ground-mounted WCFs, it entails any excavation or deployment of 
transmission equipment outside of the current site by more than 30 feet in any 
direction. The site boundary from which the 30 feet is measured excludes any 
access or utility easements currently related to the site; 

5. It would defeat the camouflaging elements of the eligible support structure; 
and 

6. For any eligible support structure, it does not comply with conditions 
associated with the siting approval of the construction or modification of the 
eligible support structure or WCF equipment, unless the non-compliance is 
due to an increase in height, increase in width, addition of cabinets, or new 
excavation that would not exceed the thresholds identified in provisions 1., 2., 
and 3. of this definition. 

Transmission Equipment  

Equipment that facilitates transmission for any Federal Communications 
Commission-licensed or authorized wireless communication service, including, but 
not limited to, radio transceivers, antennas, coaxial or fiber-optic cable, and regular 
and backup power supply. The term includes equipment associated with wireless 
communications services including, but not limited to, private, broadcast, and public 
safety services, as well as unlicensed wireless services and fixed wireless services 
such as microwave backhaul. 

Wireless Communication Facility (WCF) 

A facility used to provide personal wireless services as defined at 47 U.S.C. Section 
332(c)(7)(C); or wireless information services provided to the public or to the classes of 
users as to be effectively available directly to the public via licensed or unlicensed 
frequencies; or wireless utility monitoring and control services. A wireless 
communications facility includes an antenna or antennas, including without 
limitation, directional, omni-directional and parabolic antennas, support equipment 
and their permitted supporting structure, but does not include the support structure 
to which the wireless communications facility or its components are attached if the 
use of the structure for the wireless communications facility is not the primary use. 
The term does not include mobile transmitting devices used by wireless service 
subscribers, such as vehicle or hand held radios/telephones and their associated 
transmitting antennas. 

Building-Mounted WCF 

An antenna that is mounted on a building with a primary purpose to be a use other 
than as an antenna support structure.  

Roof-Mounted WCF 

An antenna that is mounted on a structure that is located on the roof of a building 

Exhibit A



Article 11 Definitions and Measurements 
 Section 15-11-30 General Terms 

15-11-20(i) Sign Measurements 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Adoption Draft  229 

Ground-Mounted WCF 

An antenna that is mounted on a freestanding support structure, such as a 
monopole or tower. 

X 

[Reserved] 

Y 

[Reserved] 

Z 

Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) 

See Section 15-8-40(o). 

Exhibit A



Exhibit B



Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Addendum 1 

Silverton Land Use Code 

Addendum to Adoption Draft | December 2024 

The following table and subsequent pages show the proposed revisions to the draft 
published October 31, 2024. 

Summary of Proposed Changes to Adoption Draft 

# Section Number Section Title Draft 
Page # 

Revision 

1 Table 15-2-3 
Zoning Districts 
Dimensional 
Standards Summary 

8 
Update table to address 
nonconforming zoning lots < 
5,000 square feet setbacks 

2 Table 15-2-4 
R-1 Lot and Building 
Standards 

10 
Add missing table not [1] to Lot 
Width 

3 Table 15-2-5 
R-2 Lot and Building
Standards

11 
Add missing table not [1] to Lot 
Width 

4 Table 15-2-10 
Permitted Setback 
Encroachments 

16 

Add “porches” to list of 
permitted setback 
encroachments 
Add missing “and” 

5 15-3-70(i) 
Portable Waste 
Trailer 

57-58 Numbering/formatting error fix 

6 15-6-30(b)(5)b.(iii) Snow Shedding 84 

Add option for other snow 
management techniques as 
approved by the Building 
Official 

7 15-6-40 (b) General Provisions 87-88 Numbering/formatting error fix 

8 15-6-40(d) Exemptions 89-90 Numbering/formatting error fix 

9 15-6-40(e) Prohibited Outdoor 
Lighting 

90 Numbering/formatting error fix 

10 15-7-50(c) Public Signs 96 Numbering/formatting error fix 

11 15-7-80(b)
Mixed Use, 
Commercial, and 
Public Districts  

99 Numbering/formatting error fix 

12 15-7-90(b)
Sandwich Board and 
Sign Boards 

99-100 Numbering/formatting error fix 

13 15-8-10(a)
San Juan Regional 
Planning 
Commission 

102-103 

Minor grammar edits and 
clarification regarding the 
ability and authority to add 
agenda items to Planning 
Commission meetings 

14 15-11-20(a) 
Building Footprint 
Measurement 

196 
Clarify that building footprint 
measurement does not include 
accessory structures. 

ATTACHMENT B Addendum to the Adoption Draft



Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Addendum 2 

ADDENDUM ITEM #1:

ADDENDUM ITEM #2: 

ATTACHMENT B Addendum to the Adoption Draft



 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Addendum  3 

ADDENDUM ITEM #3: 

 

ADDENDUM ITEM #4: 

 

 

  

ATTACHMENT B Addendum to the Adoption Draft



 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Addendum  4 

ADDENDUM ITEM #5: 

 

 

ADDENDUM ITEM #6: 

 

  

ATTACHMENT B Addendum to the Adoption Draft



 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Addendum  5 

ADDENDUM ITEM #7: 

 

 

  

ATTACHMENT B Addendum to the Adoption Draft



 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Addendum  6 

ADDENDUM ITEM #8: 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B Addendum to the Adoption Draft



 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Addendum  7 

ADDENDUM ITEM #9: 

 

ADDENDUM ITEM #10: 

 

  

ATTACHMENT B Addendum to the Adoption Draft



 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Addendum  8 

ADDENDUM ITEM #11: 

 

ADDENDUM ITEM #12: 

 

 

  

ATTACHMENT B Addendum to the Adoption Draft



 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Addendum  9 

ADDENDUM ITEM #13: 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B Addendum to the Adoption Draft



 

Silverton Land Use Code Rewrite 
Addendum  10 

ADDENDUM ITEM #14:  

 

ATTACHMENT B Addendum to the Adoption Draft



John H. Wright, C.P.G. 
P. O. Box 308 

Silverton, CO 81433 
(970) 387-0257

November 19, 2024 

To: San Juan Regional Planning Commission, and Town of Silverton 

Subject: Comments on Silverton Land Use Code Draft and Zoning Map 

A few issues with the Zoning Map include: 

1. The Town Limits trace along the northern boundary of the Town of Silverton (TOS)
incompletely depict Town lands, and is therefore inaccurate.  The omissions include:

a) A portion of the Ruby No.1 Placer (MS 654) deeded from ASARCO to the TOS on
January 9, 1968 as recorded with the San Juan County Clerk: Book 188, Page 575.

b) The Silverton Cemetery (aka Hillside Cemetery) cited in the San Juan County
Assessor’s records as parcel #48290080010011, listing TOS as the owner, and also
citing a grant deed issued from the USA/BLM to TOS dated November 9, 2000
reception # 140896.

c) Certain findings pertaining to the cadastral survey of the northern town boundary are
recorded in San Juan County Clerk’s records, reception # 154183 of which the map
maker should become aware.

2. Streets and roads along the same northern boundary are mislabeled, out of date, or both.

a) “State Highway 110 & 110A” no longer exist as state highways. That which is
labeled State Highway 110A on the draft zoning map is now County Road 110 (CR
110).

b) The point of departure of CR 110 from Green Street is very close to where 18th Street
and Green Street meet within the parcel known as “Greene Street Addition.” From
that intersection headed generally uphill, the road curves to the left and passes beyond
the Greene Street Addition boundary at roughly the point of tangency.  From that
point on, the road is CR 110, not Greene Street, and should be labeled as such.
Certainly, the map maker will want to check where CR 110 begins. CR 110, of
course, runs all the way out to Gladstone.

c) One consequence of not labeling roads correctly is that Homeowners Insurers,
researching a property along the northern TOS boundary, and referring to the street
address only, can completely mis-locate the property to a point well out of the town
limits and way out in heavy forest.  Misjudging wildfire peril on account of that has
lead one insurer to refuse policy renewal on August 23, 2024.

ATTACHMENT C Public Comment



d) Google Maps and Google Earth are two sources Homeowners Insurers and Delivery
Services frequently access to pursue their respective businesses.  At present, if one
enters “1872 CR 110, Silverton, CO”, which is my correct address within the town
limits, Google Earth will take one way out toward Gladstone.  I would like to see San
Juan County and the Town of Silverton work to correct Google Earth, and I am happy
to cooperate with them to effect those corrections.

Sincerely, 

ATTACHMENT C Public Comment



Page | 1

December 2, 2024

Lucy Mulvihill
Community Development Director - Town of Silverton
lmulvihill@silverton.co.us

Dear Ms. Mulvihill and Planning Commission – 

I was fortunate to grow up in Silverton, and the Town still holds a special place in my heart.  I have been 
observing the evolution of the various plans for the Town and County, and am excited by the energy I see 
in the plans. I have recently reviewed the proposed Land Use Code, and below I offer some comments 
from my perspective as a Professional Engineer licensed in the State of Colorado. Please forward these 
comments to the Planning Commission for consideration at the LUC meeting on December 10, 2024.

1) Question/recommendation:  Have all of the sections in Article 5 (Environmentally Sensitive 
Lands) been reviewed by appropriately credentialed Professional Engineers?  There are a 
number of technical nuances in the requirements in these articles that need to be carefully 
balanced to protect public health and safety while not unintentionally restricting the development 
and use of land included in the Land Use Plan and other Town plans and visions.  I suggest that 
all of Article 5 be reviewed by appropriate Professional Engineers before adoption.

2) 15-5-30:  Slope Hazard Areas

a. The overall intent of this section appears to require appropriate geotechnical and 
engineering analysis before constructing on a slope. This is a good idea for long-term 
stability of any structures constructed, particularly since construction on slope is a 
necessity in mountainous communities.

b. 15-5-30(a)(2):  why is a “steep slope” defined as 25% or greater?  What’s the basis for 
this specific grade being the dividing line between “steep slope” and “not-slope”?  
Consider adding an explanatory footnote describing the rationale for this definition of a 
steep slope.

c. Why is there one set of requirements for development on slopes in the range of 25%-
30%, and a separate set of requirements for development on slopes of greater than 
30%? Could all development on slopes of 25% or more follow the same guidelines? 

d. I recommend deleting clause 15-5-30(c)(2), which states “No more than 30% of the 
slopes between 25 and 30 percent shall be disturbed during development. 

i. This clause is ambiguous and does not specify what “30% of the slopes between 
25 and 30 percent” means.  

1. Does it mean disturbance of 30% of the sloped area (square-feet)?  

2. Does it mean disturbance of 30% of the length or width of a slope? 

3. Is a “disturbed” area defined as the area under any permanent 
improvements, such as buildings, driveways, streets, etc?  Does 
“disturbance” include any areas which undergo any excavation or 
movement of soil or overburden, regardless of whether the area is the 
location of a permanent improvement?

ATTACHMENT C Public Comment

mailto:lmulvihill@silverton.co.us


Page | 2

ii. As written, this does not apply to slopes greater than 30%, which could imply that 
a greater area of slopes steeper than 30% could be developed.   Deleting this 
clause will eliminate a number of points of confusion.

iii. Additionally, given that a large portion of the R-1, R-2 and PUD zones in the 
recently adopted Town Official Zoning Map (most of which are already platted in 
lot/block format) are located on hillsides (Taylor’s Addition/Shrine Hill, Blague’s 
Addition, portions of the old Fisher Brewery site between South Mineral Creek 
and US550), the 30% development clause will significantly and materially hinder 
housing development in those areas.  This will unnecessarily inhibit new housing 
and diminish the tax base resulting from the construction of additional housing 
units. Restricting development of already-platted areas may also negatively 
impact the value of those parcels of land, which will both harm the landowners 
and reduce the tax revenue generated from vacant land.

iv. The annotated version of the draft LUC notes in footnote 274 that this clause was 
recommended in the Development Readiness Assessment.  I was unable to find 
a copy of the Development Readiness Assessment to see what it says about 
development on slopes.

3) 15-5-30(e): Development on Unstable or Potentially Unstable Slopes  

a. What are the characteristics of a slope that would render a slope “unstable or potentially 
unstable”?  I suggest adding a definition or description to this effect.

b. What are the qualifications of the person who determines that a slope is “unstable or 
potentially unstable”?  I recommend that stability or lack therof be determined by a 
professional geotechnical engineer based on soil analysis. This is important, because a 
slope of a given pitch in one location may be stable, while a slope of the same pitch in 
another location may be unstable. Slope pitch alone does not determine stability.

c. 15-5-30(e)(4): What is the definition of over-steeping?  I suggest adding a definition or 
description to this effect.

d. 15-5-30(e)(4): It appears that some of this text is duplicated from 15-5-30(e).

4) I recommend that both topographic and boundary surveys be required for any parcels 
contemplated for development, whether located on a slope or not. The minimum contour interval 
for the topographic survey should be 1-foot to provide adequate vertical resolution for both initial 
review/approval and eventual design purposes. 

5) Similarly, I recommend that the slopes, and boundaries of “steep slope” area on a parcel be 
allowed to be measured and refined through a site-specific topographic survey commissioned by 
a prospective developer, rather than relying solely on the Hazard Overlay maps.  The site-specific 
topographic survey will allow a more precise assessment of the slopes and slope boundaries 
present on the parcel, which in turn will allow more precise placement of structures, streets, 
utilities, and other development items, and better definition of the engineering requirements to 
construct on a slope.

6) 15-6-30(b)(8): Small Lot Development Bulk Plane

a. Given that there is a movement to allowing single-family homes to be constructed on 
single lots, I recommend reviewing the geometry of the Bulk Plane to be sure that a two-
story home 

ATTACHMENT C Public Comment



Page | 3

can be constructed on a single lot (25-foot width) within envelope prescribed in these 
guidelines.

b. Does the Bulk Plane also apply to buildings in the business district which may be on lots 
less than 5000 square feet?  (I.e. buildings that abut each other with zero side setbacks?) 
15-6-30(b)(1) implies that this section applies to all buildings in Town. Buildings in the 
business district would logically be exempt from these Bulk Plane requirements.

c. Also consider checking that the Bulk Plane allows appropriate solar exposure to any lots 
to the north.

7) 15-6-40: Outdoor Lighting: 

a. 15-6-40(b): I suggest a clarification to the “fully-shielded” requirement that all outdoor light 
fixtures emit no light above a horizontal plane. This is consistent with lighting 
requirements in other communities concerned about light trespass and light pollution.

b. 15-6-40(e): In addition to mercury-vapor lamps, I recommend a phase-out of all high-
intensity-discharge (HID) lamps, including sodium-vapor, metal-halide, and other types of 
HID lamps.

c. 15-6-40(g)(1)(d):  The perceived color of light is measured by “correlated color 
temperature”, with units in degrees Kelvin (K).  The terminology “Total Kelvin proposed 
for each lamp;” in this section is incorrect for lighting, because degrees Kelvin are not 
additive in the context of color temperature from multiple lamps.  Given that the goal of 
this outdoor lighting section is to keep outdoor lights generally dimmer (fewer lumens) 
and more toward the yellow/warm end of the spectrum (lower degrees Kelvin), then 
better terminology in this clause would be simply  “Proposed color temperature in 
degrees Kelvin (K) for each lamp;”

8) 15-8-30(m): Slope Hazard Development Permit

a. Article 15-5-30 (Slope Hazard Areas) lists various items that need to be evaluated by 
professional engineers and/or professional geologists, however the only professional 
evaluation/design requirement in Article 15-8-30(m) is a drainage plan prepared by a 
professional engineer.

b. Paragraph 15-8-30(m)(4)(a)(iii)(5) refers to a geologist’s or geotechnical engineer’s report 
on slope hazards.  This section refers to required maps and cross-sections, but no 
requirements or parameters are given for any maps or cross-sections.  

c. I recommend that the requirements of 15-5-30 and 15-8-30(m) be coordinated such that 
the development parameters stipulated in 15-5-30 are required in the development 
review information listed in 15-8-30(m).

d. I suggest making (iii)(5) a separate subsection (iv) rather than part of subsection (iii) 
since (iii) discusses drainage plans, which are not addressed by geotechnical engineers. 

ATTACHMENT C Public Comment



Page | 4

Thank you for considering these comments and suggestions. My contact information is below should you 
wish to contact me.  

Thank you also for all of your hard work to keep Silverton a special place!

Sincerely, 

Travis Moore, PE
travistm@gmail.com
Cell: 303-746-2967 

ATTACHMENT C Public Comment

mailto:travistm@gmail.com


Comments on Land Use Code – 15-2-80  

Overlay Zoning Districts 
a) Historic District Overlay 

3) Establishment of Town’s Historic Register. 

b) Is regarding adding to the register (Comment – calls out process, but does not specify 
why this should be pursued.) 

c) Calls out what can be listed in the register 

Comment: Almost all of the older parts of town with built structures are within the boundary 
of the National Historic Landmark District and this also includes the district’s later 
amendment that extended north to include the mill and tram. There are both sizable 
Federal and State Income Tax Credits for certified rehabilitations of Historic properties 
(Listed as contributing to Historic Districts) as well as Colorado Income tax Credits for 
owner properties (non-commercial) when credits are available.  There should be an 
incentive for listing in the local register; what the local incentive should be needs to be 
discussed. There seems to be no incentive now for making an application for listing in the 
local register.)  

A map of the National Landmark District should be included so that citizens can see they 
are within the Landmark District and may further check to see if they are contributing to the 
district and potential incentives. 

 

5) New Construction  

New construction within the Historic District Overlay shall be differentiated from the 
Contributing Properties (clear definition of “contributing” required) but be compatible with 
the historic materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing to protect the 
integrity of the Historic District Overlay and its environment.  

(Comment: This is one of the most difficult and misunderstood aspects of compatibility of 
new construction. How closely should the new construction fit with the historic. This needs 
to be clearly defined. The word “differentiated” is a trap of various opinions in reviewing. 
The regulation should clearly state a close match to what would have been built during the 
historic period of significance, if that is the preference and intent of the regulation. OR - If 
the interpretation is more about an architect’s interpretation of what is compatible in 

ATTACHMENT C Public Comment



selection of materials, features, size, scale and proportion and massing. Interpretation of 
differentiation can lead to a very modern looking building while still meeting requirements. 
What is the intent of the requirement?) 

(Comment: The Green Street regulations are called out as very specific and these 
regulations or similar regulations with specifics would seem appropriate to all properties 
within the Historic Overlay as mapped. The Green Street regulations c-k: Mixed Use 
Required, build to line, façade, architectural projections, bank wall, architectural elements, 
entrance, windows, screening – are all clear requirements for new constructions within the 
historic overlay and should be applicable to all of the overlay, if that is the intent in 
preserving the town’s historic integrity as an economic driver. 

8) Additional Design Standards for all Development 

a) All development in historic district is to comply with the US Secretary of Interior’s 
Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties. (Not appropriate or applicable) 

Comment: The Secretary’s Standard for Treatment of Historic Properties are only 
applicable to Historic Properties that are listed individually as historic or are contributing to 
a historic district and have been inventoried and listed as part of the district. Many of 
Silverton’s older homes and buildings are listed in the National Register of Historic Places 
as components of the National Historic Landmark District. It should be noted that only a 
little over 3% of listed historic districts are National Landmarks. Silverton’s resources are 
special and rare. This fact should be celebrated and shared more extensively with the 
community and visitors and investors. 

Some National Historic Landmark Districts: Butte Anaconda NHLD Montana, Georgetown-
Silver Plume NHLD, Savannah NHLD, Tombstone NHLD… 

NOTE: The Secretary Standards for Treatment of Historic Properties calls out 4 treatments: 
1) Preservation, 2) Rehabilitation, 3 Restoration, 4 Reconstruction. Preservation is for 
freezing a historic property as is and keeping it from deterioration. Restoration is restoring a 
historic property to a certain prior in time, likely its most significant time period. And 
Reconstruction is for a missing historic resource that can be very accurately recreated. 
Rehabilitation is the treatment that is most appropriate for inclusion in design regulations. It 
means that there can be changes done as needed for a similar use or a new adaptive reuse 
that extends the life of the historic building while the 10 standards protect what will still 
retain what is historic about the building. The Rehabilitation Standards and accompanying 
guidelines are what is utilized to ensure compliance with keeping a historic property 
historic. The rehabilitation standards are used for when any Federal Funding and also State 
programs are used, and must be followed. The Rehabilitation Standards are also for 

ATTACHMENT C Public Comment



compliance with Tax Credit incentives. The remaining 3 Treatments are useful but only in 
rare instances and not typical for an actively occupied town that needs to adopt to new 
tenants or uses of a historic building. REHABILITATION – is the only Standard (listed 10 
applicable Standards of Rehabilitation) that should be included in the Town of Silverton’s 
Design Regulations. Assisting in understanding the 10 Standards are accompanying 
guidelines that provide “guidance” in applying the standards with “recommended” and “not 
recommended” approaches to materials and details. The use of Rehabilitation Standards 
are intended to cover the great variety of historic resources where extensive design 
compliance regulations still do not cover all aspects of appropriate design. A proposed 
design either meets the intent of the Standard or it does not, that is the strength of the use 
of the 10 Rehabilitation Standards. 

The design handbook is still useful for guidance is someone wishes to build something that 
is compatible within the community that is not a requirement since there are no regulations 
outside of the overlay that require compatibility. 

 

Comments submitted by Mark Reavis, Licensed Architect State of Montana, Colorado & 
Arizona, NCARB and AICP (Certified Planner), resident of Silverton Colorado. 

ATTACHMENT C Public Comment



Dear Planning Commission and Staff, 

 

After reviewing the Proposed Land Use Code and considering the scope of what is being considered 
for adoption, I encourage the Planning Commission consider recommending an expedited land use 
review process which could start in the fall of 2025. The idea would be to integrate a periodic review 
with local stakeholders (builders, engineer(s), interested parties, planning representatives and 
Town of Silverton Staff) for the purpose of identifying potential issues which may become apparent 
during the development process and over the 2025 building season. An evaluation of the operation 
of the new land use regulations will allow community stakeholders to identify if there are standards 
and provisions which are not aligned with the Compass Master Plan, desired policies, values, and 
goals and identify strategies to better align them. Engaging in an assessment will allow the 
community to update the regulations with the desired policies in a timely manner. Thanks for your 
consideration and your service.  

 

Best, 

 

Anthony D. Edwards 

Silverton Community Member 

ATTACHMENT C Public Comment



                                          *SOILS      *RETAINING WALLS 
           *SEPTICS  *FOUNDATIONS 
           *GRADING AND DRAINAGE 
           *SITE DEVELOPMENT 
 

PO Box 526, 962 Reese Street, Silverton, Colorado 81433 - office (970) 387-0500 - cell (970) 946-2217 
 
1 

December 17, 2024 
 
Planning Commission 
1557 Greene Street 
Silverton, Colorado 81433                             
 
Subject: December 2024 Draft of Proposed Town Regulations. 
 
Dear Planning Commissioners: 
 
This letter is public comment regarding the December 2024 draft of the proposed Town 
regulations.  Here are some suggestions for you to consider while reviewing the proposed Town 
regulations. 
 
SLOPE HAZARD OVERLAY DISTRICT 
 
The Slope Hazard Overlay District shouldn’t be changed to 25-30% slope. The Slope Hazard 
Overlay District should remain as-is, to include land within the Town limits which is 25% slope 
and steeper. 
 
The arbitrary proposed 30% maximum disturbance limit for all projects in the Slope Hazard 
Overlay District should be removed.  That requires a person to possess 70% extra land to 
remain untouched, has unintended consequences (such as pushing the proposed development into 
the flatter on-site wetlands areas to avoid the slope), and construction of the Town street alone 
would push the average property owner trying to build on a sloped site over the 30% maximum 
slope disturbance limit.  The regulations already include a requirement that the applicant shall 
minimize site grading.    
 
The Slope Hazard Overlay District includes requirements for drainage calcs 500 feet out in 
every direction from a project site.  While that is doable from an engineering standpoint, the 
amount of upfront surveying costs associated with obtaining the topo two blocks away from a 
parcel would be cost prohibitive.  For example for a family to construct a home on a 50x100 SF 
parcel, requiring them to pay for topo (and drainage calcs) two blocks away in both directions (as 
well as uphill and downhill) would likely prevent their ability to build. The Town could consider 
changing that to require calcs for the relevant drainage paths that may be impacted by the 
proposed improvements, and the next drainage path over in each direction.    
  
Unretained cut slopes should be designed based on the soil’s angle of repose, and the proposed 
grading and drainage design, and the proposed site layout, not an arbitrary 3:1 maximum cut 
slope with an already built-in loophole that 2:1 can be used if an engineer states that 2:1 will 
look better aesthetically.  Please note a 3:1 cut slope would require 30 feet of disturbed 
horizontal land width, for a proposed 10 feet deep Town street cut bank.   
 
The regulations above as currently written favor only those with very deep pockets, rather than 
allowing for housing for middle income local families/workers.  The regulations above would 
also serve to render the majority of Slope Hazard Overlay District properties 

ATTACHMENT C Public Comment



                                          *SOILS      *RETAINING WALLS 
           *SEPTICS  *FOUNDATIONS 
           *GRADING AND DRAINAGE 
           *SITE DEVELOPMENT 
 

PO Box 526, 962 Reese Street, Silverton, Colorado 81433 - office (970) 387-0500 - cell (970) 946-2217 
 
2 

unbuildable/unfeasible to build on, while the majority of the potentially-buildable vacant land we 
have left in Town probably falls within the Slope Hazard Overlay District.  
 
AVALANCHE HAZARD OVERLAY DISTRICT 
 
The regulations as written require use of a draft map from the 1990s which is known to have 
errors.  As planner I researched those maps and in the early 2000s, the Town paid Art Mears PE 
to fix the errors on that 1990s map, and the resultant corrected map was adopted by the Town in 
2005 as the Town’s adopted Avalanche Hazard Overlay District Map.  Requiring use of the 
1990s map known to have documented errors opens the Town up to liability at taxpayer cost. 
 
The regulations as written would allow for a person to build one foot outside the approximate 
mapped avalanche limit line shown on the hazard map.  The parcels in Town are generally so 
small that allowing that is a significant safety and liability issue for the applicant, neighbors, and 
public.  The avalanche regulations should apply to any site that has a mapped avalanche 
hazard potential. 
 
REVIEW PROCESS 
 
As written, many rather significant development applications would now be decided upon by 
only by one person (Town Administrator), with no apparent adjacent land owner notification, 
or Planning Commission/Town Board review.  While we currently have a competent Town Staff 
and Administrator, it is better for many reasons for the Staff, the community, and the applicants, 
to have a group/board of several persons decide on a project application, rather than unilateral 
decisions by any one person.  It appears that the neighbors would only find out the project got 
approved after it’s already been approved.  The Town Board ”call-up” process currently 
described in the proposed regulations (where a Town Board member can start a discussion 
about the Staff’s already completed decision on an application, such as Slope Hazard 
Development Permit, and Avalanche hazard Development Permit) sounds like nothing 
short of a nightmare, as the neighbors would have their first opportunity to hear/complain 
about an already-approved decision, the Staff would be second-guessed, and the Board 
would be placed in a position of potentially overriding/reversing a decision.  If the Town 
decides to forgo the standard Planning Commission/Town Board review from now on for the 
majority of applications, I would encourage that at least the applicant should submit adjacent 
land owner envelopes, and the Administrator/Staff should mail those, and then the Administrator 
might have a 21 day time period to review the application, and the neighbors would be able to 
contact staff with any adjacent land owner concerns.  In the past this is how Staff reviewed many 
of the Vacation Rental permit applications, and the neighbors were notified that they had a set 
time period to bring up any concerns to the Staff.  I would encourage that the Town should 
continue to involve the Planning Commission and the Town Board in almost all permit 
applications, as using a group to decide, instead of one person, is better for public 
transparency, the Staff, and the Applicants. 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT C Public Comment



                                          *SOILS      *RETAINING WALLS 
           *SEPTICS  *FOUNDATIONS 
           *GRADING AND DRAINAGE 
           *SITE DEVELOPMENT 
 

PO Box 526, 962 Reese Street, Silverton, Colorado 81433 - office (970) 387-0500 - cell (970) 946-2217 
 
3 

 
PUD APPLICATIONS 
 
PUDs seem to be mentioned in the proposed regulations only in reference to “rezoning 
applications,” whereas PUDs often involve proposed mixed-use (residential/commercial) 
clustered development, as well as land that is proposed to be held in common (such as condos). 
 
FLOOD HAZARD OVERLAY DISTRICT 
 
The regulations appear to allow for an applicant to build new construction with the Finished 
Floor Elevation (FFE, first story inside floor level) below the Base Flood Elevation (BFE, the 
height which floodwaters could rise up to), if the surrounding neighbors’ old houses were also 
built “too low.”  It makes sense for the Town to allow for certain repairs to an existing home 
built “too low,” but it doesn’t seem advisable to allow new construction to be built with the 
FFE below the Base Flood Elevation.  
 
OTHER 
 
Although there are reasons that this process is being expedited, I would encourage that the 
Planning Commission might consider tabling this to review it again in January, to allow the 
public (and local design professionals) more time to review the lengthy current draft of the 
proposed Town regulations, which was released on Friday December 6.      
 
Please contact Engineer Mountain, Inc. if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Lisa M. Adair, PE 
Engineer Mountain, Inc. 
engineermountaininc@gmail.com 

ATTACHMENT C Public Comment



Rehabilitation and Additions to designated and eligible Historic 
Properties within the Historic Overlay Zone. 

• All modifications to existing historic properties (designated or eligible to the 
National Register listing) within the Historic Overlay Zone shall follow the US 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation. 

• The 10 Rehabilitation Standards are supplemented with Rehabilitation “Treatment” 
Guidelines. 

New Construction within Historic Overlay Zone 
• Design within the context of the Overlay’s period of significance of 1874 – 1899 plus 

1 transition decade (1910) by limiting architectural expression to the established 
period of significance and the period’s architectural vocabulary (of 25 years + 10). 
(see periods of significance US Department of the Interior).  

• Creative design is essential in compliance within the historic context of the Historic 
Overlay with designs responsive to the utilization of the building. 

• The use of modern durable materials and construction techniques are allowed and 
will differentiate between the contributing historic structures and new construction; 
but shall be compatible with historic materials, features, size, scale, proportions 
and massing to protect the integrity of the Historic Overlay. 

Note: The Green Street design standards proposed should be applicable to the entire 
overlay (if those are essential) having consistent requirements throughout the Overlay. 

New Construction within the Architectural Review Overlay 

• Design within the context of the Overlay’s general periods of significance of 1874 – 
1899 and 1900 - 1924; limiting architectural expression to the established periods of 
significance and the periods architectural vocabulary of 50 years. 
(see periods of significance US Department of the Interior).  

Definitions 
• “Historic District” Is the designated boundary of the Silverton National Historic 

Landmark District (NHLD) established July 4th, 1961, National Register October 15 
1966, and Boundary addition April 3 1997.   
 

(NOTE: The Silverton NHLD encompasses an area larger than the local Historic Overlay. 
The Silverton NHLD establishes the historic significance of the town, Mayflower mill and 

ATTACHMENT C Public Comment



tram as listed in the National Register of Historic Places, an honor roll meeting historic 
integrity requirement of a district. Federal and State Tax incentives are potentially 
applicable.  

 
• “Historic Overlay” An area identified locally of historic economic importance of the 

community that includes design requirements for historic structures, additions and 
new construction. 

 
• “Architectural Review Overlay” An area identified locally of economic importance to 

the community that includes design requirements for compatible new construction 
and additions. 

•  “Periods of Significance” The major building boom in early Silverton took place from 
1874-1899 and is represented in the core of the business district of Green Street and 
Empire (Blair St) and generally inclusive of the Silverton’s Historic Overlay Zone. 
1900 – 1924 is a transitional time that included continuation of mining technology 
and the automobile. 
 

Discussion: 
It is recommended that within any text in the Municipal Code that reference 

“Historic District” to only be the boundary of the National Historic Landmark 

District and not provide any confusion with the Historic Overlay Zone or 

Architectural Overlay. The “District” is the larger boundary, and the Overlay Zone 

is located within the National Historic Landmark District. The Historic District is 

also applicable to listing in the local register (though there are no incentives for 

listing or any apparent protections (local listing needs additional evaluation). 

 

The term historic building or structure is not currently defined and can be 

debated. The National Landmark designation was placed on Silverton in 1961 for 

ATTACHMENT C Public Comment



it being an exceptional historic district of National Significance, where there 

were concerns about its preservation by the Department of the Interior. The 

early listing of Silverton only noted a handful of key historic buildings and 

homes but drew an inclusive boundary around other known historic structures 

of National significance and historic integrity. This was prior to a more formal 

process implemented in 1966. The historic inventory of Silverton needs to be 

updated and note which properties meet requirements for inclusion as 

“contributing” National Register properties. The terminology listed in the national 

register or eligible for the national register needs to be included to define what 

buildings within the National Historic Landmark are “Historic” and where 

Rehabilitation Standards are to be followed, and other overlay requirements are 

applicable. The “Certified Local Government” (CLG) designation is essential in 

noting that Silverton has a program and expertise in making an initial 

determination of historic eligibility and with imposed requirements for 

compliance with Rehabilitation Standards. 

 

The periods of significance for Silverton are clearly defined and established. The 

typical Interior department language of structures of at least 50 years as 

“potentially eligible” should not be utilized within the Historic Overlay Zone or 

the Architectural Review Overlay. The use of this language adds confusion and 

concerns of restricting new development outside of current overlays. Review of 

proposed demolition of 50-year-old buildings could still be part of a separate 

review but that is not the essence of the intent of design review overlays of 

compatible design. 

 

The specific dates of when historic construction took place will not change and 

was determined with the established periods of significance. These time periods 

establish the context of a collection of historic buildings and the community’s 

desire for compatible new infill construction and proper rehabilitations. The 

intent of both Overlays is to establish a look to the community with a design 

aesthetic within a period of significance of 1874 – 1924. This is a 50-year period 

but should not be confused with the 50-year eligibility language.  

 

General statements of matching of historic buildings is problematic in defining 

what is required with a design. Current very specific requirements for a façade 

treatment target the desire for a compatible design but falls short in achieving a 

quality design. During the building boom after 1874 many unique variations in 

architectural expression took place and have resulted in a variety of facades 

ATTACHMENT C Public Comment



within an identifiable time period. Utilizing the period of Significance from 1874 – 

1899 + a decade (10 years) and its architectural vocabulary will result in a 

creative design that is responsive to the buildings use as well as its contextual 

response to adjacent structures. An architect will be designing as if they were 

living in the period of significance. (previous code language calls out that the 

use of the building should not be expressed – this is contrary to quality 

architectural design and is conjectural). 

 

ATTACHMENT C Public Comment



LEGAL NOTICE PUBLIC HEARING  

ORDINANCE 2025-01 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SILVERTON REPEALING AND READOPTING THE 
LAND USE CODE, AND AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 

Notice is hereby given that The Town of Silverton Board of Trustees will conduct the following 
public hearings to consider for adoption ORDINANCE 2025-01 AN ORDINANCE OF THE 
TOWN OF SILVERTON REPEALING AND READOPTING THE LAND USE CODE, AND 
AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP, which proposes to repeal Silverton Municipal 
Code Chapter 15 – Annexation, Chapter 16 – Zoning, and Chapter 17 – Subdivision, and adopt 
Chapter 15- Land Use Code and The Official Zoning Map of the Town of Silverton.  

Notice is hereby given that the Public Hearings are scheduled as follows:  
• Public Hearing: Board of Trustees First Rearing of ORDINANCE 2025-01 on January

13, 2025, at 7:00 pm at Silverton Town Hall 1360 Greene St, Silverton, CO 81433
• Public Hearing: Board of Trustees Section Reading of ORDINANCE 2025-01 on January

27, 2025, at 7:00 pm at Silverton Town Hall 1360 Greene St, Silverton, CO 81433

Notice is hereby given that all persons may present written/oral testimony regarding 
ORDINANCE 2025-01 prior to or during the Public Hearing. Citizen comments may be sent by 
email, mail, or hand-delivered to: Town Hall, 1360 Greene Street, PO Box 250, Silverton, CO 
81433, by 4:00 pm Wednesday, January 8. Contact Community Development Director Lucy 
Mulvihill (970) 946-9408 (lmulvihill@silverton.co.us) with any questions and/or comments 
about ORDINANCE 2025-01. 

Copies of the proposed ORDINANCE 2025-01, the meeting agenda, and virtual meeting 
instructions are available at the Town Clerk’s Office at Town Hall 1360 Greene St, Silverton, 
CO 81433, and online on the Town website at townofsilverton.colorado.gov 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-01 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SILVERTON REPEALING AND 
READOPTING THE LAND USE CODE, AND AMENDING THE OFFICIAL 

ZONING MAP 

WHEREAS, the Town of Silverton, Colorado is a statutory town incorporated under the 
laws of the state of Colorado; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Silverton acting by and through its Town Board of Trustees 
has the power to regulate land use matters pursuant to Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.) 
Section 31, Article 23 et seq.; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (“BOT”) of the Town of Silverton (“Town”) is 
authorized to amend the Town's Zoning Map pursuant to the Town's Municipal Code Section16-
1-10 et seq.; and

ATTACHMENT D Legal Notice of Public Hearing 



 
WHEREAS, the BOT finds and determines that repealing the Land Use Code, Chapters 

15, 16, and 17 of the Silverton Municipal Code, in entirety, and adopting an updated Land Use 
Code, Chapter 15 –Land Use Code, is in the best interests of the Town; and, 
 WHEREAS, the BOT determines that it is the best interest of the Town to rezone the 
Town in accordance with the newly adopted Land Use Code and amend the Town's Zoning Map 
to reflect the zoning promulgated by the Land Use Code. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF SILVERTON, COLORADO as follows: 

 
1. Incorporation of Recitals. The recitals set forth above are incorporated and ordained hereby 

as if set forth hereafter in full.  
 

2. Repeal and Readoption of Land Use Code of the Town of Silverton.  Land Use Code, 
Chapter 15 – Annexation, Chapter 16 – Zoning, Chapter 17 – Subdivisions, is hereby 
repealed in its entirety and readopted as Chapter 15 – Land Use Code, to read in substantially 
the same form and substance as attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit A. 

 
3. Amendment of Zoning Map. The official zoning map of the Town of Silverton, as amended 

from time to time, is amended to reflect the zoning of all property within the Town of 
Silverton consistent with the newly adopted Land Use Code to read in substantially the same 
form and substance as attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit B. 

 
4. Notice of Enforcement and Inspection. Violation of this Ordinance is subject to 

enforcement and punishment and shall constitute a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of 
three hundred dollars ($300.00) per day, or by imprisonment not exceeding 90 days, or by 
both such fine and imprisonment. Each day that a violation continues to exist shall constitute 
a separate offense.  
 

5. Public Inspection. The full text of this Ordinance and its exhibits, including any 
amendments, is available for public inspection at the office of the Town Clerk.  

 
6. Severability. If any portion of this Ordinance is found to be void or ineffective, it shall be 

deemed severed from this Ordinance and the remaining provisions shall remain valid and in 
full force and effect.  

 
7. Posting, Publication and Effective Date.  Following the passage of this Ordinance on 

second reading, the Town Clerk shall publish this Ordinance in a newspaper published within 
the limits of the Town.  This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days after such publication. 

 
 INTRODUCED, READ, AND ORDERED FOR SECOND READING BY THE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF SILVERTON, COLORADO, UPON A 
MOTION DULY MADE, SECONDED AND PASSED AT ITS REGULAR MEETING HELD 
AT THE TOWN OF SILVERTON, ON THE ____ DAY OF JANUARY 2025. 
      

ATTACHMENT D Legal Notice of Public Hearing 



 
TOWN OF SILVERTON    

 
                   By:

 ___________________________________ 
Dayna Kranker, Mayor                                      

   
ATTEST: 
________________________________ 
Melina Marks, Town Clerk 
 

FINALLY PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED ON SECOND AND FINAL 
READING AND ORDERED POSTED AND PUBLISHED IN THE MANNER PROVIDED IN 
SECTION 7 HEREOF BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF SILVERTON, 
COLORADO, UPON A MOTION DULY MADE, SECONDED AND PASSED AT ITS 
REGULAR MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL ON THE ____ DAY OF JANUARY 
2025, BY A VOTE OF THIS ORDINANCE AS IS ON FILE IN THE TOWN CLERK’S 
OFFICE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION. 

 
TOWN OF SILVERTON    

 
                   By:

 ___________________________________ 
Dayna Kranker, Mayor                                      

   
ATTEST: 
________________________________ 
Melina Marks, Town Clerk 

 
 
Originally Published in the Silverton Standard: Thursday, December 26, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT D Legal Notice of Public Hearing 



 

AGENDA MEMO 
 
SUBJECT: ADU Utilities and Service Charges - Code Revision 
 
STAFF CONTACT: John Sites 
 
MEETING DATE: January 27, 2025 

 
 
Overview: 
 
With the revision to the Land Use Code (Chapter 16 of the Silverton Municipal Code [SMC]) and the adoption of 
EQR rates for water and sewer utilities, Staff has identified the need to revise existing Section 16-8-80 (h) and move it 
to Chapter 13. Chapter 13 describes water / sewer utility requirements and service charges and is a more logical 
location within the SMC for this aspect of the Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) code language. The forthcoming 
revision of Chapter 16 will still describe aspects of ADUs as a Land Use within the Town of Silverton. 
 
The code revisions include language that reflects the application of EQR multipliers to ADU plant investment fees and 
utility bills as described in Resolution 2024-29, A Resolution to Implement Equivalent to Residential Rates (EQR) for 
Water and Sewer Rates.   
 
   
Budget Impact: 
 
Customers with ADUs will be required to pay utility rates per Resolution 2024-29 II. 2., Multi-family residential units, 
duplexes, apartments, or living units, times the applicable EQR for plant investment fees and bi-monthly utility bills.  
 
Attachments: 

• Section 16-8-80 (h) of the SMC. This is the section that is being changed and moved to Chapter 13. 
• Ordinance 2025-01, An Ordinance amending Chapter 13, Article 1 - Water and Sewer, of the Silverton 

Municipal Code to establish application of unit utilities and service charges for Accessory Dwelling Units 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
The Staff recommends adoption of Ordinance 2025-02 to align with Master Plan Priorities, Resolution 2024-29 and 
SMC organizational improvements. 
 
Master Plan Priority: 
Community Strategies: A. Invest in Maintenance and Upgrades of Existing and New 
Utility Infrastructure 
 
Building Community Trust and Improving Governance: E. Town Capacity and Governance 
 
Suggested Motion or Direction: 
 
Make a motion to conduct the second reading for adoption of of Ordinance 2025-02, An Ordinance amending 
Chapter 13, Article 1 - Water and Sewer, of the Silverton Municipal Code to establish application of unit utilities 
and service charges for Accessory Dwelling Units 
 



Section 16-8-80 (h) of the Silverton Municipal Code set to be removed with the adoption of 
the new Land Use Code in 2025 

(h) Utilities, billing and ADU address: ADUs shall have separate and independent billing for 
sewer, water, and refuse services, unless exempted from this requirement by the board of 
trustees, electricity, heat, phone, internet, and other utility services shall be designed so as to 
allow for the continued use of the primary structure and/or the ADU when one is not 
occupied, as well as meeting the requirements of the service provider, addresses for ADUs 
shall be the same as the primary residence plus one-half, or shall be assigned a number by 
the tap location method, as determined by the Town staff. Existing site and utility conditions 
may permit the joint usage of the primary structure's water and/or sewer tap(s) and service 
line(s) to serve the ADU, if approved by the public works director and building inspector. In 
such circumstances, independent metering, accessible shutoff, and lock of the ADU water 
service shall be installed, the applicable standard residential service fees for water, sewer, 
and refuse shall apply to all ADUs. If a new water tap is required to be installed on the water 
main for the ADU, as determined by the Public Works Director and Building Inspector, then 
the applicable water tap fee and water plant investment fee shall be paid. If a new sewer tap 
is required to be installed on the sewer main for the ADU, as determined by the Public Works 
Director and Building Inspector, then the applicable sewer tap fee and sewer plant 
investment fee shall be paid. 

 







 

 

 

January 27, 2025 

10. Public Comment 
The closing Public Comment is intended for a to comment only on agenda items that have been 
presented.   

The Mayor or Pro Tem will call out the public to comment as well as time the comment and let the 
public know when they have run out of time. This has been limited to 3 minutes even though it has 
not stated this on the agenda.  

It is not encouraged for Trustees to engage in a dialogue on a public comment, but Trustees can 
direct staff to follow up with the citizen.  

Comments that are submitted via email about an agenda item will be accepted up until the agenda 
packet is constructed on noon on Wednesday before the Regular Meeting. Comments that are 
received after this deadline will be emailed to the trustees and not included in the packet. 
Comments that are emailed are not considered “official public comment” unless they are 
presented at the meeting or submitted for a Public Hearing before the Wednesday deadline.  

Public Comments specific to a Public Hearing on the agenda should be encouraged to take place 
during the public hearing and not during the opening Public Comment, so that their comments can 
be recorded with the hearing.  

Closing Public Comment is not addressed in the Silverton Municipal Code.  

 


	0 Housing Authority and Regular Meeting Agenda.1.27.24
	0 seperation Housing Authority Packet
	0.1.27 Memo Work Session Priority Setting
	1 Regular Meeting Packet seperation
	1 Staff Board Revisions to the Agenda seperation
	2. Public Comment seperation 
	3. Presentations Proclamations seperation
	3a Terrapin Silverton Pitch Deck Draft
	3a1 Ramaker EV Chargers Qualifications 2024 - reduced
	3a2 EV Range Network Platform (1)
	3a3 BTC Power Sales Deck - EV Range + Terrapin
	Default Section
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: BTCP has a long, successful track record of operations
	Slide 4: BTC POWER is a leader in the rapidly  evolving fast charging space…
	Slide 5: Strategic footprint with global manufacturing and aftermarket capabilities 
	Slide 6: Headquarters– Irvine, CA
	Slide 7: Manufacturing – Irvine- Jamboree, CA 
	Slide 9
	Slide 10: Product offering addresses all customer needs
	Slide 11: BTC offers a full suite of products
	Slide 12
	Slide 13: AC Level 2                Solutions
	Slide 14: L2 MaX Target Markets
	Slide 15: Pitch – Market Edge
	Slide 16
	Slide 17: Gen 4 technology advantages
	Slide 18
	Slide 19: Gen 4 power module technology
	Slide 20
	Slide 22
	Slide 23: Gen 4 All-in-One 
	Slide 26: Gen 4 HPC 360 kW Distributed System
	Slide 27: Gen 4 Public Dispenser
	Slide 28: Simultaneous charging dual output dispenser
	Slide 29: Simultaneous Charging Dual Output Dispenser (NEVI)
	Slide 30: Gen 4 Fleet Dispenser
	Slide 31: 4-Channel Gen 4 Tower with sequential dispenser
	Slide 32: Target Market – Fleet Manufacturers
	Slide 33: Market Edge
	Slide 34
	Slide 35: Gen 4 320 kW All-in-One 
	Slide 37: Public Dispenser, High Output/Non-Cooled Variants
	Slide 40
	Slide 41: Projections for NACS Market Share through 2030
	Slide 42: Product and technology innovation remains a core focus


	4 New Business seperation
	4a CaG Reappointment MEMO 1.27.25
	4a Parker Newby CAG reappointment letter
	4b 2025-1-22 Reso Memo_Tap Over Run_Amendmt
	4b1 Resolution 2022-12 Tap Fee Cost Overrun MARKUP
	4b2 Resolution 2025-02 Tap Fee Cost Overrun FINAL DRAFT
	4c Box Car Land Conveyance_BOARD PACKET MEMO_2025.0127
	5 Consent Agenda seperation
	5a Payroll Recon
	5a2 PTO Cash Out Requests 2024
	5b Regular Meeting Minutes.1.13.24
	5c 1.2025 Town and County Sales Chart
	Table

	5c Accounts Payable
	5c2 Nov & Dec Credit Card Coding
	5d. BOARD PACKET MEMO Special Event Notice- Silverton Sled Dog Races
	5d. Silverton Sled Dog Race Event Packet 2025
	Silverton Sled Dog Race Event Application 2025
	Silverton Flying Dog Sled and Skijor Races Operations Plan
	Silverton Route map and proposed parking area
	Silverton Sled Dog Race Certificate of Insurance

	5e 2024-30 Resolution 2024 Refuse Supplemental Budget
	6. Staff Reports seperation
	6a Admin Staff Report 1.27.25
	6a1 Town Clerk Staff Report 1.27.25
	6b 2025-01-27  Planning dpt Town Staff Report
	6b January  Staff report
	6c. Facilities and Events Staff Report 1.27.25
	6g SMPA Project Update
	7 Committee Reports seperation
	8. Trustee Reports seperation
	9 Continued Business seperation
	9a LUC Adoption PACKET _2025.0127_LONG
	LUC Adoption PACKET MEMO_2025.0127.pdf
	LUC Adoption PACKET _2025.0113_LONG.pdf
	Ordinance 2025-01_Adoption of LUC.pdf
	Exhibit A Silverton LUC_Adoption Draft_Public Draft_Clean_NoFootnotes.pdf
	Article 1 General Provisions
	15-1-10 Title, Effective Date, and Archived Regulations
	(a) This Chapter of the Town of Silverton Municipal Code is known as the Town of Silverton Land Use Code and short citation references are “this LUC” or "this Code.”
	(b) This LUC shall become effective on <>(Effective Date). The land use code that was effective immediately prior to this Code shall be referred to as the prior LUC.
	(c) Two copies of the prior LUC shall be maintained and remain of record in the Town Clerk’s Office and the Town Administrator’s Office, either in hard copy or electronically. An unofficial public copy may also be maintained on the Town website. All c...

	15-1-20 Authority
	15-1-30 Purpose
	(a) Implement the Master Plan, including the goals, strategies, and actions of the plan, and the Future Land Use Framework;
	(b) Preserve the history of Silverton;
	(c) Establish regulatory options that encourage the incorporation of climate-friendly, sustainable, and resilient development design in the Town;
	(d) Manage responsible land use, growth, and development in a way that improves the residents’ quality of life;
	(e) Promote compatible land use relationships;
	(f) Encourage housing affordability through the development of a range of housing types to maintain a diversity of residents in the community;
	(g) Protect the Town from natural hazards such as flooding, landslides, avalanches, and snowslides, while protecting the natural environment;
	(h) Promote predictability, consistency, and efficiency in the development process for residents, neighborhoods, businesses, and other development interests; and
	(i) Ensure appropriate opportunities for participation and involvement in the development process by all affected parties.

	15-1-40 Applicability
	(a) The provisions of this LUC shall apply to the development and use of all land within the Town, unless specifically provided otherwise in this LUC.
	(b) No permit, certificate, or approval of any use that is subject to this LUC shall be issued or granted by any department, agency, Town official, or Town employee without a finding of compliance with this LUC.
	(c) No lot of record that did not exist on the Effective Date shall be created by subdivision or other legal mechanism unless it complies with this LUC.
	(d) All property, uses, structures, and facilities owned or operated by the Town shall be in compliance with this LUC to the maximum extent practicable, but may be exempted from complying with some aspects of this LUC based on the governmental functio...

	15-1-50 Minimum Standards
	(a) The provisions of this Code are the minimum standards necessary to accomplish its stated purpose.
	(b) Where the standards imposed by any provision of this Code are less restrictive than standards imposed by the Silverton Municipal Code, or any other Town, state, or federal law applicable to the same topic, the more restrictive regulations shall go...

	15-1-60 Private Restrictions
	(a) This Code does not interfere with, abrogate, or annul any private agreement, including but not limited to easements, covenants, or deed restrictions.
	(b) When the provisions of this Code conflict with private agreements, the stricter provisions shall control.
	(c) It is not the Town’s responsibility to enforce private agreements, nor is the Town obligated to adopt regulations consistent with private agreements.

	15-1-70 Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Expenses
	15-1-80 Transitional Provisions
	(a) Existing Development
	(1) Changes to the structure, site, or use;
	(2) A use that that is discontinued for a period of one year; and
	(3) A structure that remains vacant for a period of one year.

	(b) Violations Continue
	(c) Nonconformities Continue
	(d) Previous Approvals
	(1) Validity
	(2) Expiration
	(3) Extension
	(4) Reapplication

	(e) Previous Limited Overlay District
	(f) Previous Planned Unit Developments
	(1) A PUD that has been fully approved for all phases and specific application types prior to the Effective Date shall remain valid. PUDs that refer to zoning districts not included in this Code shall use the prior LUC requirements. A modification or ...
	(2) A PUD approval that predates the Effective Date shall be narrowly interpreted and limited to the specified terms of approval. Where a term was not included in the PUD approval, the most closely similar provision of this Code shall be applied. For ...

	(g) Applications in Progress
	(1) Completed Applications
	(2) Resubmission of Incomplete Applications
	(3) Reapplication
	(4) Special Use Permit
	a. Established uses shall be deemed to have received a Special Use Permit and shall be a legal, conforming use of land if:
	(i) A use of land or structures was listed as a permitted use in a specific zoning district under the prior LUC;
	(ii) That use of land or structures was established on property in that district prior to the adoption of this LUC; and
	(iii) The same use of land or property is now listed as a Special Use in the same district in Table 15-3-1: Use Table.

	b. Upon request by the property owner and submission that the use was established prior to approval of this LUC, the Town Administrator shall provide written confirmation of the legal, conforming status of the use.



	15-1-90 Severability
	(a) If any court of competent jurisdiction declares that any section, subsection, or provision of this LUC is invalid, that judgment will not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this LUC.
	(b) If any court of competent jurisdiction invalidates the application of any provision of this LUC to a development, that judgment will not affect the application of that provision to any other development not specifically included in the judgment.
	(c) If any court of competent jurisdiction invalidates any condition attached to an application approved under this LUC, that judgment will not affect the validity of any other condition attached to the approval that is not specifically included in th...


	Article 2 Zoning Districts
	15-2-10 Zoning Districts Established
	15-2-20 Compass Master Plan Implementation
	(a) Table 15-2-2 identifies which zoning district(s) appropriately implement(s) a given future land use category identified in the Future Land Use Framework of the Compass Master Plan.
	(b) A future land use category is a broadly identified and can be implemented through more than one zoning district. A dot indicates that the zoning district presumptively implements the corresponding land use category designation and is therefore an ...
	(c) A blank cell (no dot) indicates that the zoning district is not an appropriate option for zoning or rezoning of land within the corresponding land use category.

	15-2-30 Official Zoning Map
	15-2-40 Interpretation of District Boundaries
	(a) Zoning district boundaries shall be located on municipal corporate lines, section lines, parcel lines, lot lines, natural feature boundary lines or on the center lines of highways, streets, alleys, railroad rights-of-way, water bodies (natural and...
	(b) In cases where these lines are not used, the zoning district lines shall be as determined by using the Zoning Map scale.
	(c) Rights-of-way are not zoned unless vacated. Vacated right-of-way is zoned with the same district as the parcel into which it is incorporated or next to which it is adjacent. If a vacated right-of-way is adjacent to two or more zoning districts the...
	(d) If a lot or zoning lot is divided by a zoning district boundary line at the time of enactment of this Code or by subsequent amendments, the appropriate standards and uses for the zoning district that comprises the majority of the parcel area shall...

	15-2-50 Base Zoning Districts and Dimensions
	(a) Summary of Zoning District Dimensional Standards
	(1) All new development and redevelopment shall comply with the standards in Table 15-2-3 unless another section of this Code provides an alternative standard for a particular use, layout, or development type. Sections of this Code that may provide al...
	(2) All standards in Table 15-2-3 shall apply to the zoning lot.

	(b) Single-Unit Attached Lots
	(1) The minimum lot area for exterior units shall be 2,500 square feet and the minimum lot area for interior units shall be 2,000 square feet. If there are only two units included in the primary structure, both units shall be considered exterior units.
	(2) The minimum lot width for exterior units shall be 25 feet and the minimum lot area for interior units shall be 20 feet.
	(3) Side setbacks shall only apply to the perimeter of a single-unit attached structure and not to individual townhouse/rowhouse lots.

	(c) Lots Less Than 2,500 Square Feet
	(1) The subject lot was established on the original Town Plat or prior to the Effective Date; and
	(2) The lot meets all standards required by Table 15-2-3: Zoning Districts Dimensional Standards Summary, excluding minimum lot area and minimum lot width.

	(d) Graphics
	(1) Each base zoning district is accompanied by representative photos and a graphic depicting how the lot and building standards apply to lots and building forms within the respective district. The photos and graphics are intended to represent the gen...
	(2) The graphics are not regulatory and are not to be compared to the visual look of a proposed development.
	(3) The graphics do not reflect all standards from the Code that may apply to a project and are intentionally conceptual versus detailed.

	(e) R-1: Neighborhood Residential
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Dimensional Standards

	(f) R-2: Mixed Residential
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Dimensional Standards

	(g) MU-1: Downtown Mixed-Use
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Dimensional Standards

	(h) C-1: Gateway Commercial
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Dimensional Standards

	(i) C-2: Employment Commercial
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Dimensional Standards

	(j) P: Public
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Dimensional Standards


	15-2-60 Exceptions and Encroachments
	(a) Permitted Encroachments into Setbacks
	(b) Permitted Exceptions to Height Limitations

	15-2-70 Planned Unit Development (PUD)
	(a) Purpose
	(1) The purpose of this Section is to:
	a. Encourage development that contains unique or innovative design features;
	b. Enhance unique, natural, resource or scenic features;
	c. Preserve open spaces; and
	d. Allow the negotiation of a specialized zoning district in exchange for development that implements the Master Plan goals and the intent of this LUC.


	(b) Applicability
	(1) This district is intended to be used only when no other base or overlay district in this Code, and no combination of those districts, can be used to approve a new development that provides substantial additional benefits to the Town that would not...
	(2) PUD rezoning is prohibited when used only to change development standards, such as sign requirements.

	(c) Eligibility to Apply for a PUD
	(1) The PUD shall:
	a. Address a unique, site-specific situation; or
	b. Confer a substantial benefit to the Town, representing an improvement in quality over what could have been accomplished through application of the applicable base district or development standards. Improvements in quality may include, but are not l...
	(i) Improvements in open space provision and access;
	(ii) Environmental protection;
	(iii) Protection or improvement of a historic structure that would not otherwise be required to be preserved or improved;
	(iv) Efficient provision of streets, roads, and other utilities and services; or
	(v) Provision of affordable housing as defined by this LUC.


	(2) Permitted uses may not be changed through the PUD process.

	(d) Relationship to Zoning and Subdivision
	(1) Default Zoning District(s)
	a. The approval of a PUD application creates a new base zoning district, subject to a new Overall Development Plan, that replaces the existing base district for the property. Approval of a PUD district may not occur without simultaneous approval of an...
	b. The Overall Development Plan shall identify one or more existing base zoning district(s) applicable to each portion of the property, referred to as the default zoning district(s).
	(i) The application may identify different default zoning districts for different portions of the property.
	(ii) Each PUD application may identify proposed modifications to the Code standards, including but not limited to setbacks, lot area, and site and building design standards, through the Overall Development Plan.
	(iii) The standards applicable to each identified default zoning district shall apply to that portion of the property unless the PUD application requests, and the Town approves, a specific different standard or provision for that portion of the property.

	c. Following approval of a PUD and Overall Development Plan, review and approval of a Site Plan is required for any portion of the property subject to development, pursuant to Section 15-8-30(l).

	(2) Subdivision
	a. A PUD application may request both rezoning and subdivision approval for all or part of the property, in which case:
	(i) The Overall Development Plan shall be accompanied by a Preliminary Plan for a major subdivision meeting the requirements of Section 15-8-40(k)(3); and
	(ii) The review and public hearing requirements for the approval of a PUD shall also constitute review and approval of the Preliminary Plan for the subdivision, and a separate process for review and approval of a major subdivision as described in Sect...


	(3) Post-Approval Actions
	a. Following approval of a PUD and related major subdivision Preliminary Plan, no development of the property or sale of any lots may occur without Town approval of a Final Plat pursuant to Section 15-8-40(k)(4).
	b. Following approval of a PUD, an applicant may request simultaneous approval of a Final Plat and Site Plan for all or part of the property.


	(e) Rezoning to PUD

	15-2-80 Overlay Zoning Districts
	(a) Historic District Overlay
	(1) Purpose
	a. The protection and preservation of the Town’s historic and cultural heritage as represented through the establishment of the Town’s Historic Register;
	b. The protection and enhancement to quality of life and of the Town’s economy through the preservation of historical attractions for local residents, tourists, and visitors; and
	c. The expansion of public awareness, appreciation, and knowledge of the Town’s unique local history.

	(2) Applicability
	(3) Establishment of the Town’s Historic Register
	a. The Town of Silverton’s Register of Historic Places (the “Town’s Historic Register”) is hereby established as the Historic District Overlay.
	b. Properties may be added to the Historic District Overlay and therefore listed in the Town’s Historic Register only if the property or district has been so designated pursuant to Section 15-8-40(d).
	c. All properties listed in the Colorado State Register of Historic Properties and the National Register of Historic Places are eligible for the Town’s Historic Register but are not designated until approval, pursuant to Section 15-8-40(d).

	(4) Historic District Overlay Map
	(5) Maintenance
	(6) Demolition
	(7) Design Standards for All Development in the Historic District Overlay
	a. Greene Street Mixed-Use Required
	(i) All new development or redevelopment of structures that abut Greene Street shall maintain an active principal nonresidential use on the ground floor of the building. An active principal nonresidential use shall be defined as a land use that tends ...
	(ii) The entirety of the ground floor shall be built to commercial building standards according to the Town’s adopted building code.
	(iii) The principal nonresidential space shall have a minimum depth of 20 feet measured from the front of the building to the inside wall opposite of the street frontage. The remaining ground floor area and upper stories may contain residential dwelli...

	b. Build-to Line (Distance from Property Line)
	(i) All buildings shall be constructed to a build-to line at the back of the sidewalk.
	(ii) Building facades may be recessed if an arcade or similar covered passageway abuts the front setback.
	(iii) Existing structures located behind the build-to-line (e.g., further into the lot interior) may be modified provided the setback is not increased.

	c. Architectural Projections
	d. Blank Walls
	e. Screening

	(8) Additional Design Standards for New Construction and Non-Contributing Property
	a. Kickplates;
	b. Plate glass commercial windows;
	c. Window head and sill details;
	d. Oriel windows;
	e. Paneled entry doors with transom above;
	f. Columns with bases and capitals;
	g. Belt course elements;
	h. Quality of materials and craftsmanship;
	i. Sidelights;
	j. Storefront cornice (denials, brackets, corbels);
	k. Upper cornice and parapet detail (corbelled treatments); and
	l.  Signage.

	(9) Additional Design Standards for Contributing Properties
	a. Compliance with Secretary of the Interior’s Standards
	b. Façade Treatments
	c. Entries
	(i) On the first floor, entries shall incorporate glass doors and large, vertically oriented store front windows and front entry doors shall be recessed. The Town Administrator or Historic Preservation Committee may approve an alternative design if th...
	(ii) Entries shall be designed to adequately protect from falling snow. Snow guards shall be installed where necessary and as required by the Building Official.

	d. Windows




	Article 3 Use Standards
	15-3-10 Purpose
	(a) Table 15-3-1 lists the uses allowed by zoning district and cross-references applicable use-specific standards.
	(b) Section 15-3-50 establishes use-specific standards that are those unique standards applicable to certain land uses.
	(c) Section 15-3-60 establishes standards applicable to uses and structures that are accessory to the principal use of the property and/or structure.
	(d) Section 15-3-70 establishes standards applicable to non-permanent (temporary) structures and uses.

	15-3-20 Organization
	(a) In Table 15-3-1, land uses and activities are classified into six general use categories: (1) Residential; (2) Public, Institutional, and Civic; (3) Commercial; (4) Industrial; (5) Accessory; and (6) Temporary. Specific uses are organized within t...
	(b) The left-side column of Table 15-3-1 lists all use categories and many of the specific uses that might be approved by the Town. Columns in the center of the table correspond to each base zoning district and indicate whether the use is allowed in t...
	(c) Compliance with Additional Requirements
	(1) Any use approved within a zoning district shall also comply with all applicable standards in this Code, any requirements of local, state, or federal law, and any conditions placed on the approval.
	(2) All uses required by any unit of local, state, or federal government to have an approval, license, or permit to operate are required to have that local, state, or federal approval, license, or permit in effect at all times, and failure to do so is...
	(3) All uses subject to the operational standards of a local, state, or federal government agency, including without limitation the regulations contained in the Silverton Municipal Code and regulations of the Colorado Department of Public Health and E...


	15-3-30 Abbreviations Used in the Table
	(a) Permitted Uses
	(b) Uses Requiring Special Use Permit
	(c) Prohibited Uses
	(d) Uses for Other Purposes

	15-3-40 Use Table
	15-3-50 Use-Specific Standards
	(a) Residential Uses
	(1) Single-Unit Detached Dwelling
	a. Where allowed, each zoning lot shall be limited to one single-unit detached dwelling.
	b. In the R-1 district, the maximum building footprint per zoning lot is 2,500 square feet.

	(2) Single-Unit Attached Dwelling
	a. Single-unit attached dwellings with three or more units shall provide residential bulk storage areas as follows:
	(i) A minimum of 100 square feet of storage per dwelling unit, either within individual dwelling units or in a shared on-site storage area shall be provided. The Town Administrator may waive or decrease this requirement based on site constraints or in...
	(ii) Bulk storage areas intended for storage of materials other than food and clothing, such as tools, bicycles, or ski equipment shall be designed for this purpose. Bulk storage areas shall be separate from water heaters or other types of mechanical ...
	1. Exterior or detached bulk storage areas shall be designed as an integral part of the project.
	2. Bulk storage areas shall be incorporated into garages, car ports, and screening walls, using materials and details similar to those of the dwelling unit to achieve an integrated appearance.


	b. In the R-1 district, single-unit attached structures are limited to two dwelling units with a maximum total building footprint of 2,500 square feet per unit.

	(3) Duplex Dwelling
	(4) Triplex of Fourplex Dwelling
	a. A minimum of 100 square feet of storage per dwelling unit, either within individual dwelling units or in a shared on-site storage area shall be provided. The Town Administrator may waive or decrease this requirement based on site constraints or in ...
	b. Bulk storage areas intended for storage of materials other than food and clothing, such as tools, bicycles, or ski equipment shall be designed for this purpose. Bulk storage areas shall be separate from water heaters or other types of mechanical or...
	c. Exterior or detached bulk storage areas shall be designed as an integral part of the project. Bulk storage areas shall be incorporated into garages, car ports, and screening walls, using materials and details similar to those of the dwelling unit t...

	(5) Cottage Court Dwelling
	a. The minimum parcel size for a cottage court development is 10,000 square feet.
	b. The building footprint of each detached single-unit dwelling shall not exceed 650 square feet.
	c. Individual units shall be clustered around a shared private common space containing at least 10 percent of the project area.
	d. A shared facility for communal cooking, dining, and other activities containing no more than 1,500 square feet may be provided.
	e. All other building and lot requirements, including building setbacks, for the base zoning district shall apply to the project site as a whole, not individual units.

	(6) Multiunit Dwelling
	a. A minimum of 100 square feet of storage per dwelling unit, either within individual dwelling units or in a shared on-site storage area shall be provided. The Town Administrator may waive or decrease this requirement based on site constraints or in ...
	b. Bulk storage areas intended for storage of materials other than food and clothing, such as tools, bicycles, or ski equipment shall be designed for this purpose. Bulk storage areas shall be separate from water heaters or other types of mechanical or...
	c. Exterior or detached bulk storage areas shall be designed as an integral part of the project. Bulk storage areas shall be incorporated into garages, car ports, and screening walls, using materials and details similar to those of the dwelling unit t...

	(7) Live/Work Dwelling
	a. Residential areas shall be located on upper floors above nonresidential areas, or in the rear of the building behind nonresidential areas.
	b. The nonresidential use shall be a maximum of 60 percent of the gross floor area of the building.
	c. The nonresidential use shall be owned and operated by a resident of the live-work dwelling unit.

	(8) Manufactured or Tiny Home Park
	a. Manufactured Homes and Spaces
	(i) Each manufactured home shall be:
	1. Either permanently or semi-permanently affixed to the ground in accordance with 8 CCR 1302-7 and the manufacturer's specifications, with the running gear and towing hitch removed; and
	2. Set upon a base or pad having an anchoring system that is completely concealed under the structure.

	(ii) All manufactured homes must be fully skirted within 30 days of placement.
	(iii) The space below each manufactured home shall be kept clean and free from refuse. The space may be used for storage provided the ground is covered with an impervious material, the area is insulated, and the area is maintained to prevent harboring...
	(iv) Flammable materials shall not be stored beneath a manufactured home.
	(v) The owner of any existing manufactured or mobile home that is substantially damaged or destroyed (more than 50 percent of assessed valuation) shall submit an appraisal prepared by a professional appraiser within 60 days of notice of violation. If ...

	b. Tiny Homes
	c. Site Design
	(i) The minimum lot area required for a manufactured or tiny home park shall be 10,000 square feet. Individual manufactured or tiny home spaces within the park are not required to meet the minimum lot area.
	(ii) All building and lot requirements, including primary structure setbacks, for the base zoning district shall apply to the project site as a whole (not individual units).
	(iii) No manufactured or tiny home in a park shall be located closer than 10 feet from the nearest manufactured or tiny home in any direction, including additions or added structures.
	(iv) Water, sewer, and electrical connections shall be installed pursuant to the Development Standards and Specifications, this Code, and all applicable Town ordinances.
	(v) All electric power lines within the park shall be buried.
	(vi) All manufactured or tiny homes shall be equipped with an automatic fire suppression system or a fire extinguishing handheld device in good working condition that is capable of extinguishing all types of fires and comply with the adopted fire code.
	(vii) Each manufactured or tiny home park shall provide:
	1. A minimum of three manufactured or tiny home spaces;
	2. One off-street parking space;
	3. 100 square feet of storage per manufactured or tiny home, either in individual structures or in a shared structure; and
	4. 400 square feet of common open space per manufactured or home to be centrally located in the park and used for recreational purposes including but not limited to adult recreation and child play areas such as outdoor games, picnic tables, seating, a...

	(viii) All manufactured or tiny home parks shall be maintained in accordance with the requirements of this Section, applicable State of Colorado Department Health regulations, and other applicable Town regulations.



	(b) Commercial Uses
	(1) Animal Services
	a. Animals shall not be permitted outside except within an accessory kennel or secure animal run or fenced area.
	b. The overnight boarding of animals shall only be permitted when incidental to medical treatment and limited to short periods of time.

	(2) Kennel
	a. All kennels shall be enclosed within a building that prevents any sounds in excess of the maximum permissible noise levels for residential zoning districts, set forth in C.R.S. 25-12-103.
	b. Animals shall not be permitted outside except within a secure animal run or fenced area.

	(3) Recreational Vehicle Park
	a. Recreational Vehicle Spaces
	(i) The minimum lot area for a recreational vehicle park is 60,000 square feet.
	(ii) The minimum size of each individual recreational vehicle parking space within the park is 1,250 square feet.
	(iii) The minimum space required between parked recreational vehicles is 15 feet in any direction.

	b. Site Design
	(i) Water, sewer and electrical connections shall be provided for at least 60 percent of the total number of recreational vehicle spaces and camp sites within the park, all of which shall be installed pursuant to the Development Standards and Specific...
	(ii) The storage, collection, and disposal of refuse shall be performed to minimize accidents, fire hazards, air pollution, odors, insects, rodents, or other nuisance conditions. All trash containers shall be animal resistant.
	(iii) The park shall be sufficiently lighted to assure the security and safety of the residents. All lighting shall comply with the standards in Section 15-6-40, Outdoor Lighting.
	(iv) No permanent or semi-permanent structures, such as cabins, lean-tos, accessory structures, sheds, or habitable buildings, whether placed on a permanent foundation or not, shall be erected on a site except when owned and managed by the owner/opera...
	(v) Opaque screening, such as fences or landscaping materials, a maximum of six feet in height, shall be provided along property boundaries separating the park from adjacent residential property.
	(vi) Each recreational vehicle park shall comply with the requirements of the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment regulations for Campgrounds and Recreation Areas (6 CCR 1010-9) including those related to the provision of toilet, lava...

	c. Review Required
	(i) Special Use Permit applications for the construction of a recreational vehicle park shall be submitted concurrently with the initial business license and shall include a site plan showing the layout of recreational vehicle spaces, sanitary facilit...
	(ii) The plat and design shall be subject Planning Commission and Board of Trustees review prior to the granting of a business license.

	d. Damage, Destruction, or Inoperability

	(4) Vacation Rental
	a. Purpose
	(i) The purpose of this Section is to:
	1. Preserve the character and ambiance of Silverton's neighborhoods;
	2. Allow vacation rentals as short-term visitor accommodations within certain zoning districts;
	3. Minimize the negative impacts attributable to vacation rentals and the associated increase in the negative intensity of their use; and
	4. Ensure compatibility with the existing surrounding land uses.

	(ii) These provisions are intended to address concerns regarding the use of residential units as vacation rentals on a short-term basis by regulating guest turnover rates, housekeeping and maintenance activities, traffic, noise, overcrowding, health a...

	b. Planning and Zoning
	(i) Permit Required
	(ii) Non Transferrable
	(iii) Caps by Zoning District
	(iv) Prohibitions
	(v) Separation Distance
	(vi) Performance Standards
	(vii) Parking
	1. Guests shall park their vehicles and trailers on-site within a designated parking area and/or on the public street directly adjacent to or nearest available space to the vacation rental, complying with the neighborhood parking pattern (i.e., perpen...
	2. Parking shall not block fire hydrants, alleyways or through traffic lanes, and are subject to snow route parking regulations.
	3. The availability of guest parking, on-site and on-street (as provided for in this paragraph), shall be considered in calculating the allowable and appropriate capacity of the vacation rental.
	4. Consideration shall be given by the applicant to avoid limiting impacts to adjacent land owner parking, impeding traffic, creating safety hazards (traffic and pedestrian). Violations of Town traffic laws, snow removal regulations, and other applica...

	(viii) Signage

	c. Owner Restrictions and Requirements
	(i) Limitation of Ownership
	1. Only one vacation rental permit shall be allowed per person.
	2. An individual who owns more than one property, whether jointly, individually, or through a corporation, partnership, trust, LLC, or similar entity, may obtain a vacation rental permit for only one of the properties.

	(ii) Permits and Licenses
	(iii) Fees
	(iv) Inspections
	(v) Insurance
	(vi) Safety
	(vii) Registration
	(viii) Management Enforcement
	(ix) Town Enforcement
	(x) Local Contact and Guest Information
	(xi) Violations
	(xii) Waiting List

	d. Standards
	(i) Occupancy R-1, R-2, MU-1, and C-2 Zoning Districts
	(ii) Tenancy All Zoning Districts
	(iii) Guest Information
	1. Local contact(s) information;
	2. Procedures for use of appliances and heating safety and exiting;
	3. Fire extinguisher location(s);
	4. Emergency services;
	5. Designated parking;
	6. Snow route procedures and "Red Alert" notification sign up;
	7. A statement that all guests will be held to the local municipal laws and applicable Land Use Code regulations; and
	8. All other relevant information for the safe and legal occupancy of the rental unit.



	(5) Repair, Low Impact
	(6) Service Station

	(c) Industrial Uses
	(1) General Industrial Use Standards
	a. Residential Adjacency
	b. Performance Standards
	(i) Industrial uses shall not create any danger to the safety of persons in surrounding areas nor cause water, soil, or air pollution in violation of state or federal statutory and regulatory provisions, nor create noise, vibration, smoke, dust, odors...
	(ii) Any operation producing intense glare or heat shall be conducted within an enclosed building or with other effective screening in order to make glare or heat completely imperceptible from off site when measured at the property line.
	(iii) Industrial operation shall cause no vibration perceptible without instruments at any point along the property line.
	(iv) All industrial uses that produce smoke or any air contaminant shall be subject to the jurisdiction and regulations of the Colorado Air Quality Control Department and the Colorado Air Quality Control Division. Visible emissions of any kind are pro...
	(v) No industrial use shall cause or allow the emission of malodorous air contaminants from any single source that results in detectable odors that are apparent outside the property boundaries.
	(vi) All uses shall operate so that the volume of sound continuously or recurrently generated shall not exceed 70 decibels at any point on any boundary line of the property on which the use is located.
	(vii) No industrial operation shall be allowed to produce fugitive dust in amounts which are noticeable outside of the property boundaries of the use.
	(viii) All truck and other vehicular traffic to and from the site shall not create hazards or nuisances along any public roadways.
	(ix) All liquid and solid wastes produced shall be confined within the property boundaries until disposed of by proper means. No person shall cause or permit any materials to be handled, transported or stored in a manner which allows or may allow part...

	c. Screening Required

	(2) Artisan Industrial
	(3) Wireless Communication Facilities (WCF)
	a. Purpose
	(i) Protect the public safety and welfare, safeguard community land values, and promote orderly planning and development;
	(ii) Provide for the managed development, installation, maintenance, modification, and removal of wireless communications infrastructure in the town with the fewest number of WCFs to complete a network without unreasonably discriminating against wirel...
	(iii) Encourage the joint use and location of new and existing WCFs; and
	(iv) Mitigate any adverse, undesirable visual impacts on the community.

	b. Applicability
	(i) This Section shall apply to all WCF applications and shall not preempt underlying zoning regulations unless explicitly stated in this subsection or as explicitly state in federal and/or state law.
	(ii) The requirements set forth in this subsection shall not apply to:
	1. Amateur radio antennas that are owned and operated by a federally licensed amateur radio station operator or are used exclusively for receive-only antennas, provided that the height be no more than the distance from the base of the antenna to the p...
	2. Any WCF for which a permit has been properly issued prior to the Effective Date shall not be required to meet the requirements of this subsection, other than the operational standards set forth in this subsection. Changes and additions to pre-exist...
	3. Antennas used for reception of television, multi-channel video programming and radio such as over the air reception devices ("OTARD") antennas, television broadcast band antennas, and broadcast radio antennas, provided that any requirements related...
	4. A WCF installed upon the declaration of a state of emergency by the federal, state, or local government, or a written determination of public necessity by the Town Administrator.


	c. General Provisions
	(i) Federal Requirements
	(ii) Radio Frequency Standards
	(iii) Signal Interference
	(iv) Operation and Maintenance
	(v) Abandonment and Removal
	1. For any WCF constructed after the Effective Date, if the WCF is not used to transmit, receive, or relay voice and data signals to or from wireless communication devices for a period of six months, the WCF shall be considered abandoned and the owner...
	2. If the use of the WCF has not been restored within an 18-month period from the time the WCF have ceased being used to transmit, receive or relay voice and data signals to or from wireless communication devices, the WCF shall be removed and the WCF ...

	(vi) Building Permit Required

	d. Standards for Specific Facility Types
	e. Eligible Facilities Request

	(4) Warehousing and Storage Facilities
	a. All storage areas shall be located within an enclosed building, except recreation or other oversized vehicles, which shall be stored only in exterior areas screened from view from any street frontage.
	b. Only storage of goods and materials is allowed in self-storage rental spaces. The use of storage spaces to conduct or operate a business is prohibited.
	c. The use of power tools, paint sprayers, or the servicing, repair or fabrication of furniture, boats, trailers, motor vehicles, lawn mowers, appliances, and other similar equipment within a storage unit is prohibited.
	d. The storage of hazardous materials is prohibited.



	15-3-60 Accessory Uses and Structures
	(a) Purpose
	(b) Applicability
	(c) General Standards
	(1) Accessory uses shall be located on the same lot as the associated principal use, either in a separate structure or in the same building. Accessory structures are subject to all applicable setbacks and required spacing between buildings.
	(2) Accessory uses shall be controlled in the same manner as the associated principal use, except as otherwise expressly provided in this Code.
	(3) The total square footage of accessory structures shall not exceed the total square footage of the primary structure.
	(4) The maximum height cannot exceed the height of primary structure.
	(5) No accessory use or structure shall be established prior to the principal use or primary structure to which it is accessory.
	(6) All accessory structures that are 120 square feet or larger shall be considered an accessory building and require a building permit.

	(d) Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)
	(1) Purpose
	(2) General
	a. Have a minimum size of 300 square feet usable floor area, as defined by the currently adopted building codes;
	b. Not exceed 800 square feet of usable floor space, or 50 percent of the gross floor area of the principal dwelling, whichever is greater;
	c. Include a kitchen and a bathroom (to include, but not limited to, a sink, a toilet, and a shower or bathtub);
	d. Have an individual exterior entry or a shared interior entryway, with direct pedestrian access to a public right-of-way. Provisions for maintaining safe exiting from the ADU and the public right-of-way during all weather conditions shall be address...
	e. Not be subdivided and/or subsequently sold as fee simple ownership. It shall remain as part of the property where the principal dwelling is located.

	(3) Detached ADUs
	a. Detached ADUs shall be:
	(i) Separated from the principal unit by a minimum distance of three feet; and
	(ii) Located to the side or the rear of the principal dwelling unit.

	b. Detached ADUs shall not be calculated as part of the maximum building footprint limited by Section 15-3-50(a)(1), Single-Unit Detached Dwelling.
	c. Tiny homes, as defined in Section 15-11-30, shall be permitted as ADUs provided they meet all of the standards set forth in this Section.

	(4) Dimensional Standards
	a. Lot Size and Height
	b. Setbacks

	(5) Use and Occupancy of Principal and Accessory Dwelling Units
	a. If the owner obtains a valid approval for a vacation rental pursuant to Section 15-3-50(b)(4), the principal dwelling or the ADU can be used as a vacation rental, but not both dwellings.
	b. In the event of the simultaneous rental of both the ADU and the principal dwelling, the lease term for both units shall be for a minimum of three months.
	c. In the event an ADU is rented, not including those ADUs used as vacation rentals, it shall be rented by persons who meet the following criteria:
	(i) The unit shall be the primary residence of the tenant(s); and
	(ii) Long-term tenancy shall mean rental for a term of a minimum of 31 days is required for an initial lease.


	(6) Design Standards
	a. All construction of ADUs in the Historic District Overlay shall comply with all applicable design requirements set forth in Section 15-2-80(a).
	b. ADUs shall be oriented and designed in a manner that maintains the privacy of the occupants on adjacent properties, as determined by a site visit and site-specific conditions, including but not limited to building heights, solar access, locations o...

	(7) Address
	(8) Utilities

	(e) Cottage Industry
	(1) Prohibited Cottage Industry
	a. Industries that involve highly combustible materials or any material considered hazardous under federal or state law;
	b. Industries that are objectionable due to unsightliness, odor, dust, smoke, noise, glare, heat, vibration, or similar disturbances;
	c. Heavy equipment or vehicle repair, unless all operations are conducted inside a fully enclosed structure; and
	d. Any other use that is not listed as a permitted or special use in any zoning district in the town.

	(2) Requirements and Restrictions
	a. Signage may be permitted pursuant to Article 7, Signs.
	b. The cottage industry may be located within a single-unit detached or attached dwelling, not to exceed 40 percent of the dwelling, or in a separate structure not to exceed 1,200 square feet.
	c. Hours of operation shall be limited to between 8:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m.
	d. There shall be no visible storage of equipment, materials, or vehicles with more than two axles.
	e. On-site dining is prohibited.

	(3) Business License Required

	(f) Domestic Animals
	(g) Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Station
	(1) All EV charging facilities shall be connected to the proper transformer as determined by San Miguel Power Association.
	(2) EV charging facility spaces shall be signed for the charging of electric vehicles only.
	(3) EV charging facility equipment shall be located so that it does not interfere with vehicular, bicycle, or pedestrian access and circulation, or with required snow storage areas.

	(h) Family Child Care Home
	(1) All family child care homes shall comply with all applicable requirements set forth in 12 CCR 2509-8.
	(2) The child care operations shall be conducted only by the residents of the principal dwelling.
	(3) One non-illuminated wall sign not exceeding four square feet in area and mounted flat against the building is allowed.
	(4) The child care operation shall not generate significantly greater traffic volume than would normally be expected in the residential area in which the home occupation is conducted.

	(i) Greenhouse
	(1) Accessory greenhouse structures, including but not limited to hoop houses, growing domes, and traditional framed greenhouses shall be limited to 400 square feet and shall not be over 15 feet in height.
	(2) Accessory greenhouse structures shall only be located in rear or side yards.

	(j) Home Occupation
	(1) Prohibited Home Occupations
	a. Occupations that involve highly combustible materials or any material considered hazardous under federal or state law;
	b. Occupations that are objectionable due to unsightliness, odor, dust, smoke, noise, glare, heat, vibration, or similar disturbances;
	c. Retail sales, including but not limited to firearms sales;
	d. Any use that involves serving food, beverages, or meals to customers who visit the site for that purpose except cottage food operations as defined in this LUC;
	e. Heavy equipment or vehicle repair, unless all operations are conducted inside a fully enclosed structure; and
	f. Any other use that is not listed as a permitted or conditional use in any zoning district in the town.

	(2) Multiple Home Occupations
	a. More than one home occupation may be permitted within an individual dwelling unit.
	b. Where multiple home occupations are conducted within an individual dwelling unit, the requirements of Subsection (3), below, shall be applied to the combined total of all home occupation activities, not to each home occupation individually.

	(3) Requirements and Restrictions
	a. The operator of the home occupation shall reside in a permitted primary or accessory dwelling unit on the property.
	b. The home occupation shall be conducted within the principal dwelling or an accessory structure on the same property as the principal dwelling.
	c. Up to 25 percent of the floor area of the dwelling unit, but in no case more than 500 square feet, may be used in the conduct of the home occupation.
	d. The home occupation shall have a maximum of two employees who do not reside on the property.
	e. Customer shall not visit the home occupation between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m.
	f. The home occupation shall not involve internal or external alterations or construction features not normally found in dwellings and shall not include a separate entrance.
	g. Any outdoor storage of equipment or materials in connection with the home occupation shall comply with the standards for outdoor residential storage in Section 15-3-60(m).
	h. No display of products, goods, or services that is visible from outside the dwelling unit are permitted.
	i. One non-illuminated wall sign not exceeding four square feet in area and mounted flat against the building is allowed.

	(4) Business License Required

	(k) Horse and Livestock Keeping
	(l) Outdoor Storage, Commercial
	(1) Accessory outdoor storage areas used in conjunction with a nonresidential use shall not cover an area larger than the primary building on the site or 50 percent of the total area of the site, whichever is less.
	(2) Accessory outdoor storage areas shall be located to the side or rear of the primary building and outside any parking, traffic circulation, or right-of-way that serves the site.
	(3) Outdoor storage uses shall be maintained in an orderly manner with no junk, trash, or debris.
	(4) Outdoor storage areas shall be screened from public view to the maximum extent practicable. Screening height shall be sufficient to hide the equipment, vehicles, or other materials, but shall not exceed six feet in height.

	(m) Outdoor Storage, Residential
	(1) Accessory outdoor storage areas including enclosed structures used in conjunction with a residential use shall not exceed 200 square feet.
	(2) Outdoor storage areas shall be screened from public view to the maximum extent practicable. Screening height shall be sufficient to hide the equipment, vehicles, or other materials, but shall not exceed six feet in height.

	(n) Propane Tank
	(o) Recreational Vehicle Storage
	(1) One unoccupied recreational vehicle per dwelling may be kept, stored, or parked on the same property as the dwelling. Units in excess of one per dwelling must be stored in totally enclosed accessory structures conforming with current building codes.
	(2) Storage may be on private property, with permission of the property owner, or on the street right-of-way, with permission of Public Works.
	(3) All recreational vehicles stored under the above conditions must comply with Section 11-1-50 of the Silverton Municipal Code, with the Model Traffic Code adopted by the Town, and with all directives of the Public Works Director for purposes of str...
	(4) No recreational vehicles shall be kept, stored, or parked in any alley.

	(p) Solar Energy System, Ground or Roof-Mounted
	(1) Solar collectors shall only be located in rear or side yards or on rooftops.
	(2) If the solar collector is not flush with the roof the applicant shall minimize the visibility of the collector from a public street, park, or open space to the maximum extent practicable without prohibiting the installation.
	(3) Ground-mounted accessory solar collectors shall not exceed the height of the primary structure on the lot or parcel.


	15-3-70 Temporary Uses and Structures
	(a) Purpose
	(b) Applicability
	(1) Temporary buildings;
	(2) Temporary display and sale of merchandise;
	(3) Mobile trailers, activities, and/or uses incidental to the construction of a building or group of buildings on the same or adjacent premises;
	(4) Seasonal uses (e.g., fireworks stands, Christmas tree lots, and produce stands); and
	(5) Other uses that clearly are not associated with a holiday, the growing season, or a construction project may be considered for approval by the Town Administrator.

	(c) Exemptions
	(1) Temporary decorations or displays are allowed when clearly incidental to and commonly associated with a particular season, holiday, cultural event, or any community-wide special event.
	(2) Temporary decorations and displays must be removed if damaged or in disrepair and within 72 hours following the conclusion of the particular event or holiday.
	(3) Temporary decorations and displays may not be erected so as to obstruct the use or visibility of the public right-of-way.

	(d) General Standards
	(1) Temporary Use Permit Required
	(2) Location
	(3) Duration
	(4) Additional Permits
	(5) Removal

	(e) Farm Stand
	(1) Farm stands may operate for up to six months of the year. When the farm stand is not in use, it must be removed and stored indoors.
	(2) In residential zoning districts, hours of operation shall be restricted from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.
	(3) The stand shall comply with all dimensional standards of the applicable zoning district.

	(f) Farmer’s Market
	(1) A farmer’s market shall only operate, including any setup or breakdown activities, a total of 12 hours per day between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m.
	(2) A farmer’s market shall not occupy an area larger than 20,000 square feet and shall meet the zoning district required setbacks, unless otherwise approved by the Town Administrator.

	(g) Food Truck
	(1) Each food truck shall have written permission from the property owner for use of the site and allowed location on the site.
	(2) Each food truck shall comply with all applicable town, state, and federal requirements including those related to licensing and operating in the public right-of-way and shall be in good operating condition.
	(3) Food truck operations shall only occur between 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m., unless otherwise specified in an approved Special Event Permit.

	(h) Portable Storage Unit
	(1) A portable storage unit shall be used only for temporary storage. Long-term, on-site storage is prohibited.
	(2) The outside dimensions shall not exceed 16 feet in length, eight feet in width, and nine feet in height.
	(3) Portable storage units are prohibited within any public right-of-way.
	(4) A portable storage unit shall be located in a manner which does not hinder pedestrian or vehicular access to the premises.

	(i) Portable Waste Trailer
	Portable waste trailers may be parked in an on-street parking space or along a public street, excluding Greene Street, provided the trailer is located on the same block of the business(es) using the trailer.
	Trailer dimensions shall not exceed 16 feet in length and eight feet in width.
	(1) Portable waste trailers shall not encroach into or interfere with pedestrian or vehicular travel.
	(2) All trash or recyclables shall be emptied regularly so as not to overflow, and litter and debris shall not be allowed to accumulate around or near the trailer.
	(3) Portable waste trailers shall not create excessive odor problems or present a health hazard.

	(j) Temporary Event or Sales
	(1) Temporary events or sales conducted from movable structures or upon vacant lots shall submit a site plan, including, without limitation, the location, setback from property line, screening, sign and fence locations, if applicable, and electric met...
	(2) Upon termination of the use and on days for which no event is approved, the lot or portion of the lot used for the event or sales area shall be returned substantially to its original condition. All litter, fences, borders, tie-down materials, and ...
	(3) Temporary events shall only be conducted by the owner or lessee of the property or with the permission of the owner or lessee of the property on which it is conducted.
	(4) Temporary events that require a liquor license shall obtain a Special Event Permit in accordance with Chapter 6, Article 2, Division 2 of the Silverton Municipal Code.

	(k) Temporary Outdoor Dining
	(1) General
	a. For the purpose of this Section, references to “restaurants” include the following uses described in Table 15-3-1: Use Table: bar or tavern, craft alcohol, and restaurant.
	b. All operation must comply with state and local guidance for food and beverage operations.
	c. Business owners are responsible for following any state or local public health agency orders imposing occupancy limits.
	d. All applicants shall hold a current/active business license from the Town of Silverton.
	e. It shall be the sole responsibility of the business owner to adequately maintain and furnish a sanitary environment in patio areas/restaurant extensions including frequent general cleaning, trash removal and placement of furniture. The Town will no...
	f. If alcohol is to be permitted and served within a temporary outdoor dining area, the applicant shall comply with the standards set forth in Chapter 6, Article 2, Division 3, Outdoor Dining Within the Town’s Right-of-Way, of the Silverton Municipal ...

	(2) Location
	a. For outdoor dining areas within the public right-of-way, the area shall be located at the frontage or side street adjacent to the associated principal use restaurant.
	b. A maximum of 33 percent or one-third of existing private lots may be used for a restaurant patio extension for a currently permitted restaurant, subject to the written approval of the of the owner of the lot. Private lots to be used for this purpos...

	(3) Operations
	a. Temporary outdoor dining areas are allowed between May 1st and October 31st.
	b. Hours of operation shall be limited to 7:00 a.m. through 10:00 p.m.
	c. Temporary outdoor dining areas shall only be used for sit-down dining or curbside service (pick-up or delivery). Temporary outdoor dining areas shall not be used for standing areas, yard games, or entertainment, including but not limited to live en...

	(4) Design Standards
	a. Size
	b. Accessibility
	c. Barricades
	(i) In an effort to maintain a uniform appearance, the Town will provide metal barricades to business seeking to operate a temporary outdoor dining area in parking spaces adjacent to their business following issuance of an approved outdoor dining lice...
	(ii) Town-issued barricades will be provided on a first come first served basis. If all Town owned barricades are in use, it will be the responsibility of the business owner to obtain approval from the Code Enforcement Officer for a suitable alternative.
	(iii) Barricades placed annually prior to May 31 will be the responsibility of the business owner to remove at the request of the Town with 48 hours’ notice to accommodate for street cleaning, line painting, and other seasonal maintenance facilitated ...
	(iv) The Town will aid business owners who are physically unable to move barricades with removal processes and storage with 24 hours’ notice.
	(v) Barricade storage will be made available to all business owners behind the Quonset hut in the public works yard. Barricades shall be kept and dropped off in a neat and orderly manner. Failure to do so may result in revocation of outdoor dining pro...

	d. Additional Standards
	(i) Temporary tents shall be permitted provided they are weighted down a minimum of 40 pounds per leg of a 10 foot by 10 foot tent and more for larger tents.
	(ii) Temporary lighting is permitted and shall comply with the standards in Section 15-6-40, Outdoor Lighting.

	e. Review Required
	(i) Restaurants shall apply for a Temporary Use Permit. Restaurants shall be responsible for obtaining all Town approvals required by Planning/Building/Code Enforcement, as well as any relevant public health agency requirements. Restaurants must pay t...
	(ii) Applicants will be required to submit proof of insurance listing the “Town of Silverton” as additionally insured as defined in Ordinance 2022-01.
	(iii) The holder of a Temporary Use Permit that authorizes the licensee to go upon public property shall indemnify and hold harmless the Town, its officers, employees and agents against any and all claims arising from any occurrence occasioned by the ...





	Article 4 Subdivision Design and Improvement
	15-4-10 General Provisions
	(a) Purpose
	(1) Efficient circulation through the proper arrangements of streets in relation to other existing or planned streets;
	(2) Adequate and convenient open spaces for traffic circulation, utilities, emergency access, recreation, light, air, snow, and drainage; and
	(3) Adequate infrastructure through the establishment of standards for the design and construction of improvements.

	(b) Applicability
	(c) Compliance with LUC
	(1) The general layout of lots, streets, driveways, utilities, drainage facilities, and other services within all proposed subdivisions shall be designed in a way that minimizes the amount of land disturbance, maximizes the amount of open space in the...
	(2) Applicants shall apply these standards in the design and creation of lots or patterns of lots to ensure compliance with applicable development standards to the maximum extent practicable.

	(d) Design Standards and Specifications
	(1) Required improvements shall be designed in accordance with this Article and the Development Standards and Specifications.
	(2) No improvements shall be made until all engineering plans, profiles, and specifications have been reviewed and approved by the Town.

	(e) Suitability of Land for Development

	15-4-20 Subdivision Design Standards
	(a) Lots and Blocks
	(1) Lot size, width, depth, shape, orientation, and minimum building setback lines shall be appropriate for the location of the subdivision and for the type of development and use contemplated and shall conform to the dimensional standards for the zon...
	(2) Lots and blocks shall be designed to afford the maximum solar access to each building site.
	(3) Double frontage and reverse frontage lots are prohibited except where essential to provide separation of residential properties from arterial streets or commercial uses, or to overcome specific disadvantages of topography and orientation.
	(4) A statement relinquishing right of access from individual lots to Highway 550 and/or an arterial road shall be included in the Final Plat.
	(5) Side lot lines shall be substantially at right angles to street lines, unless otherwise approved by the Board of Trustees.
	(6) The maximum block length between intersecting streets shall be 600 feet.

	(b) Streets
	(1) Minimum Design Standards
	(2) Arrangements of Streets
	a. Adequate local streets shall be provided to accommodate the subdivision and provide access to lots.
	b. New streets and extensions of existing streets must bear a logical relationship to the topography and to the location of existing or planned streets on adjacent properties, unless otherwise approved by the Town. The arrangement of streets in a subd...
	(i) Provide for the continuation or appropriate projection to existing principal streets in surrounding areas; or
	(ii) Conform to a plan for a neighborhood or Planned Unit Development approved by the Planning Commission to meet a particular situation where topographical or other conditions make continuance or conformance to existing streets impracticable or where...

	c. Any development requiring access onto a State highway shall obtain a permit for access from the Colorado Department of Transportation before the issuance of any Town development permit. State or federal highways shall not be intersected by local st...
	d. Any development requiring access onto a County road shall obtain a permit for access from San Juan County before the issuance of any Town development permit.

	(3) Access Easement or Alley
	a. The use of an easement or alley for principal access to a lot shall be allowed where:
	1. Alleys currently exist;
	2. Alleys are part of an overall project design; or
	3. An alley can be used to provide access in a manner that corresponds to surrounding site design and allows maneuvering that is safe for vehicles, pedestrians, and bicyclists.


	(4) Closed-end Streets
	a. Closed-end streets should only be used when topography, the presence of natural features, and/or vehicular safety factors make a vehicular connection impractical. Closed-end streets are prohibited when street connection across adjacent property is ...
	b. Closed-end streets shall be designed in compliance with the Development Standards and Specifications.
	c. An alternative design may be approved by the Fire Department and Public Works.

	(5) Intersections
	a. Streets shall intersect as nearly as possible at right angles.
	b. All streets shall intersect at right angles for a minimum of 50 feet from the edge of the intersection.
	c. More than two streets intersecting at a point shall be avoided.

	(6) Half-streets
	(7) Street Names
	a. Names of new streets shall not duplicate names of existing streets, except for new streets that are extensions of, or that are in alignment with, existing or platted streets.
	b. Street names shall not be named for a living individual.

	(8) Sight Distance

	(c) Utility Easements
	(1) Where necessary for installation and/or maintenance of utility systems, easements of at least 10 feet in width shall be reserved along rear lot lines of each lot, or at other locations which will not interfere with the siting of buildings.
	(2) In general, utility systems shall be arranged and located to avoid cross-connections, minimize trenching, and adequately separate incompatible systems.


	15-4-30 Required Improvements
	(a) Water and Sewer Service Extensions
	(b) Storm Drainage System
	(1) The storm drainage system shall consist of natural drainage courses whenever possible and/or surface drainage structures, catch basins, and other underground drainage structures. The storm drainage system shall be of sufficient size and design to ...
	(2) Catch basins shall be provided at all low points, at street intersections and at intermediate locations as necessary to prevent overloading of the street gutters. Catch basins provided shall be connected to collection mains of adequate size with o...
	(3) Storm drainage shall not be permitted to empty into any sanitary sewerage system.

	(c) Sanitary Sewerage System
	(1) The sanitary sewerage system shall be connected to an existing public sanitary sewer system and shall consist of a closed system of sanitary sewer mains and lateral branch connections to each structure or lot upon which a structure is to be built.
	(2) The sanitary sewerage system shall be of sufficient size and design to collect all sewage from all proposed or probable structures within the subdivision or development and comply with the requirements in the Development Standards and Specificatio...

	(d) Potable Water System
	(1) The potable water system provided shall connect to an existing public water system and shall consist of water mains directly connected to using structures by means of lateral branches.
	(2) The water system shall be of sufficient size and design to supply potable water to each structure or lot upon which a structure is to be built and comply with the requirements in the Development Standards and Specifications with review and accepta...

	(e) Fire Hydrants
	(f) Utilities
	(g) Street Lights
	(1) Ornamental street lighting and associated underground street lighting supply circuits shall be installed. Street lights shall maintain maximum spacing of 400 feet, with lighting at each intersection.
	(2) All street lighting shall meet the requirements of Section 15-6-40, Outdoor Lighting.
	The street lighting plan specifying the number, line and approximate location of street lights must be included with the Final Plat application.

	(h) Arterial Roads
	(i) Street Improvements

	15-4-40 Public Land Dedication
	(a) Dedication or Cash in Lieu Requirement
	(1) Every Major Subdivision and PUD shall include a dedication of land to the Town, or other entity, as determined by the Board of Trustees, to be used for parks and recreation, open space, school sites, municipal facilities, or cash in lieu of the de...
	(2) The applicant shall dedicate a minimum of 10 percent of the gross land area, exclusive of streets, alleys, and utility easements for one or more of the public purposes listed above.

	(b) Cash in Lieu
	(1) If the Board of Trustees finds that the park and recreational needs of a proposed development would be better served by a park in a different location or the expansion or improvement of an existing park or recreational area, the Board of Trustees ...
	(2) The amount of cash payment shall be calculated based on the land area that would be required as a dedication. The Board of Trustees shall establish by resolution the per-square foot fee based on the current fair market value for raw lands within t...
	(3) The equivalent cash valuation, when used, shall be based upon an appraisal by a competent, independent appraiser selected by the Town and the applicant. The applicant shall pay one-half the total cost of the services of the appraiser, with payment...

	(c) Acceptance
	(1) All land dedicated to the Town shall be formally accepted by the Town through the adoption of an appropriate ordinance if it chooses to accept the dedication and the dedication conforms to the requirements of this Section.
	(2) The proceeds of any equivalent cash payment under this Section shall be placed in a separate Town fund and shall be used only for the acquisition or improvement of land for public park and recreation areas or other public facilities.

	(d) Reservations
	(1) Reservation by covenant, in lieu of dedication, may be permitted in some cases, such as a Planned Unit Development where land is to be used for recreational or amenity purposes by the property owners.
	(2) Reservation of land within a subdivision may be required for the duration of the Preliminary Plan approval in order to afford the appropriate public agency the opportunity to coordinate its acquisition of public land with the development of the su...



	Article 5 Environmentally Sensitive Lands
	15-5-10 Avalanche Hazard Areas
	(a) Purpose
	(1) Identify those areas within the Town where, after due investigation and study, hazards to the safety of property and occupants exist due to potential avalanche activity impacting the areas;
	(2) Give notice to the public of those areas within the Town where avalanche hazards to property and occupants potentially exist;
	(3) Mitigate the public's exposure to health, safety, and welfare hazards within avalanche hazard areas; and
	(4) Allow for the use and development of properties situated within avalanche hazard areas only when the use and development comply with the requirements of this Section.

	(b) Applicability
	(1) This Section shall apply to the land areas subject to potential avalanche danger identified in the "Snow Avalanche Mapping Analysis, Silverton, Colorado," by Arthur I. Mears, P.E., Inc., dated February 1998, together with supplemental avalanche ma...
	(2) Avalanche hazard areas shall consist of two sub-zone designations as follows:
	a. The High Hazard Red Zone means land areas exposed to avalanches with a return period of less than 30 years and/or avalanche impact pressures greater than 600 pounds per square foot on a flat, rigid surface situated perpendicular to the direction of...
	b. The Moderate Hazard Blue Zone means land areas exposed to avalanches with a return period in excess of 30 years and avalanche impact pressures of less than 600 pounds per square foot on a flat, rigid surface situated perpendicular to the direction ...

	(3) The standards in this Section shall only apply to the portion of the lot that is encumbered by an avalanche hazard area. Partial encumbrance shall not render a lot undevelopable.

	(c) Review Required
	(d) Restrictions on Development
	(1) New Construction Prohibited in High Hazard Red Zone
	(2) Prohibited Uses in the Moderate Hazard Blue Zone
	a. Critical facilities as defined in Section 15-5-20(f)(1);
	b. Multiunit dwellings, hotels, motels, bed and breakfasts, manufactured or tiny home parks, and recreational vehicle parks that continue operation or seasonal recreational vehicle occupancy between November 1 to April 30; and
	c. Solid waste disposal sites, sewage treatment plants or aboveground facilities for the storage or disposal of hazardous, toxic, nuclear, flammable or explosive materials, including aboveground propane tanks.

	(3) Nonconforming Structures
	(4) Certification of Construction
	(5) Vegetation Removal Prohibited
	(6) General Notice Requirements
	a. Any person who rents, leases or sublets any structure or premises within the High Hazard Red Zone or Moderate Hazard Blue Zone for any portion of the months of November, December, January, February, March, or April shall provide the Town with writt...
	b. Every real estate agent, sales person, broker, and private party owning property within the High Hazard Red Zone or Moderate Hazard Blue Zone shall, upon first inquiry, provide the prospective purchaser, lessee, or tenant, prior to or in conjunctio...


	(e) Administration
	(f) Amendments to Map Boundaries
	(1) In the event that any property owner affected by a High Hazard Red Zone or Moderate Hazard Blue Zone believes that as a result of the erection of avalanche protective, deflective, and preventative structures, devices, or earth work, or through a c...
	(2) The application shall include, at a minimum, an analysis performed by a licensed Colorado engineer as to the effect of the avalanche protective, deflective, or preventative structure, device, or earth work, or other changes upon the areas within t...
	(3) If the Town of Silverton erected avalanche protective, deflective, and preventative structures, devices, or earth work, it shall make available information to engineers as requested.
	(4) Upon an application, the High Hazard Red Zone or Moderate Hazard Blue Zone boundaries may be amended subsequent to public hearing and adoption of an ordinance amending the map.

	(g) Warning and Disclaimer of Safety and Liability
	(1) Avalanches occur naturally, suddenly, and unpredictably based upon steepness of slope and runout area, exposure, snowpack composition, wind, temperature, rate of snowfall and other little understood interacting factors. The avalanche hazard areas ...
	(2) This Section does not represent or imply that areas outside the High Hazard Red Zone and Moderate Hazard Blue Zone are free from avalanches or avalanche danger. The fact that the Town has not prohibited all development, construction, or use of rea...
	(3) The granting of any permit or approval for any structure or use, or the declaration or failure to declare the existence of an avalanche hazard shall not constitute a representation, guarantee or warranty of any kind or nature by the Town, or any o...


	15-5-20 Flood Hazard Areas
	(a) General Provisions
	(1) Statutory Authorization
	(2) Purpose
	a. Avoid or mitigate the potential adverse impacts of flood on property, economic activity, and the environment;
	b. Ensure development does not increase the extent or severity of the flood hazard;
	c. Ensure development does not cause injury, loss of life, or damage to premises and property due to flooding; and
	d. Regulate the use of areas subject to periodic flooding.

	(3) Applicability
	(4) Basis for Establishing Areas of Special Flood Hazard
	a. The special flood hazard areas identified by FEMA in a scientific and engineering report entitled, “The Flood Insurance Study for the Town of Silverton, Colorado and Incorporated Areas,” dated May 9, 2023, with accompanying Flood Insurance Rate Map...
	b. Areas of special flood hazard are divided into two separate and distinct areas:
	(i) The floodway; and
	(ii) The flood fringe.


	(5) Compliance
	(6) Abrogation and Greater Restrictions
	(7) Interpretation
	a. Considered as minimum requirements;
	b. Liberally construed in favor of the Town; and
	c. Deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted under state statutes.

	(8) Warning and Disclaimer of Safety and Liability
	a. The degree of flood protection required by this Section is considered reasonable for regulatory purposes and is based on scientific and engineering considerations. Larger floods can and will occur on rare occasions. Flood height may be increased by...
	b. This Section does not imply that lands outside the areas of special flood hazard or uses permitted within those areas will be free from flooding or flood damage. This Section shall not create liability on the part of the Town, any officer or employ...


	(b) Review Required
	(1) A Flood Hazard Development Permit shall be obtained before construction, substantial improvement, or development begins within any area of special flood hazard. Any structure of nonstructural activity or development that may affect flooding or flo...
	(2) Encroachments into the area of special flood hazard must be certified by a Colorado registered professional engineer that the encroachments are in accordance with this Section. Within Zones A1-30 and AE on the community's FIRM, it shall be demonst...
	a. The cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated development, will not increase the water surface elevation of the base flood more than one-half foot at any point within the community; and
	b. Within the adopted regulatory floodway, it must be demonstrated through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses in accordance with standard engineering practice that the proposed encroachment would not result in any increase (require a no-rise certificat...


	(c) General Regulations
	(1) Minimum Federal and State Standards
	(2) General Provisions
	a. No structure (temporary or permanent), fill, (including fill for roads and levees), deposits, obstruction, storage of materials or other floodplain uses that, acting alone or in combination with existing or future floodplain uses, shall adversely a...
	b. No floodplain use shall adversely affect the efficiency of or unduly restrict the capacity of the channels or floodways of any tributaries to the main stream, drainage ditches, or any other drainage facilities or systems.


	(d) Uses Allowed in Floodway
	(1) Uses accessory to residential uses, including, but not limited to lawns, open areas, gardens, driveways, and play areas;
	(2) Parks and open space;
	(3) Multi-modal path or trail;
	(4) Minor utilities not requiring structures; and
	(5) Hydraulic structures such as bridges, culverts, weirs, diversions, drop structures, and fish ladders, for access and flood or stormwater control.

	(e) Development Standards in Flood Fringe
	(1) Construction Materials and Methods
	a. All new construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed using methods and practices that minimize flood damage.
	b. All new construction and substantial improvements shall be designed and adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy, a...
	c. All new construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage.

	(2) Residential Construction
	(3) Nonresidential Construction
	(4) Enclosed Areas Below Lowest Floor
	a. A minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding shall be provided; and
	b. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers or other coverings or devices, provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters.

	(5) Manufactured Homes
	a. Manufactured homes shall be anchored to resist flotation, collapse, or lateral movement and be able to withstand hydrodynamic loads. Methods of anchoring may include over-the-top frame ties to ground anchors. Specific requirements shall be that:
	(i) Over-the-top ties shall be provided at each of the four corners of the manufactured home, with two additional ties per side at intermediate locations, with manufactured homes less than 50 feet long requiring one additional tie per side;
	(ii) Frames ties shall be provided at each corner of the home, with five additional ties per side at intermediate points, with manufactured homes less than 50 feet long requiring four additional ties per side;
	(iii) All components of the anchoring system shall be capable of carrying a force of 4,800 pounds; and
	(iv) Any additions to the manufactured home shall be similarly anchored.

	b. All manufactured homes or those to be substantially improved shall be elevated on a permanent foundation such that the lowest floor of the manufactured home is one foot above the base flood elevation and is securely anchored to an adequately anchor...
	(i) Lots shall be large enough to permit steps;
	(ii) Piling foundations shall be placed in a stable soil no more than 10 feet apart; and
	(iii) Reinforcements shall be provided for pilings more than six feet above the ground level.


	(6) Recreational Vehicles
	a. Be on the site for fewer than 90 consecutive days;
	b. Be fully licensed and ready for highway use; or
	c. Meet the requirements for manufactured homes in Subsection (5) above.

	(7) Utilities
	a. All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the system.
	b. New and replacement sanitary water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the systems and discharge from the systems into the floodwaters.
	c. On-site waste disposal systems shall be located to avoid impairment to them or contamination from them during flooding.

	(8) Mechanical and Utility Equipment

	(f) Standards for Critical Facilities
	(1) Classification of Critical Facilities
	(2) Protection for Critical Facilities
	a. New critical facilities are prohibited in the special flood hazard area.
	b. Substantially improved critical facilities and new additions to critical facilities located within the special flood hazard area shall be regulated to a higher standard than structures not determined to be critical facilities. For the purposes of t...
	(i) Location outside the special flood hazard area;
	(ii) Elevation of the lowest floor or floodproofing of the structure, together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, to at least two feet above the base flood elevation; or
	(iii) Be retrofitted so that the building is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water and with structural components having the capability of resisting hydrodynamic loads.



	(g) Administration
	(1) Flood Hazard Development Permit
	(2) Flood Hazard Variance


	15-5-30 Slope Hazard Areas
	(a) Purpose
	(1) Prevent soil erosion and landslides;
	(2) Protect the public by preventing or regulating development in locations with steep slopes over 25 percent;
	(3) Provide safe circulation of vehicular and pedestrian traffic to and within hillside areas and to provide access for emergency vehicles necessary to serve the hillside areas; and
	(4) Encourage only minimal grading that relates to the natural contour of the land.

	(b) Applicability
	(c) Development on Slopes Between 25 and 30 Percent
	(1) Engineering Study
	(2) Maximum Disturbance
	(3) Grading Standards
	a. Grading shall be limited to the minimum necessary for development of streets, building sites, utilities, and driveways.
	b. Visible cut or fill slopes shall not exceed three horizontal to one vertical (3:1); provided, however, that slopes as steep as two horizontal to one vertical (2:1) may be approved by a qualified engineer upon a finding that the appearance or stabil...

	(4) Erosion Control
	(5) Building Location
	(6) Streets

	(d) Development on Slopes Greater than 30 Percent
	(e) Development on Unstable or Potentially Unstable Slopes
	(1) Cutting Into a Slope
	(2) Adding Water or Weight
	(3) Removing Vegetation
	(4) Over-Steeping

	(f) Administration

	15-5-40 Wildfire Hazard Study
	(a) Purpose
	(b) Applicability
	(c) Wildfire Hazard Study
	(1) A schedule delineating how the wildfire mitigation actions identified in the study will be implemented including, but not limited to, vegetation thinning, creation of fuel breaks, and the installation of working fire hydrants, fire cisterns, or dr...
	(2) Communication capabilities during construction with the ERFPD and the type of communication system. A physical address is required for E-911 purposes;
	(3) Detailed specification of fire protection equipment and emergency preparedness actions to be installed or implemented and maintained within the subdivision during construction;
	(4) Detailed mitigation actions including, but not limited to, thinning, spacing, and removal of trees and vegetation and building construction techniques designed to mitigate wildfire hazard areas;
	(5) The identification of building envelopes shall be required to locate structures outside of severe hazard areas, off of steep slopes, and outside of ravines to the maximum extent practicable;
	(6) Identification of the entities responsible for implementing the plan, constructing required improvements, and maintenance in perpetuity of the improvements and appropriate easements, if any; and
	(7) A map identifying major timber stands and vegetation, locations of fire hydrants, water tanks, cisterns or dry hydrants, as well as locations and flows or capacity of fire hydrants, water tanks, cisterns, or dry hydrants.

	(d) Referral to Colorado State Forest Service or Division of Fire Prevention and Control
	(1) As part of the review of the wildfire hazard study, the Town Administrator shall refer the development application to the Colorado State Forest Service (CSFS) or the Colorado Division of Fire Prevention and Control (DFPC). Referral of Final Plat a...
	(2) CSFS or DFPC shall review the application and comment on the potential effectiveness of the management plan and the mitigation techniques proposed and make recommendations based on guidelines promulgated by CSFS or DFPC. (See, for example, “Creati...
	(3) The Town shall consider the recommendations of the CSFS or DFPC and apply the appropriate recommendations as conditions of approval of the development application.

	(e) Requirements for Final Approvals


	Article 6 Site Development Standards
	15-6-10 Mobility, Connectivity, and Parking
	(a) Purpose
	(1) Provide for safe and convenient interaction between vehicles, bicycle, and pedestrians;
	(2) Encourage multi-modal transportation options and enhanced pedestrian safety; and
	(3) Ensure the quality of life of the community will not be impeded by off-street parking requirements when adequate on-street parking is available.

	(b) Applicability
	(c) Mobility
	(1) Sidewalks designed to Town standards are required along all public streets. The Town Administrator may approve a walkway that is surfaced in pavers, bricks, colored or patterned concrete, gravel, or other methods approved by the Town to enhance pe...
	(2) All development in the MU-1, C-1 and C-2 districts shall provide a pedestrian walkway system as follows:
	a. There shall be a walkway from the perimeter public sidewalk or street to the primary building entrance. Walkways shall be constructed with using firm, stable, and slip resistant surface.
	b. Pedestrian walkways or sidewalks shall connect all primary building entrances and must be provided along any building wall featuring an entrance that exits into a parking area or public right-of-way.


	(d) Connectivity
	(1) Every mixed-use, commercial, and industrial lot shall have sufficient access providing reasonable means of ingress and egress for emergency vehicles, trucks supplying necessary services, and for those needing access to the property for its intende...
	(2) All driveway entrance and other openings onto streets shall be constructed so that:
	a. Vehicles may safely enter and exit the property; and
	b. Interference with the free and convenient flow of traffic in abutting or surrounding streets is minimized.


	(e) Parking for those Experiencing Disabilities
	(f) Bicycle Parking
	(g) Parking Area Design
	(1) Vehicle Parking
	a. Each off-street parking space shall consist of an open area measuring at least nine feet wide by 18 feet long and seven feet high; provided, however, parallel parking spaces shall measure at least nine feet wide by 23 feet long and seven feet high.
	b. Off-street parking shall be free of weeds, properly drained, and surfaced with concrete, asphalt, sealed pavers, cobbles, sealed brick, gravel or rock a minimum depth of four inches to ensure a dust-free surface or any other material with similar c...
	c. The Town Administrator may prohibit the use of gravel or rock for parking areas when deemed necessary for erosion control, drainage, or other ecological considerations.

	(2) Bicycle Parking
	a. Short-Term Bicycle Spaces
	(i) Are easily accessed from the street and protected from motor vehicles;
	(ii) Are visible to passers‐by to promote usage and enhance security;
	(iii) Do not impede or interfere with pedestrian traffic or routine maintenance activities;
	(iv) Do not block access to buildings; and
	(v) Allow reasonable clearance for opening of passenger‐side doors of parked cars.

	b. Long-Term Bicycle Spaces



	15-6-20 Landscaping and Screening
	(a) Applicability
	(b) Nonfunctional Turf, Artificial Turf, and Invasive Plant Species
	(1) On or after January 1, 2026, all new development and redevelopment, as defined below, of nonresidential principal uses are prohibited from installing, planting, or placing any nonfunctional turf, artificial turf, or invasive plant species as defin...
	(2) Redevelopment, for the purposes of this Section, requires both of the following:
	a. A disturbance of more than 50 percent of the aggregate landscape area, and
	b. Activity that requires a building permit or Site Plan.


	(c) Screening
	(1) Fences and Walls
	a. Maximum Fence Height
	b. Setbacks
	c. Clear Vision Triangle

	(2) Roof-mounted Mechanical and Utility Equipment
	a. The proximity of the development to surrounding residential land uses and the visual impact that roof-mounted equipment may have upon those surrounding residential land uses;
	b. The number and size of roof-mounted equipment. The greater the number and/or size, the more screening may be warranted; and
	c. Roof-mounted equipment shall maintain a color and finish that are compatible with the primary building façade.



	15-6-30 Site and Building Design Standards
	(a) Purpose
	(1) Establish design and development standards that foster high-quality development;
	(2) Enhance the human and pedestrian scale of commercial developments and ensure compatibility between residential neighborhoods and adjacent nonresidential uses; and
	(3) Balance the community’s economic and aesthetic concerns.

	(b) Townwide Design Standards
	(1) Applicability
	(2) Roofs, Eaves, and Parapets
	(3) Climatic Conditions
	a. Local climatic conditions shall be considered when designing the orientation of new buildings. For example, north-facing facades are especially susceptible to winter snow and ice accumulation, and entries may require special treatment.
	b. Adequate solar access shall be considered when planning outdoor spaces, with shade and relief from glare provided by landscaping and overhead structures.

	(4) Reflective Materials Prohibited
	(5) On-Site Snow Shedding and Storage
	a. Snow Storage
	(i) In all districts except the MU-1 district, a minimum snow storage area equaling 10 percent of the impervious surface on the lot, either located in one location or distributed across multiple areas, shall be provided for the removal, management, an...
	(ii) In all districts, adequate drainage shall be provided for the snow storage area to accommodate snowmelt and to ensure it does not drain onto adjacent property.

	b. Snow Shedding
	(i) Sites and structures shall be designed so that snow does not shed across the property line onto an adjacent property.
	(ii) Snow shall not be allowed to shed freely into building entrances. The buildup of ice and snow within pedestrian areas shall be minimized to the maximum extent practicable.
	(iii) Any roof that may shed snow onto walkways and entries shall include rooftop snow retention techniques including snow guards and/or snow fences designed in accordance with adopted building codes to prevent injury, as deemed necessary by the Build...


	(6) Refuse Containers
	a. Dumpsters and refuse containers shall be animal resistant. Animal resistant containers are fully enclosed containers that may be constructed of pliable materials reinforced to deter access by wildlife. The containers must employ sturdy lids that ha...
	b. Enclosures shall be located to minimize view and odors from public locations at the primary street frontage and neighboring properties and uses to the maximum extent practicable.

	(7) Mechanical
	a. Underground utility connection is required unless otherwise provided by the Building Official.
	b. Risers, utility meters, panel boxes, or similar, are encouraged to be covered with the same or compatible material as the siding material where the connection meets the building, unless prohibited by utility company regulations.

	(8) Small Lot Development Bulk Plane
	a. A bulk plane analysis shall be applied to define the three-dimensional area to which development will be limited. The bulk plane extends up 12 feet from all four lot lines and angles in at 45 degree angles from the side lot lines until it reaches t...
	b. Individual dormers (shed or gable) may extend up to six feet beyond the buildable area, with a maximum width of eight feet. The portion(s) that extend beyond the buildable area shall have a combined width no greater than 50 percent of the length of...
	c. The end(s) of a shed roof may extend up to five feet beyond the buildable area.
	d. The end(s) of a side-gabled roof may extend up to five feet beyond the buildable area with a maximum width of 20 feet or no more than 50 percent of the length of the home, whichever is less. The width of the side-gabled roof shall be measured at th...
	e. A rooftop solar system, that is flush-mounted to the roof or mounted at up to a 15 degree angle measured from a horizontal plane may extend beyond the buildable area provided that the roof structure supporting the solar system does not extend beyon...


	(c) Historic District Overlay Standards
	(d) Additional Greene Street Standards
	(1) Applicability
	(2) Referral to Historic Preservation Committee
	(3) Building Orientation
	(4) Building Mass and Form
	a. The following elements shall be used to provide relief and contrast in the façade and delineate individual units. A minimum of three elements shall be incorporated:
	(i) Balconies;
	(ii) Overhangs;
	(iii) Covered patios;
	(iv) Prominent entry features;
	(v) Window variations;
	(vi) Door opening variations;
	(vii) Variations in materials with an alternative material use for at least 20 percent of the structure;
	(viii) Variations in building height with differing levels of height provided for at least 20 percent of the total height;
	(ix) Variation in roof form, with differing roof forms provided for at least 20 percent of the total room;
	(x) Projected or recessed building walls that vary from the primary vertical plane by at least six inches; or
	(xi) Another architectural feature as approved by the Town Administrator.

	b. Entries and stairwells shall be an integral part of the building design. Exterior stairwells shall be protected from the weather and partially screening or designed with architectural treatments that are integrated into the overall building elevation.

	(5) Building Materials
	(6) Roof Form
	a. Roofs should be similar in scale to those used historically on comparable buildings. Typical primary roof shapes are gabled, hipped, and shed.
	b. Bowed or curved roof forms are prohibited.

	(7) Parking


	15-6-40 Outdoor Lighting
	(a) Purpose
	(1) Preserve and protect the natural dark sky resource;
	(2) Minimize light pollution, glare, light trespass, and sky glow;
	(3) Promote energy conservation;
	(4) Maintain nighttime visibility for safety and security;
	(5) Prevent unnecessary or inappropriate outdoor lighting;
	(6) Minimize nighttime lighting impacts on wildlife;
	(7) Maintain the rural atmosphere and character of the town; and
	(8) Make the town an attractive place for residents and tourists.

	(b) General Provisions
	(1) All outdoor light fixtures permanently or temporarily installed outdoors, except for those listed under Subsection (d), shall:
	Be the minimum necessary to provide for safety and functionality;
	a. Be turned off when no one is present to use the light;
	Be fully shielded; and
	Be directed such that illumination is within the property boundary where the outdoor light fixture is located. This provision does not apply to publicly owned outdoor light fixtures.

	The correlated color temperature of each lamp shall not exceed 3,000 Kelvins.
	(2) The following lumen per net acre values are an upper limit and not a design goal.
	a. All uses except single-unit detached dwellings are limited to 15,000 lumens per net acre and fixtures are limited to 1,600 lumens each.
	Single-unit detached dwellings are limited to 10,000 lumens per net acre and fixtures are limited to 850 lumens each.


	(c) Specialized Outdoor Lighting
	(1) Canopies
	(2) Outdoor Recreational Facilities
	a. Illuminating Engineering Society (IES) lighting guidelines (RP-6) are followed according to the appropriate class of play.
	b. Field lighting is provided exclusively for illumination of the surface of play and viewing stands, and not for any other applications.
	c. Illuminance levels are adjustable based on the task (e.g., active play versus field maintenance).
	d. Off-site impacts of the lighting are limited to the maximum extent practicable.
	e. Lights are extinguished by 10:00 p.m. or one hour after the end of play, whichever is later.
	f. Timers are installed to prevent lights being left on accidentally overnight by automatically extinguishing them.

	(3) Publicly Owned Outdoor Lighting
	a. New publicly owned outdoor light fixtures shall only be installed where needed for safety and functionality.
	b. All new publicly owned outdoor light fixtures installed six months or more after the adoption of these regulations shall incorporate adaptive controls.

	(4) Signs
	a. Luminance levels for operation between sunset and sunrise shall not exceed 100 nits (100 candelas per square meter, cd/m2) as measured under conditions of a full white display.
	b. During the first hour after sunset and during the last hour immediately preceding sunrise, sign luminance shall not exceed 100 nits (100 candelas per square meter, cd/m2).
	c. Sign illumination shall be extinguished completely during the hours the business is closed.
	d. The luminous/illuminated surface area of an individual sign shall not exceed 40 square feet.


	(d) Exemptions
	(1) Temporary emergency lighting in use by law enforcement or government agencies or at their direction;
	(2) Temporary lighting for events that do not create issues of light trespass or safety as approved by the Town Administrator for a period of up to seven days;
	Temporary holiday decorative lights from November 15 through January 15 and one other seven-day period a year. Lights shall be extinguished by 10pm and remain off until one hour before sunrise. Holiday decorative lights may blink, so long as the safet...
	(3) String, bistro, and similar lighting, provided the emission of no individual lamp exceeds 50 lumens and no installation of lighting exceeds, in the aggregate, 6,000 lumens. These lights must be rated at or below 2,700 Kelvin. Lights shall be extin...
	(4) Low voltage LED lights and solar lights used to illuminate pathways in residential areas, provided the lights are installed not more than 18 inches above the adjacent ground level;
	(5) The lighting of artwork that is outdoors and on publicly owned property. Lighting shall not exceed 850 lumens per artwork nor more than 3000 Kelvin. Lights shall be extinguished by 10:00 p.m. and remain off until one hour before sunrise;
	(6) Lighting on structures or signs for buildings on the National Register of Historic Places in which the lighting contributes to the historical significance of the building. Efforts shall be made to comply with the outdoor lighting standards where i...
	(7) The lighting of federal or state flags, provided that the light is above the flag and faces downward;
	(8) Traffic control signals and devices; and
	(9) Lighting required by federal, state, county, or Town ordinance and regulations.

	(e) Prohibited Outdoor Lighting
	Searchlights, sky beams, and similar lighting except as required by response personnel during emergency conditions;
	Blinking, flashing, rotating, or moving lights, including those used for signage. This does not apply to holiday-type decorative lights as exempted above;
	Lighting which produces any glare or distraction for any passing motorist;
	Neon or luminous tube lighting including any sign, except “open/closed” or "vacancy/no vacancy" type signs; and
	(1) Mercury vapor lighting.

	(f) Nonconforming Outdoor Lighting
	(1) All existing outdoor lighting that was legally installed before the adoption of this Section but does not meet the requirements of this Section shall be considered nonconforming.
	(2) Nonconforming outdoor lighting is allowed to remain in use unless any of the following occurs:
	a. Replacement of the fixture;
	b. Non-use of the fixture for a period of six months; and/or
	c. Damage to the light fixture such that the cost or repair is 50 percent or more of the cost to replace the fixture with a conforming fixture.

	(3) No alteration may be made to outdoor lighting which would increase the amount of degree of the nonconformity.
	(4) After 10 years from the date of adoption of this Section, all nonconforming outdoor light fixtures shall be brought into compliance with this Section.

	(g) Plan Submission and Compliance Review
	(1) All applications for business permits, building permits, Sign Permits, Site Plan, Historic District Overlay Review, Planned Unit Development, Special Use Permit, and Simple and Major Subdivisions shall submit a lighting plan showing compliance wit...
	a. The manufacture’s cut sheet for each proposed outdoor light fixture;
	b. A site plan with property boundaries including all existing and proposed light fixture locations and their light spill;
	c. A table showing the total lumens by fixture and a calculation explaining the total lumens per net acre;
	d. Total Kelvin for each proposed lamp; and
	e. Other materials necessary to show compliance with this Section.

	(2) Review of lighting plans shall be by the Town Administrator who may refer review to the Planning Commission if that, in their opinion, issues are present that require Planning Commission attention.



	Article 7 Signs
	15-7-10 Purpose
	(a) Provide signs that do not present a safety hazard to the public;
	(b) Promote aesthetics in the community by encouraging signs that are compatible with their surroundings;
	(c) Protect and encourage local tourist-related businesses for the general economic wellbeing of Silverton;
	(d) Provide a reasonable balance between the need to advertise businesses and the need to protect the public from the effects of unsafe signs; and
	(e) Establish procedures and regulations that control the location, size, type, and number of signs permitted.

	15-7-20 Applicability
	(a) This Section shall apply to all signs within the Town of Silverton, unless specifically exempted by Section 15-7-50.
	(b) No sign shall be located, erected, modified, or maintained except in compliance with the regulations contained in this Article.

	15-7-30 Permit Required
	15-7-40 Measurement and Calculation
	(a) Building Frontage
	(b) Sign Area
	(1) The area of a two-dimensional sign is measured by encompassing the advertising display surface area within any combination of geometric figures (e.g., rectangles, squares, triangles, parallelograms, circles, or ellipses), having no more than eight...
	(2) The sign area of three-dimensional free-form or sculptural (non-planar) signs is calculated as 50 percent of the sum of the area of the four vertical sides of the smallest cube that will encompass the sign.
	(3) If elements of a sign are movable or flexible, such as a flag or banner, or if the sign includes any permitted copy extensions, the measurement is taken when the elements or extensions are fully extended and parallel to the plane of view.
	(4) Only structural components shall be excluded in computing the total allowable area.

	(c) Freestanding Sign Height
	(1) The height of a freestanding sign shall be computed as the distance from the base of the sign at existing finished grade to the top of the highest attached component of the sign.
	(2) When the existing finished grade at the point of measurement is lower than the average elevation of the adjacent street finished grade parallel to the location where the sign will be installed, that portion of the sign below the street shall not b...
	(3) The height of any monument sign base or other structure erected to support or adorn the sign is measured as part of the sign height.
	(4) If a sign is located on a mound, berm, or other raised area for the sole purpose of increasing the height of the sign, the height of the mound, berm, or other raised area shall be included in the height of the sign.


	15-7-50 Exempt Signs
	(a) Internal and Integral Signs
	(1) Signs not intended for view or readily legible from the public right-of-way.
	(2) Integral signs that are carved into stone, concrete, or similar material or made of metal or other permanent-type construction and made an integral part of the structure. Integral signs shall not exceed four square feet in area.
	(3) Signs that do not exceed two square feet per face or four square feet in total surface area that are affixed to machines, equipment, fences, gates, walls, gasoline pumps/electric vehicle charging units, or utility cabinets.
	(4) Signs or banners on fences and structures within a Town park or recreational area, provided the signs or banners face inward to the Town park or recreational area.

	(b) Flags or Insignia
	(1) Entryway flags shall be a minimum of eight feet and a maximum of 20 feet above grade and shall not extend more than six feet over any public right-of-way.
	(2) Each business may display one entryway flag during business hours.
	(3) Each building is limited to two flags.
	(4) When applicable, flags shall comply with Chapter 10 of Title 36 of the United States Code named "The Flag Code," as it pertains to all rules and regulations to the official Flag of the United States of America.

	(c) Public Signs
	(1) Signs and notices required to be maintained by law or governmental order, rule, or regulation, provided that the content and size of the sign does not exceed the requirements of the law, order, rule, or regulation.
	(2) Town-sponsored, Town-owned, and Town-maintained signs and temporary banners that are displayed and erected above Greene Street and/or Blair Street, at or near the Visitor’s Center, on the fence surrounding the ballpark located at Greene Street and...

	(d) Artwork
	(e) Menu-Sized Sign Boxes and Changeable Sign Boards
	(f) Residential and Vacation Rental Signs
	(g) Temporary Signs
	(h) Vehicle Signs
	(i) Window Signs
	(1) Window signs may be affixed directly to the inside or outside window or hung/mounted inside the window from the top, side, or bottom of the window frame or similar architectural element.
	(2) Each sign shall be no more than four square feet in area.
	(3) Signs in windows visible from public rights-of-way are limited to 20 percent of the total area of each architecturally distinct ground floor window area.
	(4) In buildings with multiple tenants, these provisions shall be applied to each individual tenant based on the size of the windows located within that portion of the facade adjacent to the tenant’s leased premises.


	15-7-60 Prohibited Signs and Sign Locations
	(a) Improper Location
	(1) Obstruct the driver’s vision of a moving vehicle;
	(2) Create conflict with traffic control signs, signals, or various private signs resulting in vehicular or pedestrian safety hazards, including any sign placed at any location where it may, by reason of its size, shape, design, location, content, col...
	(3) Create a danger to the public during periods of inclement weather or high winds due to their location or the manner in which they are placed;
	(4) Create a hazard due to collapse, fire, collision, decay, abandonment, or other safety considerations; or
	(5) Are improperly mounted or installed, such as signs attached to a standpipe, gutter drain, unbraced parapet wall, or fire escape, unless the safety of the sign and the mounting have been verified in writing by a structural engineered licensed to pr...

	(b) Prohibited Sign Types
	(1) Off-premise signs or signs in the public right-of-way, unless approved by Public Works and the Town Administrator;
	(2) Electronic signs and signs that have blinking, flashing or fluttering lights or other illuminating devices that have a changing light intensity, brightness, or color;
	(3) Signs that move in any mechanical manner, have structural moving part(s) powered by a motor, or swing because of their design or by the manner of their suspension or attachment as a result of wind pressure, mechanically-driven apparatus, electrica...
	(4) Neon signs;
	(5) Roof signs; and
	(6) Wind signs (pennants, streamers, balloons, whirligigs, or similar devices) or flutter flags, unless otherwise allowed by this Article.


	15-7-70 Standards for Permanent Signs
	(a) Sign Materials
	(b) Requirements by Sign Type

	15-7-80 Allowable Signage by Zoning District
	(a) Residential Districts
	(1) The maximum total signage permitted per property is 32 square feet per sign and 16 square feet per sign face.
	(2) Each property is limited to one permanent sign per street frontage.
	(3) Freestanding signs shall be limited 12 feet in height.

	(b) Mixed-Use, Commercial, and Public Districts
	(1) The total sign area for all signs for which permits are required shall not exceed 1.25 square foot per lineal foot of building frontage. For buildings with multiple tenants, the calculation shall be based on the length of the leased space of the f...
	(2) Buildings with more than one frontage on a public street, such as a corner lot, may have the maximum total sign area on each frontage, but only one frontage per lot may include a freestanding sign.
	In addition to the total sign area allowed in Subsection (1), above, any building or property with multiple lots or buildings or one building with multiple tenants shall be allowed one additional sign, not to exceed the maximum limitations for the par...
	(3) Buildings or businesses that have no actual frontage on a public street because other buildings or businesses on the same lot capture the allowed frontage shall be entitled to erect signage at the building's location that is equal to the signage a...


	15-7-90 Standards for Temporary Signs
	(a) General Standards for All Temporary Signs
	(1) No temporary sign shall be erected, re-erected, or maintained for more than a cumulative 30 days per year, unless otherwise permitted by this Section.
	(2) Temporary signs are subject to the prohibited sign locations identified in Section 15-7-60(a).
	(3) Temporary signs shall not be illuminated.
	(4) Temporary signs shall not contain any electronic components or display any digital or electronically projected copy on the sign face.
	(5) All temporary signs shall be made of durable materials.

	(b) Sandwich Boards and Signboards
	Each building having at least one licensed and authorized business may display one sandwich board or signboard per building entrance. The sandwich board or signboard shall be located on the sidewalk within 10 feet of the building entrance and located ...
	(1) No sandwich board or signboard shall be greater than two feet in width and four feet in height.
	(2) A sandwich board or signboard shall not impede or block pedestrian traffic in any way or be located within any right-of-way.
	(3) Signboards shall not be greater than eight square feet in total sign area.

	(c) Temporary Banner Signs
	(1) Design Standards
	a. Temporary banners shall not exceed 40 square feet in total sign area.
	b. Banners shall be firmly attached to a wall or fence on all four corners.

	(2) Construction Site Banners
	a. Construction site banners shall not be erected prior to the issuance of a building permit for the project to which the sign pertains and shall be removed prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy.
	b. Active construction sites shall be limited to one temporary banner per street frontage. For a lot with multiple street frontages, the banners may be placed on separate frontages or grouped together on one frontage.

	(3) All Other Banners
	a. Any nonresidential establishment may display one banner sign, not to exceed 40 square feet, for a maximum of 60 consecutive days at the same location, one time during the first three months after the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy or change...
	b. Each lot shall be limited to one temporary banner sign per tenant.


	(d) Yard Signs
	(1) Each yard sign shall not exceed 12 square feet in area (or six square feet per side if double-sided) and four feet in height.
	(2) Yard signs up to an aggregate area of 12 square feet may be displayed for an unlimited amount of time.
	(3) An aggregate area of up to 48 square feet is allowed 60 days prior to and 15 days following an election.
	(4) A minimum of four feet of sidewalk width clearance shall be available for pedestrian use.


	15-7-100 Nonconforming Signs
	15-7-110 Coordinated Sign Plan
	(a) Applicability
	(b) Standards
	(1) Prohibited signs and sign elements are not eligible for inclusion in a Coordinated Sign Plan.
	(2) All signs included in the Coordinated Sign Plan shall be architecturally integrated into or complementary to the design of the building(s) and character of the site, and shall use similar and coordinated design features, materials, and colors.
	(3) The Town Administrator may approve a deviation in one or more dimensional or numerical standards including sign area, sign height, and number of individual signs, based on the following criteria:
	a. The overall size of the development site and the scale of the use or uses located or anticipated to be located there;
	b. Access and visibility to the site;
	c. Intended traffic circulation pattern and the need for wayfinding;
	d. Relationship between the site and adjacent uses; or
	e. The desired function of the site.



	15-7-120 Abandoned Signs
	(a) Any sign that is located on property that becomes vacant or is unoccupied for a period of 12 months or more, any sign that was erected for an occupant or business unrelated to the present occupant or business, or any sign that pertains to a time, ...
	(b) Any sign that has been determined to be abandoned must be removed by the property owner. If the property owner fails to remove an abandoned sign, upon a public hearing before the Board of Trustees on the matter, the Town may cause the sign to be r...


	Article 8 Administration and Procedures
	15-8-10 Review and Decision-Making Bodies
	(a) San Juan Regional Planning Commission
	(1) Creation
	(2) Powers and Duties
	a. Making and adopting a master plan for the physical development of the county and town; and
	b. Recommending the boundaries of the various zoning districts and appropriate regulations to be enforced in the districts.

	(3) Membership
	a. The Planning Commission shall consist of seven members as follows:
	(i) Two members of the Board of Trustees appointed by the Board of Trustees, who shall be ex officio members of the Planning Commission and shall serve during their respective official tenures;
	(ii) One member of the Board of County Commissioners, appointed by the Board of County Commissioners, who shall be an ex officio member of the Planning Commission and shall serve during their official tenure; and
	(iii) Four members at large, two appointed by the Board of Trustees and two appointed by the Board of County Commissioners, who shall serve for a term of three years, or until a successor takes office.

	b. All members of the Planning Commission shall live within the Town of Silverton or San Juan County, and, if any member ceases to reside in the town or county, that membership shall immediately terminate.
	c. All members of the Planning Commission shall serve without compensation.
	d. The appointing authority shall have the power to remove any member of the Planning Commission with just cause.

	(4) Officers and Procedures
	a. The Planning Commission shall elect a chairperson and vice chairperson from among the members, whose terms shall be for one year, with eligibility for reelection. The chairperson shall preside at all meetings and perform the other duties as may be ...
	b. The Planning Commission shall adopt by-laws, operating policies, and other rules of procedure as deemed appropriate; provided, however, that the rules are not inconsistent with this Code or statutes of the state.
	c. The Town Administrator shall keep a record of the Planning Commission’s resolutions, transactions, findings and determinations, which record shall be a public record. The public record shall show the action of the Planning Commission and the vote o...
	d. Four voting members of the Planning Commission shall constitute a quorum and the affirmative vote of a majority of the members in attendance shall be necessary to pass any motion.
	e. The Planning Commission shall hold at least one regular meeting per month unless there are no items for the agenda. Special meetings and/or workshops may be called as deemed necessary by the Town Administrator.


	(b) Board of Adjustment
	(1) Creation
	(2) Powers and Duties
	a. Meet at the call of the chairperson, by their request, by petition from an aggrieved party or an applicant for Variance, or by order of the Board of Trustees; and
	b. Hear and decide on granting of certain Variances, reviews of Variances, and certain appeals.

	(3) Membership
	a. The Board of Trustees shall act as the Board of Adjustment.
	b. All members of the Board of Adjustment shall serve without compensation, unless otherwise compensated as a member of the Board of Trustees or Board of County Commissioners.

	(4) Officers and Procedures
	a. The Town Administrator shall keep a record of the meetings showing the action of the Board of Adjustment and the vote of each member upon each question considered, which record shall be a public record.
	b. Four members of the Board of Adjustment shall constitute a quorum, and a concurring vote of the majority of the members of the Board of Adjustment in attendance shall be necessary to decide on most matters. The concurring vote of four members shall...
	(i) Reverse any administrative order, requirement, decision, or determination, or
	(ii) Approve any variance.

	c. The Board of Adjustment shall hold one regular meeting per month unless there are no items for the agenda. Special meetings and/or workshops may be called by as deemed necessary by the Town Administrator.
	d. Appeals from the Board of Trustees acting as the Board of Adjustment may be made to the County District Court pursuant to the Colorado Rules of Civil Procedure.


	(c) Historic Preservation Committee
	(1) Creation
	(2) Powers and Duties
	a. Conduct surveys and create inventories of properties and areas for the purpose of defining those of historic significance;
	b. Review and determine qualifications of buildings, structures, objects, sites, and districts nominated for designation and recommend that the Board of Trustees designate by ordinance the buildings, structures, objects, sites, or districts qualifying...
	c. Recommend to the Board of Trustees the establishment of construction and design guidelines, consistent with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for The Treatment of Historic Properties, for review of proposals to alter, relocate, or demolish ...
	d. Hear and decide on Historic District Overlay Review, Major.
	e. Participate in review of National Register of Historic Places nominations;
	f. Maintain online data base of resources related to physical and financial aspects of preservation, rehabilitation, restoration, and reconstruction, including nomination to the Town's Historic Register, The Colorado State Register of Historic Propert...
	g. Develop and assist in public education programs on history, archaeology, and historic preservation;
	h. Advise the Board of Trustees on matters related to preserving the historic character and substance of the town and recommend easements, covenants, licenses, and other methods which will implement the completion of the purposes of this Code;
	i. Participate in federal Section 106 review as requested by the Board of Trustees or the Town Administrator; and
	j. Identify and advise the Board of Trustees regarding the implementation of economic incentives for the preservation of historic properties.

	(3) Membership
	a. The Historic Preservation Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Trustees and comprised of the following members:
	b. One year-round resident of the Town of Silverton and owner of property in the Historic District Overlay, voting member;
	(i) One year-round resident of the Town of Silverton, voting member;
	(ii) One member of the Board of Trustees, voting member;
	(iii) One member of the San Juan Regional Planning Commission who is not also on the Board of Trustees, voting member;
	(iv) One member of the Historical Society or Member of San Juan County Historic Impact Assessment Review Committee, voting member;
	(v) One high school student (when available), non-voting member; and
	(vi) One Town staff member, non-voting member.

	c. The five voting members shall have demonstrated interest in, competence with or knowledge of preservation. At least 40 percent of voting members shall be professionals or shall have extensive expertise in a preservation-related discipline, includin...
	d. The five voting members shall serve for a term of three years and may serve an unlimited number of terms. Terms shall be staggered.
	e. All members shall be residents of the Town of Silverton, unless approved by the Board of Trustees.  If any member ceases to reside in the town, that membership shall immediately terminate, unless approved by the Board of Trustees.
	f. All members of the Historic Preservation Committee shall serve without compensation.
	g. The Board of Trustees shall have the power to remove any member of the Historic Preservation Committee with just cause.

	(4) Officers and Procedures
	a. The five voting members shall elect a chairperson and vice chairperson from among the members, whose terms shall be for one year, with eligibility for reelection. The chairperson shall preside at all meetings and perform the other duties as may be ...
	b. The Town Administrator shall keep a record of the meetings showing the action of the Historic Preservation Committee and the vote of each member upon each question considered, which record shall be a public record.
	c. The Historic Preservation Committee may draft and recommend for adoption by the Board of Trustees by-laws, operating policies, and other rules of procedure as deemed appropriate; provided, however, that the rules are not inconsistent with this Code...
	d. A quorum shall consist of a majority, or 51 percent, of the members. For a committee of five members, three members shall be in attendance to establish a quorum. A quorum is necessary to conduct business, including holding a public hearing. A roll ...
	e. The Historic Preservation Committee shall meet at least four times a year. Meetings shall be held monthly unless there are no items for the agenda. Special meetings and/or workshops may be called as deemed necessary by the Town Administrator.


	(d) Floodplain Administrator
	(1) Designation of Flood Hazard Administrator
	(2) Duties and Responsibilities of Flood Hazard Administrator
	a. Permit Review
	(i) Review all Flood Hazard Development Permits to determine that the requirements of this Section have been satisfied;
	(ii) Review all Flood Hazard Development Permits to determine that all necessary permits have been obtained from those federal, state, or local governmental agencies from which prior approval is required;
	(iii) Review all Flood Hazard Development Permits to determine if the proposed development adversely affects the flood-carrying capacity of the area of special flood hazard. For the purpose of this Section, adversely affects means damage to adjacent p...
	1. If it is determined that there is no adverse effect and the development is not a structure, then the permit shall be granted without further consideration.
	2. If it is determined that there is an adverse effect, then technical justification prepared by a Colorado registered professional engineer for the proposed development shall be required.
	3. If the development is a structure, then all other requirements set forth in this Section must be complied with; and

	(iv) Review all Flood Hazard Development Permits to determine if the proposed development or structure is located in the floodway. If it is located in the floodway, all relevant encroachment provisions contained in this Section must be met.

	b. Use of Other Base Floodplain Data
	c. Information to be Obtained and Maintained
	(i) Obtain and record the actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of the lowest floor (including basement) of all new or substantially improved structures;
	(ii) For all new or substantially improved floodproofed structures:
	1. Verify and record the actual elevation to which the structure has been floodproofed; and
	2. Maintain all floodproofing certifications required in this Section; and

	(iii) Maintain for public inspection all records pertaining to the provisions of this Section.

	d. Alterations of Watercourses
	(i) Notify downstream communities, the Colorado Conservation Board and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers prior to any alteration or relocation of a watercourse and submit evidence of the notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency; and
	(ii) Require that the maintenance be provided within the altered or relocated portion of the watercourse to preclude diminishing the flood-carrying capacity.

	e. Interpretation of Flood Insurance Rate Map boundaries



	15-8-20 Development Review Procedures
	(a) Summary Table of Development Review Procedures
	(b) Common Review Procedures Described
	(1) This Article establishes the Common Review Procedures for development application review and decision-making. The following procedures are standard and generally apply to all, or most, types of applications as shown in Table 15-8-1.
	(2) Sections 15-8-30 and 15-8-30(o) establish additional provisions for specific procedures. Where these Common Review Procedures conflict with specific procedure provisions, the specific procedures provisions shall apply.

	(c) Preapplication Meeting
	(1) Purpose
	a. Provide the applicant and Town an opportunity to discuss the following prior to application submission:
	(i) The application concept;
	(ii) General compliance with the LUC and Building Regulations; and
	(iii) Any potentially significant issues regarding compliance;

	b. Determine the applicable process(es) and estimated timing; and
	c. Assist the applicant in understanding the submittal requirements and review procedures.

	(2) When Required
	(3) Information and Effect
	a. The applicant shall bring supporting documentation such as a narrative explaining the project, plans, diagrams, plats, or other information sufficient to allow a conceptual review of the proposed application.
	b. The informal evaluation provided at the preapplication meeting is not binding upon the applicant or the Town. The Town will create and share a meeting summary letter with the applicant that identifies applicable code sections and recommends next st...


	(d) Informational Meeting
	(1) Purpose
	(2) When Required
	a. Generally
	b. Informational Meeting Requirement or Waiver
	(i) The Town Administrator may require, or the Planning Commission or Board of Trustees may request, an informational meeting when the proposed development may impact neighboring properties more than the typical development allowed on the site.
	(ii) At an applicant’s request, the Town Administrator may waive a required informational meeting when, in the Town Administrator's opinion, the proposed development will not have any impact on neighboring properties. The Town Administrator shall prov...


	(3) Scheduling and Notice
	a. The Town Administrator and the applicant shall coordinate meeting time, place, and notice to the community.
	b. The applicant shall be responsible for:
	(i) Notifying all property owners and residents within 300 feet of the property line by mail and publishing notice of the meeting in the newspaper at least 15 days prior to the meeting;
	(ii) Conducting and facilitating the meeting;
	(iii) Covering all expenses of the meeting including but not limited to facility costs and the cost of the meeting notice; and
	(iv) Preparing a written report of meeting comments and submit the report with the development application. The applicant may elect to make changes to the proposal based on comments to improve the project outcome.

	c. A representative from the Town of Silverton may be in attendance to listen but will not provide information about project specifics or facilitate the meeting.


	(e) Application Submittal and Acceptance
	(1) Application Requirements
	a. Applications may be filed by the property owner(s) with title to the entire property subject to the application or their authorized representative, unless specified otherwise under each specific procedure in Sections 15-8-30 and 15-8-30(o).
	b. The applicant shall prepare and submit an application(s) that meets all requirements of this Code.
	c. The Town Administrator is authorized to establish and amend application forms based on the requirements of this Code and Colorado law. All applications shall include, at a minimum, the following, in addition to any submittal requirements listed und...
	(i) Completed application form;
	(ii) Application fee, any required deposits, and Agreement for Payment of Development Review Expenses per Section 15-8-20(e)(3);
	(iii) If a specific property is involved in the application:
	1. Proof of ownership or authorization to submit the application on behalf of the owner(s);
	2. A list of all mineral interest owners with interests severed from the subject property; and
	3. Vicinity map showing the project area with all applicable lot and parcel lines and abutting roads; and
	4. Written narrative explaining the project and the request, exact Section(s) of the Code involved in the request, and a detailed description of how the requests complies with the generally applicable review criteria and the review criteria for the sp...


	d. All applications shall be submitted electronically to the Town Administrator. Hard copies of plats, site design surveys, construction plans, and other similar documents may be required as determined by the Town Administrator once the application is...

	(2) Concurrent Application
	(3) Fees
	a. Town Cost Reimbursement
	(i) The applicant shall pay all required fees for the purpose of the Town's review and processing of the application. Where the application will require additional staff or Town consultant time or services (such as but not limited to notice, recording...
	(ii) The applicant shall enter into an Agreement for Payment of Development Review Expenses ("Reimbursement Agreement").
	1. The final form of an Agreement shall be subject to the Town Attorney’s review and revision, based on the particular circumstances of the proposed development.
	2. The Town Administrator may, at their discretion, execute the Agreement on behalf of the Town or forward the agreement to the Board of Trustees for consideration.


	b. Expenses
	(i) The Town shall maintain separate accounts of all monies expended as a result of the review of an application. Statements of expenses incurred will be made available to the applicant upon reasonable request.
	(ii) In the event the Town incurs expenses for the review of the applicant's request greater than the deposit monies collected from the applicant, the applicant shall reimburse the Town for the additional expenses. The Town will invoice the applicant ...
	(iii) All unused funds will be returned to the applicant within 30 days after final action on the application.

	c. Waivers and Modification of Fees and Expenses

	(4) Completeness Review
	a. The Town Administrator shall review an application within a reasonable timeframe to determine whether the application is complete.
	b. If the application is missing required information, including information necessary or sufficient to decide on the application, it will be determined to be incomplete, and the Town Administrator shall inform the applicant in writing of what materia...
	c. The application will not be processed further until the application is determined to be complete.
	d. No application shall be deemed complete unless accompanied by a properly executed Reimbursement Agreement.
	e. Once the application is determined to be complete, the Town Administrator shall process the application for review.


	(f) Administrative Review and Action
	(1) Referral Agency Review
	a. Town employees or contractors including but not limited to Public Works staff and the Town Attorney;
	b. County employees;
	c. Fire district;
	d. Utility providers and districts;
	e. School district;
	f. State of Colorado agencies including the Department of Transportation, Department of Health and Environment, State Forest Service, Parks and Wildlife, Colorado Geological Survey, Division of Water Resources, Division of Reclamation, Mining and Safe...
	g. Federal land management agencies including the Bureau of Land Management, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Environmental Protection Agency, and U.S. Forest Service.

	(2) Readiness for Decision
	a. Following completion of any referral agency review, the Town Administrator shall determine if the application is ready for a decision.
	b. If not, the Town Administrator shall request, in writing, additional information or corrections from the applicant. New and revised materials shall be reviewed in a reasonable timeframe.
	c. Once the application is ready for a decision, the Town Administrator shall proceed to make the decision per Subsection (5) below or prepare the application for decision by a decision-making body per Subsection (6) below.

	(3) Inactive Applications
	a. Criteria
	(i) The Town Administrator may notify an applicant that an application will be considered inactive unless corrective action is taken within 45 days, if at any point in a development review process the following have occurred:
	1. The applicant fails to attend any scheduled mandatory meeting, meeting with the Town Administrator, meeting or hearing before the Planning Commission, Board of Trustees, Board of Adjustment, or Historic Preservation Committee; or
	2. The applicant has not responded to a staff request for information, has not agreed to a date for a meeting or hearing, or has not taken some other affirmative step within a reasonable timeframe that is within the applicant’s control and is necessar...

	(ii) If an applicant is no longer reasonably able to be reached, the Town Administrator may publish inactive application notice on the Town’s website.

	b. Application Terminated
	(i) No further processing of any inactive application shall occur until the deficiencies are corrected.
	(ii) If the applicant does not correct the deficiencies within the 45 day correction period, the application shall be considered withdrawn and terminated with no further action by the Town. Any resubmittal of the application by the applicant will be t...


	(4) Withdrawal
	(5) Administrative Decisions
	a. Where the Town Administrator has the authority to decide an application, the application shall be reviewed against the applicable provisions of this Code, which may include review criteria in Section 15-8-20(h)(4), Generally Applicable Review Crite...
	(i) To be approved, the application shall be fully consistent with the standards of this Code unless an Administrative Adjustment is concurrently approved.
	(ii) Administrative approvals shall not be conditioned, but instructions may be provided to ensure compliance with this Code.
	(iii) Applications found to be inconsistent with the standards of this Code shall be denied.

	b. A Notice of Decision per 15-8-20(i)(1) shall be provided to the applicant and Board of Trustees within a reasonable timeframe.

	(6) Preparation for Decisions by Decision-Making Bodies
	a. Set the date, time, and location of the public hearing within a reasonable timeframe;
	b. Notify, in writing, the applicant and any staff involved of the hearing date, time, and location; and
	c. Prepare a staff report including:
	(i) All applicable provisions of this Code and an analysis of how each is satisfied or not, including the review criteria;
	(ii) A recommendation whether to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the application. If approval with conditions is recommended, a list of suggested conditions; and
	(iii) Any additional information pertinent to the review of the application.



	(g) Public Notice
	(1) Published Notice
	(2) Mailed Notice
	(3) Mineral Estate Notice

	(h) Decision-Making Review and Action
	(1) All Meetings
	a. All Planning Commission, Board of Trustees, Board of Adjustment, and Historic Preservation Committee meetings shall be open to the public unless otherwise allowed by law.
	b. The applicant shall bear the burden of presenting sufficient competent evidence at the public hearing to prove compliance with the applicable standards and criteria.
	c. Any decision by the reviewing body shall be based upon consideration of all evidence presented during the public hearing. Where evidence presented is contradictory, the reviewing body shall weigh the evidence and judge the credibility and sufficien...
	d. The decision-making body may continue or postpone the public hearing or any other action at any time to a specified date in order to allow for the preparation of additional information for further review by the decision-making body.

	(2) Recommendation Hearing
	a. The reviewing body shall review the application for conformance with the applicable procedure, review criteria, and the staff report. The reviewing body shall issue a recommendation whether to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the applicati...
	b. The recommendation shall be forwarded to the appropriate decision-making body.

	(3) Decision Hearing
	a. The decision-making body shall host a public hearing to review the application for conformance with the applicable procedure and review criteria within this Code, staff report, and recommendation from the reviewing body, if applicable.
	b. The decision-making body shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny the application within a reasonable timeframe. If the application is denied, the written notification shall include the reasons for denial.

	(4) Generally Applicable Review Criteria
	a. Conformance with prior approvals, if applicable;
	b. Compliance with applicable provisions of this Code;
	c. Compliance with the Development Standards and Specifications;
	d. Conformance with the Master Plan and other applicable Town plans and policy guides; and
	e. Compliance with review criteria for the specific procedure identified in Sections 15-8-30 and 15-8-30(o).

	(5) Conditions
	a. The decision-making body may impose conditions on an approval to safeguard the welfare and protection of the town and adjacent property.
	b. All conditions of approval shall be reasonably related to the anticipated impacts of the proposed use or development and implementing the requirements of this Code and the intent of the Master Plan.
	c. The decision-making body may place specific time limits on the satisfaction of any condition of approval. If a time limit is not specified in the approval or in the specific provisions of this Code then a one year time limit shall apply.
	d. The Town Administrator shall determine when conditions have been met.

	(6) Guarantee of Completion for Required Improvements
	a. When public improvements are required by this LUC or as a condition of approval, the applicant shall enter into a written Development Improvement Agreement with the Town to guarantee construction of all required improvements, including streets, cur...
	b. The Development Improvement Agreement shall include terms for required improvements, construction specifications in compliance with the Development Standards and Specifications and other applicable regulations, the date for completion of the improv...
	c. Under the agreement, the applicant shall post a performance bond, letter of credit, or certified check, prior to commencing construction, which bond or check shall be drawn in favor of the Town in an amount equal to the estimated cost of constructi...
	d. The performance bond, letter of credit, or certified check posted by the applicant shall not be released until final construction of improvements has been completed, inspected at the applicant’s expense and approved and accepted by the Town.
	e. If the Town determines that the applicant will not construct any or all of the improvements in accordance with the Development Improvement Agreement, the Town shall have the power to annul the agreement and apply all or part of the financial guaran...
	f. The Development Improvement Agreement shall be reviewed with the specific procedure that requires public improvements and by the Town Attorney based on the particular circumstances of the proposed improvements.

	(7) Call Up of Administrative Decisions
	a. The Board of Trustees may exercise review over an application decided by the Town Administrator, Planning Commission, or Historic Preservation Committee by calling-up the application for addition to the Board of Trustee’s agenda. The purpose of the...
	b. Any member of the Board of Trustees may call-up decisions made by the Town Administrator, Planning Commission, or Historic Preservation Committee within 15 days of the Notice of Decision being issued.
	c. Called-up applications shall be reviewed at the next regularly scheduled Board of Trustees meeting. A vote of the majority of the members present to review the application is required prior to any action on the application.
	d. The Town Administrator shall notify the applicant that the decision has been called-up, which requires they do not take any action on the application, and the meeting date. The Board of Trustees shall review the application as it was submitted to t...


	(i) Post-Decision Actions and Obligations
	(1) Notice of Decision
	(2) Appeals
	a. Appeals of any administrative determination shall be made per Section 15-8-40(b).
	b. Appeals of any decision of the Planning Commission or the Historic Preservation Committee shall be made per Section 15-8-40(c).
	c. Appeals of any decision of the Board of Adjustment and the Board of Trustees may be scheduled for a rehearing by the decision-making body. Following a rehearing or rehearing denial, further appeal shall be made to the District Court, as provided by...

	(3) Limitation on Resubmission
	(4) Final Documents and Recordation
	a. The applicant shall submit all final documents reflecting any conditions of approval to the Town for final review and acknowledgement.
	b. Ordinances, plats, vacation of plats, and other processes that require the recording of documents as specified in the specific procedures listed in Section 15-8-30(o), shall be required to be recorded with the San Juan County Clerk and Recorder. Th...
	c. No person shall record a plat of a subdivision nor prepare or execute any documents that purport to create or creates a new lot or airspace unit, nor record or execute a deed of trust or a mortgage descriptive of the property other than all of a lo...

	(5) Termination of Approval
	a. Expiration
	b. Extension
	(i) An approval may be extended by up to one year by the Town Administrator. The request for extension shall be submitted in writing to the Town Administrator prior to the expiration of the original approval.
	(ii) All additional requests for extensions shall be approved by the decision-making body that issued the original approval. The request shall be submitted to the Town Administrator in writing at least 30 days prior to the expiration of approval. An e...
	(iii) The decision-making body shall review the request for compliance. This review for extension may result in additional conditions.
	(iv) If the extension is denied, the applicant may resubmit a new application, subject to the fees and regulations in effect at the time of resubmittal, for the same project.


	(6) Revocation of Approval
	(7) Amendments or Modifications to Approvals


	15-8-30 Specific Procedures – Administrative Decisions
	(a) Administrative Adjustment
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	a. Permitted Types of Adjustments
	b. Limitations on Administrative Adjustment
	(i) Create, intensify, or expand any nonconformity with maximum or minimum requirements of the zoning district;
	(ii) Modify standards not listed in or modify any standard outside this Code;
	(iii) Permit uses other than those permitted in the zoning district; or
	(iv) Modify a standard that has already been modified through a separate Variance pursuant to Section 15-8-40(n).


	(3) Common Review Procedures
	(4) Application Submittal
	a. Any requests for an Administrative Adjustment shall be submitted concurrently with any applicable application.
	b. Mailed public notice shall be completed per Section 15-8-20(g)(2) except that the notice shall contain the application and provide a method in which notified property owners can submit comments on the application before a decision is made.

	(5) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Review and Decision
	(i) Administrative Adjustment applications are reviewed and decided on by the Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5).
	(ii) The Town Administrator may refer any Administrative Adjustment application to the Planning Commission that, in their opinion, presents issues that require Planning Commission attention.

	b. Review Criteria
	(i) The proposed use, structure, or activity is permitted in the underlying zoning district;
	(ii) There are special circumstances existing on the property for which the application is made related to size, shape, area, topography, surrounding conditions, and location that do not apply generally to other property in the same area and zoning di...
	(iii) The special circumstances have not been created by the applicant; and
	(iv) The impact of the Administrative Adjustment is internal to the subject property.



	(b) Avalanche Hazard Permit, Minor
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	a. New single-unit detached dwellings and detached accessory dwellings units (ADUs);
	b. Parks and open space uses, as defined in this LUC;
	c. Minor utilities, as defined in this LUC;
	d. Accessory buildings and structures;
	e. Any seasonal development activity or land use not occurring between November 1 and May 1 of any year, including the placement of temporary structures; and
	f. Outdoor recreation and entertainment uses that involve no structures being built or situated within the Moderate Hazard Blue Zone from November 1 to May 1 of any year.

	(3) Common Review Procedures
	(4) Application Submittal
	a. A two-part, site specific engineering study report that contains:
	(i) The complete study and report (as prepared by a qualified professional civil or geotechnical engineer licensed in Colorado or qualified professional geologist in the field of avalanche occurrence, force and behavior) documenting avalanche impact p...
	(ii) Complete construction plans and specifications for all proposed buildings and structures (as prepared by a qualified structural engineer licensed to practice in the State of Colorado), including the structural engineer's certification that the bu...

	b. All investigations, studies, and reports shall be prepared at the applicant's expense. The investigations, studies, and reports must specifically answer the following:
	(i) Whether the site specific conditions are such that the property can or cannot be developed for the specific structures or proposed uses with or without on-site protective measures and, if protective measures are necessary, what those specific meas...
	(ii) Whether the on-site protective measures will increase the hazard to other properties, structures, roads, rights-of-way, easements, utilities, or construction located adjacent to or downslope from the applicant's property.

	c. Certification by the design engineer that the on-site protective measures, if constructed as designed, will withstand the documented avalanche impact pressures and protect the subject properties without adversely impacting adjoining and/or downslop...
	d. A vegetation protection and removal plan that demonstrates compliance with Section 15-5-10(d)(5), Vegetation Removal Prohibited.

	(5) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Minor Avalanche Hazard Development Permit applications are reviewed and decided on by the Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5).
	b. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Minor Avalanche Hazard Development Permit:
	(i) The application shall comply with all standards set forth in Section 15-5-10.
	(ii) The applicant has submitted sufficient proof that the site can be developed for the proposed use because the danger posed by an avalanche can be reduced or mitigated to a reasonable level.
	(iii) The public health, safety, and welfare hazards associated with developing and occupying property are maximally reduced to a reasonable and acceptable level, including specific findings that establishment of the proposed improvements and/or land ...
	(iv) The applicant does not have the opportunity to build outside the hazard and chooses, with substantial hardship reason, to develop within the avalanche hazard area boundaries.


	(6) Post Decision Actions and Obligations
	a. Prior to issuance of any building permit for construction within the Moderate Hazard Blue Zone, the applicant shall sign a release and indemnification agreement and the agreement shall be properly recorded in the office of the County Clerk and Reco...
	b. All plans submitted with a building permit application for property within a Moderate Hazard Blue Zone shall be stamped "Construction in Avalanche Hazard Area," together with the applicable sub-zone designation.


	(c) Expedited Review for Affordable Housing
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	a. This procedure may be requested by an applicant for the following procedures except when related to a procedure in Subsection b below:
	(i) Administrative Adjustment;
	(ii) Avalanche, Flood, and Slope Hazard Permits;
	(iii) Historic District Overlay Review, Major and Minor;
	(iv) Special Use Permit;
	(v) Site Plan;
	(vi) Variance; and
	(vii) Building permits.

	b. This process may not be requested or applied to the following procedures:
	(i) Annexations/Disconnections;
	(ii) Appeals;
	(iii) Historic District Overlay Designation;
	(iv) LUC Text Amendments;
	(v) Master Plan Amendments;
	(vi) Plat Amendments and Final Plats for Condos or Townhomes;
	(vii) Subdivisions, Simple and Major;
	(viii) Subdivision Design Modifications;
	(ix) Planned Unit Development;
	(x) Temporary Use Permits;
	(xi) Vacation of Right-of-way ; and
	(xii) Zoning Map Amendments.

	c. In order to qualify for Expedited Review, at least 50 percent of the residential units in the development must qualify as affordable housing, as defined by this LUC, and those units will remain affordable for a period of at least 99 years.

	(3) Common Review Procedures
	(4) Application Submittal
	a. The application must specifically request Expedited Review.
	b. Development for the purpose of affordable housing may formally request the Board of Trustees allow a reduction in application fees.

	(5) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Review and Decision
	(i) The Expedited Review shall be reviewed and decided on by the Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5).
	(ii) The Town Administrator may refer any Expedited Review application to the decision-making body identified for the specific procedure that, in their opinion, presents issues that require additional attention.
	(iii) Upon determination of a complete application by the Town, a final decision on the application shall occur not more than 90 days after the determination. This shall include all required public hearings, as appropriate.
	(iv) Qualified affordable housing expedited review projects will be given first priority for scheduling of all meetings, as applicable, including but not limited to preapplication meetings and public hearings.
	(v) The 90 day review timeframe may be extended in the following circumstances:
	1. At the request of the applicant, a one-time 90 day extension may be provided for the applicant to address comments on the application from an agency that has approval authority like a state agency.
	2. At the discretion of the Town, a 30 day extension may be provided. The Town shall notify the applicant of the intent to extend the process. These extensions should be utilized to provide additional time for the developer and local government to rev...

	(vi) The requirements of this Section do not preclude the Town from processing an application in less than 90 days.

	b. Review Criteria

	(6) Post Decision Actions and Obligations

	(d) Final Plat for Condominium or Townhome
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	a. This process is applicable to existing buildings converting into condominiums or townhomes and as the final step for new condominiums or townhomes. A new condominium or townhouse subdivision shall first be processed as a Simple Subdivision per Sect...
	b. Approval is required before any sale of individual units in a multiunit dwelling, or of individual commercial or other space within a larger building, whether or not there is tenancy in common.

	(3) Common Review Procedures
	(4) Application Submittal
	(5) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Final Plats for Condominium or Townhome applications are reviewed and decided on by the Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5).
	b. No requirement for public improvements, dedication of land to public use or cash-in-lieu, or other subdivision requirement shall be imposed as a condition of approval for a condominium subdivision or common interest community which would not be imp...
	c. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Final Plat for a Condominium or Townhome:
	(i) The proper dedications have been made; and
	(ii) The plat accurately depicts the completion of the improvements in a manner that is substantially consistent with the approved Final Plat.


	(6) Post-Decision Actions

	(e) Flood Hazard Development Permit
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	(3) Common Review Procedures
	(4) Application Submittal
	a. Elevation in relation to mean sea level of the lowest floor (including basement) of all structures;
	b. Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any structure has been floodproofed;
	c. Certification by a Colorado registered professional engineer or architect that the floodproofing methods for any nonresidential structure meet the relevant floodproofing criteria set forth in Section 15-5-20; and
	d. Description of the extent to which any watercourse will be altered or relocated as a result of proposed development.

	(5) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Flood Hazard Development Permit applications are reviewed and decided on by the Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5).
	b. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Flood Hazard Development Permit:
	(i) The application shall comply with all standards set forth in this Section 15-5-20;
	(ii) The uses, activities, and structures included in the application:
	(iii) Are likely to have little or no effect on lands upstream, downstream and in the immediate vicinity of the development covered under the Flood Hazard Development Permit including, without limitation, utility and transportation facilities;
	(iv) Will not result in an unreasonable risk of harm to people or property – both on site and in the surrounding area – from natural hazards;
	(v) Are likely to have little or no effect on any tributaries to the main stream, drainage ditches, water supply and irrigation ditches, storm drainage facilities, reservoirs, or any other drainage or irrigation facilities or systems; and
	(vi) Are likely to have little or no effect on the safety of access to property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency vehicles.
	(vii) The heights and velocities of the floodwaters expected at the site shall not adversely affect the development of surrounding property.



	(f) Historic District Overlay Review, Minor
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	a. Building repairs and maintenance, including painting;
	b. In kind replacement of exterior building elements;
	c. Alterations that are not viewable by the public from a public right-of-way, except from alleys;
	d. Reroofing with the same materials and colors;
	e. Utility modifications that do not impact the exterior of the building or increase mass of the building; and
	f. Artwork painted on or attached to the exterior of the building.

	(3) Common Review Procedures
	(4) Application Submittal
	a. An explanation of the how the project will affect or impact the Historic District Overlay within the written narrative;
	b. A site plan including existing and proposed easements, buildings, and utilities; and
	c. Building design plans including detailed elevations showing exterior materials, finishes, design detail, and the proposed structure alongside the adjacent structures.

	(5) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Minor Alteration applications are reviewed and decided on by the Town Administrator. The Town Administrator may refer any application to the Historic Preservation Committee that, in their opinion, presents issues that require Historic Preservation ...
	b. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Historic District Overlay Review:
	(i) The following criteria apply to all applications:
	1. Compliance with Section 15-2-80(a)(7), Design Standards for All Development in the Historic District Overlay.

	(ii) The following criteria apply to Non-Contributing Property:
	1. Compatibility with the property’s current design, materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing; or
	2. Compatibility with the Historic District Overlay’s design, materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing.

	(iii) The following criteria apply to total demolition of Contributing Property:
	1. The property proposed for demolition is not structurally sound, despite evidence of the owner’s efforts to properly maintain it;
	2. The property cannot be preserved, restored, rehabbed, or reused on site to provide for any reasonable, beneficial use of the property regardless of any proposed development plan for the property’s site or adjacent properties; and
	3. The property cannot be practically moved to another site in Town.

	(iv) The following criteria apply to partial demolition of Contributing Property:
	1. The partial demolition is required for the preservation, restoration, or rehabilitation of the property.



	(6) Post-Decision Actions

	(g) LUC Interpretation
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	a. An applicant, any person affected by an action proposed pursuant to this Code, or any Town department or other governmental agencies that may be subject to the provisions of this Code may request an LUC Interpretation.
	b. Interpretations may be requested for a provision of this LUC subject to a proposed or current application, hearing, or appeal.
	c. The Town Administrator may also provide a property-specific LUC Interpretation in the form of a LUC clarification that identifies whether specific regulations in this LUC are applicable to the subject property.

	(3) Common Review Procedures
	a. Section 15-8-20(e)(3)a, Town Cost Reimbursement, is not required.
	b. Section 15-8-20(f)(1) Referral Agency Review, is not required.

	(4) Review and Decision-Making
	a. LUC Interpretation applications are reviewed and decided on by the Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5).
	b. Interpretations shall be made in accordance with the following review criteria:
	(i) The intent or purpose statement of the specific regulation;
	(ii) Context of related regulations;
	(iii) Implementation of the Master Plan and other applicable Town plans; and
	(iv) Individual and community life, safety, and public health.


	(5) Post-Decision Actions
	a. The Town Administrator shall maintain an official record of all interpretations, which shall be available for public inspection during normal business hours.
	b. LUC Interpretations do not expire. The Town Administrator, in their discretion, may reconsider and revise a previous interpretation.


	(h) Minor Plat Amendment
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	a. Correct an error or omission;
	b. Indicate monument changes or corrections;
	c. Correct an error in courses and distances of lot lines between two adjacent lots if:
	(i) Both lot owners join in the application for amending the plat;
	(ii) Neither lot is abolished;
	(iii) The amendment does not attempt to remove recorded covenants or restrictions; and
	(iv) The amendment does not have a material adverse effect on the property rights of the owners in the plat;

	d. Relocate a lot line to eliminate an inadvertent encroachment of a building or other improvement on a lot line or easement;
	e. Relocate or remove one or more lot lines between one or more adjacent lots if all of the following have been met:
	(i) The owners of all those lots join in the application;
	(ii) The amendment does not attempt to remove recorded covenants or restrictions; and
	(iii) The amendment does not increase the number of lots;

	f. Consolidate no more than three previously platted lots into fewer lots;
	g. Vacate an easement; or
	h. Vacate a previously recorded plat of record.

	(3) Common Review Procedures
	(4) Application Submittal
	a. In addition to the application requirements in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall be prepared in the form of an affidavit or, where deemed necessary by the Town Administrator, a revised plat certified by a land surveyor licensed with the ...
	b. Vacation of a utility easement shall be accomplished by letters of acquiescence from all interested utility companies.

	(5) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Minor Plat Amendment applications are reviewed and decided on by the Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5).
	b. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Minor Plat Amendment:
	(i) There is no increase the number of lots and the amendment does not create new lots;
	(ii) The amendment does not affect a recorded easement without approval of the easement holder;
	(iii) Street locations will not be changed; and
	(iv) The amendment will not create any nonconformities or increase the degree of nonconformity of any existing structure, use, or development standards.


	(6) Post-Decision Actions

	(i) Sign Permit
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Common Review Procedures
	(3) Application Submittal
	a. An application may be submitted by the owner, occupant, or lease holder.
	b. An application may include all signs to be installed at a single building location, including multiple tenants, but may not include more than one business location at a different building.

	(4) Review and Decision-Making
	(5) Post-Decision Actions

	(j) Sign Plan, Coordinated
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Common Review Procedures
	(3) Application Submittal
	a. Sign dimensions and approximate locations;
	b. Materials and colors;
	c. Proposed illumination, including illumination levels;
	d. Maximum numbers of tenant signs per sign face;
	e. A design theme with illustrative examples of each sign type and the proposed general locations of each sign type;
	f. A demonstration that the Coordinated Sign Plan will improve the aesthetics of the development and will not have an adverse impact on the use, enjoyment, or value of adjacent properties; and
	g. Other maps, drawings or materials as required by the Town Administrator.

	(4) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Coordinated Sign Plans applications are reviewed and decided on by the Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5).
	b. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-20(f)(5), the standards in Section 15-7-110(b) shall be met when deciding on a Coordinated Sign Plan.

	(5) Post-Decision Actions

	(k) Simple Subdivision
	(1) Purpose
	a. Create up to four additional lots or condominium/townhouse units where no new infrastructure or public improvements are required;
	b. Relocate or remove one or more lot lines, that does not qualify as a Minor Plat Amendment; or
	c. Change a plat beyond the amendments allowed under a Minor Plat Amendment.

	(2) Common Review Procedures
	(3) Application Submittal
	a. A Simple Subdivision application may be filed by any property owner with title to the entire property subject to the application.
	b. In addition to the application requirements in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall contain the following information:
	(i) A plat map as required for a Final Plat in Section 15-8-40(k)(4);
	(ii) A site plan of the property at a scale legible for reasonable review and interpretation by the Town Administrator showing:
	1. Existing and proposed lot or unit and parcel boundaries;
	2. Existing zoning; and
	3. The location and dimensions of existing conditions including, but not limited to, improvements such as buildings, easements, parking areas, sidewalks, streets, drives, alleys and roads on or adjoining the property. Other significant conditions exis...

	(iii) Other materials necessary to show compliance with Article 4, Subdivision Design and Improvement and this Code.


	(4) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Simple Subdivision applications are reviewed and decided on by the Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5).
	b. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Simple Subdivision:
	(i) The resulting lots or units comply with all applicable requirements of this Code;
	(ii) Any changes to existing easements or right-of-way have been completed in accordance with this Code or otherwise allowed by law (additional easements or right-of-way may be dedicated);
	(iii) The existing right-of-way is not changed;
	(iv) If a new lot(s) is being created, the total number of new lots on the property created through Simple Subdivision within the preceding 10 years does not exceed four; and
	(v) If vacating a plat, the result of the vacation will not interfere with development or deny access via public right-of-way to adjoining properties, utility service, or other improvements.


	(5) Post-Decision Actions

	(l) Site Plan
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	a. All new construction, except those that are part of an application for Subdivision or PUD.
	b. Placing a built or partially built building on a property including accessory structures greater than 150 square feet in area.
	c. The following applications or requests:
	(i) Temporary uses and structures;
	(ii) Change of use into a new category as set forth in Table 15-3-1: Use Table; and
	(iii) Special Use Permit;

	d. Any proposed redevelopment that meets the definition in this Code; and
	e. Requests for amendments or modifications to approvals that do not qualify for an Administrative Adjustment including:
	(i) Relocation of development pads, buildings, or dwelling units for some practical reasons such as topography, road alignment or easements provided that the modification does not significantly alter the site design in terms of parking layouts, vehicu...
	(ii) A modification to a recreation area or open space design, but not elimination or more than a 10 percent reduction;
	(iii) A change in the parking layout or vehicular circulation;
	(iv) Any change that may affect an adjoining development;
	(v) Any request that would significantly alter the design of the site or building(s); and
	(vi) A request to change or delete a condition of approval established by the decision-making body.


	(3) Common Review Procedures
	(4) Application Submittal
	a. In addition to the application requirements in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall contain a site plan of the property at a scale legible for reasonable review and interpretation by the Town Administrator including, but not limited to, the...
	(i) Lot and parcel boundaries and dimensions;
	(ii) Existing easements and natural features;
	(iii) Abutting roads;
	(iv) Location and dimensions of vehicular and pedestrian access and circulation on the property;
	(v) Location and dimensions of all existing and proposed uses and structures, including any proposed temporary uses;
	(vi) Distance of all structures from property lines;
	(vii) Parking layout with dimensions;
	(viii) Landscaping;
	(ix) Outdoor lighting;
	(x) Layout of recreational vehicle or manufactured home spaces and utilities, if applicable;
	(xi) Proposed Administrative Adjustment, if applicable;
	(xii) A phasing plan, if applicable; and
	(xiii) Any other information necessary to show the requirements of this Code and the review criteria have been met


	(5) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Site Plan applications are reviewed and decided on by the Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5).
	b. The Town Administrator may refer any Site Plan application to the Planning Commission that, in the Town Administrator’s opinion, presents issues that require Planning Commission attention.
	c. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Site Plan:
	(i) Any significant adverse impacts reasonably anticipated to result from the Site Plan application will be mitigated or offset to the maximum extent practicable;
	(ii) The development proposed and its general location is, or will be, compatible with the character of surrounding land uses and structures; and
	(iii) The development can be adequately served by Town services including, but not limited to roads, water, and wastewater.


	(6) Post-Decision Actions
	a. Approved Site Plan documents shall be binding upon the applicants and their successors and assigns.
	b. When Site Plan review is required, structures and uses may be established and building permits may be issued only after a Site Plan showing the proposed development or redevelopment has been approved in accordance with the procedures and requiremen...
	c. The construction, location, use or operation of all land and structures within the site shall conform to all conditions and limitations set forth in the documents.
	d. No structure, use, or other element of approved Site Plan documents shall be eliminated, altered, or provided in another manner unless an amended Site Plan is approved. Requests for amendments of approved Site Plans shall be processed in accordance...


	(m) Slope Hazard Development Permit
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	(3) Common Review Procedures
	(4) Application Submittal
	a. In addition to the general application submittal requirements, the application shall contain:
	(i) A topographic map or maps showing the location, nature and dimensions of the proposed development at a scale legible for reasonable review and interpretation by the Town Administrator;
	(ii) A detailed site plan showing:
	1. The location of all existing and proposed structures and paved surfaces on the applicant's property and any existing septic systems and wells on the property;
	2. The location of the proposed area of disturbance on the applicant's property and its relation to neighboring properties' structures, roads, and watercourses;
	3. The location on the applicant's property of all existing watercourses, marshes, wooded areas, rock outcrops, single trees with a diameter of eight inches or more measured three feet above the base of the trunk, and all other significant existing la...
	4. The existing grades on the applicant's property with contour lines at two-foot intervals and proposed grades within the area of the proposed construction or alteration.

	(iii) A drainage plan submitted by a licensed professional engineer showing:
	1. All existing and proposed natural and artificial drainage courses and other features for the control of drainage, erosion, and water.
	2. The calculated volume of water runoff from the slope(s) and from the lot in question, as unimproved.
	3. The calculated volume of water runoff from the slope(s) and from the lot in question, as improved.
	4. The existence, location and capacity of all natural and artificial drainage courses and facilities within 500 feet of the lot which are or will be used to carry or contain the water runoff from the slope(s) and the lot; and
	5. A geologist’s or registered geotechnical engineer’s report explaining the maps and cross sections required in this Section with particular emphasis on evaluating and predicting the impact of the slope hazard areas on the proposed developments. It s...

	(iv) A vegetation protection plan that demonstrates compliance with Section 15-5-30(e)(3), Removing Vegetation.


	(5) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Slope Hazard Development Permit applications are reviewed and decided on by the Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5).
	b. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-20(h)(4), application shall comply with all standards set forth in this Section.


	(n) Temporary Use Permit
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	(3) Common Review Procedures
	(4) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Temporary Use Permit applications are reviewed and decided on by the Town Administrator per Section 15-8-20(f)(5).
	b. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Temporary Use Permit:
	(i) Requirements for vehicular ingress/egress and corresponding traffic safety provisions, parking requirements and facilities, and hours of operation;
	(ii) Regulation of public nuisance factors (e.g., light glare, noise, vibration, smoke, dust, dirt, odors, gases, and heat); and
	(iii) Regulation of maintenance and site restoration during, and after termination of the temporary use or expiration of the Temporary Use Permit.


	(5) Post-Decision Actions

	(o) Vacation Rental Permit
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	(3) Common Review Procedures
	(4) Application Submittal
	a. Required Maps and Plans
	(i) Graphic Bar Scale Required
	(ii) Vicinity Map
	(iii) Adjacent Land Owner Map
	(iv) Site Plan
	(v) Parking Plan
	(vi) Floor Plans
	(vii) Proposed Improvements Plan

	b. Adjacent Land Owner List
	c. Manager Contact Information for Adjacent Land Owners
	d. Proof of Ownership
	e. Proof of Insurance
	f. Signage and Lighting Drawing
	g. Management Information
	h. Additional Information

	(5) Review and Decision-Making
	(6) Post-Decision Actions


	15-8-40 Specific Procedures – Public Hearing Required
	(a) Annexation and Disconnection
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	(3) Review Procedures

	(b) Appeal of an Administrative Decision
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Common Review Procedures
	(3) Application Submittal
	a. Appeals may be requested by an affected party aggrieved by an administrative decision made under this Code. For purposes of this Section, an affected party is:
	(i) The applicant for the decision being appealed;
	(ii) The owner or tenant of a lot or parcel of land located within 1,000 feet of the subject property; or
	(iii) Any resident of the Town who has submitted written comments prior to the public hearing on the application.

	b. Recommendations to another decision-making body cannot be appealed.
	c. All requests shall be submitted within 30 days following issuance of the Notice of Decision being appealed.
	d. In addition to the application requirements in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall contain a written narrative that includes an explanation of the appeal and how it meets the approval criteria in Section 15-8-40(b)(5).
	e. The Town Administrator shall notify, in writing, the applicant, any administrative official involved, and the Board of Trustees of all appeal public hearings scheduled.
	f. The published notice of the public hearing shall be in accordance with Section 15-8-20(g)(1).

	(4) Stay of Proceedings
	a. An appeal stays all proceedings in furtherance of the action appealed from except as provided in Section 4.b below. No further action will be taken by the Town on the initial application or request while the administrative decision is being appealed.
	b. The Town may decide not to stay activities related to the application while the administrative decision is being appealed where a stay would cause imminent peril to life or property, determined as follows:
	(i) The staff member from whom the appeal is taken certifies to the Planning Commission that by reason of facts stated in the appeal, a stay would, in that officer’s opinion, cause imminent peril to life or property.
	(ii) In these cases, proceedings shall not be stayed other than by a court of record upon application to same and notice to the officer from whom the appeal is taken and on due cause shown.


	(5) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Appeals of Administrative Decisions, except for vacation rental permit renewals, shall be made to the Board of Adjustment. Decisions on Appeals of vacation rental permit renewals shall be made to the Board of Trustees. Both types of appeal shall re...
	b. The Board of Adjustment or Board of Trustees may reverse or modify the action.
	c. The decision being appealed may only be reversed upon finding all of the following criteria have been met:
	(i) The administrative officer acted in a manner inconsistent with the provisions of this LUC; or
	(ii) Made erroneous findings of fact based on the evidence and testimony on the record.



	(c) Appeal of a Planning Commission or Historic Preservation Committee Decision
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Common Review Procedures
	(3) Application Submittal
	a. Appeals may be requested by an affected party aggrieved by a Planning Commission or Historic Preservation Committee decision made under this Code. For purposes of this Section, an affected party is:
	(i) The applicant for the decision being appealed;
	(ii) The owner or tenant of a lot or parcel of land located within 1,000 feet of the subject property; or
	(iii) Any resident of the Town who has submitted written comments prior to the review hearing on the application.

	b. Recommendations to another decision-making body cannot be appealed.
	c. All requests shall be submitted within 30 days following issuance of the Notice of Decision being appealed.
	d. In addition to the application requirements in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall contain a written narrative that includes an explanation of the appeal and how it meets the approval criteria in Section 15-8-40(b)(5).
	e. The Town Administrator shall notify, in writing, the applicant, any administrative official involved, and the Board of Trustees of all appeal public hearings scheduled.
	f. The published notice of the public hearing shall be in accordance with Section 15-8-20(g)(1).

	(4) Stay of Proceedings
	a. An appeal stays all proceedings in furtherance of the action appealed from except as provided in Section 4.b below. No further action will be taken by the Town on the initial application or request while the decision is being appealed.
	b. The Town may decide not to stay activities related to the application while the decision is being appealed where a stay would cause imminent peril to life or property, determined as follows:
	(i) A staff member certifies to the Board of Trustees that by reason of facts stated in the appeal, a stay would, in that officer’s opinion, cause imminent peril to life or property.
	(ii) In these cases, proceedings shall not be stayed other than by a court of record upon application to same and notice to the officer from whom the appeal is taken and on due cause shown.


	(5) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Appeals of Planning Commission and Historic Preservation Committee Decisions shall be made to the Board of Trustees in a public hearing.
	b. The Board of Trustees may reverse or modify the action.
	c. The decision being appealed may only be overturned upon finding all of the following criteria have been met:
	(i) The Planning Commission or Historic Preservation Committee acted in a manner inconsistent with the provisions of this LUC; or
	(ii) Made erroneous findings of fact based on the evidence and testimony on the record.



	(d) Avalanche Hazard Permit, Major
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	a. All development activity or land use not expressly allowed through a Minor Avalanche Development Permit including development in the High Hazard Red Zone; and
	b. Avalanche control structures, including deflecting berms and structures, mounds and structures, direct-protection structures, catching structures, snow drift fences, snow support structures and similar facilities designed to inhibit, block, divert,...

	(3) Common Review Procedures
	(4) Application Submittal
	a. A two-part, site specific engineering study report that contains:
	(i) The complete study and report (as prepared by a qualified professional civil or geotechnical engineer licensed in Colorado or qualified professional geologist in the field of avalanche occurrence, force and behavior) documenting avalanche impact p...
	(ii) Complete construction plans and specifications for all proposed buildings and structures (as prepared by a qualified structural engineer licensed to practice in the State of Colorado), including the structural engineer's certification that the bu...

	b. All investigations, studies, and reports shall be prepared at the applicant's expense. The investigations, studies, and reports must specifically answer the following:
	(i) Whether the site specific conditions are such that the property can or cannot be developed for the specific structures or proposed uses with or without on-site protective measures and, if protective measures are necessary, what those specific meas...
	(ii) Whether the on-site protective measures will increase the hazard to other properties, structures, roads, rights-of-way, easements, utilities, or construction located adjacent to or downslope from the applicant's property.

	c. Certification by the design engineer that the on-site protective measures, if constructed as designed, will withstand the documented avalanche impact pressures and protect the subject properties without adversely impacting adjoining and/or downslop...
	d. A vegetation protection and removal plan that demonstrates compliance with Section 15-5-10(d)(5), Vegetation Removal Prohibited.

	(5) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Review and Decision
	b. Review Criteria
	(i) The application shall comply with all standards set forth in Section 15-5-10.
	(ii) The applicant has submitted sufficient proof that the site can be developed for the proposed use because the danger posed by an avalanche can be reduced or mitigated to a reasonable level.
	(iii) The public health, safety, and welfare hazards associated with developing and occupying property are maximally reduced to a reasonable and acceptable level, including specific findings that establishment of the proposed improvements and/or land ...
	(iv) The applicant does not have the opportunity to build outside the hazard and chooses, with substantial hardship reason, to develop within the avalanche hazard area boundaries.


	(6) Post Decision Actions and Obligations
	a. Prior to issuance of any building permit for construction within the High Hazard Red Zone or Moderate Hazard Blue Zone, the applicant shall sign a release and indemnification agreement and the agreement shall be properly recorded in the office of t...
	b. All plans submitted with a building permit application for property within a High Hazard Red or Moderate Hazard Blue Zone shall be stamped "Construction in Avalanche Hazard Area," together with the applicable sub-zone designation.


	(e) Flood Hazard Variance
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	a. Flood Hazard Variances may be issued for new construction and substantial improvements to be erected on a lot contiguous to and surrounded by lots with existing structures constructed below the base flood level, provided that the criteria set forth...
	b. Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of structures upon a determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure and the variance is the minimum n...
	c. Variances shall not be issued within any floodway if any increase in flood levels during the base flood discharge would result.

	(3) Common Review Procedures
	(4) Application Submittal
	a. A contour map of existing and proposed contours prepared by a Colorado registered land surveyor showing the subject property and at least 300 feet of the area outside the perimeter of the subject property;
	b. A drainage study prepared by a Colorado registered professional engineer which utilizes the criteria presented in this Section, which is supplemented by other reliable source material (e.g., Corps of Engineers, Housing and Urban Development), and c...
	c. An appendix to the drainage study that addresses each of the subjects cited by Subsection (4) below.

	(5) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Review and Decision
	b. Review Criteria
	(i) All technical evaluations and all relevant factors and standards specified in Section 15-5-20 have been met;
	(ii) The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands to the injury of others;
	(iii) The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage;
	(iv) The susceptibility of the proposed facility and the contents to flood damage and the effect of flood damage on the individual owner;
	(v) The importance of the services provided by the proposed facility to the community;
	(vi) The availability of alternative locations for the proposed use which are not subject to flooding or erosion damage;
	(vii) The compatibility of the proposed use with existing and anticipated development;
	(viii) The relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive and flooding management program for the area;
	(ix) The safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency vehicles;
	(x) The cost of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions, including maintenance and repair of public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical and water systems, and streets and bridges;
	(xi) Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief; and
	(xii) Variances shall only be issued upon:
	1. A showing of sufficient cause;
	2. A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship to the applicant; and
	3. A determination that failure to grant the variance will not result in increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety or extraordinary public expense, or create nuisances, cause fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict with...



	(6) Post Decision Actions and Obligations

	(f) Historic District Overlay Designation
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	(3) Common Review Procedures
	(4) Application Submittal
	a. Historic District Overlay Designation may be initiated by:
	(i) The owner(s) of the property to be designated;
	(ii) A member(s) of the Historic Preservation Committee, Planning Commission, and/or Board of Trustees, and/or
	(iii) Any person residing, owning, or leasing property in the Town.

	b. Where nominated by someone other than the property owner, the Town Administrator shall contact the owner(s) in writing outlining the reasons and effect of Historic District Overlay Designation.
	c. Applications for designation shall not be considered complete if more than 25 percent of the property owners oppose in writing or though ballot prepared and administered by the Town.
	d. In addition to the application requirements in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall contain the following:
	(i) A description of the land area, including lot and block numbers to be added, removed, or otherwise modified;
	(ii) A drawing drawn to a scale legible for reasonable review and interpretation by the Town Administrator showing boundaries of the area requested to be added, removed, or otherwise modified; and
	(iii) Identification of Contributing and Non-Contributing Property within the land area to be added, removed, or otherwise modified.


	(5) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Review and Decision
	b. Review Criteria
	(i) Eligibility Criteria
	1. Properties shall be at least 50 years old and meet one or more of the following criteria:
	a. Association with an event or events that have made a significant contribution to history;
	b. Connection with persons significant in history;
	c. Distinctive characteristics of a type, period, method of construction, or artisan;
	d. Geographic importance; and/or
	e. Possibility to yield important information related to prehistory or history.

	2. A property may be exempted from the age standard if the Board of Trustees finds it to be exceptionally important in other criteria.

	(ii) Integrity Criteria
	1. Location: The place where the property was constructed or the place where the historic event occurred.
	2. Design: The combination of elements that create the form, plan, space, structure, and style of a property.
	3. Setting: The physical environment of a property.
	4. Materials: The physical elements that were combined or deposited during a particular period of time and in a particular pattern or configuration to form a property.
	5. Workmanship: The physical evidence of the crafts of a particular culture or people during any given period in history or prehistory.
	6. Feeling: A property’s expression of the aesthetic or historic sense of a particular period of time.
	7. Association: The direct link between an important historic event or person and a property.

	(iii) Removal Criteria


	(6) Post-Decision Actions
	a. Historic District Overlay Designations must be completed by Ordinance in accordance with Chapter 1, Article 3, Division 2 of the Municipal Code.
	b. Historic District Overlay Designations do not expire.


	(g) Historic District Overlay Review, Major
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	a. Creating new openings and changing exiting openings, unless the openings are located along an alley;
	b. Modifying exterior materials;
	c. Any alteration that changes size or mass of building; and
	d. Removal of building elements.

	(3) Common Review Procedures
	(4) Application Submittal
	a. An explanation of the how the project will affect or impact the Historic District Overlay within the written narrative;
	b. A site plan including existing and proposed easements, buildings, and utilities; and
	c. Building design plans including detailed elevations showing exterior materials, finishes, design detail, and the proposed structure alongside the adjacent structures.

	(5) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Major Alterations are reviewed and decided on by the Historic Preservation Committee at a public meeting that is not required to be a public hearing.
	b. In addition to the generally applicable review criteria in Section 15-8-20(h)(4), the following criteria shall be met when deciding on a Historic District Overlay Review:
	(i) The following criteria apply to all applications:
	1. Compliance with Section 15-2-80(a)(7), Design Standards for All Development in the Historic District Overlay.

	(ii) The following criteria apply to Non-Contributing Property:
	1. Compatibility with the property’s current design, materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing; or
	2. Compatibility with the Historic District Overlay’s design, materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing.

	(iii) The following criteria apply to total demolition of Contributing Property:
	1. The property proposed for demolition is not structurally sound, despite evidence of the owner’s efforts to properly maintain it;
	2. The property cannot be preserved, restored, rehabbed, or reused on site to provide for any reasonable, beneficial use of the property regardless of any proposed development plan for the property’s site or adjacent properties; and
	3. The property cannot be practically moved to another site in Town.

	(iv) The following criteria apply to partial demolition of Contributing Property:
	1. The partial demolition is required for the preservation, restoration, or rehabilitation of the property.



	(6) Post-Decision Actions

	(h) Land Use Code Text Amendment
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Common Review Procedures
	(3) Application Submittal
	a. Text Amendments may be initiated by the Board of Trustees, the Planning Commission, the Town Administrator, or by the application of any person residing, owning, or leasing property in the Town.
	b. Text Amendments initiated by the Town Administrator, Planning Commission, or Board of Trustees are exempt from preapplication meetings and application submittal and acceptance steps of the Common Review Procedures.

	(4) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Review and Decision
	(i) The Text Amendment shall be reviewed and recommended by the Planning Commission and decided on by the Board of Trustees, both in a public hearing.
	(ii) Approval of a Text Amendment requires a favorable vote of a majority of the Board of Trustees unless a protest is filed.
	(iii) A favorable vote of two-thirds of all the members of the Board of Trustees shall also be required when an amendment or change has not been recommended by the Planning Commission or in the event of the repeal of all or part of this Code.

	b. Review Criteria
	(i) To address trends in development or regulatory practices;
	(ii) To expand, modify, or add requirements for development in general or to address specific development issues;
	(iii) To add, modify, or expand zoning districts; or
	(iv) To clarify or modify procedures for processing development applications.


	(5) Post-Decision Actions
	a. Text Amendments must be completed by Ordinance in accordance with Chapter 1, Article 3, Division 2 of the Municipal Code.
	b. Text Amendments do not expire.


	(i) Master Plan Amendment
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Common Review Procedures
	a. Before processing an application, the Town Administrator shall determine whether it is in the best interests of the Town to devote staff and Planning Commission resources to a full review of the Master Plan Amendment application.
	b. Master Plan Amendments requested by the Town Administrator, Planning Commission, or Board of Trustees are exempt from preapplication meetings and application submittal and acceptance steps of the Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-20.

	(3) Application Submittal
	a. Master Plan Amendment may be initiated by the Town Administrator, Planning Commission, Board of Trustees, or any Silverton property owner, resident, or tenant.
	b. The Town Administrator may limit the timing and frequency of when Master Plan Amendments are considered to better ensure a holistic review process and avoid small or piecemeal amendments.

	(4) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Review and Decision
	b. Review Criteria
	(i) The amendment is consistent with the overall intent of the Master Plan;
	(ii) The existing Master Plan and any related element thereof is in need of the proposed amendment;
	(iii) It is necessary or desirable because of changing social values, new planning concepts, or other social or economic conditions and strict adherence to the Master Plan will result in a situation neither intended nor in keeping with other key eleme...
	(iv) The proposed amendment will not have a negative effect on the immediate areas or on transportation, services, and facilities;
	(v) The proposed amendment will have minimal effect on service provision, including adequacy or availability of public facilities and services, and is compatible with existing and planned service provision and future development of the area;
	(vi) The proposed amendment, if for an area that is outside of the Town’s current municipal boundaries, is consistent with the Town’s ability to annex the property; and
	(vii) The proposed amendment will promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of the people of Silverton.


	(5) Post-Decision Actions
	a. Master Plan Amendments must be completed by Ordinance in accordance with Chapter 1, Article 3, Division 2 of the Municipal Code.
	b. Master Plan Amendments do not expire.


	(j) Special Use Permit
	(1) Purpose
	a. Special uses are land uses that are generally not allowed in a zoning district because they have the potential for causing adverse impacts on other uses due to factors such as location, method of operation, scale or intensity of activity, or traffi...
	b. Special Use Permits are required for:
	(i) All uses listed as special uses in Table 15-3-1: Use Table;
	(ii) Any change or expansion of a special use shall require a new Special Use Permit; and
	(iii) Development on slopes greater than 30 percent pursuant to Section 15-5-30(d).


	(2) Common Review Procedures
	(3) Application Submittal
	a. Special Use Permit applications may be filed by any property owner.
	b. In addition to the application requirements in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall include a Site Plan that also identifies the time schedule for any contemplated new construction or uses.

	(4) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Review and Decision
	b. Review Criteria
	(i) The use will not be contrary to public health, safety, or welfare.
	(ii) The use will not have an adverse effect upon surrounding property values.
	(iii) The use will not generate light, noise, odor, vibration, or other effects which would unreasonably interfere with the reasonable enjoyment of other property in the area.
	(iv) The use is compatible with existing uses in the area and other allowed uses in the zoning district.
	(v) Streets, access points, and pedestrian facilities are adequate or will be adequate to handle traffic generated by the use with safety and convenience.
	(vi) The use and site layout will be compatible with the mass and scale of adjacent properties, or compatible with the mass and scale of properties in the area generally.
	(vii) If needed, the visual impact of the use will be mitigated by means of design, landscaping, berming, or other methods of site treatment.


	(5) Post-Decision Actions

	(k) Subdivision, Major
	(1) Purpose and Description
	a. The Major Subdivision process is to ensure that proposed subdivisions are compliant with the standards and requirements of this Code and to:
	(i) Assist orderly, efficient, and integrated development;
	(ii) Ensure conformance of land subdivision plans with the plans of the town, county, and state;
	(iii) Improve land survey monuments and records by establishing minimal standards for survey and plats;
	(iv) Safeguard the interests of the public, the homeowner, and the applicant;
	(v) Secure equitable handling of all subdivision plans by providing uniform procedures; and
	(vi) Ensure the proposal will not impose hardship or substantial inconvenience to nearby landowners or residents.

	b. This procedure shall apply to all subdivisions that do not meet the criteria for a Simple Subdivision. Applications for a Major Subdivision shall include the following steps:
	(i) Sketch Plan.
	(ii) Preliminary Plan.
	(iii) Final Plat.

	c. There shall be no sales, agreements to sell, leases or rentals of any lots in a subdivision, and the Town shall not issue building permits for structures within the subdivision until the Final Plat has been recorded in the office of the San Juan Co...

	(2) Sketch Plan
	a. Purpose
	b. Common Review Procedures
	c. Application Submittal
	(i) Location map: The location map shall indicate clearly the relationship of the proposed subdivision to the surrounding area within one-quarter mile of the subdivision's boundaries. The map shall show existing development, including all streets, uti...
	(ii) Sketch subdivision plan: The plan shall be at a scale legible for reasonable review and interpretation by the Town Administrator, in a legible medium, and shall clearly show the following: the proposed name of the subdivision; date of preparation...
	(iii) General development information: This information shall describe or outline the existing conditions of the site and proposed development as necessary to supplement the drawings required in Subsections (i) and (ii) above, and shall include inform...

	d. Review and Decision-Making
	(i) Planning Commission Comments
	1. The Planning Commission shall review the Sketch Plan and provide non-binding comments for applicant consideration in preparation of the Preliminary Plan.
	2. The public meeting to review the application is not required to be a public hearing.

	(ii) Review Considerations
	1. How the proposed subdivision complies conceptually with the Master Plan, and the applicable requirements of this Code;
	2. How the proposed subdivision will be connected to and integrated with surrounding natural and developed areas;
	3. How the project will impact neighboring properties (i.e., water drainage, traffic circulation, environmental impacts); and
	4. How the proposal promotes the efficient use of land and public streets, utilities, and governmental services.


	e. Post-Decision Actions

	(3) Preliminary Plan
	a. Purpose
	b. Common Review Procedures
	c. Application Submittal
	(i) A Preliminary Plan application may be filed by an applicant after a completed Sketch Plan review.
	(ii) In addition to the application requirements in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall contain the following information:
	1. A preliminary plat map at a scale legible for reasonable review and interpretation by the Town Administrator containing at least the following information:
	a. Outer boundary lines of the tract(s) to be subdivided by reference to a permanent survey monument;
	b. Location and dimensions of all existing streets, alleys, easements, drainage areas, irrigation ditches and laterals, 100 year floodplain, and all other significant features;
	c. Location and dimension of all proposed streets, alleys, easement, drainage areas, irrigation ditches and laterals and all other significant features. For all rights-of-way, include the name, width, type, and elevation of surfacing;
	d. Location and dimension of proposed lot lines, lot numbers, and block numbers;
	e. Location, dimensions, and purpose of all other proposed easements and areas to be reserved or dedicated for public use, such as schools, parks, playgrounds or open space, or of all facilities or open space to be commonly held or maintained;
	f. Location and full description of all monuments as required by Title 38, Article 51, C.R.S.;
	g. Site data, including gross acreage of the subdivision, number of lots, and size of each lot;
	h. Name of the proposed subdivision; names and addresses of owners, subdividers, designers and engineers; date; scale; north arrow; and legal description of tract;
	i. Vicinity map; and
	j. Standard certificate blocks and plat notes as provided by the Town Administrator;

	2. A site plan of the subdivision at a scale legible for reasonable review and interpretation by the Town Administrator showing at least the following:
	a. Existing and proposed lot and parcel boundaries;
	b. Existing zoning;
	c. The location and dimensions of existing conditions including but not limited to improvements such as buildings, easements, parking areas, sidewalks, streets, drives, alleys and roads on or adjoining the property. Other significant conditions existi...
	d. Other data or conditions on immediately adjacent land, including but not limited to names and addresses of all adjoining property owners; character and location of buildings, power lines, railroad or common carrier facilities, towers and other near...

	3. A grading and drainage plan showing at least the following information:
	a. A topographic map of ground elevations on the tract based on the United States Geological Survey datum plane or an approved datum plane by the Town Administrator, showing contours at two-foot intervals and showing the outer boundary lines of the tr...
	b. Cut and fill requirements;
	c. A map showing the method of moving runoff water through the subdivision. The map should show runoff concentrations in acres of drainage area on each street entering each intersection (this may be combined with the topographic map). Flow arrows shou...
	d. Snow removal patterns and any major snow storage areas, and the relationship to the drainage patterns;

	4. Draft infrastructure and utilities plan in compliance with the Development Standards and Specifications showing the following:
	a. Location and size of existing utilities within and adjacent to the subdivision, including water, sewer, electricity, and communication;
	b. Location, plan, and profile of all proposed utilities, including water mains, fire hydrants, sewers, other utility mains or routes (electricity, communication) and any other services that shall supply the subdivision. All utilities must be within a...
	c. Letter of commitment from all utility providers and data as may be required to show the capability and commitment of utility provision;
	d. Location and dimensions of all existing roads, sidewalks, curb, gutter or other pedestrian facilities; and
	e. Location, plan, and profile of all proposed roads, driveways, off-street parking spaces, sidewalk, curb, and gutter; and

	5. Supplemental data, as follows:
	a. Subsurface conditions on the tract: location and results of tests to ascertain subsurface soil, rock and groundwater conditions;
	b. Draft of proposed covenants whereby the applicant proposes to regulate land use in the subdivision and otherwise protect the proposed development, if applicable;
	c. Application for rezoning, if applicable;
	d. Application for annexation, if applicable; and
	e. Other materials necessary to show compliance with Article 4, Subdivision Design and Improvement and this Code.



	d. Review and Decision-Making
	(i) Review and Decision
	(ii) Review Criteria
	1. The Preliminary Plan is substantially consistent with the Sketch Plan comments;
	2. The Preliminary Plan will not have an adverse effect on the surrounding area or create an unsafe or hazardous condition;
	3. The Preliminary Plan will not cast an undue burden on public utilities and community facilities; and
	4. The Preliminary Plan proposes reasonable project phasing in terms of infrastructure capacity, transportation connections, provision of parks and recreation areas and public facilities, and any other aspect of the development that will be developed ...


	e. Post-Decision Actions
	(i) Any conditions assigned with an approval of a Preliminary Plan must be met before submittal of the Final Plat.
	(ii) Preliminary Plan approval is valid for two years. Filing of a Final Plat for all or some of the area within the Preliminary Plan extends the approval by two more years with each Final Plat. The Town Administrator may grant an extension of time fo...


	(4) Final Plat
	a. Purpose
	b. Common Review Procedures
	c. Application Submittal
	(i) The Final Plat shall conform substantially with the Preliminary Plan as approved and address all conditions of approval.
	(ii) The approved Preliminary Plan may be completed through application for one or more Final Plats. Each area subject to Final Plat shall conform to all requirements of this Code.
	(iii) In addition to the application requirements in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall contain the following information:
	1. A Final Plat map at a scale legible for reasonable review and interpretation by the Town Administrator containing at least the following:
	a. All information required for a preliminary plan map;
	b. Primary control points, or descriptions, and "ties" to the control points to which all dimensions, angles, bearings and similar data on the plat shall be referred, to include at least one permanent survey monument;
	c. Tract boundary lines, right-of-way lines of streets, easements and other rights-of-way, and property lines of residential lots and other sites, with accurate dimensions, bearing or deflection angles and radii, arcs and central angles of all curves....
	d. Surveyed legal description of the subdivision, and area of each lot;
	e. Location and description of all monuments, both found and set;
	f. Names of record owners of all adjoining land;
	g. Reference to recorded subdivision plats of adjoining platted land by record name, date, and number;
	h. Signature and seal of land surveyor registered in the State, certifying to the accuracy of the survey and plat, including a statement explaining how bearings, if used, were determined;
	i. Statement by the land owner dedicating streets, rights-of-way, easements and public sites. A warranty deed to the Town shall be required for conveyance of any public lands other than streets;
	j. Title under which the subdivision is to be recorded; and
	k. If the subdivision is within avalanche hazard areas, applicable sub-zone (High Hazard Red or Moderate Hazard Blue) designation for each lot, or portion of a lot by a stamp or other written note;

	2. Final grading and drainage plans;
	3. Final infrastructure and engineering plans and specifications in compliance with the Development Standards and Specifications for all required improvements per Section 15-4-30. The Town Administrator shall submit to the Planning Commission a staff ...
	4. Agreements with ditch companies, if applicable;
	5. A Development Improvement Agreement and performance bond drawn and posted in favor of the Town, which bond shall be of sufficient amount to assure completion of all required improvements, as further defined in Section 15-4-30, Required Improvements;
	6. Final covenants in a form suitable for recording, if applicable;
	7. A title commitment no older than 30 days; and
	8. Other materials necessary to show compliance with Article 4, Subdivision Design and Improvement and this Code.

	(iv) In no case shall additions, corrections, or modifications of any kind be made to the Final Plat other than signatures required after the Board of Trustees have approved the Final Plat, unless necessary to comply with any conditions of approval.

	d. Review and Decision-Making
	(i) Review and Decision
	(ii) Review Criteria
	1. The Final Plat is substantially consistent with the Preliminary Plan approval and any conditions assigned;
	2. Status of all fees paid to the Town;
	3. Proof of any required land dedication including rights-of-way, parks and recreation areas, and public facilities; and
	4. Provision of adequate guarantee of completion and financial security through a Development Improvement Agreement.


	e. Post-Decision Action
	(i) Recordation
	(ii) Expiration
	1. If the public improvements for a subdivision have not been constructed and accepted by the Town or provision for public improvements has not been accounted for in a Development Improvement Agreement, and the corresponding Final Plat for the subdivi...
	2. The Board of Trustees may grant an extension of time up to an additional one year at a time at the request of the applicant.




	(l) Subdivision Design Modification
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	(3) Common Review Procedures
	a. A Subdivision Design Modification request shall be made and reviewed concurrently with the Preliminary Plan.
	b. The provisions of Article 4, Subdivision Design and Improvement, but not the Development Standards and Specifications, may be modified by the Planning Commission for a Planned Unit Development without a separate application for a Subdivision Design...

	(4) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Review Criteria
	(i) There exists on the site exceptional topographical, soil, or other subsurface condition, or other extraordinary conditions peculiar to the site or existing buildings or lot configuration such that strict application of the requirement of the regul...
	(ii) A Subdivision Design Modification shall not be granted if granting it would impair the intent and purposes of this LUC.



	(m) Vacation of Right-of-Way (ROW Vacation)
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Common Review Procedures
	(3) Application Submittal
	(4) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Review and Decision
	b. Review Criteria
	(i) The public use, convenience, and necessity no longer require the use of the portions of rights-of-way, as shown by decreased or non-use over time.
	(ii) No lot or parcel shall be landlocked as a result of the vacation.
	(iii) Access to any lot or parcel shall not be restricted to the point where access is unreasonable, economically prohibitive, or reduces or devalues any property affected by the proposed vacation.
	(iv) There shall be no adverse impacts on the health, safety, and/or welfare of the general community, and the quality of public facilities and services provided to any lot or parcel of land shall not be reduced, including, but not limited to, police ...
	(v) The proposal shall not hinder public and Town functions.


	(5) Post-Decision Actions

	(n) Variance
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Applicability
	a. Variances may be applied for when an applicant seeks to deviate from the standards of this Code or an application for Historic District Overlay Review is denied.
	b. This process also includes requests for reviews of Variances by the holder of the Variance and requests for reviews of Variances based upon a signed written complaint submitted to the Town.
	c. The use tables and use standards in 15-2-80(a), Use Standards, are not subject to Variance. This prohibition includes Variances for the purpose of allowing a proposed vacation rental where prohibited by this Code.

	(3) Common Review Procedures
	(4) Application Submittal
	(5) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Review and Decision
	(i) A request for Variance is reviewed and decided on by the Board of Adjustment except Variances to subdivision standards which are reviewed and decided on by the Planning Commission, both in a public hearing.
	(ii) In granting variances, the Planning Commission and Board of Adjustment may require conditions, submissions, reports, affidavits, maps, plats or documents as will, in their judgment, secure substantially the objectives of the requirements and stan...

	b. Review Criteria
	(i) Strict compliance with the regulations would result in an extraordinary hardship defined as a condition of the property related to the land that makes it exceptionally challenging or impossible to meet the requirements of this LUC;
	(ii) Exceptional conditions exist, such as unusual topography;
	(iii) Granting the variance will not have the effect of nullifying the intent and purpose of these regulations; and
	(iv) That the spirit of this Code is observed, public safety, and welfare secured, and substantial justice done.
	(v) For a Variance to Historic District Overlay Review, the following criteria shall be considered:
	1. Economic hardship, including:
	a. The structural soundness of any buildings or structures on the property and their potential for rehabilitation.
	b. The economic feasibility of rehabilitation or reuse of the existing property in the case of a proposed demolition.
	c. For investment or income producing properties, the ability to obtain a reasonable rate of return on the property in its present condition, or in a rehabbed condition pursuant to the requirements for the Historic District Overlay.
	d. For non-income producing properties consisting of owner-occupied single-unit dwellings and/or non-income producing institutional properties not solely operating for profit, the ability to maintain or to convert the property to a reasonable resident...
	e. The consideration for economic hardship shall not include any of the following:
	i. Willful or negligent acts by the owner;
	ii. Purchase of the property for substantially more than its market value;
	iii. Failure to perform normal maintenance and repairs;
	iv. Failure to diligently solicit and retain tenants;
	v. Failure to prescribe a rental amount which is reasonable; or
	vi. Failure to provide normal tenant improvements; or


	2. Undue hardship in which the application of the criteria creates a situation that is substantially inadequate to meet the applicant’s needs because of specific health and/or safety issues.




	(o) Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning)
	(1) Purpose
	(2) Common Review Procedures
	a. Zoning Map Amendments initiated by the Town Administrator, Planning Commission, or Board of Trustees are exempt from preapplication meetings and application submittal and acceptance steps in the Common Review Procedures in Section 15-8-10(d)(1).

	(3) Application Submittal
	a. Rezoning to Base Zoning District
	(i) A Zoning Map Amendment (Base District) may be initiated by:
	1. The Board of Trustees, Planning Commission, or Town Administrator; or
	2. Any person residing, owning, or leasing property in the Town.

	(ii) In addition to the application requirements in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall contain a description of land area, including lot and block numbers to be rezoned, and requested new classification, along with a drawing to scale legible...

	b. Rezoning to PUD
	(i) A Zoning Map Amendment (PUD) may be initiated on lots under single unified ownership or control.
	(ii) In addition to the general application submittal requirements in Section 15-8-20(e)(1), the application shall contain an Overall Development Plan that includes the following information:
	1. Description of land area, including lot and block numbers to be rezoned, and requested new classification, along with a drawing to scale legible for reasonable review and interpretation by the Town Administrator showing boundaries of the area reque...
	2. General land uses proposed for each portion of the property;
	3. Time schedule for any contemplated new construction or uses;
	4. Hazard areas including slope, flood, and avalanche hazard areas;
	5. Conceptual points of connection for any streets, and for on-street bicycle and pedestrian connections through the property and to adjacent properties;
	6. Conceptual open space, trail, and wildlife habitat areas and corridor connections through the property and to adjacent properties; and
	7. Other details as required by the Town Administrator.



	(4) Review and Decision-Making
	a. Review and Decision
	(i) All Zoning Map Amendment applications shall be reviewed and recommended by the Planning Commission and decided on by the Board of Trustees, both in a public hearing.
	(ii) The adoption of any Zoning Map Amendment shall require favorable vote of a majority of the Board of Trustees; however, a favorable vote of two-thirds of all members of the Board of Trustees shall be required when a protest is filed with the Town ...

	b. Review Criteria
	(i) The rezoning is not adverse to the public health, safety, and welfare.
	(ii) The rezoning presents the Town with an opportunity for an appropriate site, at an appropriate location, for the particular type of land use or development proposed and will help the Town achieve a balance of land use, tax base, or housing types c...
	(iii) The following additional criteria shall be met when deciding on a Zoning Map Amendment (PUD):
	(iv) The PUD meets the eligibility criteria of Section 15-2-70(c); and
	(v) The proposed development cannot be accomplished by the use of any combination of base and overlay zoning districts of this Code.


	(5) Post-Decision Actions
	a. General
	(i) All Zoning Map Amendments must be completed by Ordinance in accordance with Chapter 1, Article 3, Division 2 of the Municipal Code.
	(ii) Rezonings do not expire.

	b. Modification of Previous PUD Approval
	(i) PUD amendments are classified as major or minor. Minor amendments do not exceed the criteria of Subsection (ii) below. All other changes are considered major amendments and require the review and approval of a new PUD pursuant to Section 15-8-40(o...
	(ii) Minor amendments to an approved PUD Overall Development Plan may be approved by the Town Administrator if the proposed amendment complies with the following criteria:
	1. The number of residential units shall not be increased by more than 20 percent. The Board of Trustees may approve an increase of up to 40 percent if at least 10 percent of the units provided are affordable housing.
	2. The gross square footage of nonresidential building area shall not be increased by more than 20 percent.
	3. The number or location of vehicular access points shall not be changed in a way that negatively impacts public safety or the flow of traffic onto public streets.
	4. The numeric standards in the PUD shall not be revised by more than would be allowed through the administrative adjustment procedure in Section 15-8-30(a).

	(iii) The Town Administrator may determine an amendment meeting the criteria in Subsections 1. – 4. Above should be processed as a major amendment because of the size or complexity of the proposed amendment or to allow for community input.





	Article 9 Nonconformities
	15-9-10 Purpose
	15-9-20 Applicability
	(a) This Article applies to buildings, structures, lands, and uses that become nonconforming as a result of adoption, revision, or amendment to this Code.
	(b) Any legal nonconformity existing as of the Effective Date of this Code will also be a legal nonconformity under this Code, as long as the situation that resulted in the nonconforming status under the previous Code continues to exist.
	(c) If a nonconformity under the previous Code becomes conforming because of the adoption of this Code, then the situation will no longer be a nonconformity.

	15-9-30 Regulations Applicable to All Nonconformities
	(a) Nonconforming Status
	(1) It is the owner’s burden to establish that a nonconforming use, lot, sign, or structure exists lawfully under this Code.
	(2) The use of land, use of a structure, lot, sign, outdoor lighting fixture, or structure may be determined to have a nonconforming status when each of the following conditions is satisfied:
	a. The use, lot, sign, outdoor lighting fixture, or structure was in existence and lawfully constructed, located and operating prior to, and at the time of, the event that made it nonconforming.
	b. The nonconforming status was caused by one of the following:
	(i) Annexation into the Town;
	(ii) Adoption of this Code or a previous zoning ordinance; or
	(iii) Amendment of this Code or a previous zoning ordinance.

	c. The nonconforming use, lot, sign, outdoor lighting fixture, or structure has been operating since the time that it first became nonconforming without abandonment, as defined in Section 15-9-30(e).

	(3) Nonconforming outdoor lighting fixtures are regulated in Section 15-6-40(f).
	(4) Nothing in this Section shall be interpreted as authorization for or approval of a continuance of the use of a structure or premises in violation of the regulations in effect at the time of the effective date of this LUC.

	(b) Authority to Continue
	(c) Ordinary Repair and Maintenance
	(1) Repairs that are necessary to maintain and to correct any damage or deterioration to the structural soundness or exterior or interior appearance of a building or structure without expanding the building or structure;
	(2) Maintenance of land areas to protect against health and environmental hazards; and
	(3) Repairs that are required to remedy unsafe conditions that cause a threat to public safety.

	(d) Change of Ownership or Tenancy
	(e) Discontinuance and Abandonment
	(1) When a nonconforming use is replaced with a conforming use, the nonconforming use is considered terminated and may not be resumed.
	(2) Any nonconforming use that is discontinued for, or a structure that remains vacant for a period of one year, shall be considered to have been abandoned.
	(3) Maintaining connection to or payment of public services or utilities is not evidence of continuing operations.
	(4) All nonconforming rights shall cease and the use of the premises shall be brought into conformance with this Code.
	(5) Abandonment shall involve the actual act of discontinuance, regardless of the intent of the user or owner to discontinue a nonconforming operation.
	(6) Any nonconforming use that is moved from the premises shall be considered to have been abandoned.

	(f) Destruction
	(1) If a nonconforming structure or structure specifically designed to be occupied by a nonconforming use is substantially damaged or destroyed, the owner of the damaged or destroyed structure shall have one year from the date of damage or destruction...
	a. No less than the total gross floor area of the original nonconforming structure or the minimum requirements of the applicable zoning district shall be included in the new building.
	b. Setback distances of the new building are no less than those of the original structure or the minimum requirements of the applicable zoning district.
	c. Substantial completion of the new structure takes place within one year of the removal, damage, or destruction of the original building.
	d. Compliance with all applicable building and fire codes adopted by the Town.

	(2) Failure to meet the above conditions for reconstruction shall require that the nonconforming structure be brought into full compliance with all the provisions of this Article and the zoning district within which the structure is located.


	15-9-40 Nonconforming Uses
	(a) Expansion
	(1) A nonconforming use that is not in a category of uses permitted in the zoning district may be expanded or increased to occupy the structure in which it is located, but not any land outside of the structure.
	(2) No existing structure or portion of a building that contains a nonconforming use shall be enlarged, extended, constructed, reconstructed, moved, or structurally altered in any manner that increases existing nonconformities, unless otherwise allowe...
	(3) Any existing occupied single-unit detached dwelling that is deemed to be a nonconforming use may make improvements to the main and accessory structures so long as improvements do not increase the degree of nonconformity or increase the height or b...
	(4) A nonconforming single-unit detached dwelling that has been damaged or destroyed by natural causes may be restored to its original condition, provided that the work is commenced within two years of the event and completed within three years of the...

	(b) Change of Use
	(1) Any nonconforming use may be changed to a conforming use and once the change is made, the use shall not be changed back to a nonconforming use in the future.
	(2) Where a conforming use is located in a nonconforming structure, the use may be changed to another conforming use.

	(c) Manufactured Home
	(d) Obsolete Structure

	15-9-50 Nonconforming Structures
	(a) Nonconforming Structures in Avalanche Hazard Areas
	(1) Any building or structure that has been constructed within the High Hazard Red or Moderate Hazard Blue Zone prior to the Effective Date and does not meet the standards in Section 15-5-10, Avalanche Hazard Areas shall be a nonconforming building or...
	(2) No nonconforming building in the High Hazard Red or Moderate Hazard Blue Zone may be altered to increase the building dimensions in any way, construct additional bedrooms, increase human occupancy, or increase the building's market value by 50 per...
	(3) If a nonconforming building or structure under this Section is destroyed or damaged such that the cost of repairs will equal or exceed 50 percent of the structure's assessed value, the structure shall not be repaired or rebuilt without full compli...

	(b) All Other Nonconforming Structures
	(1) A nonconforming structure may not be enlarged or altered in a way which increases its nonconformity except in the following circumstances:
	a. An enlargement or structural alteration is required by law.
	b. The structure is nonconforming to a required setback, in which case alterations are only permitted to that part of the structure located within the required setback. If the entire structure is located between the property line and the required setb...

	(2) Structural alterations may be permitted when necessary to adapt a nonconforming building to new technologies or equipment pertaining to uses that occupy the building.
	(3) Any enlargement greater than 10 percent of the gross floor area that is necessary to adapt to new technologies shall be authorized only by a Variance.


	15-9-60 Nonconforming Lots
	(a) The lot must be in separate ownership and not of contiguous frontage with other lots in the same ownership.
	(b) This provision shall apply even though a lot fails to meet the applicable requirements for lot width or area, as applicable, provided the setback dimensions, lot coverage, and other requirements not involving lot width or area of the lot shall con...
	(c) Either Section 15-8-30(a), Administrative Adjustment, or Section 15-8-40(n), Variance may be used to make requests for adjustments to area and setback requirements.

	15-9-70 Nonconforming Signs
	(a) Any sign that is permitted to remain in place as a nonconforming use may be continued in use until the sign, or a substantial part of it, is blown down or otherwise destroyed or dismantled for any purpose other than maintenance operations or for c...
	(b) If a nonconforming sign is damaged, destroyed or removed from its current property location for any reason, it may be reconstructed in compliance with its nonconforming status, provided that the reconstruction occurs within six months of its destr...


	Article 10 Enforcement and Penalties
	15-10-10 Purpose
	15-10-20 Compliance Required
	15-10-30 Authority
	15-10-40 Violations
	(a) A violation shall be defined as violation or failure to comply with:
	(1) Any provision or requirement of this Code; or
	(2) Any condition, requirement or commitment established with the approval of a Variance, Special Use Permit, Site Plan, Planned Unit Development, subdivision, or other development approval under this Code.

	(b) Each day that a violation is permitted to exist shall constitute a separate offense.

	15-10-50 Enforcement
	(a) All alleged violations of any of the provisions of this Code shall be investigated by the enforcing official either on their own initiative, upon receipt of a written complaint from a person who believes that a violation exists, or by order of the...
	(b) To enforce the terms and provisions of this Code, the enforcing official shall conduct inspections of buildings, structures, and use of land to determine compliance with this Code.
	(c) If a violation is found to exist, it shall be corrected in one or more of the following ways:
	(1) The enforcing official shall notify the property owner and any other persons responsible for the violation, in writing, and order the necessary correction.
	(2) The Building Official may issue a stop-work order by notice in writing posted on the building or property in or upon which a violation is occurring, as provided by the building code adopted by the Town.
	(3) Any local law enforcement officer may cite the property owner and/or any other persons who may be responsible with a violation of this Code, as provided in Section 15-10-60 below.
	(4) Unless otherwise provided by this Code or otherwise required by state or federal law, a period of 15 days after the date of notice shall be allowed for response to a notice of violation. In order to avoid further enforcement proceedings by the Tow...
	(5) The alleged violator shall respond by providing evidence satisfactory to the Town to show that the determination is in error and that a violation of this Code has not occurred;
	(6) The alleged violator shall restore the site, structure, or use of the property to compliance with this Code, and shall allow the Town to inspect the property to confirm compliance; or
	(7) The alleged violator shall obtain approval from the Town for an extension of time to attain compliance, showing good cause for extension, with the extension limited to 60 days unless a longer period is approved due to extenuating circumstances, an...

	(d) Upon the failure of any official to act in the case of a violation of this Chapter, the necessary notification of violation or stop-work order may be issued by the Board of Trustees, either upon its own initiative or that of the Planning Commissio...

	15-10-60 Penalties
	(a) General
	(b) Forfeiture for Sales in Unapproved Subdivisions

	15-10-70 Mandatory Demolition
	15-10-80 Building and Property Appearance and Maintenance
	(a) Applicability
	(b) Boarding Up
	(c) Damaged Buildings
	(d) Drainage and Snow Storage Impacted Buildings
	(e) Maintenance and Appearance
	(1) Exterior siding and roofing shall be properly maintained and provide the building with a weather-resistant walled envelope.
	(2) Window frames and glass shall be reasonably weather-tight and shall have panes without cracks or holes, and the sash shall fit properly. Missing or broken panes shall be promptly repaired. Windows and any other structural openings in the building ...
	(3) Doors providing entrance and exits for any structure shall fit properly and have locking devices capable of being operated from the inside and outside of the building. Barrel bolts and hasps with padlocks are not adequate for primary doors.
	(4) Fences, walls, and accessory buildings shall be maintained in a reasonably good condition, free of excess amounts of missing, broken, dilapidated or nonfunctional elements or safety hazards.
	(5) Platforms, landings, decks, and steps shall be provided, where appropriate, to serve as exits and shall be maintained in a safe condition.
	(6) Exterior awnings, shutters, and other architectural features shall be maintained in reasonably good condition, free of excess amounts of missing, broken, dilapidated or nonfunctional elements or safety hazards.
	(7) Vacant lots shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner, free of noxious weeds, litter, rubbish, graffiti, storage of any type of vehicle, trailer and/or materials, or any objectionable, unsanitary or unsightly matter of whatever nature.
	(8) Sidewalks, curbs and gutters are the duty and responsibility of any owner with property fronting any street within the Town. Sidewalks, curbs and/or gutters shall be constructed, maintained, repaired or replaced so that they are in good repair, in...

	(f) Enforcement
	(1) Responsibility for the administration of this Section shall be with the Building Official and the Code Enforcement Officer.
	(2) The Building Official and Code Enforcement Officer shall provide the property owner, via hand-delivery or certified mail, a detailed account of the nature and extent of the deficiencies of any structure in violation of this Subsection. The propert...
	(3) Upon the failure, neglect or refusal of any owner to correct the deficiencies identified by the Building Official and Code Enforcement Officer, the Town Administrator may, by order in writing, direct the condition to be abated. The order may be se...
	(4) Failure to comply with any of the provisions of this Section shall constitute a misdemeanor in accordance with Section 15-10-40, Violations.



	Article 11 Definitions and Measurements
	15-11-10 Rules of Construction
	(a) Meanings and Intent
	(b) Headings, Illustrations, And Text
	(c) Lists and Examples
	(d) Computation of Time
	(e) References to Other Regulations/Publications
	(f) Delegation of Authority
	(g) Technical and Non-Technical Terms
	(h) Public Officials and Agencies
	(i) Mandatory and Discretionary Terms
	(j) Conjunctions
	(k) Tenses and Plurals

	15-11-20 Measurements and Associated Terms
	(a) Building Footprint Measurement
	(b) Clear Vision Triangle Measurement
	(c) Gross Floor Area Measurement
	(d) Fence Height
	(1) The height of all fences will be measured from finished grade at the base of the fence to the highest point of the fence, excluding strands of wire strung above a wood, metal, or other synthetic material fence.
	(2) The height of all fences built on berms or retaining walls shall include the height of the berm or wall.

	(e) Floor Area Ratio
	(f) Height Measurement
	(1) Height shall be measured as the vertical distance from the highest point on a structure or building, excluding any chimney, antenna, cupola or steeple, to the average ground level of the grade.
	Average ground level shall be calculated as the mean (average) ground level at the four principal corners of the subject structure where the walls or other structural elements intersect the ground.

	(g) Lot Terms and Measurements
	(1) Lot
	(2) Lot Line
	a. A line marking the boundary of a lot or parcel.
	b. Front lot line means a boundary line separating a lot or parcel of land from any front street.
	c. Rear lot line means a boundary line opposite the front lot line.
	d. Side lot line means any lot line that is not a front, street-side, or a rear lot line abutting an interior lot.
	e. Street side lot line means the lot line abutting any non-front street.

	(3) Lot Area
	(4) Lot Width
	(5) Zoning Lot

	(h) Setback Measurement
	(i) Sign Measurements

	15-11-30 General Terms
	A
	B
	C
	D
	E
	F
	G
	H
	I
	J
	K
	L
	M
	N
	O
	P
	Q
	R
	S
	T
	U
	V
	W
	X
	Y
	Z


	Exhibit B Silverton_PropZonMap24x36_2024.1031.pdf

	ATTACHMENT B Addendum to the Adoption Draft.pdf
	ATTACHMENT C Public Comment.pdf
	WrightJ_2024.1119.pdf
	MooreT_2024.1203.pdf
	Reavis_2024.1205.pdf
	Comments on Land Use Code – 15-2-80
	Overlay Zoning Districts


	EdwardsA_2024.2024.1218.pdf
	AdairL_2024.2024.1218.pdf
	Reavis_2024.1223.pdf

	ATTACHMENT D Legal Notice of Public Hearing.pdf


	9b 2025-1-6 ADU Ord Amndmt MEMO
	9b1 2025-1-6 ADU Memo att Sec 16-8-80 (h)
	9b3 1.16.25 TOS Legal Notice Ordinance 2025-02 (1)
	10. Closing Public Comment seperation 



